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MISSION

To build a cleaner world and to design better
quality into the future for the next generations,
with a profound sense of social responsibility for
the territory, society and the environment while
intensifying social commitment to sustainable
mobility.
Our mission offers a tangible contribution to
this ambitious objective. For over fifty years, we
have been providing real solutions for sustainable
transportation by marketing and installing fuel
systems based on less expensive, alternative fuels
with smaller environmental footprints.
Technology, innovation and respect for the planet
and for human beings: these are the values guiding
our daily choices, transforming our present into the
future we want.

Landi Renzo
Alternative mobility.
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LETTER TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
Dear Shareholders,
we wish to share our satisfaction with all of you at having been able to respond
to market uncertainties with concrete actions, achieving positive performance
in terms of profit and cash generation, confirming the international leadership
role that Landi Renzo has enjoyed for decades combined with significant
economic results.
The actions taken by management to rationalize the cost structure have given positive results: the return to
profit and recovery of liquidity confirm the validity of our business model and the ability to generate wealth
from operating activities.
The figures for increase revenues, in particular, should be viewed in an even more positive light considering
the objective and external difficulties encountered in the important markets such as those of Pakistan and
Iran in which unfavorable regulatory measures have been concentrated.
Despite the continued contraction of the auto market in Europe, the percentage of conversions and
registrations of LPG and CNG vehicles increased significantly compared to 2011, especially in Italy due to
a combination of multiple factors favorable to our business such as the rising cost of conventional fuels,
a more generalized attention to issues of eco-mobility and the widening of the supply of alternative fuel
engines by car manufacturers, even in the absence of government incentives.
During the year we completed an operation that allowed us to enter a new business channel with the
creation of SAFE S.p.A. and to offer a complete package in the CNG
(Compressed Natural Gas) sector, laying the foundation for developing
New business
additional business opportunities such as CNG
channel 2012:
distribution stations in emerging markets with
CNG
new eco-mobility demands.

distribution
The joint-venture established in India
stations
with the Krishna Group is also important
and full of future potential, the aim of
which is to supply gas conversion systems for motor vehicles to major
car manufacturers in India.

Stefano Landi
Chairman

4

Commitments for 2013 have been diversified on several fronts. First of all, we aim to create greater value
for shareholders, focusing our efforts to confirm the positive track record in the growth of the Group. We
will also continue our activity in the dissemination of a culture of sustainable mobility, even and especially
through the constant use of resources in the field of
product innovation - in particular with the final launch
of the dual fuel diesel technology - aiming to generate
new opportunities both in markets already acquired, and
in areas where we do not yet have a presence. Finally,
launch of the diesel
we expect to complete the construction of the new
dual-fuel technology
technical center by the end of the year, planned to be
transformed, on reaching full operation, into a decisive
asset for consolidating the technological competitiveness
of the company.

2013:

Rigorous planning, advanced know-how, dedication and passion are the values on which we intend to
focus in order to create growth in the short to medium term: we hope that the efforts of all the people who
contribute daily in consolidating the Group’s success may help to create fertile ground on which to mature
further international development.

Claudio Carnevale
Chief Executive Officer
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condensed BalancE SHEET 2012
(Thousands of Euros)

2009

2010

2011

2012

CONTO ECONOMICO
Net Revenues

270,775

302,376

253,529

275,202

Gross Operating Profit

41,583

45,948

19,477

28,301

Operating Profit

32,217

31,980

-3,260

9,809

Result Before Tax

29,233

29,827

-8,213

5,572

Net Result for the Group

22,238

18,635

-9,138

2,863

Gross Operating Profit/Net Revenues

15.4%

15.2%

7.7%

10.3%

Operating Profit/Net Revenues

11.9%

10.6%

-1.3%

3.6%

Net Group Result/Net Revenues

8.2%

6.2%

-3.6%

1.0%

111,662

151,803

143,974

138,101

80,670

92,601

103,188

81,986

Non-current liabilities

-11,443

-22,222

-20,046

-19,127

NET CAPITAL EMPLOYED

180,889

222,182

227,116

200,960

41,142

69,480

90,112

61,902

Equity

139,747

152,702

137,004

139,058

BORROWINGS

180,889

222,182

227,116

200,960

ROI (EBIT(3) / Average net capital employed for the period)

20.6%

15.9%

-1.5%

4.6%

ROE (Net profit of the Group / Equity of the Group)

15.9%

12.2%

-6.7%

2.1%

Net financial debt / Equity

29.4%

45.5%

65.8%

44.5%

0.99

1.51

4.63

2.19

12,633

18,333

11,992

13,070

700

865

866

894

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
INVESTED CAPITAL
Net tangible and other non-current assets
Working capital(1)
(2)

SOURCES
Net financial position (opening cash)

KEY INDICATORS

Net financial debt / EBITDA
Investments
Personnel (peak)

(1) This is calculated as the difference between Trade Receivables, Inventories, Other Current Assets and Trade Payables, Tax liabilities, Other Current Liabilities.
(2) These are calculated by totaling Deferred Tax Liabilities, Defined Benefit Plans and Provisions for Risks and Charges.
(3) Operating Profit (EBIT) is represented by the economic result gross of financial management and taxes.
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LANDI RENZO’S MILESTONES

1950s
In 1954 Renzo Landi and his wife Giovannina
Domenichini opened Officine Meccaniche
Renzo Landi in the city of Reggio Emilia. It was
the only foundry specialising in bespoke fuel
pumps for all types of vehicles.

1960s
The sales network quickly covered domestic
territory and by 1963-1964 the company was
exporting to Japan, France, Belgium and the
Netherlands.
Soon there were new opportunities in Eastern
Europe, India and South America too.

1970-1980s
When Renzo Landi died prematurely in 1977,
his wife and son, Stefano, continued to manage
the business. Ten years later it became a joint
stock company and Stefano was appointed
Managing Director.

12

New Millennium
In 2001, 70% of Eurogas Holding B.V. was
transferred and the Landi International B.V.
subsidiary acquired Eurogas Utrecht B.V..
Also in 2001, the Group inaugurated new
headquarters in Cavriago di Reggio Emilia.
The harmonious and innovative architectural
design incorporated and expressed the concept
of advanced technology that characterises the
company and its products.
The process of internationalisation continued as
a series of overseas branches was opened: Brazil
in 2003, China in 2005 and Pakistan in 2006.
2006 was also the year when LANDIRENZO
Corporate University was founded as a factory
of ideas and activities for developing human
resources in the Landi Renzo Group and for
promoting sustainable mobility.

1990s

The Landi Renzo quality system certified ISO
9001 from 1995 and ISO/TS 16949 specifically
for the automotive sector from 2001, extended
the ISO 9001 processes and procedures to the
Italy network in November 2006 to ensure that
standards would match those already adopted
by the company.

Landi Renzo became an industrial group. In
1993 it took over Landi S.r.l. and Eurogas
Holding B.V., a Dutch company in the same
sector. In 1999, the Group opened its Polish
branch, Landi Renzo Polska S.p.Z.o.o. The
following year the Group acquired Med S.p.A.
of Reggio Emilia.

Landi Renzo Pars was inaugurated in Teheran
(Iran) in 2007. On 26 June 2007 Landi Renzo
S.p.A. was listed on the Milan stock market
STAR segment. This was a significant step,
intended to infuse new energy into the
company’s growth.
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At the same time, the listing was a guarantee of
transparency: it boosted the reputation of the
Landi Renzo Group on market and in relations
with top-level customers and suppliers.
The aim was to accelerate development in
the alternative energy sector, which demands
heavy investments in research, and this became
the driving factor for growth.
In October 2008 a subsidiary was formed in
Iran and a third world-class player, Lovato Gas,
was acquired.

2010-2012
Over the past two years expansion has continued
with the acquisitions of A.E.B. Technologies
and Baytech (USA) and the opening of new
subsidiaries in Romania, Venezuela, Argentina,
India and the United States.
In July 2012, SAFE S.p.A. came into the
Group expanding the product portfolio with
the knowhow for producing methane filling
stations, undoubtedly a competitive advantage.

Today
The Landi Renzo Group is a world-class
leader in alternative LPG and methane fuel
systems and components for vehicles with
an international market share of more than
30%.

Finally, in March 2013 the Group acquired
70% of Emmegas S.r.l..
It manufactures LPG and methane fuel
systems and components for vehicles with a
catalogue including items satisfying special
requirements of important markets in Asia
and the Americas.
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THE GROUP STRUCTURE
PROFILO

The structure of the Landi Group has changed compared with 31 December 2011, as a result of the
increased equity investment in the Brazilian company LR Industria e Comercio Ltda, from 96% to
99.99%, the increased equity investment in the Iranian company Landi Renzo Pars, from 75% to 98%,
and the formation of the wholly owned company SAFE S.p.A. on 18/07/2012, with its registered office
in San Giovanni in Persiceto (BO).

landi renzo usa corporation
BAYTECH CORPORATION
USA

Landi Renzo WORLDWIDE
A.E.B. S.p.A.
ITALY

A.E.B. America SRL
ARGENTINA

Lovato Gas S.p.A.
ITALY

Lovato do Brasil IND
Com de Equipamentos
para Gas LTDA
BRAZIL

100%
100%

SAFE S.p.A.
ITALY

100%

Landi Renzo RO
Romania

96%

100%

Officine Lovato
Private Limited
INDIA

100%

100%

Landi International B.V.
THE NETHERLAND

100%

Landi Renzo S.p.A.
ITALY

Beijing Landi Renzo
Autogas System Co LTD
CHINA

100%

landi renzo VE C.A.
venezuela
landi renzo Industria
e Comercio LTDA
LOVATO DO BRASIL IND COM
DE EQUIPAMENTOS
PARA GAS LTDA
BraZIL

Eurogas Utrecht
B.V.
THE NETHERLANDS

100%

Landi Renzo Polska
S.p.Z.o.o.
POLAND

100%

LR Pak Limited
PAKISTAN

70%

A.E.B. America SRL
Argentina

Landi Renzo Pars
IRAN

98%

Landi Renzo USA
Corporation
USA

100%

Landi Renzo VE C.A.
VENEZUELA

100%

LR Industria
e Comercio LTDA
BRAZIL

99,99%
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Baytech Corporation
USA

100%

eurogas utrech b.v.
THE NETHERLANDS
Landi renzo s.p.a.

Landi renzo polska s.p.Z.o.o.

lovato gas s.p.a.

poland

a.e.b. s.p.a.
SAFE S.p.A.
italY
landi renzo ro
romania
landi renzo pars
iran
landi renzo pak limited
pakistan

bejing Landi renzo
autogas system co. ltd
cHina

OFFICINE LOVATO
PRIVATE LIMITED
india
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PROFILO
THE
GROUP STRUCTURE
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COMPANY BODIES
Board of Directors
Chairperson of the Board of Directors
Honorary Chairperson - Director
Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director
Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Stefano Landi
Giovannina Domenichini
Claudio Carnevale
Carlo Alberto Pedroni
Carlo Coluccio
Alessandro Ovi (*)
Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano

Board of Statutory Auditors
Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Alternate Auditor
Alternate Auditor

Luca Gaiani
Massimiliano Folloni
Marina Torelli
Filippo Nicola Fontanesi
Filomena Napolitano

Control and Risks Committee
Chairman
Member of the Committee
Member of the Committee

Carlo Coluccio
Alessandro Ovi
Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano

Committee for Remuneration
Chairman
Member of the Committee
Member of the Committee

Carlo Coluccio
Alessandro Ovi
Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano

Committee for Transactions with Related Parties
Member of the Committee
Member of the Committee

Alessandro Ovi
Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano

Surveillance Body pursuant to Legislative Decree 231/01
Chairman
Member of the Body
Member of the Body

Daniele Ripamonti
Domenico Aiello
Enrico Gardani

Independent Auditors

KPMG S.p.A.

Officer in charge of preparing the Corporate Financial Statements

Paolo Cilloni

(*) The Director also holds the office of Lead Independent Director.
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PROFILO
THE
GROUP STRUCTURE
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE AT 31 DECEMBER 2012
Share
Capital

Direct
Investment

EUR

11,250,000

Parent Company

Utrecht
(The Netherlands)

EUR

18,151

100.00%

Eurogas Utrecht B.V.

Utrecht
(The Netherlands)

EUR

36,800

100.00% (*)

Landi Renzo Polska Sp.Zo.O.

Varsavia
(Poland)

PLN

50,000

100.00% (*)

LR Industria e Comercio Ltda

Espirito Santo
(Brazile)

BRL

4,320,000

99.99%

Beijing Landi Renzo
Autogas System Co. Ltd

Pechino
(China)

USD

2,600,000

100.00%

L.R. Pak (Pvt) Limited

Karachi
(Pakistan)

PKR

75,000,000

70.00%

Landi Renzo Pars Private
Joint Stock Company

Teheran
(Iran)

IRR

5,096,522,000

98.00%

Landi Renzo RO S.r.l.

Bucarest
(Romania)

RON

20,890

100.00%

LandiRenzo VE C.A.

Caracas
(Venezuela)

VEF

414,401

100.00%

Landi Renzo USA Corporation

Wilmington - DE
(USA)

USD

18,215,400

100.00%

Baytech Corporation

Los Altos - CA
(USA)

USD

5,000

A.E.B. S.p.A.

Cavriago
(RE)

EUR

2,800,000

A.E.B. America S.r.l.

Buenos Aires
(Argentina)

ARS

2,030,220

Lovato Gas S.p.A.

Vicenza

EUR

120,000

Lovato do Brasil Ind Com
de Equipamentos para Gas Ltda (^)

Curitiba
(Brazil)

BRL

100,000

100.00% (#)

Officine Lovato Private Limited

Mumbai
(India)

INR

20,000,000

100.00% (#)

SAFE S.p.A.

S. Giov. in Persiceto
(BO)

EUR

2,500,000

Company Name

Registered Office

Landi Renzo S.p.A.

Cavriago
(RE)

Landi International B.V.

Indirect
Investment

100.00% (+)
100.00%
96.00% (§)
100.00%

100%

Detailed notes on investments:					
(*) held by Landi International B.V..					
(+) held by Landi Renzo Usa Corporation.				
(§) held by AEB S.p.A..					
(#) held by Lovato Gas S.p.A..					
(^) not consolidated because not significant.
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CORPORATE VALUES
THE COURAGE OF OUR CONVICTIONS
From the day of its birth, the DNA of our company has been characterised by a profound conviction
that individuals are the fundamental value for the success of Landi Renzo S.p.A. in the world.
This conviction is reflected in the value of the daily choices we make in conducting the Group’s activities.

GROWTH

RESPECT

TRANSPARENCY

through training programmes
and regular refresher courses
to improve the knowledge and
culture of our staff at all levels

• for the work, ideas and personal
growth of each individual;

with a corporate governance
code that favours and ensures
a solid foundation for growth.

• for the environment;
• for civil society;
• for the law and regulations.

20

INNOVATION

QUALITY

RELIABILITY

structured research and years of
experience in the field give the
company a commanding position
in all sectors of operations.

developing high standards to
satisfy the expectations and
requirements of each customer.

to provide adequate guarantees
to all stakeholders including
personnel and customers;
suppliers, the distribution
network and fitters; partners
and investors.
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BUSINESS MODEL
SERVING THE MARKET WITH EXCELLENCE
The Landi Renzo business model is based on the concept of product total quality, the final output of
a series of flexible and efficient processes based on:
• containment of production costs,
• controlling the critical phases of the value chain.
The production system consists of a network managing the three main phases.

OUTSOURCING
OF COMPONENT
MANUFACTURING

FINAL ASSEMBLY BY
HIGHLY QUALIFIED
INTERNAL TEAMS

STRICT
QUALITY
CONTROL

Landi Renzo runs more than ten assembly plants throughout the world with the capacity to fit out
over 1400 eco-vehicles every day.
The Group’s companies produce the greatest variety in the world of LPG and methane fuel
transfer pumps.
These solutions are highly personalised to meet the specific requirements of each vehicle model and
are designed for the two markets of reference:
• automobile manufacturers (OEM - Original Equipment Manufacturers), through vital and consolidated
partnerships;
• the network of branches, resellers and fitters (the After-Market).
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2012 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS
April

On 24 April 2012 the Shareholders’ Meeting resolved, amongst other things, the following:
• covering of the loss for the year posted by Landi Renzo S.p.A. equal to 8,529,753.47
Euros through use of the Extraordinary Reserve.
• renewal of authorization for the purchase and disposal of treasury shares;
In April 2012 the subsidiary Landi Renzo USA obtained EPA approval for the conversion
of Ford F-series Medium Duty Vehicle including F-250/F-350 2WD /4WD pickup
variants, which use CNG systems.

July

In July2012, through the newly formed company SAFE S.p.A., which is wholly owned,
Landi Renzo S.p.A completed the lease, with conditional purchase, of the former
SAFE business unit from Agave S.r.l. in arrangement with creditors.
The aim of this transaction, strategic for the expansion of the industrial offer and
know-how, is to relaunch the SAFE brand, known for more than 35 years in the gas
treatment compressor manufacturing sector and active in the main business area
related to compressed natural gas (systems for the supply of CNG for vehicles)), in
Oil and Gas (compressors and auxiliary systems for processing gas from extraction
to distribution), and in systems for the processing of biomethane, hydrogen, and
liquefied natural gas.
On 30 July 2012 an agreement was signed setting up joint venture in India between
Landi Renzo S.p.A. and Krishna Group the aim of which will be to supply automobile
gas conversion systems for the major Indian car manufacturers.

22

October

In October 2012 Landi Renzo S.p.A. obtained funding of 20 million Euros from the
European Investment Bank (EIB) to support its research, development and innovation
investments plan for 2012 to 2014, aimed at further developing low-emission systems for
the automotive industry. The agreement with the EIB was reached after a thorough analysis
of the research and innovation plans aimed at strengthening the Group’s leadership in
the production of low environmental impact auto fuel supply systems. The loan has a
maximum duration of 5 years and is guaranteed by SACE for 10 million Euros.

November

The Group, through the AEB Robotics division, acquired a business unit operating in
the automation sector for a total investment of 706 thousand Euros. The company is
already present in this division with the production of machines and systems for the
automation of industrial processes.
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The Company Evolution
Innovation, Research and
Development
Quality

NG2, CNG pressure regulator two stages

Landi Renzo and the Future

LANDI RENZO AND THE FUTURE

THE COMPANY EVOLUTION
Since 1954 Landi Renzo has been a leader in sustainable mobility.
There are currently 30 million cars powered by LPG and CNG in circulation worldwide:
the number alone determines the absolute leadership of these technologies as part of
broader ecological transport solutions.
Technologies that are also a hallmark of the business know-how of Landi Renzo,
characterized by the combination of research and manufacturing excellence.
The company pursues its international vocation both with a direct presence in the
main strategic markets, and indirectly in more than 50 countries across all five continents.
The centrality of environmental issues is related to the Group’s ability to gain
a leading position world wide thanks to the continuous technological and qualitative
development of its products, the choice to adopt a flexible approach to the customer
and the determination to cover all geographic areas with potential for the sector through
extensive marketing of the company’s technologies.
The main strengths of the Group can be summarized as follows:
• leadership in the design and manufacture of eco-compatible LPG and CNG supply
systems;
• excellence in technological innovation aimed at developing cutting-edge products for
the use of energy sources with a lower environmental impact for powering cars and,
from the first half of 2012, even heavy vehicles, through perfection of dual fuel ( mixed
diesel / CNG) technology;
• a flexible and efficient business model capable of dealing with developments in the
market, while maintaining constant supervision over the critical phases of the production
process;
• quality and versatility of its products, which makes it possible to meet the requirements
of the demand and regulations in all the reference markets;
• detailed knowledge of distribution channels, through consolidated relationships with
leading customers in the OEM channel and an extensive presence in the Aftermarket
segment, characterized by constantly increasing potential.
During 2012 the Group continued its internationalization strategy, both by
strengthening its presence in key markets and by engaging in partnership projects aimed
at greater use of natural gas for transportation.
With this in mind, and in particular for the Indian market, an agreement was signed with
a local partner to set up a company capable to producing and marketing our automobile
gas conversion systems for the main car manufacturers in India.
Moreover, this year again, continuing the strategies adopted in the past, substantial
investments have been allocated to research and development.
Lastly, in July, the Group started up production activities in the sector of
compressors for gas treatment with the purchase, under lease with conditional

26
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purchase, of the Agave S.r.l. business unit
(formerly SAFE S.r.l.) in liquidation and
composition, operating for more than 35 years
in business areas related to compressed natural
gas (installations for refueling CNG vehicles),
Oil and Gas (compressors and auxiliary systems
for gas processing activities, from extraction to
distribution), plants for the transformation of
biogas into biomethane, hydrogen and liquid
natural gas plants.
This operation, aimed at enabling the continuity
and revival of SAFE’s business activity - also with
the preservation of a significant level of employment - fits into the strategy of Landi
Renzo that considers the possibility of expanding its range of products with the knowhow for the production of “CNG stations” as a competitive factor.
It is the opinion of Landi Renzo that, from a perspective of industrial integration,
filling stations could develop alongside, and even stimulate, the widespread use of
CNG in the transport sector.

INNOVATION, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
In 2012 Research and Development pursued a twofold objective:
• on the one hand, the maintenance and strengthening of the traditional technology
leadership that has always distinguished the company and its gas conversion systems;
• but also, at the same time, the expansion of the range of vehicles convertible to
alternative fuels.
Both of these objectives characterized the activities geared to different sales opportunities,
namely supplying OEMs and the Aftermarket; exploiting the collaboration between the
Research and Development teams in the many foreign branches of the business.
The gas management system works alongside and replaces the original fuel supply
system of the vehicle and is in all respects fundamental in order to meet performance,
emission and pollution targets. Developments must therefore follow two main lines,
aimed respectively at improving the individual components and at integrating them in
the best possible way with the engine system, thus generating innovative solutions that
the group protects by filing international patents.
The gas control components (such as gearboxes, injectors, control units, and valves)
have been designed using skills that have increased over time relating to the use of the
materials, the design of components and the ability to test them. The integration of
company technology in the engine control system has been optimized especially due
to the close cooperation with auto manufacturers: thanks to this, we are able both
discover and anticipate the technology roadmaps of the engines, and to help to shape
these same roadmaps in regard to alternative fuel supplies.
In the systems designed in collaboration with Car Manufacturers, the main driver, in
addition to customer satisfaction, is the increasing severity of the rules governing
emissions.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

27

LANDI RENZO AND THE FUTURE

Today, in traditionally industrialized areas such as Europe and North America,
government requirements for the reduction of polluting emissions have reached the
minimum limits, with the result that the technological focus has concentrated on
the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions and, therefore, the introduction of more
complex strategies to ensure the reliability and durability of all the systems for which
the expected technological improvement is required.
In the European market, for example, after completing the Euro 5 range, work continued
on the models that will be introduced during 2013, including many turbo engines, that
conform to the “Euro 5b+” standard on emissions. In co-design with the Advanced
Engineering teams of car manufacturers, projects for the future Euro 6 systems have
also been initiated.
We have supplemented our range of conversion kits for LPG and CNG, providing
network installers with the various systems that allow conversion to alternative fuels for
cars on the market, both utility and premium segment vehicles.
Coverage of the direct injection turbo engine range has also been extended as a result of
the increasing popularity of these types of systems, obtaining considerable appreciation
and success in the field.
The new developments of more compact and high-performance components such
as injectors, reducers and electronic control units, have facilitated kit installation and
system tuning. During the year, the project for the new generation of injectors that will
be used from 2013 onwards was also completed.
The diesel engine conversion project, known as ‘Dual Fuel’, received a major boost
thanks to the numerous type approvals, carried out in the Emissions Laboratories of
Landi Renzo, that were obtained for light vehicles and cars, as well as for heavy vehicles
such as buses and trucks, making the technology available also on 1.4 and 13 liter
engines. The range of engines convertible is being expanded with new models and
training activities were established on the main distribution channels, with the aim of
preparing the ground for the mass diffusion of the product.
This system, which consists in the conversion of a diesel engine to a mixed diesel and
CNG system, allows a reduction in both running costs and atmospheric pollution
emissions. More specifically, it allows a drastic reduction in emissions of fine particles
and CO2, currently the focus of attention in the environmental policies of the main
European institutions and public administrations.
This new technology, especially as regards the public service or commercial vehicle
fleets, is proposed in conjunction with the ‘Intelligent Moving System’, which consists
of a satellite device that integrates with the control unit of the gas system and a series
of remote services.
With this system, the operators of public or private fleets are not able to monitor the
state of health, movements and consumption of their vehicles, but also to calculate
the savings compared to traditional vehicles and the ecological benefit in real time,
for example in terms of reduction of CO2 emissions, and can ultimately publish
aggregated results demonstrating the benefits achieved by using an environmentally
friendly fleet.
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The research activities - carried out both at the Cavriago headquarters and at the
branch offices - were illustrated during the NGV Conference 2012. A special event was
organized for the occasion aimed not only at illustrating the projects carried out but
also to present, as a preview to the official opening scheduled for 2013, the Research
and Development Center.
This structure, intended for R&D functions, will house all the equipment and technologies
necessary to design and test new products and components.
Among the laboratories already operating and those under construction, the
completion of the test laboratory for systems using hydrogen deserves particular
mention, the only one of its kind, which will complement the twin laboratories for
LPG and CNG and will make components for increasingly efficient, reliable and cost
effective fuel-cell electric vehicles.
Within the framework of the new center, a group of selected customers from all over
the world was able to test some of the technologies recently completed or under
development on vehicles made available to them, . These include systems for engines
with direct injection, Dual Fuel systems, systems developed for power generation,
management systems for ‘Intelligent Moving’ ecological fleets, and the new retrofit
electric hybridization technology.
The latter, known as H.E.R.S. (Hybrid Electric Retrofit System), is able to convert an ordinary
vehicle into a vehicle with hybrid drive (internal combustion engine and electric engine):
currently in the industrialization phase, after rigorous testing on the track, this technology
has received authorization from the Italian Ministry of Transport for use on the road, for
the purposes of the planned experimentation prior to future commercialization.
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Lastly, collaborations with universities and international research centers were
continued, in particular the collaboration with the ‘Scuola di Alta Formazione per
Meccanica Avanzata e Tecnica del Veicolo’ (High School for Advanced Vehicle Mechanics
and Techniques) of the University of Modena.
During the year, the group capitalized costs for the development of innovative projects
for a total of 3,273 thousand Euros, and was able to benefit, for IRAP purposes, from
reduced taxes for the activities of staff engaged in research and development for a total
of 255 thousand Euros.

QUALITY
Customer satisfaction has always been a driver for Landi Renzo driving and a reason
for continuing stimulus for improvement. To develop this goal, the Quality System of
Landi Renzo has been certified since 1996 according to the ISO 9001 standard.
In 2001 the company was the first in the industry to obtain ISO/TS 16949
certification, a standard that establishes requirements for company Quality Systems in
the automotive sector and which is currently the most stringent standard for corporate
organizations.
Designed as an instrument for continuous
improvement of Quality Systems, on the basis of
the document produced by the IATF (International
Automotive Task Force - an association that brings
together the representatives of the various national
automotive industry groups), the ISO/TS 16949
technical specification also places a greater emphasis
on aspects relating to the prevention of possible
defects, starting from the design stage and, above
all, on aspects of planning and integration in order to obtain full compliance with
customer requirements.
In 2006, the ISO 9001 Quality System was extended to the Authorized
Workshops and to Resellers of the Landi Renzo Italian network, in order to
guarantee the quality standards already adopted by the Group, the first in the world
to reach this important goal. The certifications, which are renewed regularly, were
issued by Bureau Veritas Quality International.
With a view to continuous improvement, Quality System of the Group was also further
adapted to the rigorous quality standards required by vehicle manufacturers, by defining
tailor made management for each customer using dedicated resources with relevant
experience.
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The quantitative focus on which the Landi Renzo Group concentrated during 2012
included the following:
• supply process: the steady growth and selection of suppliers based on the qualitative
results achieved is the point of reference to allow the entire Group to act effectively
and efficiently on the quality of processes and products.
• organization by objectives: each main process is monitored with performance
indicators that allow immediate reaction with specific projects and activities whenever
performance is not consistent with objectives.
• continuous lessons learned: the company’s considerable experience was used as a
driving force for continuous improvement, creating systematic flows of information for
the prevention of potential problems and standardization of products and processes.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

3.2%

+

Employees in 2012

The total number of employees of the Landi Renzo Group at 31 December 2012 was
894 persons, compared with 866 at 31 December 2011, with an increase of 165 units.
The workforce is distributed across 10 manufacturing plants, located in Italy, Poland,
Romania, Pakistan, Iran, Argentina and the US, as well as at the various technical and
commercial sites.
The following tables show the number of employees in the workforce, for the main
companies and by geographical area, not including loaned labor.
Company

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Landi Renzo S.p.A.

350

363

A.E.B. S.p.A.

198

172

Lovato Gas S.p.A.

108

108

SAFE S.p.A.

44

0

Foreign Companies

194

223

Total

894

866

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

700

643

Europe (excluding Italy)

68

62

South West Asia (*)

45

82

America

46

42

Rest of the World

35

37

894

866

Geographical Area

Italy

Total
(*) Pakistan and Iran.

The increase in resources was mainly generated by the expansion of the consolidation
scope through the inclusion of the newco SAFE S.p.A. with 44 persons, and by the
acquisition of the business unit operating in the industrial automation sector by A.E.B.
S.p.A. with 8 employees.
In the year closed at 31 December 2012, personnel expenses, also as a result of this
expansion of the perimeter, amounted to 41,928 thousand Euros with an increase of
5.1% (+2,032 thousand Euros) compared with the year closed at 31 December 2011.
The characteristics of the staff working within the Group are described below:

2%

MANAGERS

10

%

9%

Over 50 YO

28%

EXECUTIVES

37%

BLUE-COLLAR
WORKERS

Up to 35 YO

Employees
broken down
by professional
category

51%

Employees
broken down
by age group

WHITE-COLLAR
WORKERS

63%

From 36 to 50 YO
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25

5% 4

America

36

%

Middle School

%

Bachelor’s Degree/
Degree

Employees
broken down
by educational
qualifications

5

%

%

Rest of the World

South West Asia

8%

Europe
(excluding Italy)

Group
Employees
broken down by
Geographical
Areas

78%
Italy

39%

High School/
Qualification

In dealing with the human resources, the
Group favors stable and long-lasting
contracts: at the end of 2012, up from the
previous year, 94% of workers are employed
on open-ended contracts, with 6% on fixedterm contracts. This is a decisive value for the
company, which can benefit from reduced
personnel turnover and a learning curve
under constant and continuous improvement.
With regard to strategic profiles, 2012 was
characterized, in particular, by the insertion
of new professionals in key positions in
both the Sales & Marketing and Research
& Development areas, with the objective of
strengthening the organizational structure
and increasing competitiveness.
The Group’s interest caters not only to the
figures with a solid professional experience, but
attention is strategically focused especially
to attract the best candidates, students and
recent graduates who - because of their type
of skills and motivational attitude - are most
compatible with the needs of the organization.
Indeed, relations with Universities and Business
Schools are fundamental for this purpose.
During the year Landi Renzo took part in 5 job
meeting, career days, recruiting events and workshops events and initiatives on college
campuses with candidates, students and recent graduates approaching the workplace for
the first time by offering 24 young graduates the opportunity to collaborate on business
projects in various functional areas through internship contacts.
With regard to industrial relations, it is worth mentioning the initiation, at the end of the
year, of negotiations for the renewal of the second level Corporate Agreement with
main topics for discussion the areas regarding salaries and the labor market. In particular, it
is noted that there are no disputes with employees regarding employment litigation.
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Training
Throughout 2012 the Corporate University (hereafter CU) the Corporate University
(hereafter CU) continued to invest in personal development and dissemination
of knowledge through a number of important initiatives under the four Colleges that
characterize its structure:
• Educational Training
• Management Training (FirstClass)
• Installer Training
• Partnership & Development
Using primarily the so-called ‘leaders as teachers’, thus favoring the
internal transfer of skills and knowledge, more than 120 training
programs were provided for about 600 participants.
Great importance was given to the internal dissemination of
technical skills, through the organization of training and updating
initiatives.
Management development initiatives focused instead on the
enhancement of soft skills and project management, also leading
to significant results, such as the obtaining of PMP certification by
a pilot group of Program Managers.
This is a certificate issued by the PMI - Project Management Institute,
the leading trade association in the field of Project Management that certifies the professional and technical knowledge of PMs at
an international level and represents an important milestone for the development and
enhancement of skills within the Landi Group.
Following the redefinition of the training offered, during the year, 42 technical courses
were provided with nearly 400 installers trained throughout Italy and with a very
high level of satisfaction: 3.77 on a scale from 1 to 4.
To contribute to the promotion of training as the main tool for the dissemination and
strengthening of a culture of sustainable mobility, two highly important initiatives
pertaining to the Partnership & Development college were launched. These were the
establishment of the Boot Camp for the winners of the Ideas on Wheels competition
and production of two editorial series in collaboration with “Il Sole 24 Ore” resulting
in the two publications:
• ‘Landi Renzo e la mobilità sostenibile
(Landi Renzo and sustainable mobility).
Storia di un imprenditore reggiano e delle
sue innovazioni nella terra dei motori
(The story of a Reggio Emilia entrepreneur
and innovations in the land of motors)’ M. Melis
• ‘Eco & Green Car. Landi Renzo e la mobilità
sostenibile (A guide to ecological and
sustainable vehicles)’ - M. Melis
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HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT
Demonstrating that corporate values are realized
and integrated in a clear commitment to
respect health and safety in the workplace
and the environment, Landi Renzo S.p.A and
all the companies of the Group are constantly
committed to pursuing the goals of improvement
in these areas by providing the resources and
tools necessary for this purpose.
In particular, to ensure effective control and
prevention, in accordance with the provisions
of Legislative Decree no. 81 of 9 April 2008,
Management decided to adopt a HSMS management system (Health and Safety
Management System) as of 2010 based on the application of the provisions of
international standard BS OHSAS 18001:2007.
The certification obtained for this system and the drive to continuous improvement are a
further guarantee of respect for the health and safety of workers in the Group. Thanks to
this approach, in 2012 there was a substantial improvement in the indices relating
to accidents at work.
To present a clear and reliable view the situation as regards health and safety we provide
data regarding injuries and illnesses recorded in the workplace, taking the specific
indicators into consideration.

2011 - 2012 INDICATORS
Results 2011

Results

2012

Incident rate (IR)

1.35

Incident rate (IR)

1.04

Severity rate (SR)

0.15

Severity rate (SR)

0.31

Frequency rate (FR)

8.07

Frequency rate (FR)

6.39

Incident rate = number of injuries-illnesses / number of employees x 100
Severity rate = number of days lost / number of employee labour hours worked x 1,000
Frequency rate = number of injuries-illnesses / number of employee labour hours worked x 1,000,000

It should be noted, however, that in the year 2012 there were no cases of serious accidents
at work or occupational diseases related to working activity, or any objections to the
Company in respect of occupational diseases among employees or former employees.
The improvement in the indices is closely related to prevention and awareness
activities and to the organization of specific training courses. The training and
prevention activities were defined according to the real business needs and those of the
workers, and in compliance with legal requirements.
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Following the entry into force of the State-Regional Agreement of 20 December 2011
implementing Article 37, paragraph 2 of Legislative Decree 81/08 which regulates
training requirements for employees (including Officers and Managers) in detail,
important training initiatives were undertaken on issues of safeguarding hygiene, health
and safety in the workplace, with a significant increase compared to those provided in
previous years, demonstrating that the periodic and ongoing training is an essential
element for spreading the ‘culture of safety’.
Based on the direct and indirect assessments of the environmental impacts arising
from its activities, Management - also following the adaptation of the Organizational,
Management and Control Model that has now included environmental crimes among
the reasons for the administrative liability pursuant to Legislative Decree no. 231/2001 recognized the need to implement an Environmental Management System in accordance
with the requirements of international standard UNI EN ISO 14001:2004, and
decided to activate and maintain it. This international standard is voluntary and provides
the requirements for the development of a suitable system.
It is also pointed out that Landi Renzo has chosen to
supplement the BS OHSAS 18001 Workers’ Health and
Safety Management System, which - as mentioned
previously - has been present in the company since
2010, with the Environmental Management System
UNI EN ISO 14001, developing all aspects related to
Health, Safety and Environment into a single Integrated
Management System.
This Management System chosen by the company,
is an effective support that enables all the legal and
organizational aspects to be controlled, and provides
accurate picture of the impacts that the company has
on the environment, guarantees continuous monitoring
of the consumption of natural resources and helps to
protect the most significant environmental aspects of
the territory in which Landi Renzo operates.
All the staff of Landi Renzo are involved in the project
and are responsible within the company for themselves,
their colleagues and the environment, as specified
within the System adopted, by constantly monitoring
the environmental indicators of the manufacturing
activity regarding the reduction of energy consumption,
water consumption and waste production.
A mandate has already been conferred to the Bureau Veritas Certification Body and
certification of the system is expected by the end of 2013.
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SHAREHOLDERS AND FINANCIAL MARKETS
The Landi Renzo Group maintains a constant dialog with its Shareholders through
a responsible and transparent activity of communication carried out by
the Investor Relations office with the aim of providing a clear explanation of the
company’s situation, the expected evolution of operations, the Group strategies and the
outlook of the reference market. The Investor Relations function is also given the task
of organizing presentations, events and “Roadshows” that enable a direct relationship
between the financial community and the Top Management of the Group.
For further information and to consult the economic-financial data, corporate
presentations, periodical publications, official communications and updates on the
share price you can visit the Investor Relations section of the site www.landi.it.
The following is a graphical representation of the performance of Landi Renzo
stock over the period 2 January - 28 December 2012 compared with the performance
of the FTSE Italy All-Share index.
At 31 December 2012 Stock Exchange capitalization was equal to 166,500,000.00 Euros.

Landi Renzo

FTSE Italia All-Share

64.43%

23.60%

0
-17.22%
Jan 2012

Apr 2012

Jul 2012

Sep 2012

Dec 2012

In the period 2 January – 28 December 2012 (the last dealing day of 2011), the official
Landi Renzo share price showed and increase of approximately 17.0%, up from 1.265
Euros to 1.480 Euros.
In the same period, the index relating to the reference segment, FTSE Italy All-Share,
showed an increase of just under 6.0%.
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The following table summarizes the main share and stock market data for 2012.
Share Price and Stock Market Information
(Source: Borsa Italiana S.p.A.)

Year 2012

Year 2011

Share capital (Euros)

11,250,000

11,250,000

No. ordinary shares

112,500,000

112,500,000

Equity (Euros)

138,435,070

136,266,396

2,862,790

-9,137,839

0.0254

-0.0812

1.48

1.221

Maximum price

2.08

3.015

Minimum price

1.129

1.02

166,500,000

137,362,500

Net Result for the Period (Euros)
Net Result per share (Euro)
Closing price

Closing stock market capitalization

All the shares issued were fully paid up.
At 14 March 2013, the holders of ordinary shares in a quantity greater than 2%, as
provided for by the CONSOB regulations, are the following:
Shareholder

14/03/2013

Girefin S.p.A.

54.667%

Gireimm S.r.l.

4.444%

Impax Asset Management Limited

2.637%

Aerius Investment Holding AG

2.311%

Others – Market

35.941%

The share capital is made up of 112,500,000 shares with a nominal value of 0.10 Euros
per share, for a total of 11,250,000.00 Euros.
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ANNEXE

Report on Corporate Governance
and Ownership Structure

LI10, GPL pressure regulator

Report on Operating Performance
(Translation from Italian original which remains the definitive version)

CONVOCAZIONE DI ASSEMBLEA ORDINARIA
E STRAORDINARIA
I legittimati all’intervento e all’esercizio del diritto di voto, sono convocati in Assemblea Ordinaria e Straordinaria presso la sede sociale in Cavriago, località Corte Tegge (Reggio Emilia), via Nobel 2/4, per il giorno 24 aprile 2013, alle ore
9:00, in prima convocazione e, occorrendo la seconda convocazione, per il giorno 26 aprile 2013, stessi ora e luogo, per deliberare sul seguente
Ordine del giorno
PARTE ORDINARIA
1. Bilancio di esercizio al 31 dicembre 2012, Relazione degli Amministratori sulla Gestione, Relazione del Collegio Sindacale e Relazione della società di revisione; deliberazioni inerenti e conseguenti;
2. Delibera sulla prima sezione della relazione sulla remunerazione ai sensi dell’articolo 123-ter, sesto comma, del D. Lgs. n. 58 del 24 febbraio 1998, come successivamente modificato ed integrato;
3. Nomina del Consiglio di Amministrazione:
3.1 determinazione del numero dei componenti;
3.2 nomina del Consiglio di Amministrazione;
3.3 nomina del Presidente del Consiglio di Amministrazione;
3.4 determinazione della durata dell’incarico degli Amministratori;
3.5 determinazione del compenso del Consiglio di Amministrazione.
4. Nomina del Collegio Sindacale:
4.1 nomina del Collegio Sindacale;
4.2 nomina del Presidente del Collegio Sindacale;
4.3 determinazione del compenso del Collegio Sindacale.
5. Autorizzazione all’acquisto e alla disposizione di azioni proprie, previa revoca della delibera assunta dall’Assemblea degli Azionisti del 24 aprile 2012, per quanto non utilizzato; deliberazioni inerenti e conseguenti.
PARTE STRAORDINARIA
1. Modifica degli articoli 10, 12, 14 e 22 dello Statuto sociale; delibere inerenti e conseguenti.
Informazioni sul capitale sociale
Il capitale sociale è pari ad Euro 11.250.000,00, interamente sottoscritto e versato, ed è rappresentato da n. 112.500.000 azioni ordinarie del valore nominale di Euro 0,10 ciascuna. Ogni azione ordinaria dà diritto ad un voto nelle
assemblee ordinarie e straordinarie della Società. Alla data odierna, la Società non detiene azioni proprie. Le informazioni circa la composizione del capitale sociale sono disponibili sul sito della Società all’indirizzo www.landi.it, sezione
IR – Governance - Capitale Sociale.
Integrazione dell’ordine del giorno e presentazione di nuove proposte di delibera
Ai sensi dell’art. 126-bis del D. Lgs. n. 58 del 24 febbraio 1998, come successivamente modificato ed integrato (“TUF”), i soci che, anche congiuntamente, rappresentino almeno un quarantesimo del capitale sociale, possono richiedere,
entro 10 giorni dalla pubblicazione del presente avviso di convocazione (ossia entro il giorno 25 marzo 2013), l’integrazione dell’elenco delle materie da trattare, indicando nella domanda gli ulteriori argomenti da essi proposti, ovvero
presentare proposte di deliberazione su materie già all’ordine del giorno. La domanda deve essere presentata per iscritto dai soci proponenti, unitamente ad idonea documentazione comprovante la titolarità delle azioni rilasciata da un
intermediario abilitato in conformità alle proprie scritture contabili, tramite lettera raccomandata inviata all’indirizzo della Società in Cavriago, località Corte Tegge (Reggio Emilia), via Nobel 2/4 all’attenzione dell’investor relator. Entro
detto termine e con le medesime modalità, i soci proponenti dovranno altresì trasmettere al Consiglio di Amministrazione una relazione sulle materie di cui propongono la trattazione o sulle ulteriori proposte di deliberazione presentate
su materie già all’ordine del giorno.
La richiesta di integrazione dell’elenco delle materie da trattare non è ammessa per gli argomenti sui quali l’Assemblea delibera, a norma di legge, su proposta degli amministratori o sulla base di un progetto o di una relazione da essi
predisposta, diversa da quelle di cui all’articolo 125-ter, comma 1, del TUF.
Di tali eventuali integrazioni all’elenco delle materie all’ordine del giorno o presentazione di nuove proposte di deliberazione, nonché delle relative relazioni preparate dai soci proponenti, verrà data notizia, nelle stesse forme prescritte
per la pubblicazione del presente avviso di convocazione, almeno 15 giorni prima di quello fissato per l’Assemblea.
Diritto di intervento
Hanno diritto di intervenire in Assemblea, ai sensi dell’art. 83-sexies del TUF, coloro che sono legittimati all’intervento in Assemblea e all’esercizio del diritto di voto per i quali la Società abbia ricevuto la comunicazione rilasciata da un
intermediario abilitato ai sensi della disciplina applicabile attestante la titolarità delle azioni sulla base delle evidenze delle proprie scritture contabili relative al termine della giornata contabile del settimo giorno di mercato aperto precedente
la data dell’Assemblea in prima convocazione (ossia il 15 aprile 2013). Coloro che risulteranno titolari di azioni successivamente al 15 aprile 2013 non avranno diritto di partecipare né di votare in Assemblea. La comunicazione effettuata
dall’intermediario abilitato deve pervenire alla Società, entro il termine della giornata contabile del terzo giorno di mercato aperto precedente la data dell’Assemblea in prima convocazione (ossia il 19 aprile 2013) o, comunque, entro
l’inizio dei lavori assembleari della prima convocazione.
Voto per delega
Coloro i quali abbiano il diritto di intervenire in Assemblea possono farsi rappresentare secondo le modalità previste dalle leggi e dalla normativa vigente. Un fac-simile del modulo di delega è reperibile presso la sede sociale, sul sito
della Società all’indirizzo www.landi.it, sezione IR – Governance - Documenti Assembleari 2013, nonché presso gli intermediari abilitati.
Qualora il rappresentante consegni o trasmetta alla Società, tramite messaggio di posta elettronica certificata da inviarsi al seguente indirizzo di posta elettronica certificata landirenzoassembleaaprile2013@open.legalmail.it, in luogo
dell’originale, una copia della delega, deve attestare sotto la propria responsabilità la conformità della delega all’originale e l’identità del delegante.
Ai sensi della normativa vigente, il rappresentante dovrà conservare l’originale della delega e tenere traccia per un anno, a decorrere dalla conclusione dei lavori assembleari, delle istruzioni di voto eventualmente ricevute.
La delega può essere conferita con documento informatico sottoscritto in forma elettronica ai sensi dell’articolo 21, comma 2, del D. Lgs. 7 marzo 2005, n. 82 o con altro documento equipollente.
Ai sensi dello statuto sociale, la Società non designa un rappresentante per il conferimento di deleghe da parte di coloro i quali abbiano il diritto di intervenire in Assemblea.
Elezione del Consiglio di Amministrazione
Con riferimento al terzo punto all’ordine del giorno, si ricorda che ai sensi dell’articolo 14 dello Statuto sociale, si procederà alla elezione degli amministratori sulla base di liste che potranno essere presentate da soci che, da soli od
insieme ad altri soci, rappresentino complessivamente almeno il 2,5% del capitale sociale.
Le liste dovranno essere depositate presso la sede della Società almeno 25 (venticinque) giorni prima di quello fissato per l’Assemblea in prima convocazione (ossia entro il 30 marzo 2013). Le liste potranno essere depositate anche
tramite messaggio di posta elettronica certificata da inviarsi al seguente indirizzo di posta elettronica certificata landirenzoassembleaaprile2013@open.legalmail.it.
Ciascuna lista che presenti almeno 3 (tre) candidati deve contenere un numero di candidati del genere meno rappresentato almeno pari al minimo richiesto dalle vigenti disposizioni legislative e regolamentari.
Unitamente a ciascuna lista, entro il termine di deposito della stessa, presso la sede sociale, dovranno essere inoltre depositati: (i) le informazioni relative sia all’identità dei soci che hanno presentato la lista sia alla percentuale di
partecipazione dagli stessi detenuta; (ii) le dichiarazioni con le quali i singoli candidati accettano la propria candidatura e attestano, sotto la propria responsabilità, l’inesistenza di cause di ineleggibilità e incompatibilità, nonché l’esistenza
dei requisiti prescritti dalla normativa vigente per ricoprire la carica di amministratore della Società; (iii) le dichiarazioni circa l’eventuale possesso dei requisiti di indipendenza rilasciate dai candidati, sotto la propria responsabilità, ai sensi
delle applicabili disposizioni legislative e regolamentari; e (iv) i curricula vitae riguardanti le caratteristiche personali e professionali di ciascun candidato, con indicazione degli incarichi di amministrazione e controllo ricoperti in altre società.
Le liste presentate senza l’osservanza delle disposizioni che precedono sono considerate come non presentate.
Si ricorda, infine, che la Comunicazione Consob n. DEM/9017893 del 26 febbraio 2009 raccomanda, in occasione dell’elezione dell’organo di amministrazione, che i soci che presentino una “lista di minoranza” depositino insieme alla
lista dei candidati una dichiarazione che attesti l’assenza di rapporti di collegamento, anche indiretti, di cui all’articolo 147-ter, comma 3, del TUF e dell’articolo 144-quinquies del regolamento approvato con delibera Consob n.11971 del
19 maggio 1999, come successivamente modificato ed integrato (il “Regolamento Emittenti”), con gli azionisti che detengono, anche congiuntamente, una partecipazione di controllo o di maggioranza relativa.
Si segnala che, ai sensi dello Statuto, la Presidenza del Consiglio di Amministrazione spetta al primo candidato inserito nella lista che avrà ottenuto in Assemblea il maggior numero di voti.
Elezione del Collegio Sindacale
Con riferimento al quarto punto all’ordine del giorno, si rammenta che, a norma dell’art. 22 dello Statuto sociale, si procederà alla elezione dei sindaci sulla base di liste che potranno essere presentate da soci che, da soli od insieme ad
altri soci, rappresentino complessivamente almeno il 2,5% del capitale sociale.
Le liste, ciascuna composta di due sezioni, una per i candidati alla carica di sindaco effettivo, l’altra per i candidati alla carica di sindaco supplente, dovranno essere depositate presso la sede legale della Società almeno 25 (venticinque)
giorni prima di quello fissato per l’Assemblea in prima convocazione (ossia entro il 30 marzo 2013). Le liste potranno essere depositate anche tramite messaggio di posta elettronica certificata da inviarsi al seguente indirizzo di posta
elettronica certificata landirenzoassembleaaprile2013@open.legalmail.it.
Ciascuna lista che, considerando entrambe le sezioni, presenti almeno 3 (tre) candidati deve contenere un numero di candidati del genere meno rappresentato almeno pari al minimo richiesto dalle vigenti disposizioni legislative e
regolamentari. Qualora la sezione dei candidati alla carica di sindaco supplente indichi almeno 2 (due) candidati, questi devono appartenere a generi diversi.
Unitamente a ciascuna lista, entro i termini sopra indicati, devono essere depositati: (i) le informazioni relative all’identità dei soci che hanno presentato la lista e la percentuale di partecipazione da essi complessivamente detenuta; (ii) le
dichiarazioni con le quali i singoli candidati accettano la candidatura e attestano, sotto la propria responsabilità, l’inesistenza di cause di ineleggibilità e di incompatibilità anche con riferimento al limite al cumulo degli incarichi, nonché
l’esistenza di requisiti normativi e statutariamente prescritti per le rispettive cariche; (iii) i curricula vitae riguardanti le caratteristiche personali e professionali di ciascun candidato con l’indicazione degli incarichi di amministrazione e controllo
ricoperti in altre società. In aggiunta a quanto previsto dai punti che precedono, nel caso di presentazione di una lista da parte di soci diversi da quelli che detengono, anche congiuntamente, una partecipazione di controllo o di maggioranza
relativa nel capitale della Società, tale lista dovrà essere corredata da una dichiarazione dei soci che la presentano, attestante l’assenza di rapporti di collegamento con uno o più soci di riferimento, come definiti dalla normativa vigente.
Si ricorda che, ai sensi dell’articolo 144-sexies, comma 5, del Regolamento Emittenti, nel caso in cui allo scadere del venticinquesimo giorno che precede l’Assemblea sia stata depositata una sola lista per la nomina dei componenti del
collegio sindacale, ovvero solo liste presentate da soci che, in base a quanto stabilito dall’articolo 144-sexies, comma 4, del Regolamento Emittenti, risultino collegati tra loro ai sensi dell’articolo 144-quinquies del medesimo Regolamento
Emittenti, possono essere presentate liste sino al terzo giorno successivo a tale data (ossia entro il 2 aprile 2013). Poiché tale termine cadrebbe a ridosso delle festività pasquali, la Società ha ritenuto opportuno prorogare tale termine di
un ulteriore giorno sino al 3 aprile 2013. In questo caso la quota di partecipazione del capitale sociale richiesta per la presentazione delle liste (2,5% del capitale sociale) è ridotta alla metà.
Le liste presentate senza l’osservanza delle relative previsioni statutarie saranno considerate come non presentate.
Si segnala, inoltre, che ai sensi di legge e di Statuto, la Presidenza del Collegio Sindacale spetta al primo candidato inserito nella seconda lista che avrà ottenuto in Assemblea il maggior numero di voti.
Si ricorda, infine, che il vigente Codice di Autodisciplina delle società quotate raccomanda che i sindaci delle società quotate siano scelti tra persone che possano essere qualificate come indipendenti anche in base ai criteri di indipendenza
previsti dall’articolo 3 del Codice di Autodisciplina stesso con riferimento agli amministratori.
Domande sulle materie all’ordine del giorno
I Soci e gli aventi diritto al voto possono porre domande sulle materie all’ordine del giorno anche prima dell’Assemblea purché entro i tre giorni antecedenti la data dell’Assemblea (ossia il 21 aprile 2013, termine da intendersi prorogato
al 22 aprile 2013, primo giorno successivo non festivo, in virtù del principio generale in materia di computo dei termini), cui sarà data risposta al più tardi durante l’Assemblea stessa, tramite messaggio di posta elettronica certificata
da inviarsi al seguente indirizzo di posta elettronica certificata landirenzoassembleaaprile2013@open.legalmail.it, accompagnata da idonea comunicazione rilasciata dall’intermediario abilitato comprovante la titolarità dell’esercizio del
diritto di voto. Si considerano fornite in assemblea le risposte in formato cartaceo messe a disposizione di ciascuno degli aventi diritto al voto all’inizio dell’assemblea medesima.
Documentazione
La documentazione relativa all’Assemblea, ivi comprese le relazioni illustrative del Consiglio di Amministrazione e le proposte deliberative sulle materie poste all’ordine del giorno, la relazione finanziaria annuale, unitamente alle relazioni
del Collegio Sindacale e della società di revisione, e la relazione sulla remunerazione, verrà messa a disposizione nei termini di legge presso la sede legale, e a disposizione dei Soci e del pubblico, nei termini prescritti. La documentazione
sarà disponibile anche sul sito internet della Società all’indirizzo: www.landi.it, sezione IR – Governance - Documenti Assembleari 2013. I Soci e coloro ai quali spetta il diritto di voto hanno facoltà di ottenere copia di tutta la predetta
documentazione.
Cavriago, 15 marzo 2013
Il Presidente del Consiglio di Amministrazione
Stefano Landi
LANDI RENZO SPA
Capitale sociale Euro 11.250.000,00 interamente versato - Sede legale in Cavriago (Reggio Emilia),
Località Corte Tegge, via Nobel 2/4 - Codice fiscale e Partita IVA n. 00523300358

REPORT ON OPERATING
PERFORMANCE
METHODOLOGICAL NOTE
The Directors’ Report of the Parent Company and the consolidated Directors’ Report have
been presented in a single document, giving greater prominence, where appropriate, to
issues of relevance to all the companies included in the consolidation.

Dear Shareholders,

The consolidated financial statements of the Landi Renzo Group, closed at 31 December
2012, reported a net profit of Euro 2,863 thousand, compared to a net loss of Euro 9,138
thousand in 2011, with a profit recovery of Euro 12 million.

2,863

Revenues from sales and services amounted to Euro 275,202 thousand, with an increase
of Euro 21,673 thousand, up by 8.5% compared with 2011.

NET PROFIT
2012

e millions

Gross operating profit (EBITDA) was equal to Euro 28,301 thousand, compared with Euro
19,477 in 2011, an increase of 45.3%.
Operating profit (EBIT) was positive and equal to Euro 9,809 thousand compared with a
negative operating profit of Euro -3,260 thousand posted in 2011, which was influenced
by non-recurrent impairment losses totaling Euro 4,316 thousand
The net financial position at 31 December 2012 was negative for Euro 61,902 thousand
compared with a negative net financial position of Euro 90,112 thousand at 31 December
2011, showing a strong recovery in liquidity equal to Euro 28,210 thousand.
Sales revenues of the Parent Company Landi Renzo S.p.A. show an increase of Euro
24,111 thousand (+21.4%), up from Euro 112,592 thousand for 2011 to Euro 136,703
thousand for the year 2012, and a gross operating profit (EBITDA) positive and equal to
Euro 8,852 thousand (negative and equal to Euro -3,346 thousand in 2011). Net profit
amounted to Euro 5,532 thousand, compared to a net loss of Euro 8,530 thousand
recorded in 2011.

21.4%

+

SALES REVENUES
2012 vs 2011
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OPERATING PERFORMANCE
consolidaTED RESULTS

8.5%

+

Revenues
2012 vs 2011

45.3

+

%

MOL
2012 vs 2011

Il In 2012, the Landi Renzo Group achieved revenues of Euro 275,202 thousand, an
increase of 8.5% over the previous year. It should be noted that the two years are not
fully comparable because of the change in consolidation scope due to the inclusion of the
newly formed company SAFE S.p.A. therein, which began production and commercial
activities in July 2012 with a turnover of Euro 7,345 thousand. With the same perimeter,
net revenues would have grown by 5.6%.
Gross Operating Profit stands at Euro 28,301 thousand, an increase of 45.3% compared
with Euro 19,477 thousand in 2011; with the same consolidation scope, GOP (gross
operating profit) would have amounted to Euro 28,628 thousand, representing 10.7%
of revenues.
The two indicators referring to the percentage increase in revenues and to the EBITDA
margin on revenues was in line with the outlook announced by the Group several times
during the year, which predicted an increase in turnover of more than 5% as well as an
EBITDA margin greater than 10%.
Also significant is the Group’s return to net profit amounting to Euro 2,863 thousand,
compared to a loss of Euro -9,138 thousand incurred in 2011 and influenced by nonrecurring write-downs of Euro 4,316 thousand.
The following table shows the evolution of the main economic performance indicators.

(Euro thousands)

Economic result
Revenues (goods and services)
Other Revenue and Income
Operating costs
Gross Operating Profit
Amortization, depreciation and impairment losses
of which non-recurring
Operating Profit
Financial income
Financial expenses
Exchange rate gains and losses
Profit (Loss) before tax
Taxes
Net profit (loss) for the Group and minority
interests, including:
Minority interests
Net Profit (Loss) of the Group
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2012

%

2011

%

Change

%

275,202

100%

253,529

100.0%

21,673

8.5%

-121

-7.4%

-93.0%

-12,729

5.4%

8,824

45.3%

1,525

1,646

-248,427

-90.3%

28,301

10.3%

19,477

7.7%

-18,492

-6.7%

-22,737

-9.0%

4,245 -18.7%

-4,316

-1.7%

4,316

-3,260

-1.3%

13,069

0
9,809

3.6%

-235,698

693

0.3%

482

0.2%

211

43.8%

-4,105

-1.5%

-3,610

-1.4%

-495

13.7%

-825

-0.3%

-1,825

-0.7%

5,572

2.0%

-8,213

-3.2%

13,785

-2,974

-1.1%

-926

-0.4%

-2,048 221.2%

2,598

0.9%

-9,139

-3.6%

11,737

-265

-0.1%

-1

0.0%

-264

2,863

1.0%

-9,138

-3.6%

12,001

1,000 -54.8%

The increase in revenues recorded in 2012 compared to the previous year is mainly due,
having taken into account the negative performance of the South West Asian market,
to the significant progress recorded in the Italian market (+74.1%) and European market
(+28, 5%) and to the positive growth of markets in the rest of the world (+25.9%).
Furthermore, two main factors can be noted that generated this improvement compared
to last year: firstly, the strong increase in registrations of LPG and CNG vehicles in Italy
and Europe on Euro V engines, and secondly the significant recovery of conversions in
the After Market segment, with particular reference to the above mentioned European
markets as well as those of Central and South America.
(Euro thousands)

Distribution of revenues
per area of activity

At
31/12/2012

% of
revenue

At
31/12/2011

% of
revenue

Gas sector - LPG line

171,485

62.3%

120,326

47.5%

51,159

42.5%

Gas sector - CNG line

82,162

29.9%

118,480

46.7%

-36,318

-30.7%

253,647

92.2%

238,806

94.2%

14,841

6.2%

21,555

7.8%

14,723

5.8%

6,832

46.4%

275,202

100.0%

253,529

100.0%

21,673

8.5%

Total revenues - GAS sector
Other (Alarm systems, Sound, Aquatronics
and Robotics)
Total revenues

Change

%

Revenues from sales in the GAS sector fell, overall, from Euro 238,806 thousand in
2011 to Euro 253,647 thousand in 2012, an increase of 6.2%.
The increase (+ 42.5%) in sales for the first nine months in the Gas sector – LPG line
took place mainly in European markets, and in particular in Italy, where there has been a
strong growth in demand both for OEM registrations and for After Market conversions.
This positive trend was also favored by the increase in the price of conventional fuels
(gasoline and diesel) recorded in 2012, as well as growing interest in environmental and
energy problems.

42.5%

+

GPL

Line

Trend in consumer prices, petrol and diesel 2012 - Italy
(Euro)

1.90
1.85
1.80
1.75
1.70
1.65
1.60
1.55
1.50

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

Unleaded

May
Diesel

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Linear

Source: Ministero dello Sviluppo Economico.
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Sales in the Gas segment - CNG line, on the other hand, dropped by 30.7% compared
with 2011, mainly due to the market downturn recorded in South-West Asia. This
downturn can be ascribed both to the significant slowdown in the Iranian market,
which is suffering from increasingly stringent trade and financial restrictions related to
the international embargo, and to reduced demand in the Pakistani market related to
unfavorable regulations.
Sales revenues from the Alarm systems, Sound, Aquatronics and Robotics segment
(the latter line of business became part of the Group’s production activity following the
establishment of the newco SAFE S.p.A., which took place in July 2012) were equal to
Euros 21,555 thousand, an increase of 46.4% compared with the previous year. In the
light of these figures and taking account of income levels achieved by the previously
mentioned lines of business, together amounting to 7.8% of consolidated revenues, it
can be stated for the purposes of IFRS 8 that the Group’s sole business segment is the
production of LPG and CNG fuel supply systems.
(Euro thousands)

Geographical distribution
of revenues

At
31/12/2012

% of
revenue

At
31/12/2011

% of
revenue

Change

%

Italy

77,996

28.3%

44,799

17.7%

33,197

74.1%

Europe (excluding Italy)

85,002

30.9%

66,130

26.1%

18,872

28.5%

South-West Asia*

20,086

7.3%

66,900

26.4%

-46,814

-70.0%

America

39,087

14.2%

33,562

13.2%

5,525

16.5%

53,031

19.3%

42,138

16.6%

10,893

25.9%

275,202

100%

253,529

100%

21,673

8.5%

Rest of the World
Total

(*) Note that the revenues of South-West Asia consist of the sales realized in the following countries: Pakistan, Iran and Turkey.

As regards the geographical distribution of revenues, in 2012 the Group realized
71.7% (82.3% in 2011) of consolidated revenues abroad (30.9% in Europe and
40.8% outside Europe), confirming the strong international vocation that has
historically distinguished it.

Percentage of registrations of new veichles fueled by LPG and CNG - Italy
GPL

CNG

Total (GPL+CNG)

13%
9.17%
3.22%

5.4%
2.18%
2011

Source: UNRAE
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3.81%
2012

The Italian market grew by 74.1 % compared with the same period of the previous
year and revenues stood at Euro 77,996 thousand. This increase can be attributed to
the increase in demand for “alternative” eco-compatible and cheaper fuels (LPG and
CNG) and the renewed offer of products for the OEM channel with systems developed
in compliance with the Euro V standard currently in force. In fact, even in the context
of an automobile market in sharp decline (1,410,824 registrations recorded in 2012
down by 19.8% compared to 2011 - data source UNRAE) the sales mix of new vehicles
fitted with LPG and CNG systems increased significantly (from 5.4% in 2011 to 13% in
2012), generating a positive effect on volumes and revenues.
The After Market conversions market in Italy has also developed significantly: the data
processed by the Ecogas consortium show the number of conversions in 2012 as 191
thousand, a strong increase (+50.4%) compared with the previous year when they
amounted to 127 thousand. The Landi Group’s share of the national market on the
After Market channel at the end of 2012 was close to 30%.
The trend in revenues in Europe increased by 28.5% compared with the previous year:
Group sales benefited both from the growth of the main markets in this geographical
area, and from the positive effect generated by the market launch of a completely
renovated product range for the After Market channel. We point out that there were
significant increases in sales in Eastern European countries, with excellent performances
in Poland and Romania, as well as in Western Europe.

28.5%

+

Revenues n Europe

The South West Asian market recorded a drop in sales of 70% compared to last year,
mainly due - for the previously mentioned reasons - to a substantial slowdown of the
Iranian and Pakistani markets.
An increase of 16.5% was recorded in the American markets compared with 2011,
especially in Colombia and Bolivia, while the markets in the Rest of the World recorded
an increase of 25.9% as a result of the positive trend in demand in Thailand and India
and the good performance of the Chinese market.

Profit
At 31 December 2012, Gross Operating Profit (GOP) of the Landi Renzo Group is positive
for Euro 28,301 thousand (10.3% of revenues), an increase of 45.3% compared to the
value recorded in 2011 amounting to Euro 19,477 thousand (7.7% of revenues).
This increase can be ascribed to the elements summarized below:
• increase in sales volumes and related revenues;
• productive optimizations to reduce the incidence of the costs of materials and direct labor
achieved through reorganization of supplies and better industrialization of the products;
• strong momentum in the reduction and rationalization of fixed costs and overheads,
already initiated during the previous year, and achieved to a greater degree in all the
business areas.
In particular, the percentage incidence of labor costs on revenues, on a comparable
scope of consolidation, decreased from 15.7% in 2011 to 15.1% in 2012, despite the
increased level of production activities related to the increase in revenues.
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Gross Operating Profit was positive and amounted to Euro 9,809 thousand (3.6% of revenues) compared
to a negative value of Euro -3,260 thousand in the previous year.
The consolidated result before taxes was positive for Euro 5,572 thousand, compared to a loss before tax
equal to Euro -8,213 thousand recorded in the previous year.
The net result of the Group showed a profit of Euro 2,863 thousand compared to a net loss of Euro -9,138
thousand in the previous year.

NET FINANCIAL POSITION
(Euro thousands)

Financial Position
Trade receivables
Inventories

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

69,240

77,790

65,928

67,408

-55,780

-55,964

2,598

13,954

Net operating capital

81,986

103,188

Property, plant and equipment;

32,972

35,096

Intangible assets

91,116

95,434

Other non-current assets

14,014

13,444

Fixed capital

138,101

143,974

TFR and other provisions

-19,127

-20,046

Net capital employed

200,960

227,116

Trade payables
Other current

Financed by:
Net Financial Position
Group shareholders’ equity
Minority interests
Borrowings

Ratios

Net operating capital
Net operating capital/Turnover

90,112
136,266

623

738

200,960

227,116

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

81,986

103,188

29.8%

40.7%

200,960

227,116

73.0%

89.6%

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

38,629

20,059

-62,017

-69,878

-24

-125

Net short term indebtedness

-23,412

-49,944

Medium-Long term loans

-38,490

-40,168

Net medium-long term indebtedness

-38,490

-40,168

NET FINANCIAL POSITION

-61,902

-90,112

Net capital employed
Net capital employed/Turnover

Net Financial Position

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans
Short-term loans
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Net operating capital (Euro 81,986 thousand) decreased compared with 31 December
2011 by Euro 21,202 thousand, while the percentage indicator calculated on rolling
turnover decreased from 40.7% al 29.8%.
An analysis of the individual components showed on the one hand a decrease in trade
receivables of Euro 8,550 thousand, and on the other a decrease in other current assets
of Euro 11,356 due mainly to the collection of VAT refunds for prior years, and finally
to the reduction in stocks amounting to Euro 1,480 thousand.
Net capital employed at 31 December 2012 amounted to Euro 200,960 thousand
compared to Euro 227,116 thousand at 31 December 2011, while the percentage
indicator calculated on rolling revenues decreased from 89.6% to 73.0%.
The net financial position at 31 December 2012 is negative for Euro 61,902 thousand
compared with a negative net financial position at 31 December 2011 equal to Euro
90,112 thousand.
The significant reduction in debt, which decreased by Euro 28,210 thousand during the
year, is a result of the higher profitability generated as well as the favorable change in
Net Working Capital despite the positive trend in revenues.

-28
e millions
Debt
reduction
in 2012

The following table shows the total cash flow for the year 2012 compared with that of
2011:
(Euro thousands)

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Net cash flow from (for) operating activities

39,590

445

Cash flow from (used in) financing activities

-11,294

-14,270

Cash flow from (used in) financing activities

-9,515

7,757

Total cash flow

18,781

-6,068

Cash flow from operating activities for the year 2012, gross of net interest and income taxes
paid, was positive for Euro 18,781 thousand, a strong improvement compared with the
figure reported in 2011 (positive for Euro 6,068 thousand). Investment activities absorbed
financial resources of Euro 11,294 thousand, a decrease compared to the figure of Euro
14,270 thousand in the previous year.
The cash flow for financing activities, negative for Euro 9,515 thousand, was generated by
repayment of loans, net of new loans taken out totaling Euro 26,500 thousand.
In particular, in October 2012, the parent company Landi Renzo S.p.A. obtained funding of
Euro 20 million Euros from the European Investment Bank (EIB) to support its research and
innovation plan for 2012 to 2014, aimed at further developing low-emission systems for
the automotive industry. The agreement with the EIB was reached after a thorough analysis
of the research and innovation plans aimed at strengthening the Group’s leadership in the
production of eco-compatible auto fuel supply systems. The loan has a maximum duration
of 5 years and is guaranteed by SACE for Euro 10 million.

EIB Funding
obtained for
Research and
Innovation

20

e millions
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Investments
Investments in property, plant and machinery and other equipment, net of disposals,
undertaken in order to support production and business needs amounted to Euro 7,823
thousand (Euro 7,027 thousand at 31 December 2011) and relate to the purchase of:
• machinery,
• manufacturing equipment,
• test instruments,
• moulds,
• electronic office equipment.
Increases in intangible assets were equal to Euro 3,903 thousand (Euro 4,396 thousand
at 31 December 2011) and relate primarily to:
• costs capitalized for the development of new products by the parent company and
the subsidiary Lovato Gas S.p.A., for a total of Euro 3,272 thousand; and to
• costs incurred for the implementation of managerial software and software to support
Research and Development totaling Euro 631 thousand.
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STATEMENT OF RECONCILIATION BETWEEN THE DATA
OF THE PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
THE DATA OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The following is a reconciliation table between the result for the period and the capital
and reserves of the Group with the corresponding values of the Parent Company.
(Euro thousands)

Equity at
31.12.2012

Result for the year
at 31.12.2012

Equity at
31.12.2011

Result for the year
at 31.12.2011

126,277

5,532

120,745

-8,530

14,785

-645

18,225

501

Pro-quota results achieved by investees

0

5,955

0

2,977

Elimination of intercompany dividends

0

-8,535

0

-7,600

-2,279

181

-2,258

-164

0

479

0

3681

-350

-105

-237

0

1

0

-209

-2

138,435

2,863

136,266

-9,138

623

-265

738

-1

139,058

2,598

137,004

-9,139

RECONCILIATION STATEMENT
Equity and result for the year of the Parent Company
Difference in value between carrying value ad
pro-quota value of the accounting equity of the
consolidated companies

Elimination of the effects of intercompany commercial
transactions
Elimination of revaluation/write-down of investments
Elimination of the effects of intercompany assets
Accounting for financial leasing operations
Equity and result for the year from Consolidated
Financial Statements
Equity and result for the year of minority interests
Equity and result for the year of the Group
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THE COMPANIES OF THE LANDI GROUP
The Landi Group is organized in a structure at the top of which is the Parent company Landi
Renzo S.p.A., with headquarters in Cavriago (RE), which owns direct and indirect controlling
shareholdings in the capital of 17 companies, including one minor interest - not consolidated
since it is not significant - operating in the activities of the “Gas Sector (LPG and CNG)”.
The main figures on these companies are provided in the following table:

Currency

Fully paid-up
share capital

Investment

Cavriago (RE)

EUR

11,250,000

Soc. Capogruppo

Landi International B.V.
(Holding)

Utrecht (The Netherlands)

EUR

18,151

100.00%

Eurogas Utrecht B.V.

Utrecht (The Netherlands)

EUR

36,800

100.00% (*)

Landi Renzo Polska Sp.Zo.O.

Varsavia (Poland)

PLN

50,000

100.00% (*)

LR Industria e Commercio Ltda

Espirito Santo (Brazil)

BRL

4,320,000

99.99%

Beijing Landi Renzo
Autogas System Co. Ltd

Pechino (China)

USD

2,600,000

100.00%

L.R. Pak (Pvt) Limited

Karachi (Pakistan)

PKR

75,000,000

70.00%

Landi Renzo Pars Private Joint
Stock Company

Teheran (Iran)

IRR

5,096,522,000

98.00%

Landi Renzo RO S.r.l.

Bucarest (Romania)

RON

20,890

100.00%

LandiRenzo VE C.A.

Caracas (Venezuela)

VEF

414,401

100.00%

Landi Renzo USA Corporation

Wilmington - DE (USA)

USD

18,215,400

100.00%

Baytech Corporation

Los Altos - CA (USA)

USD

5,000

100.00% (+)

A.E.B. S.p.A.

Cavriago (RE)

EUR

2,800,000

100.00%

A.E.B. America S.r.l.

Buenos Aires (Argentina)

ARS

2,030,220

96.00% (#)

Lovato Gas S.p.A.

Vicenza

EUR

120,000

100.00%

Lovato do Brasil Ind
Com de Equipamentos
para Gas Ltda (-)

Curitiba (Brazil)

BRL

100,000

100.00% (§)

Safe S.p.A.

S. Giov. Persiceto (BO)

EUR

2,500,000

100.00%

Officine Lovato
Private Limited

Mumbai (India)

INR

20,000,000

100.00% (§)

Company Name

Registered Office

Landi Renzo S.p.A.

(**) The turnover and the net result for foreign Companies are converted to Euro at the average exchange rate for the period for various currencies used
in drawing up the consolidation Reporting Packages.
(*) Held by Landi International B.V..
(+) Held by Landi Renzo Usa Corporation.
(#) Held by A.E.B. S.p.A..
(-) Not consolidated because not significant.
(§) Held by Lovato Gas S.p.A..
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Turnover E /
thousands
31/12/2012 (**)

Turnover E/
thousands
31/12/2011 (**)

Net result E /
thousands
31/12/2012 (**)

Net result E /
thousands
31/12/2011 (**)

Company Name

136,703

112,592

5,532

-8,530

Landi Renzo S.p.A.

0

0

639

6

Landi International B.V.
(Holding)

2,847

2,631

129

110

Eurogas Utrecht B.V.

28,856

15,089

502

259

Landi Renzo Polska Sp.Zo.O.

6,104

7,578

506

489

LR Industria e Commercio Ltda

6,752

6,136

1,197

779

Beijing Landi Renzo
Autogas System Co. Ltd

8,739

20,686

-973

1,209

L.R. Pak (Pvt) Limited

1,687

7,812

196

-1,639

Landi Renzo Pars Private Joint
Stock Company

10,389

5,385

754

313

Landi Renzo RO S.r.l.

146

53

-78

-80

LandiRenzo VE C.A.

1,685

1,065

-2,401

-2,647

Landi Renzo USA Corporation

1,244

909

94

17

Baytech Corporation

73,208

65,544

5,578

5,543

A.E.B. S.p.A.

4,745

3,777

510

660

A.E.B. America S.r.l.

54,367

71,074

1,524

2,660

Lovato Gas S.p.A.
Lovato do Brasil Ind
Com de Equipamentos
para Gas Ltda (-)

7,345

-

-244

-

Safe S.p.A.

746

889

11

31

Officine Lovato
Private Limited

The commercial dealings between the companies of the Landi Group are performed at
normal market conditions.
The following pages provides the main economic information on the companies of the
Group as based on the data of the Financial Statements prepared according to local
regulations.
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21.4%

+

Revenues of the
Parent Company
in 2012

Landi Renzo S.p.A. (Parent Company)
In 2012 Landi Renzo S.p.A. achieved revenues of Euro 136,703 thousand compared
with Euro 112,592 thousand in 2011, an increase of 21.4%. The increase in turnover
equal to Euro 24,111 thousand can be ascribed primarily to the increase in sales on
the LPG line, primarily in Italy and Europe, with significant volumes achieved on OEM
installations, and to consolidation in the After Market sector.
Gross Operating Profit amounted to Euro 8,852 thousand, compared with a negative
result of Euro 3,346 thousand in 2011. Overall personnel expenses dropped by 6.2%
compared with the previous year and amounted to Euro 17,890 thousand.
Operating Profit, positive and equal to Euro 470 thousand at 31 December 2012, is
influenced by amortization and depreciation registered during the year for a total of
Euro 8,381 thousand, including Euro 2,877 thousand for intangible assets.
Net profit amounted to Euro 5,532 thousand, compared to a net loss of Euro 8,530
thousand recorded in 2011.
The balance of financial transactions was positive for Euro 4,988 thousand after taking
account of dividends from Group companies totaling Euro 8,535 thousand, financial
charges totaling Euro 3,101 thousand and charges for impairment losses on investments
amounting to Euro 479 thousand.
The net financial position to the end of 2012 is negative and equal to Euro 59,732
thousand, including Euro 33,910 thousand medium-long term, compared with a
negative net financial position equal to Euro 87,281 thousand at 31 December 2011.
Lovato Gas S.p.A.
Lovato Gas S.p.A., acquired in October 2008 by the Parent Company Landi Renzo
S.p.A., is one of the major companies in the sector of LPG and CNG fuel supply
components and systems for the automotive sector, operating, for more than 50
years, primarily in the European and Asian markets.
The year 2012 was characterized by a sharp slowdown in the Iranian market, which
was affected by the trade and financial restrictions related to the increasingly stringent
international embargo measures, and by a recovery in sales in the domestic market
and in Eastern Europe. Net sales revenues gross of intercompany sales amounted
to Euro 54,367 thousand, a decrease of 23.5%. The decline in turnover, mainly on
the market described above was, however, expected by Group management, and
therefore the results recorded by the subsidiary are substantially in line with estimates.
Net operating profit was positive and amounted to Euro 3,041 thousand, after
amortization/depreciation of Euro 3,581 thousand.
The financial statements at 31 December 2012 closed with a profit of Euro 1,524
thousand, compared to Euro 2,660 thousand in 2011.
Personnel costs amounted to Euro 6,164 thousand, a decrease of 12.5% compared
to the previous year. At year-end the workforce numbered 108 units.
A.E.B. S.p.A.
A.E.B. S.p.A. has been operating for more than 25 years in the design, manufacture
and sale of electronic components for eco-sustainable LPG and CNG systems for
the automotive sector. The financial statements for the year 2012 reported turnover
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of Euro 73,208 thousand, gross of intercompany sales, with an increase of 11.7%
compared with the same date in 2011. 53% of sales were made in Italy and 47%
abroad, especially in European and Asian countries. Operating profit was equal to
Euro 8,453 thousand compared with Euro 8,163 thousand in 2011 after amortization/
depreciation totaling Euro 1,928 thousand. The year 2012 closes with a pre-tax profit
equal to Euro 8,395 thousand and with a net profit equal to Euro 5,578 thousand,
in line with the Euro 5,543 thousand recorded in the previous year. There were 198
employees at the end of 2012, of which 8 were transferred with the acquisition of the
business unit operating in the industrial automation sector.
SAFE S.p.A.
SAFE S.p.A., established in July 2012, acquired the former SAFE business unit, under
lease with conditional purchase, from Agave S.r.l. in composition, operating in the
manufacture of compressors for gas treatment, and achieved sales revenues of Euro
7,345 thousand in the year 2012 The net operating result amounted to Euro - 261
thousand, after amortization/depreciation totaling Euro 39 thousand.
The financial year 2012 closed with a loss of Euro 244 thousand, in line with expectations.
The number of employees at the end of 2012 was 44 units.
Landi International B.V.
The Dutch holding company, a parent holding 100% of Landi Polska Sp.zo.o. and of
Eurogas Utrecht B.V., did not achieve any revenues (excluding the dividends of the
subsidiaries).
Eurogas Utrecht B.V.
The company, held since 1995, sells LPG fuel supply systems for motor vehicles under
the “Eurogas” brand in Northern Europe. The year 2012 closed with a net profit of
Euro 129 thousand compared with a net profit of Euro 110 thousand in 2011, after
depreciation/amortization of Euro 39 thousand. Total turnover amounted to Euro 2,847
thousand compared with Euro 2,631 in 2011, an increase of 8.2%.
Landi Renzo Polska Sp.zo.o.
This company, operating since 1998, sells LPG fuel systems for motor vehicles, mainly in
Poland, and is also active in the installation of LPG systems, with manufacturing facilities
in Warsaw and Tychy. Total turnover was Euro 28,856 thousand, compared with Euro
15,089 thousand in 2011, registering an increase of 91.2% thanks to the significant
growth in sales on the OEM channel. The year closed with a net profit of Euro 502
thousand, compared with a net profit of Euro 259 thousand in 2011, after depreciation/
amortization of Euro 476 thousand.
LR Industria e Comercio Ltda
The revenues achieved by this Brazilian company, in which a share has been held since
2003, decreased by 19.4% from Euro 7,578 thousand in 2011 to Euro 6,104 in 2012.
The year closed with a net profit of Euro 506 thousand, compared with a profit of Euro
489 thousand recorded in 2011.
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Beijing Landi Renzo Autogas System Co. Ltd
This company, which was formed in 2005, carries out commercial activities for LPG
and CNG systems in the Chinese market and is equipped with an internal structure for
research and development focused on after-sales service.
The year 2011 closed with a net profit of Euro 1,197 and with revenues achieved
totaling Euro 6,752 thousand.
L.R. Pak (Private) Limited
The company, 70% owned, active since 2006, manufactures and sells CNG fuel systems
both to car manufacturers (OEM customers) and to the after market. The financial year
2012 closed with a loss of Euro 973 thousand and revenues from sales and services
totaling Euro 8,739 thousand (Euro 20,686 thousand at 31 December 2011).
The downturn in sales from the previous year, amounting to Euro 11,947 thousand,
is due exclusively to the restrictions imposed on the import of CNG tanks, that have
actually significantly reduced the use of CNG for vehicles.
Landi Renzo Pars Private Joint Stock Company
Since 2008, this company carries out CNG production and marketing activities in the
Iranian market, on both the OEM and after market channels. Landi Renzo Pars received
protection of its invested capital on the basis of the “FIPPA” (Foreign Investment
Protection and Promotion Act).
The year 2012 closed more or less at breakeven with a net profit of Euro 196 thousand
and sales revenues of Euro 1,687 thousand. The sharp decline in revenues compared
to the previous year, amounting to Euro 6,125 thousand, can be attributed to the
continuing trade and financial restrictions as a result of the embargo by Western
countries.
Landi Renzo RO S.r.l.
This company has been active since 2009 in the production, marketing and installation
of LPG systems, in particular on the OEM channel.
The year 2012 closed with a net profit of Euro 754 thousand, compared with Euro 313
thousand in the previous year. Revenues from sales and services were equal to Euro
10,389, an increase of 92.9% compared with the previous year.
Landi Renzo VE C.A.
In 2012 this company provided installation and post-sales assistance services for
insignificant amounts.
Landi Renzo USA Corporation
In January 2010 Landi Renzo Usa Corporation was formed, the capital of which is held
entirely by Landi Renzo S.p.A., with the aim of developing the productive and commercial
opportunities on the American market, which is increasingly interested in using ecocompatible CNG systems.
In 2012 the company achieved revenues of Euro 1,685 thousand and recorded a loss of
Euro 2,401 thousand.
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Baytech Corporation
Baytech Corporation, 100% controlled by Landi Renzo Usa Corporation, holds CARB
and EPA certification for General Motors (GM) and Isuzu CNG vehicles in the United
States, where it ha been active since 1991.
The financial statements for 2012 reported turnover equal to Euro 1,244 thousand and
a net result of Euro 94 thousand.
A.E.B. America S.r.l.
A.E.B. America srl, 96% controlled by A.E.B. S.p.A. carries out production and marketing
activities on the Argentine market. In 2012 it reported an improvement in sales performance
compared to 2011, with revenues totaling Euro 4,745 thousand and a positive net result
equal to Euro 510 thousand.
Officine Lovato Private Ltd.
Starting from the second half of 2010, Officine Lovato Private Ltd. was included in the
consolidation scope, a company formed in 2002, but which remained inactive until the
second quarter of 2010.
This company looks post-sales service in India, especially in the after market channel, for
products of the Landi Group for insignificant sales volumes.

OTHER INFORMATION
Transactions with related parties
Creditor/debtor relationships and economic transactions with related parties are
subject to specific analysis in the relevant section of the Explanatory Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statements for the Year, to which
you are referred. Please note that transactions with related parties, including
intercompany transactions, cannot be qualified as either atypical or unusual, as they
are part of the normal activities of the Group companies, and that the transactions are
concluded at market conditions, taking into account the characteristics of the goods
and services provided. Regarding the relationships with the parent company Girefin
S.p.A., also bear in mind that the Directors of Landi Renzo S.p.A. do NOT consider it
to exercise the management and coordination activities provided for by article 2497
of the Italian Civil Code.
Lastly, please note that in accordance with CONSOB Regulation 17221/2010, and
pursuant to Article 2391-bis of the Civil Code, the Board of Directors has adopted
the specific procedure for transactions with related parties, available on the company
website, to which you are referred.
Positions or transactions deriving from atypical and/or unusual transactions
Pursuant to CONSOB communication no. 6064293 of 28 July 2006, note that during
the year 2012 no atypical and/or unusual transactions occurred outside the normal
operation of the company that could give rise to doubts regarding the correctness
and completeness of the information in the financial statements, conflicts of interest,
protection of company assets, safeguarding the Minority Stockholders.
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Treasury shares and shares of parent companies
In compliance with the provisions of article 2428 of the Italian Civil Code, it is confirmed
that during the year 2012 the Parent company did not negotiate any treasury shares or
shares of parent companies and does not at present hold any treasury shares or shares
of parent companies.
The subsidiaries do not hold any shares of the Parent Company
Sub-offices
No sub-offices were established.
Corporate Governance
Information on corporate governance is provided in a separate report that is an integral
part of the financial statements. This information includes, amongst other things, data
on equity investments, remuneration of directors and statutory auditors, as well as the
fees for the auditing firm.
Policy for analyzing and managing risks connected with the activities of the
Landi Group
This section provides information on exposure to risks connected with the activities of
the Group as well as the objectives, policies and processes for managing such risks and
the methods used to asses and to mitigate them mitigate them.
The Guidelines for the Internal Control System of the Landi Renzo Group defined by
the Board of Directors identify the internal control and risk management system as a
cross-sectional process integrated with all the company activities, which is based on
the international principles of Enterprise risk management and, in particular, on the
CoSo Report framework CoSo Report indicated by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 as a
reference best practice for the architecture of internal control systems.
The purpose of the internal control and risk management system is to help the Group
to realize its performance and profit objectives, to obtain reliable economic-financial
information and to ensure compliance with the laws and regulations in force, avoiding
damage to the company’s image and economic losses. In this process, particular
importance is given to the identification of corporate objectives and the classification
and control of the business risks connected to them, through the implementation of
specific actions aimed at containing such risks.
There can be various types of business risks: strategic, operational (related to the
effectiveness and efficiency of business operations), reporting (related to the reliability
of economic-financial information) and, lastly, compliance (related to the observance of
the laws and regulations in force, to avoid the company suffering damage to its image
or and/or economic losses).
Those in charge of the various branches of company management identify and assess
the risks within their jurisdiction, whether these originate within or outside the Group,
and identify actions to limit and reduce them (so-called “first line control”).
To the above-mentioned activities, we can also add those of the Manager in charge of
drafting corporate documents and his staff (so-called “second level control”) and by
the Manager of the Internal Audit function (c.d. “third level control”) who continuously
monitors the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
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system through risk assessment activities, the cyclical performance of audit operations
and the subsequent management of follow up.
The results of the risk identification procedures are reported and discussed at the Top
Management level of the Group, in order to create the prerequisites for their cover,
insurance and for the assessment of the residual risk.
The following paragraphs describe the risks considered to be significant and connected
with the activities of the Group (the order in which they are listed does not imply any
classification, either in terms of probability of their occurrence or in terms of possible
impact):
STRATEGIC RISKS
Risks relating to the macroeconomic and sector situation
The activity of the Group is influenced by the general conditions of the economy in the
various markets where it operates. A phase of economic crisis, with a consequent slowdown in consumption, can have a negative impact on the sales trends of the Group. In
order to mitigate the possible negative impact that a downturn in demand could have
on company profits, the Landi Renzo Group has adopted a flexible structure and has
outsourced part of production to third-party suppliers and, when necessary, uses fixedterm contracts. These factors allow production capacity to be sized in relation to the
market requirements.
Risks connected with the international expansion strategy
The Group sells its products in more than 50 countries, in 11 of which it operates
directly, including through its own companies. In the year 2012 the Group achieved
71.7% of consolidated revenues abroad.
In pursuing its expansion strategy, the Landi Group has invested, and may invest more
in the future, also in countries characterized by considerable instability of their political
institutions and/or at the center of situations of international tension. The abovementioned strategy could expose the Landi Group to various risks of a macroeconomic
nature, arising, for example, from changes in the political, social, economic and
regulatory systems of such countries or from extraordinary events such as acts of
terrorism, civil disorder, restrictions on trade with particular reference to the Group’s
products, foreign investment and/or trade, as well as exchange rate control policies
and associated restrictions on repatriation of capital, sanctions, restrictions on foreign
investment, nationalization, and inadequate protection of intellectual property rights.
The probability of the events described above actually taking place varies from country
to country and is difficult to predict. However, a constant monitoring activity is carried
out by company Top management in order to become aware of any changes as early as
possible, so as to minimize any economic impact that may ensue.
Risks related to growth
The Group aims at continued growth by means of a strategy based on gaining strength
in the markets where it is already present and on further geographical expansion. In
the context of such a strategy, the Group could encounter difficulties in managing
the adaptation of the structure and business model or in the ability to identify market
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trends or the preferences of local consumers. In addition, the Group may have to sustain
start-up costs arising from the opening of new companies. Lastly, in the case where the
Group’s growth is pursued through external lines through acquisition transactions, it
may encounter, amongst other things, difficulties related to the correct valuation of the
assets acquired, to the integration of such assets and also to the failure to achieve the
expected synergy, which may have a negative impact on the activity and on the future
economic-financial results of the Group.
OPERATING RISKS
Risks connected to relationships with OEM customers
The Landi Group distributes and sells its systems and components to the main automobile
manufactures at a world-wide level (OEM customers). In the year closed on 31 December
2012 the sales of systems and components made by the Landi Group to OEM customers
represented approximately 34.6% of the total sales of such products. The Group boasts
long-standing relationships with the main world-wide automobile manufacturers. The
ability of the group to strengthen the existing relationships with such customers, or to
establish new relationships, is a determining factor in order to consolidate the leadership
position that Landi Group holds in the market. The relationships with OEM customers are
typically governed by agreements that do not require minimum purchase quantities.
Therefore the demand for predefined quantities of Landi Group products from such
customers cannot be guaranteed. In order to best satisfy the requirements of various
customers to its best ability, the Landi Group has over the last few years initiated a policy
of delocalization of part of its production in countries where it already has a number of
customers and is attempting to do the same in other countries. Due to these considerations,
and also in the light of the competitive advantage acquired in the offer of solutions for
the development of sales in the After Market channel, the Group does not consider itself
to be a subject with a significant risk of dependency on OEM customers. However, it is
not possible to exclude the fact that a possible loss of important customers or a reduction
in orders from them or a delay in collection compared to contractual stipulations may
determine negative effects on the economic-financial results of the Group.
Risks connected to the highly competitive markets in which the Landi Group operates
The markets in which the Landi Group operates are highly competitive in terms of
quality, innovation, economic conditions and reliability and safety. The success of the
activity will depend on the ability to maintain and increase market shares and to expand
through new innovative solutions. The Group constantly monitors the market in order
to identify as quickly as possible the introduction of any new or alternative fuel supply
systems for motor vehicles by competitors and car manufacturers, and consequently
manages the risk by pursuing a policy of progressive diversification and enrichment of
its product portfolio in order to minimize any possible economic impact.
Product liability risks
Any design or manufacturing defects in the products of the Landi Group, also
attributable to third party subjects such as suppliers and installers, may generate
product liability against third party subjects. In addition, should the products turn
out to be defective or fail to comply with technical and legal specifications, the
Landi Group, also at the request of its customers, could be obliged to withdraw
such products from the market while incurring the related costs. For these reasons,
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insurance cover has been set up that is centered on master policies, negotiated and
contracted centrally and local policies of initial risk.
The latter guarantee immediate activation of the cover which is supplemented by
master policies where the impact of the damage exceeds the local maximum amount.
In order to further mitigate the risk related to product liability, the Group considerably
increased the maximum amounts of the master and recall policies in recent years. In
addition, allocations are made to appropriate provisions estimated by management
based on the historical incidence of defects encountered and on the more recent and
stricter requirements arising from commercial agreements signed with OEM customers.
Risks connected with the protection of intellectual property
The Landi Group owns trademark rights, patent rights and other intellectual property
rights and regularly registers its trademarks, patents and other intellectual property rights,
and also protects its industrial know-how pursuant to the applicable regulations, in
order to avoid the risk of imitation or reproduction of the products by competitors or by
unauthorized third parties.
In relation to this, we point out that the Group operates in more than 50 countries around
the world and that part of the sales of the products of the Group takes place in emerging
or developing countries, where the existing forms of protection may not be fully effective,
in other words, the risk of counterfeiting products is greater.
Therefore, it is not possible to eliminate the risk of third parties counterfeiting the
products or disputing trademarks and patents, or to exclude the possibility of third parties
discovering know-how or industrial secrets or that competitors may develop products,
know-how and technologies similar to those of the Group.
Any counterfeiting, disputes and/or controversies, whether assets or liabilities, regarding
the protection of intellectual property that may be to the Group’s disadvantage could
have a negative impact on its economic-financial results.
Risks connected with the recoverability of intangible assets, in particular goodwill
Intangible assets totaling Euro 91,116 thousand are reported in the consolidated financial
statements at 31 December 2012, including Euro 8,365 thousand for development
expenditure, Euro 55,582 thousand for goodwill, Euro 27,169 thousand for trademarks
and licenses, as well as net prepaid tax receivables totaling Euro 13,810 thousand. The
recoverability of such values is related to the materialization of future product plans and
the cash generating unit to which they refer.
In particular, in the context of its development strategy, the Landi Group has acquired
companies that have allowed it to increase its market presence and to take advantage
of the opportunities for growth that it provides.
In regard to such investments, recorded in the financial statements as goodwill, there
is no guarantee that the Landi Group will succeed in achieving the benefits originally
expected from these operations.
The Landi Group constantly monitors the progress of performance in comparison to
the forecast plans, initiating the necessary corrective actions whenever unfavorable
trends emerge that may involve significant changes in expected cash flows used
for impairment test when evaluating the coherency of the values recorded in the
financial statements.
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FINANCIAL RISKS
Interest rate risk
The Landi Group is exposed to the interest rate risk associated with both cash at hand
and with medium to long term financing. The exposure refers mainly to the Euro
zone. As regards exposure to the risk of interest rate volatility, note that the financial
indebtedness is regulated primarily by variable interest rates. Therefore, the financial
management of the Group remains exposed to fluctuations in interest rates, not having,
at the date of the present financial statements, subscribed to instruments covering the
variability of the interest rates on loans contracted with the banks.
Interest rate risks were measured using a sensitivity analysis and the potential impacts
of Euribor interest rate fluctuations on the consolidated financial statements at 31st
December 2012 were analyzed with particular reference to cash and cash equivalents
and to financing. The increase of 50 basis point on the Euribor, like all the other variables,
would have produced an increase in financial costs for the Group of Euro 526 thousand
in comparison to an increase of financial income equal to Euro 44 thousand. It can be
logically assumed that a decrease of 50 basis points will produce the same effect, but
with the opposite sign, both on financial costs and financial income.
Exchange risk
The Landi Group sells part of its production and, although to much lesser degree, also
purchases some components also in Countries outside the Euro zone. In relation to the
exchange risk, note that the amount of the consolidated equity balances expressed in
currency other than the functional currency is to be considered as insignificant. The
Company has not subscribed to instruments to cover exchange rate fluctuations and, in
accordance with the company’s policy up to this moment this moment, no derivatives
are subscribed solely for trading purposes. Therefore, the Group remains exposed to
exchange rate risk on the balances of the assets and liabilities in foreign currency at year
end which, in any case, as mentioned, are not to be considered as significant.
We also point out that some Group companies are located in countries not belonging
to the European Monetary Union: USA, Argentina, Brazil, Venezuela, Iran, Pakistan,
China, India, Poland and Romania. Since the reference currency is the Euro, the income
statements of such companies are converted to Euro at the average exchange rate for
the period and, with the same revenues and margins in local currency, exchange rate
fluctuations may impact the Euro value of revenues, costs and economic results.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a customer or one of counterparts of a financial instrument
causes a financial loss through failure to fulfill an obligation and derives primarily from
trade receivables, from other financial assets and from guarantees that may have been
given by the Group.
Trade receivables and other receivables
The Group normally deals with known and reliable customers. It is the Landi Group’s
policy to subject customers requesting extended payment conditions to procedures
for checking their credit class. This check also includes external assessments when
available. Sales limits are established for each customer, which represent the
maximum line of credit, beyond which direct approval by management is required.
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The credit limits are reviewed periodically and the customers who do not satisfy the
creditworthiness conditions established by the Group can then make purchases only
by payment in advance.
In addition, the balance of the receivables is monitored on a fortnightly basis over
the period, in order to minimize exposure to the risk of losses. Finally, regarding new
customers and those not operating in EU countries, a letter of credit to guarantee
successful collection is normally used, where possible.
As of March 2008, the Parent Company insures part of its foreign receivables, that are
not guaranteed by letters of credit, through a leading Insurance Company and carries
out assignment of receivables without recourse.
The Group allocates a provision for impairment losses that reflects the estimated losses
on trade receivables and on other receivables, made up primarily of individual writedowns of significant exposures.
Lastly, we point out that the persistence or deterioration of the current economic and
financial crisis could have an impact, even significantly, on the capacity of some client
companies to regularly meet their obligations to the Group.
Other financial assets
The credit risk regarding the other financial assets of the Group, including cash and cash
equivalents, presents a maximum risk equal to the book value of these assets in the case
of insolvency of the counterpart.
Guarantees
The policies of the Group provide for the issue of financial guarantees in favor of
subsidiary companies.
At 31 December 2012, the Group did not any financial guarantees for a significant amount
in place, except for a surety issued by the Parent Company Landi Renzo S.p.A. on behalf of
SAFE S.p.A. to Agave S.r.l., a company in liquidation, for obligations relating to the payment
of rental charges (Euro 180 thousand per year) and the purchase price of the business unit,
estimated at Euro 5,120 thousand as of 31 December 2012.
Liquidity risk
The liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may have difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities.
The Landi Group manages the liquidity risk by maintaining an adequate level of
available financial resources and bank credit granted by the main Credit Institutions,
in order to satisfy the finance requirements of the operational activity.
The current context of the markets in which the Group operates, including the financial
markets, requires particular attention in managing the liquidity risk, and therefore
particular care is focused on actions aimed at generating financial resources with
operating activities and at maintaining an adequate level of cash and cash equivalents
as an important factor in facing in the coming years.
Therefore, the Group expects to deal with the necessities arising from receivables
falling due and from investments planned by means of flows deriving from operating
activities, available liquidity, and the renewal or refinancing of bank loans.
The Group has not adopted a specific policy for management of the centralized treasury.
In particular, the management of the ordinary treasury is delegated locally to the
individual companies of the Group, while the extraordinary treasury is subject to the
decision-making process of the Parent company.
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Conditions for listing of particular companies (articles 36 – 39 Market Regulations)
In applying the provisions of Article 39 of the Market Regulations issued by CONSOB in relation to the
“Conditions for the listing of companies controlling companies formed and regulated under the law of
States outside the European Union” pursuant to article 36 of the previously mentioned Regulations, the
following is pointed out:
• at 31 December 2012 there are, among the companies controlled by Landi Renzo S.p.A., five that fall
under the regulatory provision, namely: LR Industria and Comercio Ltda (Brazil), Beijing Landi Renzo
Autogas System Co. Ltd (China), LR Pak (Pvt) Limited (Pakistan), Landi Renzo Pars Pjsc (Iran) and Landi
Renzo Usa Corporation (USA);
• the procedures necessary to guarantee the conditions required by the aforesaid regulation have been
adopted.
It is confirmed, pursuant to Article 2.6.2. paragraphs 12 and 15 of the Regulations of the Markets Organized
and Managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A., that the Company has complied with the provisions of article 36 of
CONSOB Regulation n. 16191/2007.
Adoption of simplification of reporting obligations pursuant to CONSOB Resolution 18079 of 20
January 2012
Landi Renzo S.p.A., pursuant to Article 3 of CONSOB Resolution no.18079 of 20 January 2012, decided
to adopt the opt-out scheme under Articles 70, paragraph 8, and 71, paragraph 1-bis, of CONSOB
Regulation no. 11971/99 (as subsequently amended), therefore availing of the possibility to derogate
from the obligations to publish informative documents provided for in Annex 3B of the aforementioned
CONSOB Regulation on the occasion of significant mergers, spin-offs, capital increase by contribution in
kind, acquisitions and disposals.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER CLOSING OF THE PERIOD
AND FORECAST FOR OPERATIONS
After the closing of the financial year and up to the present we point out that:
• W ith effect from 1 January 2013, we completed the merger of the American Society Baytech
Corporation in its parent company Landi Renzo USA Corporation with a view to simplifying the
operation of the business.
• The implementing Ministerial Decree that provides entitlement to a bonus on ecological cars was
published in the Official Journal no. 36 of 12 February 2013. The new car incentives will start on 14
March, 2013 and the facilities will be operational in the period 2013-2015, with a total budget of
120 million Euros (40 for 2013, 35 for 2014, 45 for 2015). The contributions aim at encouraging the
purchase of vehicles to alternative fuels, including CNG and LPG, with emissions of carbon dioxide
(CO2), from the exhaust, not exceeding 120 g/km.
• In February 2013, the European Commission announced an ambitious set of measures to ensure
the creation of alternative fuel stations throughout Europe, with common standards relating to the
design and usage. The package “Clean energy for transport” is composed of a Communication on a
European strategy for alternative fuels, a Directive focusing on infrastructure and standards and an
accompanying document that describes an action plan for the development of liquified natural gas
(LNG) in maritime transport. The main measures of interest to the Group relate primarily to CNG: this
fuel is currently used by one million vehicles, accounting for 0.5% of the vehicle fleet - the sector aims
to increase tenfold by 2020 this figure. The proposal of the Commission shall ensure that, by 2020,
are available throughout Europe refueling points accessible to the public, with common standards
and at a maximum distance of 150 km.
• On 1 March 2013 UNRAE (National Union of Foreign Vehicle Representatives) released data on car
registrations in Italy according to which, during January and February 2012, registrations of bi-fuel
vehicles registered an increase of 47.7% over the same two months last year. In the month of February
alone, LPG-petrol bi-fuel registrations increased by 39.7% compared with the same month in 2012.
• On 7 March 2013 the parent company Landi Renzo S.p.A. acquired 70% of the company Emmegas
S.r.l. based in the Province of Reggio Emilia, active in the production of components and systems
for LPG and CNG vehicles aimed at specific segments of the product and market. The total outlay
amounted to Euro 475 thousand.
***
Regarding the business outlook, in light of the continuing difficulties related to the macroeconomic
scenario and the target market, the Group expects that revenues in 2013 to will amount to more than
Euro 280 million. It is also expected that EBITDA will be higher than 10%.
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PROPOSAL FOR APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND ALLOCATION OF THE RESULT FOR THE YEAR

Dear Shareholders,

in concluding our report we propose that you:
• approve the yearly Financial Statements at 31 December 2012;
• propose to the Shareholders’ Meeting to approve the allocation of the profit for the year realized by Landi
Renzo S.p.A. totaling 5,531,903.97 Euros to the Extraordinary Reserve, since the legal reserve has reached
one fifth of the share capital.

Cavriago (RE), 14 March 2013

For the Board of Directors

The Chairman
Stefano Landi
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GLOSSARIO
Board of Directors: the Issuer’s Board of Directors.
Borsa Italiana: Borsa Italiana S.p.A.
Civil Code/C.C.: the Italian Civil Code.
Consob Issuers’ Regulations: the Regulations issued by Consob by virtue of Resolution
11971/1999 (and subsequent amendments) regarding issuers.
Consob Stock Market Regulations: the Regulations issued by Consob by virtue of Resolution
16191/2007 (and subsequent amendments) regarding Stock Markets.
Consolidated Finance Act: Legislative Decree 58 of 24 February 1998 (the Italian Consolidated
Finance Act), as amended.
Instructions to the Stock Market Regulations: the Instructions to the Regulations of the Stock
Markets organised and managed by Borsa Italiana.
Issuer, Landi Renzo or the Company: Landi Renzo S.p.A.
Period: the financial period covered by the Report refers.
Report: the report on corporate governance and the structure of ownership that companies are
obliged to prepare in accordance with Article 123-bis of the Consolidated Finance Act.
Self-Regulatory Code: the Self-Regulatory Code for listed companies approved by the Corporate
Governance Committee in December 2011 and promoted by Borsa Italiana, Abi, Ania, Assogestioni,
Assonime and Confindustria.
Stock Market Regulations: the Regulations of the Stock Markets organised and managed by
Borsa Italiana.

72

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

1. 1. ISSUER PROFILE
The Issuer has adopted a traditional system of governance based on the presence of three bodies: the
Shareholders’ Meeting, the Board of Directors and the Board of Auditors. The auditing of the accounts
is entrusted by law to an auditing firm. The Issuer adheres to the Self-Regulatory Code in accordance
with the method described below.
The following Sections provide information regarding the ownership structure and describe the relative
and actual methods of implementation that the Company has already adopted, namely the changes
that the Company is pursuing with respect to the compliance model outlined in the Self-Regulatory
Code.
This Report, prepared in accordance with the legal obligations laid down for companies listed on the
screen-based equity market (Mercato Telematico Azionario) organised and managed by Borsa Italiana,
together with all the documents referred to herein, may be downloaded from the Company’s website,
www.landi.it, Investor Relations section.

2. INFORMATION ON THE STRUCTURE OF OWNERSHIP (PURSUANT TO ARTICLE
123-BIS, SUBSECTION 1, OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCE ACT) AS AT 31
DECEMBER 2012
This Section 2 has been prepared pursuant to the terms and effects of Article 123-bis, subsection 1, of
the Consolidated Finance Act. Any information (i) required by the aforesaid Article 123-bis, subsection
1, letter i) is provided in the Report on remuneration published pursuant to Article123-ter of the
Consolidated Finance Act, (ii) the information required by the aforesaid Article 123-bis, subsection 1,
letter l), is provided in the chapter of the Report dealing with the Board of Directors (Section 4.1), and
finally, (iii) the other information required by article 123-bis that is not mentioned in this Section 2, is to
be understood as not applicable to the Company.
(a) 
Shareholding structure (pursuant to article 123-bis, subsection 1, letter a) of the
Consolidated Finance Act) 		
Landi Renzo’s share capital is equal to Euro 11,250,000, fully subscribed and paid up, and consists
of 112,500,000 ordinary shares with a nominal value of Euro 0.10 each (the “Shares”), traded on
the screen-based equity market (Mercato Telematico Azionario) organised and managed by Borsa
Italiana. This information is also shown in Table 1 attached to the Report.		
	As of the date of this Report, no special classes of shares have been issued, such as shares without
voting rights or with limited voting rights, nor other securities granting the right to subscribe newly
issued shares.
(b) Restrictions on the transfer of securities (pursuant to article 123-bis, subsection 1, letter b)
of the Consolidated Finance Act)
	As of the date of this Report, the Shares are freely transferable by deed inter vivos and/or by succession
mortis causa and are subject to the circulation regime envisaged for shares issued by listed companies
registered under Italian law.
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(c) 
Significant shareholdings (pursuant to article 123-bis, subsection 1, letter c) of the
Consolidated Finance Act)
As of the date of this Report, on the basis of the records in the Shareholders’ Book and in the light of
the notifications received under Article 120 of the Consolidated Text, the following parties, directly
or indirectly, own more than 2% of the Company shares:
Declarer

Direct Shareholder

% of ordinary
share capital

% of shares
with voting rights

Trust Landi
(trust regulated by Jersey law,
in which trustee is Stefano Landi)

Girefin S.p.A.

54.667

54.667

Gireimm S.r.l.

4.444

4.444

Impax Asset Management Limited

Impax Asset Management
Limited

2.637

2.637

Aerius Investment Holding AG

Aerius Investment Holding AG

2.311

2.311

(d) Securities to which special rights are attached (pursuant to article 123-bis, subsection 1,
letter d) of the Consolidated Finance Act)
As of the date of this Report, all the Company’s shares are registered, freely transferable and
indivisible, and each of them entitles the holder to cast one vote in Ordinary and Extraordinary
Company Shareholders’ Meetings. Each share confers the same proprietary and administrative rights
in accordance with the applicable provisions of law and of the Articles of Association.
Therefore, as of the date of this Report, the Company has not issued any securities conferring special
controlling rights.
(e) Employees’ shareholdings: mechanism for the exercise of voting rights (pursuant to article
123-bis, subsection 1, letter e) of the Consolidated Finance Act)
As of the date of this Report, there are no arrangements for employees to hold shares in the
Company.
(f) Restrictions on voting rights (pursuant to article 123-bis, subsection 1, letter f) of the
Consolidated Finance Act)
As of the date of this Report, there are no restrictions on voting rights.
Shareholders’ agreements (pursuant to article 123-bis, subsection 1, letter g) of the
(g) 
Consolidated Finance Act)
As of the date of this Report, the Company is not aware of any agreements among Shareholders as
per Article 122 of the Consolidated Text.
(h) 
Change of control clauses (pursuant to article 123-bis, subsection 1, letter h) of the
Consolidated Finance Act)
As of the date of this Report, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries have stipulated any
important agreements that take effect, are amended or are terminated in the event of any change
in the Issuer’s major Shareholder, with the exception of (i) two loan agreements entered into on 13
October 2008, for the purpose of the 100% acquisition of the share capital of Lovato Gas S.p.A. In
particular, both the said loan agreements contain a clause for the complete repayment of the loan
in the event that Girefin S.p.A. and Gireimm S.r.l. reduce their holdings in the Company to below
50.1%, subject to the prior agreement of the lending bank; in such event, should the Company
fail to fulfil the relative repayment obligation, the banks shall also be entitled to rescind the relative
agreement pursuant to, and for the purposes of, article 1456 of the Italian Civil Code; and (ii) two
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loan agreements entered into on 24 October 2012 effective until 11 December 2017, both aimed
at financing a research and development project in the power train sector, which contain a clause
providing for full repayment of the loan in case of other persons taking over control of the Company
or Mr Stefano Landi or his family members reducing their shareholding in the Company to below
50,1%. It is specified that the right to full repayment can be exercised by the lender at its own
discretion and that, upon occurrence of the aforesaid events, should the Company not comply with
its repayment obligation, the lender is also entitled to terminate the relevant agreement pursuant
to article 1456 of the Italian civil code.
(i) Delegated powers to increase share capital, and authorisations to purchase treasury shares
(pursuant to article 123-bis, subsection 1, letter m) of the Consolidated Finance Act)
The Shareholders’ Meeting of 24 April 2012 authorised the Board of Directors, and the Managing
Director acting on behalf of the said Board, also through its own attorneys appointed for this
purpose, pursuant to, and for the purposes of, article 2357 of the Italian Civil Code, to purchase
Company’s treasury shares, in quantities, at the price, and under the terms and conditions reported
below:
• the shares may be purchased on one or more occasions, within the 18 months following the date of
the Shareholders’ Meeting’s resolution, within the limits of the reserves available and profit available
for distribution shown in the last approved financial statements, in accordance with those regulations
governing listed companies, that is, in accordance with the provisions of article 144-bis of the
Consob Issuers’ Regulations and article 132 of the Consolidated Finance Act, and in accordance
with the provisions of the Stock Market Regulations and of all other applicable regulations, including
those established by Directive 2003/6/EC;
• the purchase price of each share shall be no more than 20% higher or lower than the reference price
recorded by the security on the Stock Market in the session preceding each transaction;
• the maximum number of shares purchased may not have an aggregate nominal value, including any
shares held by the subsidiaries, higher than one-fifth of the share capital.
On the same occasion the Shareholders’ Meeting also resolved:
• under Article 2357-ter, subsection 1, of the Italian Civil Code, to authorise the Board of Directors
to dispose, in whole or in part, without any time limits, of its treasury shares purchased even before
having completed the purchases; shares may be sold, on one or more occasions, on regulated
markets and/or unregulated markets, or off-market, also by offering them to the public and/or
to Shareholders, by institutional placement, by placement of purchase coupons and/or warrants
or as a consideration for acquisitions or public swap offers at a price that must not be more than
20% lower or higher than the reference price recorded by the security on the Stock Market in the
session preceding each transaction; nevertheless, these price limits will not apply if the shares are
sold to employees, including executives, executive directors and collaborators of Landi Renzo and its
subsidiaries within the framework of stock option incentive plans intended for such persons;
• under Article 2357-ter, subsection 3, of the Italian Civil Code, to authorise the Board of Directors to
make all the accounting entries necessary or opportune, as regards transactions involving treasury
shares, in compliance with those legal provisions in force and with the applicable accounting
principles.
As of the date of this Report, the Company has neither purchased nor disposed of any treasury shares.
The Board of Directors’ Meeting of 14 March 2013 resolved to submit to the Shareholders’ Meeting a
proposal to extend the power to purchase and dispose of treasury shares under the same terms and
conditions as approved by the previous Shareholders’ Meeting.
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(j) Management and coordination (pursuant to articles 2497 ff. of the Italian Civil Code)
Landi Renzo deems that Girefin S.p.A. does not carry out management and coordination activities,
operating as the former does completely free of any entrepreneurial or corporate control by the latter
controlling company. For example, Landi Renzo independently manages its treasury and business relations
with customers and suppliers, and independently establishes its own industrial plans and/or budgets.
***
The information requested by article 123-bis, first paragraph, letter i), of the Consolidated Financial
Act (benefits for directors in case of resignation, dismissal or termination of employment following
public tender offers) are described in the section of the Report devoted to compensation of directors.
The information requested under article 123-bis, first paragraph, letter l) of the Consolidated Finance
Act (appointment and replacement of directors and changes to the articles of association) are described
in the section of the Report devoted to the Board of Directors.

3. COMPLIANCE
Landi Renzo has complied with the provisions and recommendations of the Self-Regulatory Code
drafted by the Listed Companies’ Corporate Governance Committee and published in December
2011 (the “Self-Regulatory Code”), available for public viewing on the Borsa Italiana website
www.borsaitaliana.it.
Neither the Issuer nor its subsidiaries of strategic importance, are subject to provisions of any laws other
than Italian law affecting the Issuer’s corporate governance structure.

4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
4.1 Appointment and replacement of directors, and amendments to the
Articles of Association (pursuant to article 123-bis, subsection 1,
letter l) of the Consolidated Finance Act)
The Shareholders’ Meeting establishes the number of members of the Board of Directors, at the time
of their appointment, within those limits set out in subsection 4.2 below. The directors shall hold
office for a period of no more than three financial years, and they may be re-elected.
Under Article 14 of the Company’s Articles of Association, regarding the appointment and
replacement of the Board of Directors and/or its members, establishes that the members of the
Board of Directors are elected from lists of candidates according to the following procedures, in
compliance with legislation, including regulatory, on gender balance in force at the time. Shareholders
holding, even jointly, at least 2.5% of the share capital representing shares that confer voting rights
at Shareholders’ Meetings held to deliberate the appointment of the members of the governing
body, or such other proportion of the share capital as may be determined at any one time by
Consob, in accordance with the rules applicable to the Company, may present a list of candidates,
the number of which shall not be greater than the number of directors to be elected, to be arranged
in progressive order. This level of ownership is consistent with that determined by Article 144-quater
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of the Consob Issuers’ Regulations. The notice calling the Shareholders’ Meeting will state the level
of ownership required to present a list of candidates.
Each Shareholder, the Shareholders adhering to a Shareholders’ agreement relevant under Article
122 of the Consolidated Finance Act, the Parent Company, the subsidiary companies and companies
subject to joint control, may not present or join in the presentation of more than one list, not even
through a third party or a trust company, nor may they vote for different lists, and each candidate
may only stand in one list, otherwise they will be adjudged ineligible. Candidatures and votes
expressed in breach of this restriction shall not be attributed to any list.
Lists must be deposited at the Company’s registered office at least 25 (twenty-five) days prior to the
date scheduled for the Shareholders’ Meeting (on first calling), without prejudice to other forms of
publicity provided for by law, including regulatory provisions, in force at the time. The notice calling
the Shareholders’ Meeting will provide instructions to allow remote deposit of the list by distance
communication. Ownership of the amount of shares required to present a list must be proven with
the methods and at the terms required under the law and regulatory provisions in force at the
time. Should mandatory gender allocation criteria be applicable, each list that presents at least 3
(three) candidates shall include a number of candidates of the least represented gender equal to
the minimum requested by applicable law and regulatory provisions in force at the time. Those
documents provided for by article 14 of the Issuer’s Articles of Association and by the applicable
provisions of law and regulations shall be presented together with each list. Those lists presented
without observing the aforesaid provisions shall be deemed as not presented.
Each eligible person has the right to vote for one list. When voting has been completed, those
candidates from the two lists who have obtained the greatest number of votes shall be elected,
according to the following principles:
(a) from the list that has obtained the highest number of votes (the “Majority List”), the same
number of directors shall be elected as make up the Board of Directors, as established beforehand
by the Shareholders’ Meeting, minus; members are taken, in accordance with the said numerical
limitation, on the basis of the numerical order in which they appear in the list;
(b) from the list that has obtained the second highest number of votes, provided that it is not connected
in any manner, even indirectly, in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations, with the
Shareholders that presented or voted for the Majority List (the “Minority List”), one Director is
taken, and that Director shall be the one who appears first, in numerical order, on that list.
The candidate chosen as number one candidate on the Majority List shall be elected Chairperson of
the Board of Directors.
Unless otherwise provided for, in the event of parity of votes, the senior candidate shall be elected.
In the event that following the election of candidates in the aforesaid manner, a number of independent
directors have not been appointed, in accordance with the provisions of the law governing auditors,
equal to the minimum number established by law in relation to the overall number of members
of the Board of Directors, then the first non-independent candidate elected in numerical order
from the Majority List, shall be replaced by the first independent candidate (in numerical order)
not elected taken from the same list, or in the absence thereof, by the first independent candidate
(in numerical order) not elected taken from the other lists, according to the number of votes that
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each candidate has obtained. This replacement procedure shall be followed until the independent
directors – pursuant to the legal provisions governing statutory auditors - elected to the Board of
Directors is at least equal to the legal minimum. Finally, should this procedure fail to provide the
aforesaid result, then replacement shall be established by a resolution passed by the relative majority
of the Shareholders’ Meeting, subject to the presentation of candidates possessing the aforesaid
requirements. In addition, in the event that following the election of candidates in the aforesaid
manner, a composition of the Board of Directors has not been reached in accordance with the
provisions of the law on gender balance in force at the time, then the last candidate of the less
represented gender elected in a numerical order from the Majority List shall be replaced by the first
candidate of the less represented gender (in numerical order) not elected taken from the same list,
or in the absence thereof, by the first candidate of the less represented gender (in numerical order)
not elected from the other lists, according to the number of votes that each candidate has obtained.
This replacement procedure shall be followed until a composition of the Board of Directors is reached
which complies with the laws on gender balance in force at the time. Finally, should this procedure
fail to provide the aforesaid result, then replacement shall be established by a resolution passed
by the relative majority of the Shareholders’ Meeting, subject to the presentation of candidates
belonging to the less represented gender.
Should the first two or more lists obtain the same number of votes, then the Shareholders’ Meeting
shall vote again, this time for those lists only. The same rule shall apply in the event of parity between
those lists coming second in terms of numbers of votes that are not connected, directly or indirectly,
with those Shareholders who have presented or voted for the competing list.
In the event of further parity between lists, the list presented by Shareholders possessing the majority
shareholding, or subordinately by the list presented by the greatest number of Shareholders, shall
prevail. In all aforementioned cases, the composition of directors shall secure compliance with the
aforesaid requirement of gender balance, where so required by law provisions and regulations in
force at the time.
In the event of only one list, or no list, being presented, the Shareholders’ Meeting shall decided
according to the majorities established by law, without having to observe the abovementioned
procedure, without prejudice for compliance with the gender balance requirement specified above,
where required by law provisions and regulations in force.
For the purpose of the division of those directors to be elected, no account shall be taken of lists that
have failed to gain a percentage of votes at least equal to one half of the number required by the
present Articles of Association, or by CONSOB, for the presentation thereof.
If, during the course of the year, one or more Directors are missing, then in order to ensure that
the majority continues to be constituted by directors appointed by the Shareholders’ Meeting, the
following procedure shall be followed, in accordance with article 2386 of the Italian Civil Code:
(a) the Board of Directors shall arrange for the replacement of the missing director from among those
belonging to the same list as the latter, and the Shareholders’ Meeting shall vote, in accordance
with the legally-required majorities, in observance of the same principle;
(b) in the event that the aforesaid list does not contain candidates not previously elected, or candidates
with the called-for requirements, or for any reason it is not possible to observe (a) above, then the
Board of Directors shall arrange for the replacement, and the Shareholders’ Meeting shall vote for
said replacement, in accordance with the legal majorities of those without a list vote.
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In any case, the Board of Directors and the Shareholders’ Meeting shall proceed to make the
appointment in order to ensure the minimum number of independent directors required by the law
in force at the time, subject to compliance with the aforementioned gender balance requirement,
where so prescribed by law and regulatory provisions in force at the time.
However, should the majority of directors cease to exist, then the entire Board of Directors shall be
deemed as having resigned, with effect from its reconstitution.
At least one of the members of the Board of Directors, or two if the Board is composed of more
than seven members (or of a different minimum number required by the applicable regulation), shall
satisfy the criteria of independence called for in the case of statutory auditors by the provisions of
law in force at the time.
The independent director, pursuant to the provisions of the law governing statutory auditors, who
subsequent to his/her appointment, no longer satisfies the requirements of independence, shall
immediately notify the Board of Directors of this circumstance, and shall no longer hold office. A
director’s loss of independence, as defined above, shall not automatically lead to loss of office if the
said requirement is satisfied by the minimum number of directors as established by the laws in force,
or by the codes of conduct that the Company has declared it abides by.
Furthermore, pursuant to article 18 of the Articles of Association, the Board of Directors shall, in
addition to the widest possible powers concerning the ordinary and extraordinary administration of
the Company, is also vested with responsibility for the following:
(i) merger resolutions in the cases contemplated in Articles 2505 and 2505-bis of the Italian Civil
Code, including those mentioned for demergers in Article 2506-ter of the Italian Civil Code;
(ii) opening and closing secondary offices;
(iii) reducing the share capital in the event of the withdrawal of a Shareholder;
(iv) adapting the Articles of Association in accordance with new provisions of law;
(v) identifying the Directors with the power to represent the Company;
(vi) moving the registered office within the country;
(vii) appointing and discharging the executive in charge of preparing corporate accounting documents.
The Board of Directors must ensure that the executive in charge of preparing corporate accounting
documents has sufficient powers and resources to perform the duties assigned to him by law and
that administrative and accounting procedures are observed in actual practice.
In urgent circumstances relating to transactions with related parties that are not under the responsibility,
or subject to the authorisation, of the Shareholders’ Meeting, the Board of Directors will have the
right to approve these transactions with related parties, even where they are implemented through
subsidiaries, in derogation of the customary provisions of the internal procedure for related-party
transactions adopted by the Company, subject to compliance with and at the conditions set out in the
procedure.
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It should be noted that the Board of Directors, having considered the structure and the size of
the Group, has not adopted any succession plan for executive directors as it deems that the
replacement procedures adopted are adequate to guarantee the continuity and certainty of
corporate governance.

4.2 Composition (pursuant to Article 123-bis, subsection 2, letter d) of the
Consolidated Finance Act)
Under Article 14 of the Articles of Association, the Company is governed by a Board of Directors
composed of from 5 (five) to 9 (nine) members, who need not be Shareholders, as previously
decided by the Shareholders’ Meeting at the times of the appointment of the Board of Directors.
On 22 April 2010 the Shareholders’ Meeting appointed the Board of Directors, setting the number
of its members at 7 (seven). The Directors will serve until the approval of the financial statements
at 31 December 2012. All members were elected from the sole list presented jointly by the majority
Shareholders Girefin S.p.A. and Gireimm S.r.l.
The list set-out the following candidates:
• Stefano Landi, born in Reggio Emilia, on 30 June 1958, Chairman;
• Giovannina Domenichini, born in Casina (Reggio Emilia), on 6 August 1934, Director;
• Claudio Carnevale, born in Nole Canavese (TO), on 5 April 1961, Director;
• Carlo Coluccio, born in Reggio Emilia, on 4 July 1958, Director;
• Alessandro Ovi, born in Carpineti (Reggio Emilia), on 14 January 1944, Independent Director;
• Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano, born in Brescia, on 14 July 1947, Independent Director;
• Carlo Alberto Pedroni, born in Reggio Emilia, on 28 December 1948, Director.
All the candidates of the sole list to be presented were elected with 15 votes in favour. The voting
share capital attending the Shareholders’ Meeting represented 98.72% of the share capital.
Directors Alessandro Ovi and Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano stated that they met the qualifications
required for Independent Directors at the time of their appointment in accordance with Article 148
of the Consolidated Finance Act and Article 3 of the Self-Regulatory Code.
The Board of Directors is obliged, on a yearly basis, to consider whether Directors described as
“independent” at the time of their appointment still satisfy the independence criteria laid down in
the laws and regulations applicable at the time.
The purpose of the presence of two Independent Directors is to provide further safeguards of good
corporate governance by means of discussion and debate among all the Directors. The contribution
made by the Independent Directors also allows the Board to verify that cases of potential conflict
between the interests of the Company and its majority Shareholder are evaluated with an appropriate
degree of independent judgment.
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The members of the Board of Directors serving as of the date of this Report are shown in the table
below.
Forename and
surname

Position

Place and date
of birth

Type of Director

Audit
and Risk
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Giovannina
Domenichini

Honorary Chairman

Casina
(Reggio Emilia),
6 August 1934

Non-Executive

Stefano Landi

Chairman
of the Board
of Directors

Reggio Emilia,
30 June 1958

Non-Executive

Claudio
Carnevale

Managing Director

Nole Canavese
(Turin), 5 April 1961

Executive

Carlo Coluccio

Director

Reggio Emilia,
4 July 1958

Non-Executive

Chairman

Chairman

Carlo Alberto
Pedroni

Director

Reggio Emilia,
28 December 1948

Executive

Alessandro
Ovi

Director

Carpineti
(Reggio Emilia),
14 January 1944

Non-Executive
and
Independent1

Member

Member

Tomaso
Tommasi
di Vignano

Director

Brescia,
14 July 1947

Non-Executive
and
Independent1

Member

Member

(1) Independent as per Article 148 of the Consolidated Finance Act and Article 3 of the Self-Regulatory Code.

The addresses of all the members of the Board of Directors are, by virtue of their positions, care
of the Company’s registered office. There is a family relationship between Directors Giovannina
Domenichini and Stefano Landi, in that Stefano Landi is Giovannina Domenichini’s son.
Each Director’s personal and professional characteristics are briefly set out below in accordance with
Article 144 decies of the Consob Issuers’ Regulations.
Giovannina Domenichini. In 1954 Giovannina Domenichini founded Officine Renzo Landi
together with her husband. Subsequently, following the Issuer’s incorporation, she took on the
position of Sole Director and in 1987 became the Chairman of the Board of Directors. On 22 April
2010 she became, and to date still is, non-executive Honorary Chairman. In 1990 she was awarded
the honour of Commendatore dell’ordine al merito della Repubblica Italiana and, on 19 October
2011, the honour of Cavaliere del Lavoro.
Stefano Landi. A founder member of the Issuer, he has been Managing Director from 1987
to 2010. Since 22 April 2010 he holds the office of Chairman, in addition to positions in other
companies of the Landi Renzo Group. In 2006 the specialised press included Landi among the
top ten managers in the automotive sector. Since July 2010 he holds the office of President of the
Industrial Association of the Province of Reggio Emilia and in December 2010 he received the E&Y
Entrepreneur of the Year award. He also holds the office of director in Noema Life S.p.A. and in Best
Union Company S.p.A..
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Carlo Coluccio. A graduate in Engineering at Bologna University, Carlo Coluccio started his
working experience at Jori S.p.A. – RCF S.p.A., and continued at Omac S.p.A. In 1993, he moved
to Landi S.r.l. in the position of Managing Director. He also holds the office of director at Consorzio
Ecogas - a consortium of producers of LPG and natural gas systems for automobiles - as well as the
position of general manager at Reggio Emilia Innovazione, a public company active in innovation
and applied R&D.
Alessandro Ovi. A graduate in Nuclear Engineering at the Milan Polytechnic, Alessandro Ovi
continued his academic career as a researcher at the Massachusetts Institute of Technology,
Cambridge, Massachusetts. He has served as Managing Director of Tecnitel, in the Telecom Group,
as Central Manager in IRI for the internationalisation of the Group and as Special Advisor to the
Chairman of the European Committee for Innovation. He is a Life Trustee of Carnegie Mellon
University and a member of the Advisory Board of the MIT Media Lab. Finally, he is a member of the
Boards of Directors of Almaviva S.p.A..
Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano. A graduate in law, Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano began his working
life with SIP S.p.A. in Human Resources in 1989, acting as the Manager of the Group Human
Resources Department. He was Managing Director of Iritel S.p.A. from 1992 to 1994, and in this
capacity he led the transformation of the Company during the process of its merger with Telecom
Italia S.p.A. From 1994 to 1997 he was a General Manager of Telecom Italia S.p.A. as Manager of
the International Division, the Business Customer Division and the Residential Customer Division.
Subsequently he became the Managing Director of STET and of Telecom Italia S.p.A. From 1999
to 2002 he was Managing Director of ACEGAS S.p.A. He has been at the head of the Hera Group
since November 2002, acting as Chairman of the Board of Directors. He is currently member of the
Board of Directors of the companies Hera Comm S.r.l., Heraambiente S.p.A., Hera Trading S.r.l. and
Aimag S.p.A..
Carlo Alberto Pedroni. A graduate in Economics and Business, Carlo Alberto Pedroni began his
working life with Istituto Bancario Banca Agricola Commerciale, acquiring skills in several fields.
After experiences with companies such as Apple and Cantieri Navali Ferretti, he has been a partner
in Mai-Pedroni Consulting since 1994; in 2007 he became the Managing Director of the Berloni
Group. He is currently Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company VO2 Max Team S.r.l.,
member of the Board of Directors of Mobirolo S.p.A., and Managing Director of the subsidiary
Lovato Gas S.p.A..
Claudio Carnevale. A graduate in Electronic Engineering at Turin Polytechnic, where he specialised
in automatic controls, whilst person in charge of a research team at the FIAT Research Centre (19881996) developed a series of projects and products within the automotive sector, concerning modern
control methods applied to engine control and modern control techniques applied to vehicle control.
As head of a research and development team at SAGEM SA, France (1996-1998), he developed
projects and products within the automotive sector, concerning torque-based and direct injection
engine control systems, and cylinder-by-cylinder A/F control using a linear oxygen sensor. He was
director of the business unit Engine Control Systems at SAGEM SA, France, from 1998 to 2000.
From 2000 to 2002 he was Worldwide Marketing Director for Texas Instruments in the “vehicle
motion” sector. From 2002 to 2008 he was the Landi Renzo Group’s Sales and Marketing Director,
and since 2008 he has been Director of the Landi Renzo Group’s Business and Product Development
department. He is currently also Managing Director of the Company.
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The table below shows the managerial and auditing positions held in listed and unlisted companies
by member of the Company’s Board of Directors as of 31 December 2012:
Forename and surname

Company in which
an external position is held

Position

Giovannina Domenichini

Girefin S.p.A.

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Immobiliare L.D. Parma S.r.l.

Sole Director

M.R.A. S.r.l.

Sole Director

Girefin S.p.A.

Managing Director

Gireimm S.r.l.

Sole Director

Finecobank Banca Fineco

Director

Lovato Gas S.p.A.

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Best Union Company S.p.A.

Director

Bioener S.p.A.

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Ghenos S.r.l.

Sole Director

Esselle S.r.l.

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Noemalife S.p.A.

Director

SAFE S.p.A.

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Trust Landi

Trustee

Consorzio Ecogas

Director

Reggio Emilia Innovazione S.c.a r.l.

General Manager

Bioener S.p.A

Director

Almaviva S.p.A.

Director

STMicroelectronics

Director

Tech Rev S.r.l.

Sole Director

Hera S.p.A.

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Hera Comm S.r.l.

Director

Hera Trading S.r.l.

Director

Herambiente S.p.A.

Director

Aimag S.p.A.

Director

Roma Pony Club (Ass. Sportiva)

Deputy-Chairman

Acegas-Aps S.p.A.

Director

VO2 Max Team S.r.l.

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Mobirolo S.p.A.

Director

Lovato Gas S.p.A.

Managing Director

-

-

Stefano Landi

Carlo Coluccio

Alessandro Ovi

Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano

Carlo Alberto Pedroni

Claudio Carnevale

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

83

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

It should be noted that, having regard to article 1.C.3 of the Self-Regulatory Code, which provides
for the Board of Directors to issue guidance regarding the maximum number of positions as director
and auditor in listed companies, finance, banking and insurance houses or large-size companies,
the Board has decided to adopt the following general criteria:
1. an executive director shall not hold (a) the office of executive director in another Italian or foreign
listed company, banking or finance house; or (b) the office of non-executive director or auditor
(or member of other control bodies) in more than three of the aforesaid companies; and
2. a non-executive director should not hold, in addition to the office held in the Company: (a)
the office of executive director in more than one of the aforesaid companies and the office of
non-executive director or auditor (or member of other control bodies) in more than three of the
aforesaid companies; or (b) the office of non-executive director or auditor in more than six of the
aforesaid companies.
It should be also noted that the limitation on the number of offices does not apply to offices held
in companies of the Landi Renzo Group.
Should the aforesaid limit be exceeded, the directors shall inform the Board of Directors forthwith,
which shall assess the situation in light of the interests of the Company and shall invite the Director
to take any decision stemming therefrom.
In order to maintain an adequate knowledge of the business segment in which the Company is
active, the directors receive, information and updates, periodically or at any time as necessary, on
the business segment in which the Issuer operates and reference regulations, including through
documents prepared by the Company.

4.3 Role of the Board of Directors (pursuant to Article 123-bis,
subsection 2, letter d) of the Consolidated Finance Act)
The Board of Directors is the corporate body responsible for the governance of the Company
and has the powers assigned to it by law and by the Articles of Association. It is organised and
operates in such a way as to ensure the effective and efficient performance of its functions.
Its Directors act and adopt resolutions knowledgeably and autonomously, pursing the objective
of creating value for the Company’s Shareholders and reporting management performance at
Shareholders’ Meetings.
In accordance with article 18 of the Company Articles of association, the Board of Directors is vested
with the widest powers for the day-to-day and extraordinary management of the Company and
has the power to carry out all the acts it considers expedient or helpful for the achievement of its
corporate purpose, only excluding those for which the Shareholders’ Meeting is solely responsible
by law or under the Articles of Association.
The Board of Directors is also vested with responsibility for the following:
i. merger resolutions in the cases contemplated in Articles 2505 and 2505 bis of the Italian Civil
Code, including those mentioned for demergers in Article 2506 of the Italian Civil Code;
ii. opening and closing secondary offices;
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iii. reducing the share capital in the event of the withdrawal of a Shareholder;
iv. adapting the Articles of Association in accordance with new provisions of law;
v. identifying the Directors with the power to represent the Company;
vi. moving the registered office within the country;
vii. 
appointing and discharging the executive in charge of preparing corporate accounting
documents.
The Board of Directors must ensure that the executive in charge of preparing corporate accounting
documents has sufficient powers and resources to perform the duties assigned to him by law and
that administrative and accounting procedures are observed in actual practice.
In urgent circumstances relating to transactions with related parties that are not under the
responsibility, or subject to the authorisation, of the Shareholders’ Meeting, the Board of Directors
will have the right to approve these transactions even where they are implemented through
subsidiaries, departing from the customary provisions of the internal guidelines for related-party
transactions adopted by the Company, subject to compliance with and at the conditions set out in
the guidelines.
Although the Articles of Association do not stipulate a minimum frequency of meetings, it is
now the practice for the Board of Directors to meet at least once a quarter on the occasion of
the approval of the interim financial statements. Board Meetings are scheduled on the basis of a
calendar approved at the beginning of the year in order to help to ensure that as many members
as possible attend. The corporate calendar may be consulted on the Company’s website, in the
Investor Relations section.
During the last financial period, the Board of Directors held 9 meetings, lasting 60 minutes on
average, duly attended by all Members (overall attendance was in fact 92.06%). As far as regards,
in particular, the percentage of the attendance of independent directors, the two independent
directors Alessandro Ovi and Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano attended 78% of the meetings. At
least 5 meetings are scheduled for the current financial period, and one of these was held on 5
March 2013.
The meetings of the Board of Directors can be attended also by non-members of the Board of
Directors, upon invitation. Specifically, they can be attended by executives of the Issuer and the
Landi Renzo Group, where their attendance provides a contribution to the necessary in-depth
review of the items on the agenda. In 2012 nine meetings were attended by executives of the
Issuer.
Directors and Auditors receive the papers and information necessary to enable them to express
themselves knowledgeably on the subjects submitted for their examination and approval, with a
suitable amount of time in advance of the meeting. The work of the Board of Directors is organized
by the Chairman, who ensures that each item on the agenda is given the time necessary for a
constructive debate.
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For matters specified in article 1.C.1 of the Self-Regulatory Code no powers have been granted to
the Managing Director and they must therefore be considered to be the sole responsibility of the
Board of Directors. For example, it must be deemed that the Board is responsible for considering
and approving:
(a) the Issuer’s strategic, business and financial plans;
(a) the strategic, business and financial plans of the Group that the Issuer leads;
(b) the Issuer’s system of corporate governance;
(c) the structure of the Group.
In carrying out their duties, Directors examine the information they receive from the delegated
bodies, also asking these bodies for clarification, further details or additional data that they consider
necessary or appropriate. To this end, at least quarterly, the Managing Director provides the Board
of Directors with adequate information regarding general management performance and its
foreseeable prospects and on the most significant transactions carried out by the Company or its
subsidiaries.
In order to implement article 1 and the relative criteria for the application of the Self-Regulatory
Code, the Board of Directors, in its meeting of 14 November 2012, completed a successful review
of the size, composition and workings of the Board of Directors, of the Audit and Risk Committee
and of the Remuneration Committee, including in relation to the independent directors. Moreover,
on the same date, the Board of Directors, also on the basis of reports from the executive manager
in charge of supervising the internal audit system and from the Chairman of the Audit and Risk
Committee, reviewed the adequacy of the general organisational, administrative and accounting
structure of the Issuer and that of its strategically relevant subsidiaries, in relation to the internal
audit system and the management of conflicts of interest and has approved the Company’s overall
system of governance. In addition to the delegation of powers and functions, including provision
for the formation of committees within the Board of Directors, of which further mention will be
made below, this system also includes rules of procedure governing transactions with related parties
and transactions in which a Director has an interest.
The Issuer has also identified the subsidiaries that are strategically relevant based on criteria which
take into account the revenues, independence of production, research, development and innovation
of products, as well as the range of products, the positioning of the product and of the brand. The
subsidiaries which have been identified as having strategic relevance are Lovato Gas S.p.A. and
A.E.B. S.p.A..
In the meeting on 22 April 2010 the Board of Directors - having reviewed the proposals from the
appropriate committee and having heard the opinion of the Board of Statutory Auditors – decided
how to allocate the aggregate compensation to be paid to the members of the Board of Directors
and, on 13 May 2010, decided on the compensation to be paid to the Managing Director and to
the other Directors who have special roles and responsibilities.
The Board of Directors evaluated the general performance of operations, with regard in particular
to the information received from the Company’s delegated bodies and periodically comparing the
results achieved with those forecasted.
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The Board examined and approved in advance the transactions of significant strategic, economic
and financial importance for the Issuer carried out by the Issuer and its subsidiaries.
Section 11 below should be referred to for information regarding the procedure followed by the
Board in carrying out intra-group transactions and transactions with other related parties.
The Board of Directors adopted qualitative and quantitative criteria to identify own and its
subsidiaries’ significant transactions. Qualitative criteria refer to transactions concerning the
acquisition or disposal of holdings, the setting up of new companies and/or joint ventures, of
business units, assets and contributions in kind, corporate investments and/or divestiture, the
raising of loans, the entry into and/or exit from geographical markets and/or strategic types of
business. Quantitative criteria refer to transactions other than those described above, whose value
exceeds the quantitative limit of the powers conferred to the Managing Director.
The Board of Directors adopts resolutions on the significant transactions identified as above, both
of a qualitative and quantitative nature, based on the information and reports provided from time
to time by the Managing Director.
The Company has deemed it not necessary to determine specific criteria to be used to define
transaction that are strategically, economically or financially material for the Company, because
those criteria are defined for each individual transaction at the time it is approved.
Article 14 of the Articles of Association states that the Directors are subject to the non-competition
rule laid down in Article 2390 of the Italian Civil Code unless they are exonerated from this rule by
the Shareholders’ Meeting. As of the date of this Report, the Shareholders’ Meeting has not given
permission for any exceptions to the non-competition rule.

4.4. Delegated bodies
Managing Directors
The Board of Directors’ Meeting of 22 April 2010 vested the Managing Director, Claudio Carnevale,
with the powers necessary for the day-to-day management of the Company.
The following are Mr. Claudio Carnevale’s principal duties, together with the ceilings for the amounts
and issues in respect of the powers bestowed:
(a) the supervision, subject to his full decisional power and responsibility, directly and/or indirectly
through chosen collaborators, without prejudice to the personal responsibility of the latter, of
the Company’s productive, marketing and financial sectors;
(b) purchases, sales, permutations and all other transactions involving the acquisition or sale of
machinery, plant, equipment, vehicles, company products and movable property in general,
including those recorded in public registers, for a sum of up to Euro 10,000,000 per transaction,
agreeing upon the conditions, prices and terms of payment;
(c) the acquisition of services, stocks, basic components and raw materials, semi-finished goods
and materials required by the Company for its production; the handling of all bureaucracy
and procedures concerning the importation of basic components and raw materials, and the
implementation and completion of all measures regarding said activities, including those related
to manufacturing and consumer taxes, inland revenue and state monopoly duties;
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(d) the stipulation, amendment and termination of leasehold agreements with terms of less than
9 years, of leasing agreements including those for real estate, of rental and gratuitous loan
agreements for moveable properties and real estate, and of insurance policies, for a sum of no
more than Euro 10,000,000 per agreement with powers to sign the same agreements with the
terms and conditions that will be established; the payment and collection of the agreed prices,
and the receipting and completion of any other related procedures;
(e) the stipulation, amendment and termination of agency, distribution, representation, brokerage
and business procurement agreements, including those subject to sole agency, for the best
possible placing of the Company’s products;
(f) 
the stipulation, amendment and termination of contracts for services, works, consultancy,
hire, supply, transport, storage and shipping, for a sum of no more than Euro 10,000,000 per
transaction;
(g) purchases and sales, and foreign currency transactions in general, within the framework of the
currency regulations in force at the time;
(h) the purchase, underwriting, transfer or swapping of shares, quotas, bonds or other financial
instruments and holdings in other companies, including newly-incorporated companies, within
the framework of the day-to-day management of the Company’s financial liquidity;
(i) the registration of trademarks and patents, the granting and utilisation of industrial property
rights, and all those measures required by the patenting procedure, such as the submission
of applications for corrections, amendments, extensions of confidentiality and divisions; the
submission, and the defending against, administrative actions, interferences and administrative
appeals; and in general, any actions required in order to apply for, obtain and preserve patents; the
signature of any documents required in order to exercise the abovementioned powers granted;
the appointment, for such purpose, of patent representatives in Italy and abroad, bestowing
upon said persons the respective powers; the purchase and sale of licences pertaining to patents,
trademarks, models and any intellectual property rights related to the corporate purpose, and any
actions and operations, vis-à-vis public administrations, public authorities and offices, required in
order to obtain concessions, licences, permits and authorisations of any kind in general;
(j) any receipt and collection in any form, also by means of endorsement, of amounts, claims,
payment orders, security deposits both from the issuing institution, public savings and loan bank,
treasuries, the railway, post and telegraph offices, and any Italian or foreign public or private
body, issuing valid receipts and releases;
(k) the performance of all banking operations – including the taking out of new credit lines and
short, medium and long-term loans, obtaining credit in a current account, credit requests in
general, even in the form of debenture loans, the constitution of deposits of securities for custody
or administration – for an amount no greater than Euro 20,000,000 per single operation. The
Managing Director may carry out transactions on the credit lines within the above limits per
operation and may also terminate relations;
(l) the endorsement, also for discounting and collection, receipt of payment and issuance of receipts
in respect of bills of exchange, cheques and money orders, including payment orders of the
state treasury, regions, provinces, municipalities and any other public entity or any public fund;
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issuance of cheques on bank accounts, including liability accounts, of the Company within the
credit limits granted by the bank to the Company;
(m) the payment or receipt of sums, receivables, interest, dividends, cheques and payment orders
from whoever issues them in favour of the Company;
(n) the receipt from post and telegraph, customs, railway, shipping and transport companies and,
generally, from any public office, any company or premise, of money orders, parcels, letters,
including registered and insured letters with declarations of value, goods, money, etc., issuing
receipts and releases;
(o) the issue of patronage letters to subsidiaries, for sums of up to Euro 5,000,000 per transaction;
(p) the execution and settlement of insurance contracts of any kind, execution of relevant policies
with powers to settle and request, in the case of a claim, the relevant indemnity, the issue of
receipts to payors, settlement and payment of any other indemnities due to third parties in
respect of any claim;
(q) the hiring and firing of executives, middle managers and office staff, and the establishment of
their duties and remuneration in accordance with the legal and regulatory provisions in force at
the time;
(r) the signing of correspondence and any other document requiring the Company’s signature and
with regard to any business coming within the delegated powers;
(s) the representation of the Company vis-à-vis Health and Social Insurance Bodies, and the fulfilment
of those obligations arising from the labour law provisions in force at the time, in particular as far
as regards insurance, benefit and other contributions;
(t) the representation of the Company vis-à-vis trade union and business organisations, and before
employment offices and arbitration boards, with the power to reach settlements;
(u) the representation of the Company in legal proceedings (either as plaintiff or defendant), at
any level or stage of judgement (for or against), before any Court in Italy or abroad, including
the Supreme Court of Cassation, the Court of Auditors, the Council of State, the Constitutional
Court, the Court of Appeal, the Courts, the Office of the Justice of the Peace, and for any civil,
criminal and/or administrative proceedings, and of the Company before all levels of tax court,
and any Jurisdictional Tax Authority, together with the appointment of duly qualified lawyers,
accountants, attorneys as required by law;
(v) 
the submission of protests and the application for injunctions; bringing preventive and
enforcement proceedings; participation in bankruptcy and insolvency proceedings, lodging
claims and declaring the truthfulness thereof; proposing and accepting real offers; bringing
administrative and judicial proceedings before any level and kind of court, including the Court
of Cassation and Appeal; submissions to arbitration and the reaching of friendly settlements;
the appointment of lawyers, barristers and experts, the revocation of their powers, and
their replacement; replying to questioning, deferring, referring and responding to oaths; the
submission and signing of any claims, briefs or documents; agreeing, settling and mediating
legal dispute; discontinuing legal proceedings and accepting discontinuance thereof; the
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performance of anything else required – all powers deemed duly conferred for such purpose –
in order to fully represent the Company before the court;
(w) the signing of declarations in respect of direct and indirect taxes, and taxes generally, forms and
questionnaires, the acceptance and rejection of assessments, conclusion of agreements and
settlements, the challenge of actions, presentation of applications, appeals, complaints, briefs
and documents before any tax office or commission, of any kind or level;
(x) 
the execution of any necessary formalities before the Companies’ Register and any other
competent office;
(y) the delegation, by granting specific powers of attorney, of any and all of the above-attributed
powers to the person(s) deemed most appropriate based on professional skill and capability;
(z) the management, guidance, and organisation of all aspects pertaining to workplace health
and safety, in all of the productive units and in other places of work of the Company, and for
this purpose, is considered an “Employer” within the meaning of Legislative Decree 81/2008
as subsequently amended and supplemented, with powers to execute, in this capacity, any
document, carry out any formalities or any action necessary to comply with the above-mentioned
legislative decree and all of the regulations and provisions regarding workplace health and hygiene
and safety, the prevention, protection and safeguard with respect to workers’ psychological
and physical well-being, with full financial independence and independent spending authority
in executing these powers. More specifically, by way of example, but not limited thereto, the
Managing Director has the following powers:
• the implementation through the competent internal and external advisory bodies, of any
additional, amending, supplementing laws and regulations adopted, or which may be adopted,
regarding the safety of workers, prevention of accidents and protection of hygiene in the
workplace, and performance of any obligations envisaged under the above-mentioned laws
and regulations;
•
the assessment of risks, drafting of the relevant risk assessment document (DVR), and
appointment of risk prevention and protection department (RSPP) manager;
• the delegation, by granting specific powers of attorney, of the functions and powers attributed
under this power of attorney, which may be delegated under Legislative Decree 81/2008, to
the person(s) deemed most appropriate based on professional skill and capacity to ensure
the prompt and constant performance, using the utmost diligence, of the workplace health
and safety obligations envisaged, granting them spending authority and the management,
organisation and control powers required by the nature of the duties, and authorising, as
appropriate, the sub-delegation of specific duties by them to other persons;
•
to ensure financial coverage for all activities which exceed the managerial and financial
independence of the delegates pursuant to the above sub-paragraph and which are deemed
necessary and appropriate to comply with laws and regulations, and oversee the delegates in
terms of their capabilities and correct performance of the duties assigned to them, by adopting
and effectively implementing the verification and control model under article 30 of Legislative
Decree 81/2008 and Legislative Decree 231/2001;
• the representation of the Company before Public Administrations, public and private offices
and entities to carry out any actions and operations necessary to obtain permits, licences, and
other authorisations generally related to the performance of the Company’s business, and in
particular, related to the health and safety of workers;
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(aa) the management, guidance and organisation of aspects pertaining to the protection of the
environment, with powers to take any action necessary to comply with applicable laws. More
specifically, by way of example, but not limited thereto, the Managing Director is granted the
following powers:
• the implementation, through the competent internal and external advisory bodies of the
Company, of all additional, amending, supplementing laws issued, or which may be issued,
pertaining to the protection of the environment, and compliance with the obligations
envisaged under the above-mentioned laws and regulations;
•
the delegation, by granting specific powers of attorney, of the functions and powers
attributed under this power of attorney to the persons deemed most appropriate based on
professional skill and capability to ensure the prompt and continuing performance, using the
utmost diligence, of the obligations set forth concerning the protection of the environment,
granting them spending authority and the powers of management, organisation and control
necessary based on the nature of the duties delegated, and authorising, as appropriate, the
sub-delegation of specific duties by its delegates to additional persons;
• to ensure financial coverage for any activities which exceed the managerial and financial
independence of the delegates pursuant to the above sub-paragraph and which are deemed
necessary and appropriate to comply with laws and regulations;
• the representation of the Company before Public Administrations, public entities and offices
to carry out any actions and operations needed to obtain permits, licenses, and other
authorisations generally and to present commencement notices, in relation to the pursuit
of the Company’s business, and in particular, related to the protection of the environment.
(bb) 
the management, guidance and organisation of aspects pertaining to the protection of
personal data held by the Company, with powers to take any action and carry out any formality
necessary to comply with the applicable regulations. More specifically, by way of example, but
not limited thereto, the Managing Director has the following powers:
• the implementation, through the competent internal and external advisory bodies of the
Company, of all additional, amending, supplementing laws issued, or which may be issued,
pertaining to data protection, and compliance with the obligations envisaged under the
above-mentioned laws and regulations;
•
the delegation, by granting specific powers of attorney, of the functions and powers
attributed under this power of attorney to the persons deemed most appropriate based on
professional skill and capability to ensure the prompt and constant performance, using the
utmost diligence, of the obligations set forth in relation to the protection of personal data, in
particular identifying the persons responsible for processing the data, granting them spending
authority and the powers of management, organisation and control necessary based on
the nature of the duties delegated, and authorising, as appropriate, the sub-delegation of
specific duties by its delegates to additional persons;
•
ensure financial coverage for any activities which exceed the managerial and financial
autonomy of the delegates pursuant to the above sub-paragraph and which are deemed
appropriate for compliance with the laws and regulations;
• represent the Company before Public Administrations, public entities and offices to carry
out any actions and operations needed to obtain concession grants, licenses, and other
authorisations generally and to present commencement notices in relation to the performance
of the Company’s business, and in particular, related to the protection of data.
(cc) full powers and discretion, in performing the functions in subparagraphs (z), (aa) and (bb),
including of a financial nature and with independent spending authority, with the Managing

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

91

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

Director or his delegates or any sub-delegates assuming, each within the limits of his/her functions
and powers, any criminal liability arising from any breach of the applicable obligations with
regard to the health and safety of workers, the protection and safeguard of the environment,
and the protection of personal data, and conferred under this resolution;
(dd) the power, in exercising the functions in subparagraphs (z), (aa) and (bb), to revoke powers
of attorney, proxies, and generally any other appointment granted by the Company within
its organisational structure, pertaining to functions and powers in relation to worker health
and safety, environmental safeguard and protection, and protection of personal information.
By virtue of the powers vested upon him by the Board of Directors, the Managing Director, Claudio
Carnevale, qualifies as the main responsible of corporate governance. It should also be noted that
no interlocking situation occurs with regard to Mr Claudio Carnevale.
On 22 April 2010, the Board of Directors conferred upon Director Carlo Alberto Pedroni the
responsibility to coordinate the Company’s relations with foreign companies, and the responsibility
and all necessary and/or proper powers for the management and representation of the Landi Renzo
Group’s foreign companies, with full decisional power and responsibility regarding the corporate
management of the said foreign companies, directly and/or through appointed collaborators,
without prejudice to the responsibility of the latter.
The Chairman of the Board of Directors is the legal representative of the Company, with the right
to sue and be sued in judicial and out-of-court proceedings and before any authorities and/or third
party and in respect of any deed.

Chairman of the Board of Directors
The Chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Stefano Landi, who acts as trustee for the Landi Trust
which has indirect control over the Issuer, was vested with the following managerial powers by the
Board of Directors of 22 April 2010:
(a) the legal representation before any authority with respect to, and to independently sign, any
document or declaration pursuant to article 21 of the Company Articles of Association without
restriction other than pursuant to the articles of association or law;
(b) the calling of meetings of the Board of Directors ensuring board members are provided, reasonably
in advance of the meeting date (except in urgent cases), with the documentation and information
necessary to allow the Board to resolve, in an informed manner, upon the matters on the agenda;
(c) the coordination of the activities of the Board of Directors and conduct of the relevant meetings;
(d) the receipt of proposals presented by the Managing Director and provision of an opinion to the
Board of Directors on the Company and Group’s overall objectives, strategies, policies and decisions;
(e) the coordination of the expansion strategy of the Company and the Group both along internal
and external lines;
(f) to ensure implementation of resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors;
(g) the coordination of institutional communications for both the Company and the Group.
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More specifically, the Board of Directors decided to grant to Stefano Landi, Chairman of the Board of
Directors the above roles, responsibilities and powers so that he, taking into account the substantial
experience he has with the Company, could be the appropriate lead person to coordinate and to
define the strategy and objectives of the Company and of Landi Renzo Group, and so that he may
coordinate how disclosure is made.

Reporting to the Board of Directors
At least every quarter, the Managing Director provides the Board of Directors with adequate
information regarding general management performance and its foreseeable prospects, as well as
regarding the transactions carried out by the Company and its subsidiaries that are of the greatest
importance by size and characteristics.
The Directors report to the Board of Auditors in good time, and in any event at least every
quarter, at Board of Directors’ Meetings or meetings of the Executive Committee, if one has
been appointed, or also in the form of a written memorandum to the Chairman of the Board
of Auditors, on the activities performed and the transactions carried out by the Company and
its subsidiaries that are of the greatest economic and financial importance and of the greatest
significance for the Company’s assets, in order to enable the Landi Renzo Board of Auditors to
assess whether the transactions that have been resolved and implemented comply with the law
and the Articles of Association or are not, on the other hand, clearly imprudent and in conflict
with the resolutions passed by the Shareholders’ Meeting, or are such as to impair the integrity
of the Company’s assets.
In particular, Directors report on transactions in which they have an interest, either on their own
account or on behalf of third parties, and on any atypical or unusual transactions or any transactions
with related parties.

4.5 Other Executive Directors	
There are two executive directors on the Company’s Board of Directors, namely Claudio Carnevale,
who holds office as Managing Director, and Carlo Alberto Pedroni, who is responsible for the foreign
companies in the Landi Renzo Group, and for the coordination, supervision and monitoring of these
foreign companies.

4.6 Independent Directors	
The Self-Regulatory Code recommends the election to the Board of Directors of a suitable number
of independent directors. On the basis of the guidelines set out in the Self-Regulatory Code, a
director shall not be considered independent if he/she:
(a) 
controls the issuer, either directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, trust companies or
intermediaries, or is capable of exercising considerable influence over the Issuer, or is party to any
Shareholders’ agreement whereby one or more subjects may exercise control or a considerable
influence over the Issuer;
(b) is, or was during the previous three financial years, an important member of the Issuer, or
of a strategically-important subsidiary of the latter, or of a company subject to joint control
together with the Issuer, or of a company or body that, also together with others through a
Shareholders’ agreement, controls the issuer or is capable of exercising considerable influence
over it;
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(c) directly or indirectly (for example, through subsidiaries or through companies in which he/she is
an important member, or as partner of a professional firm or consultancy firm) has, or had during
the previous year, important commercial, financial or professional relations:
• with the Issuer, a subsidiary thereof, or any of the important figures within the said companies;
• with a person that, also together with others pursuant to a Shareholders’ agreement, controls
the Issuer, or – in the case of a company or entity – with the relevant top managers;
• or is, or was during the previous three years, an employee of one of the aforesaid subjects;
(d) receives, or during the previous three financial years received, from the Issuer or from a subsidiary
or parent company, a significant additional payment on top of the “set” remuneration as nonexecutive director of the Issuer and the fee for participating in the committees recommended
by the Self-Regulatory Code, including participation in incentive plans linked to the Company
performance, including share plans;
(e) was a director of the Issuer for more than nine of the last twelve years;
(f) holds the position of executive director on the board of another company in which the issuer’s
managing director also holds the position of director;
(g) is a Shareholder or director of a company or an entity belonging to the network of the company
appointed to perform legal audit of the Issuer;
(h) is a close relative of a person in one of the situations described in the previous points.
The Company’s present Board of Directors includes two directors who possess the requirements
of independence provided for by Stock Market Regulations and by the Self-Regulatory code,
namely Messrs. Alessandro Ovi and Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano. These said directors possess
the requirements called for by article 148, subsection three, of the Consolidated Finance Act. The
number of independent directors, given the total number of members of the Board of Directors, is
in line both with the provisions of article 148 of the Consolidated Finance Act and with the Stock
Market Regulations (article I.A.2.10.6).
The Board of Directors and the Board of Statutory Auditors have verified the said directors’ possession
of the requirements of independence, on the basis of the declarations these directors themselves
made to this end pursuant to article 148 of the Consolidated Finance Act and to article 2.2.3.,
subsection three, letter l) of the Stock Market Regulations.
In particular, at the meeting held immediately after the Shareholders’ Meeting that appointed the
Board itself on 22 April 2010, the Board of Directors carried out the due checks on whether nonexecutive directors Alessandro Ovi and Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano satisfied the aforesaid criteria
of independence, on the basis of the information provided by those concerned. On this occasion,
the Board of Auditors verified and reached a favourable conclusion on the correct application of the
criteria and the inquiry procedures adopted by the Board of Directors to assess the independence of
its members. The assessment was disclosed through a notice to the market on 22 April 2010. During
the Period, the Board of Directors again completed the due checks on whether the non-executive
directors Alessandro Ovi and Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano satisfied the criteria of independence,
during the meeting held on 15 March 2012. During the meeting, the Board of Statutory Auditors
verified and reached a favourable conclusion on the correct application of the criteria and the
inquiry procedures adopted by the Board of Directors to assess the independence of its members.
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In the course of the Period, the independent directors meet once without the other Directors of
the Company. The independent directors had provided evidence of their eligibility as independent
directors in the lists for the appointment of the Board of Directors and, as far as the Issuer is aware,
they committed themselves to preserving their independence during the term of their office.

4.7 Lead Independent Director	
On 22 April 2010 the Board of Directors Meeting appointed, in accordance with article 2 of the SelfRegulatory Code, the independent director, Mr. Alessandro Ovi, as lead independent director.
The lead independent director represents a point of reference and coordination for the applications
and contributions of the non-executive Directors to improve the functioning of the Board of
Directors, co-operates with the Chairman of the Board of Directors to ensure that directors receive
complete and timely flows of information, and has powers to convene specific meetings of the
independent directors to discuss matters considered to be of interest to the functioning of the Board
of Directors and management of the Company.
During the Period, the lead independent director actively participated to the meetings of the
Board of Directors, coordinating as necessary and suitable, the requests and the contributions of
the non-executive directors, and especially those of the independent directors.

5. HANDLING OF CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company has launched a procedure for the internal management and the public disclosure of inside
information, implementing the provisions laid down in the legislation on market abuse, also establishing
procedures for the registration of persons with access to inside information.
In general terms, the procedure vests the Managing Director, with the support of the executive in charge
of preparing corporate accounting documents and of the Investor Relations Manager, with responsibility
for the internal handling and the public disclosure of inside information, the methods of handling
inside information, the methods of handling market rumours, disciplinary action in the event of delayed
disclosure to the market, the procedures governing the registration of persons with access to inside
information, the persons authorised to conduct relations with the public and the persons bound by
confidentiality obligations.
In conformity to the provisions of market abuse law, the Company has adopted the Internal Dealing Code,
which was drafted in accordance with Article 152 sexies and following of Consob Issuers’ Regulations.
In accordance with this Code, a number of key personnel, understood as those with normal access to
inside information and with the power to take management decisions that may affect the Company’s
trend and prospects, as well as the persons closely connected to them, are under an obligation to
make disclosures to the market regarding transactions carried out on the listed securities issued by the
Company.
The Internal Dealing Code provides for ceilings and deadlines for market disclosures, with relative
sanctions in line with the relevant Consob provisions. Said Code also contains clauses governing the
black-out period.
During the Period, the Company did not circulate notices regarding insider trading as the required
conditions did not apply.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

95

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

6. COMMITTEES WITHIN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (PURSUANT TO ARTICLE
123-bis, SUBSECTION 2(D), OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCE ACT)
The Board of Directors has not set up any internal committees other than those provided for by the
Self-Regulatory Code, other than the Committee for Related-Party Transactions, in compliance with
Consob Regulation no. 17221 of 12 March 2010. Details of any said committees under the SelfRegulatory Code are given in the following chapters of this report. Details of the Committee for
Related-Party Transactions are given in section 12 of this report.

7. APPOINTMENT COMMITTEE
The Board of Directors has decided not to set up an internal committee to manage proposals of
appointments because, as of the date hereof, it has not yet deemed it necessary, especially taking into
account the Landi Renzo Group structure and the Company’s ownership structure.

8. REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Composition and working of the Remuneration Committee
(pursuant to article 123-bis, subsection 2, letter d) of the Consolidated Finance Act)
As of the date of this Report, the Remuneration Committee is composed of three directors: Carlo
Coluccio as Chairman, Alessandro Ovi and Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano. The latter are Non-Executive
Directors and independent. Alessandro Ovi and Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano have suitable knowledge
of and experience in accounting and financial matters.
The members of the Remuneration Committee receive an annual gross remuneration sum for their work,
as resolved by the Shareholders’ Meeting on 22 April 2010.
The Remuneration Committee has its own internal rules, which provide, among other things, for the
Managing Director to attend Committee Meetings without the right to vote, provided that the discussions
and relative resolutions do not involve proposals concerning his own remuneration.
The Directors are required to abstain from participating to meetings of the Board of Directors when
proposals relating to their own compensation are being discussed.
The Remuneration Committee met once during the Period. The meeting lasted 50 minutes. Directors
Carlo Coluccio and Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano were in attendance, as was Mr Fiorenzo Oliva, in his
capacity as Company advisor, on proposal of the Committee. Also all the members of the Board of
Statutory Auditors participated to the Meeting.
Considering the nature of the activity carried out by the Remuneration Committee, the Company elected
not to provide the Committee with any predetermined spending amount, and to consider any spending
requirements as they arise.
At least one meeting of the Remuneration Committee is planned for the current year. Minutes of the
Remuneration Committee’s Meeting have been duly kept.
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Duties of the Remuneration Committee
The duty of the Remuneration Committee is to formulate proposals to the Board of Directors, in the
absence of those directly concerned if these are members of the Committee, regarding the remuneration
of the Managing Director and those directors who hold particular positions; it also periodically appraises
the criteria adopted for the remuneration of key executives, supervising their application and making
general recommendations on the matter.

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
As regards remuneration, under the Articles of Association the Shareholders’ Meeting assigns the Board
of Directors emoluments that may consist of a fixed and a variable portion throughout the term of its
mandate. The variable portion is commensurate to the achievement of certain objectives and/or to the
economic results attained by the Company.
As regards the variable portion of the remuneration, under Italian Stock Market Regulations, in order to
enter the STAR segment, the Company is required to appoint an internal Remuneration Committee and
to provide that a significant part of the remuneration of Executive Directors and other top executives be
calculated on an incentive basis.
See the report on remuneration, published pursuant to Article 123-ter of the Consolidated Finance
Act for information regarding the remuneration policy generally, stock option incentive plans, and
the compensation of executive directors, managers with strategic responsibilities, and non-executive
directors, as well as incentive mechanisms for persons responsible for internal auditing and the managers
responsible for the preparation of corporate accounting documents.
***
Directors’ indemnity in the event of their resignation, dismissal or termination of employment
following a takeover bid (pursuant to article 123-bis, subsection 1, letter i) of the Consolidated
Finance Act)
As of the date of this Report, there are no agreements between the Company and the members of its
Board of Directors that envisage the payment of indemnity in the event of their resignation, dismissal
and/or termination of employment without due cause, or in any case of termination of employment
following a takeover bid.

10. AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
Composition and working of the Audit and Risk Committee (pursuant to article 123-bis,
subsection 2, letter d) of the Consolidated Finance Act)
As of the date of this Report, the Audit and Risk Committee is composed of 3 directors: Carlo Coluccio,
as Chairman, Alessandro Ovi and Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano, all non-executive directors, two of
whom are independent. Alessandro Ovi and Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano have suitable knowledge of
and experience in accounting and financial matters.
The members of the Audit and Risk Committee receive an annual gross remuneration for their work, as
resolved by the Board of Directors on 22 April 2010.
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The Audit and Risk Committee has its own set of regulations. During the course of the year, the
Committee examined, inter alia, those activities pertaining to the internal audit system and the
organisational Model provided for by Italian Legislative Decree 231/2001, and it provided the Board of
Directors with assistance when called upon to do so.
The Audit and Risk Committee met 5 times during the period ended as at 31 December 2012. All the
members of the Audit and Risk Committee and, without voting rights, all standing Statutory Auditors
were present at the meeting held on 5 March 2012, which lasted 30 minutes. The meeting was also
attended by Mr. Fiorenzo Oliva, in his capacity as Company advisor, without the right to vote. The
meeting held on 15 March 2012, lasting 60 minutes, was attended by the members of the Audit and
Risk Committee, Messrs. Carlo Coluccio and Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano and, without voting rights,
all standing Statutory Auditors and Messrs Enrico Gardani, as head of internal audit and member of
the Supervisory Board, and Fiorenzo Oliva, as Company advisor. The meeting held on 14 May 2012,
lasting 30 minutes, was attended by the members of the Audit and Risk Committee Messrs Carlo
Coluccio and Alessandro Ovi, and, without the right to vote, by all the permanent members of the
Board of Statutory Auditors and by Messrs. Enrico Gardani, in his capacity as internal audit manager
and member of the Supervisory Board, and Fiorenzo Oliva in his capacity as Company advisor. The
meetings held on 28 August 2012, each lasting 30 minutes, were attended by the members of the
Audit and Risk Committee Messrs Carlo Coluccio and Alessandro Ovi, and, without the right to vote,
all of the standing members of the Board of Statutory Auditors and by Messrs. Enrico Gardani, as head
of internal audit and member of the Supervisory Board, and Fiorenzo Oliva, as Company advisor. The
meeting of 14 November 2012, lasting 30 minutes, was attended by the members of the Audit and
Risk Committee Messrs Carlo Coluccio and Tomaso Tommasi di Vignano, and, without voting rights, all
standing Statutory Auditors, and Messrs Enrico Gardani, as head of internal audit and member of the
Supervisory Board, and Fiorenzo Oliva, as Company advisor.
At least 4 meetings of the Audit and Risk Committee are planned for the current year, and one of
these was held on 5 March 2013. Minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee’s Meetings have been
duly kept.
Duties and powers of the Audit and Risk Committee
The Board of Directors ensures that its appraisals and decisions with regard to the internal audit system,
the approval of the financial statements and half-year reports and the relations between the Issuer and
the auditing firm are supported by satisfactory preliminary work. To this end, the Board of Directors
set up an Audit and Risk Committee composed of Non-Executive Directors, the majority of whom are
Independent Directors. At least one member of the Audit and Risk Committee should have satisfactory
experience in accounting and financial matters, to be assessed by the Board of Directors at the time of
his appointment.
With the help of the Audit and Risk Committee, the Board of Directors:
(a) sets down the guidelines for the internal audit and risk management system so that the main risks
faced by the Issuer and its subsidiaries are correctly identified and properly measured, managed and
monitored, also deciding on the degree of compatibility of these risks with a corporate governance
in line with the strategic objectives set;
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(b) at least once a year assesses the adequacy of the internal audit and risk management systems in
consideration of the characteristics of the Company and its risk profile, as well as effectiveness of
the same;
(c) at least once a year, approves the working plan prepared by the head of internal audit, having
heard the Board of Statutory Auditors and the director in charge of the internal audit and risk
management system;
(d) in its corporate governance report, describes the main features of the internal audit and risk
management system, expressing its opinion on the adequacy of the same;
(e) having heard the Board of Statutory Auditors, assesses the results laid down by the legal auditor in
the letter of recommendations and in the report on the fundamental issues highlighted by the legal
audit.
Moreover, the Board of Directors, at the proposal of the Director in charge of the internal audit and
risk management system, having received the preliminary favourable opinion of the Audit and Risk
Committee, and having heard the Board of Statutory Auditors:
• appoints or discharges the head of internal audit;
• ensure that he/she is endowed with resources adequate for the performance of his/her duties;
• sets his/her remuneration in line with the policies of the Company.
In addition to assisting the Board of Directors in the performance of the above duties, the Audit and
Risk Committee:
(a) with the executive in charge of the preparation of the corporate accounting records and having
heard the legal auditor and the Board of Statutory Auditors, verifies that accounting principles have
been correctly followed and, in the case of groups, that they are consistent for the purposes of the
consolidated financial statements;
(b) expresses opinions regarding specific aspects involving the identification of the main corporate risks;
(c) reviews periodic reports concerning the assessment of the internal control and risk management
system, and periodic reports of particular relevance prepared by the internal audit function;
(d) monitors the independence, adequacy, effectiveness and efficiency of the internal audit function;
(e) may request the internal audit function to perform controls on specific operational areas, concurrently
notifying the chairman of the board of statutory auditors thereof;
(f) reports to the Board of Directors at least every six months on the occasions of the approval of the
annual and half-year reports regarding the activities carried out and the adequacy of the internal
audit and risk management system.
During performance of its duties, the Audit and Risk Committee has the authority to access the
Company information and functions as necessary for it to perform its duties.
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During the meetings held in 2012, the Committee focused in particular on the following:
• the updates set out in the latest edition of the Self-Regulatory Code of listed companies;
• the criteria and findings relating to the application of impairment testing process to the value of
equity investments in subsidiary companies;
• the quarterly and annual results in order to assess the proper application of accounting principles and
consistency of the same for the purpose of drawing up the consolidated financial statements;
• periodic reports and the working plan prepared by the head of internal audit;
• periodic reports of the Supervisory Body pursuant to Legislative Decree 231/2001;
• updates of the Organizational, Management and Control Model pursuant to Legislative Decree
231/2001;
• reports on activities prepared by the Director in charge of the internal audit and risk management
system; and
• assessment of the adequacy of the internal audit and corporate risk management system.
Considering the nature of the activities of the Audit and Risk Committee, the Company has decided
not to grant the committee a predefined expense limit, preferring to consider on a case by case basis
the expenses that may be needed from time to time.

11. INTERNAL AUDIT SYSTEM
The internal audit system is the collection of rules, procedures and organisational structures designed
to permit the correct management of the Company, in line with the set objectives, through the due
identification, measurement, management and monitoring of the principal risks involved.
The Board of Directors assesses the adequacy of internal audit in consideration of the characteristics of
the Company on a yearly basis.
In defining strategic, business and financial plans, the Board of Directors identified the nature and level
of risk compatible with the strategic objectives of the Issuer and defined the guidelines for the internal
audit and risk management system.
The guidelines provided by the Landi Renzo Group’s internal audit system, as established by the
Company’s Board of Directors with the aid of the Audit and Risk Committee, perceive the internal audit
system as a transversal process integrated with all corporate activities, based upon the international
principles of Enterprise Risk Management, and in particular on the Framework CoSo Report indicated
by the 2002 Sarbanes-Oxley Act as the benchmark best practice for the architecture of internal audit
systems. The internal audit system is designed to help the Group achieve its own performance and
profitability targets, obtain reliable economic-financial information and ensure conformity with the
laws and regulations in force, thus avoiding damage to the Company’s image and financial losses.
Within the framework of this process, particular importance is given to the identification of Company
objectives and to the classifications and management of those risks associated with these objectives,
through the implementation of specific actions designed to contain such risks. Corporate risks may be
of various kinds: strategic risks, operating risks (associated with the efficacy and efficiency of corporate
operations), reporting risks (associated with the reliability of economic-financial information), and
finally, compliance risks (concerning observance of the laws and regulations in force, thus avoiding
financial losses and/or damage to the Company’s image). All risks may also be of an exogenous or
endogenous nature vis-à-vis the Landi Renzo Group.
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The persons in charge of the various company departments identify and assess their respective risks,
and see to identifying risk containment and reduction measures (so-called “primary line control”).
The above activities are supplemented by the controls carried out by the Manager Responsible for the
preparation of corporate documents and his/her staff (the so-called “second-level control”) and by
the head of internal audit (the so-called “third-level control”), who assess, on an on-going basis, the
effectiveness and efficiency of the internal audit system, through risk assessment, cyclical audit and
follow-up management.
The following are details of the main structural elements on which the Company’s internal audit system
is based.
The structural features of the control environment
• Code of Ethics – The Landi Group’s Code of Ethics, approved in March 2008, sets out the
principles and values underlying its way of doing business, together with the rules of conduct and
implementation rules pertaining to said principles. The Code of Ethics is an integral part of the
Organizational, Management and Control Model pursuant to Italian Legislative Decree 231/2001.
The Code of Ethics, which is binding on the conduct of all the employees of the Group, has been
revised within the framework of the programme for the updating of 231 Model, following the
introduction of environmental crimes. The new Code of Ethics came into force in August 2012.
•
Organisational structure - The Landi Renzo Group’s general organisational arrangements are
defined by a series of internal organisational communications issued by the Human Resources
Department, as recommended by the Managing Director. The Landi Renzo Group’s structure, the
organisational charts and the organisational measures can be consulted by all employees on the
Company’s Intranet site.
• Powers and powers of attorney – In accordance with corporate organisational developments and the
further strengthening of the principle of segregation of duties, during the course of 2012 a series of
special, operative and spending powers were granted to the Company’s main Managers and existing
powers were adequately updated.
• Human Resources – The Landi Renzo Group possesses a formal procedure for the selection and
hiring of personnel, and the planning and management of training. Pay policy, in keeping with
best practices and the market, envisage a share of variable remuneration for senior managers and
executives.
Instruments designed to safeguard operating targets
• Strategic planning, management control and reporting – during 2012 the Landi Renzo Group utilised
a reporting instrument aimed at tracking the accounting figures and comparing them to the budget
and forecasting figures. This reporting instrument also supports processing of “what if analysis” at a
high degree of detail, processing different hypothetical scenarios on various items of the profit and
loss accounts on a rolling basis over 12 months.
• Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) – On the basis of a project that was started and completed in 2008,
those companies within the Landi Renzo Group deemed to be of importance for this purpose were the
beneficiaries of a newly-created risk management system based on the principles of ERM. This system
includes management of risks relating to the financial data disclosure process pursuant to Article 123bis, subsection 2(b) of the Consolidated Finance Act, the main characteristics of which are described in
a separate paragraph below. This system has led to the identification of a map of corporate processes,
of the principal associated risks (prioritised according to their probability and their potential economic
impact), and finally, actions to be taken in order to contain residual risks. The Landi Renzo Group’s main
risks and uncertainties are listed in a special chapter of the Management Report.
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•
Company operating procedures system – The administrative procedure manuals, drawn up in
accordance with Italian Law 262/2005 on the safeguarding of savings, together with the working
procedures and instructions issued by the Quality System, and finally the organisational guidelines
issued by the Human Resources Department, ensure the correct implementation of corporate
guidelines, and thus the reduction of risks associated with the achievement of Company objectives.
• Information systems – The Landi Renzo Group’s information system has been created using the very
latest technologies and packages. Use of the system is governed by a series of internal procedures
that guarantee safety and safeguard data, privacy and the correct utilisation of the system by users.
Instruments designed to safeguard compliance targets
• Corporate Ethics and Compliance Model pursuant to Italian Legislative Decree 231/2001 – See
section 11.3 below.
• Accounting control model pursuant to Italian Law 262/2005 regarding the protection of savings –
during the course of 2008, the Landi Renzo Group began, and completed, a project designed to
conform the system to the requirements of Italian Law 262/2005. This project was conducted in the
following stages:
> identification of the Landi Renzo Group’s entities constituting the subject-matter of the analysis
(scoping);
> determination of the relevant accounting items, of the processes that feed said items, and of the
respective process owners;
> overview of the existing control system through an interview with the head of administration;
> scheduling and conducting of interviews with the process owners in order to identify the following
for each process: the activities (objectives) and their respective product inputs and outputs, the risks
inherent in each activity, the existing controls aimed at containing said risks, the controls suggested
by best practices, and in the case of gaps, the corrective measures to be taken in order to manage
the residual risk;
> drafting of the Manuals of administrative procedures pursuant to Italian Law 262/2005 (hereinafter
“Manuals”) for the validation of the process owners and the subsequent issue of the final version
of said Manuals, approved by the latter and by the executive appointed to edit accounting and
corporate documents.
The Manuals of administrative procedures pursuant to Italian Law 262/2005, are constantly updated by
the administrative department in such a way that they are always in line with the dynamics of corporate
operations. The administrative department, under the supervision of the head of internal audit, carries
out and formalises specific tests designed to ascertain whether the controls provided for by the manuals
have been observed and performed. Any significant procedural discrepancies, differences and/or
departures are promptly notified to the executive appointed to draft corporate accounting documents,
in order that the due corrective measures be taken.
Instruments designed to safeguard reporting targets
• Accounting information and financial reporting – The aforesaid Manuals of administrative procedures
pursuant to Italian Law 262/2005, together with the Landi Renzo Group’s Accounting Manual,
safeguard the correct drafting and reporting of accounts and of statutory and consolidated financial
statements.
• Inside information – The procedures for the internal handling, and the communication to the outside
world, of inside information are constantly updated, in order to maintain said procedures in line with
Community directives on market abuse.
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• Internal communications – The head of internal audit has easy and direct access to all information
which is expedient for the performance of his/her duties. This aids the prompt acquisition of
information concerning Company management which, at the same time, is promptly analysed in
order to identify the associated risks and, where deemed opportune, included in the economicfinancial reporting.
Instruments for monitoring the internal audit system
The abovementioned instruments of control are monitored not only by those persons in charge of
the various Company departments, but also independently by the head of internal audit, who shall
constantly monitor the effectiveness and efficacy of the internal audit system, through risk assessment,
the cyclical performance of audits, and the subsequent management of the follow up.
Principal characteristics of the risk management system and internal audit system in relation to the
process for the disclosure of financial data pursuant to 123-bis, subsection 2(b) of the Consolidated
Finance Act
In relation to the process for the disclosure of financial data, the risk management system should not
be considered separately from the internal audit system, because they are both elements of the same
system.
The aim of the risk management and internal audit system in relation to the process for the disclosure
of financial data is to guarantee the reliability, accuracy and timeliness of the same.
For each company of the Landi Renzo Group (entity level) and for each process (process level), inherent
risks capable of affecting financial data disclosure, controls in place to prevent them and, where gaps
exist, remedial actions to be implemented to manage residual risk have been identified.
The monitoring and control activities are carried out on three levels:
• first-level control (the so-called “primary line control”) inherent in the performance of operating
processes and assigned on an on-going basis by the operating management/ process owner;
• second-level control, i.e., those checks performed by the manager in charge of the preparation of
corporate accounting documents and his/her team, to monitor the risk management and control
process in relation to the disclosure of financial data process, securing consistency of the same with
the Company objectives;
• third-level control, i.e. on-going independent monitoring by the head of internal audit in relation to
the effectiveness and efficiency of the internal audit system with respect to financial data disclosure
process, through risk assessment, the periodic audits and follow-up management.
Overall assessment of the suitability of the internal audit system
On the basis of the information and findings received with the support of investigations carried out by
the Audit and Risk Committee, the head of internal audit, and the Supervisory Body pursuant to Italian
Legislative Decree 231/2001, the Board of Directors believes that the Landi Renzo Group’s internal audit
system is suitable and efficient and effectively operational, and thus apt to secure an acceptable level of
overall risk in consideration of the business carried out by the Company, the Company’s characteristics
and the market in which it operates.
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11.1 Director in charge of supervising the operation of the internal audit
and risk management system
At the 22 April 2010 meeting, the Board of Directors, with the approval of the Audit and Risk
Committee, selected the Managing Director Claudio Carnevale as the Executive Director in charge
of supervising the operation of the internal audit system. The Board of Directors of 14 November
2012 confirmed the appointment, and in line with the changes made to the Self-Regulatory
Code, appointed the Managing Director Mr Claudio Carnevale as the Director in charge of the
internal audit and risk management system, vesting him with the functions set forth by the SelfRegulatory Code.
The director in charge of the internal audit and risk management system: (a) identifies the major
corporate risks, bearing in mind the nature of the business carried out by the Issuer and its
subsidiaries, and submits them periodically for review to the Board of Directors; (b) implements
the guidelines set by the Board of Directors, and sees to the planning, establishment and
management of the internal audit and risk management system, and verifies on an on-going
basis its suitability and effectiveness; (c) procures that the system be adapted to the dynamics
of operating conditions and to the legislative and regulatory framework; (d) may request the
internal audit function to carry out controls on specific operational areas and on the compliance
of corporate operations with internal policies and procedures, concurrently notifying thereof
the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee and
the Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors; and (e) promptly notifies the Audit and
Risk Committee (or the Board of Directors) of any issues or problems found in performing its
tasks or learnt in any way whatsoever, so that the Committee (or Board) may take appropriate
measures.
During the period, the director in charge of supervising the operation of the internal audit
and risk management system did not submit any proposal to the Board of Directors for the
appointment, revocation and compensation of the head of the internal audit function, as he
deemed it as not necessary to appoint other heads of the internal audit functions or revoke the
head of the internal audit function in charge.

11.2 Head of the internal audit function
The Board of Directors, at the proposal of the Director responsible for the functioning of the
internal audit and risk management system, in consultation with the Audit and Risk Committee,
appointed Enrico Gardani as the Internal Audit Manager, stating that Gardani is not responsible
for any area of operations and is not hierarchically under any operations area manager,
including the Administration, Finance and Control department. Moreover, on 13 May 2008,
upon proposal by the executive manager responsible for the supervision of the functioning of
the internal audit system, and having obtained the opinion of the Audit and Risk Committee,
the Board of Directors set the compensation for Mr Enrico Gardani consistently with Company
policies. The Board of Directors of 14 November 2012 confirmed the appointment, and in line
with the changes made to the Self-Regulatory Code, appointed Mr Enrico Gardani as the head
of the internal audit function, vesting him with the functions set forth by the Self-Regulatory
Code.
The head of the internal audit function has, inter alia, the duty to verify that the internal audit
system is always adequate, fully operational and functional and reports on his work to the
Audit and Risk Committee, the Board of Auditors and the Director in charge of supervising the
operation of the internal audit and risk management system.
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The head of the internal audit function has had direct access to all the information required for
the performance of his duties, and has been provided with sufficient funds, for each year of his
appointment, up to a maximum gross sum of Euro 50,000.
The Issuer has formed an internal audit office entirely composed of in-house personnel, headed
by the head of the internal audit function.
The activities of the head of the internal audit function, consistently with the Landi Renzo
Group’s audit plan approved at the beginning of each year by the Board of Directors, and defined
following a risk-based approach, have focused on the following areas:
• 
Operational audit – regarding the Company’s basic objectives, including performance,
profitability and conservation of resources;
• Reporting audit – refers to the preparation and publication of reliable financial statements,
including interim reports, summary financial statements and the economic and financial figures
shown therein, and publication of results disclosed to the public;
• Compliance audit – regarding compliance of the above-mentioned activities with laws and
regulations which the Company is subject to including analyses and adjustments pursuant
to Italian Law 262/2005 on the protection of savings, and under Italian Legislative Decree
231/2001 on the responsibility of entities;
• Other activities of the internal audit areas; drafting and provision of documents in support of
the workings of the Audit and Risk Committee and the Supervisory Body, including the audit
plan of which the Supervisory Programme, pursuant to Italian Legislative Decree 231/2001, is
an integral part.

11.3 Compliance model pursuant to Legislative Decree 231/2001
The Board of Directors, in compliance with the terms laid down in Article 2.2.3, paragraph
3 (j) of the Stock Market Regulations, approved its Corporate Ethics and Compliance Model
in accordance with Article 6 of Legislative Decree 231/2001 (the “Model”), as subsequently
amended. The Model was drafted on the basis of the guidelines of the Italian Confederation of
Industrialists’ and in compliance with applicable legislation.
With the adoption and effective implementation of the Model, the Company will not be liable for
offences committed by “top” managers and persons subject to their supervision and instructions.
The Model lays down a series of rules of conduct, procedures and control activities as well as a
system of powers and delegated responsibilities whose purpose is to prevent the occurrence of
the criminal offences expressly listed in Legislative Decree 231/2001. A disciplinary system has
also been introduced to be applied in the event of breaches of the provisions of the Model.
In order to implement the Model, a supervisory body (the “Supervisory Body”) was set up,
with the functions contemplated in Article 6, subsection 1(b) of Legislative Decree 231/2001. The
Supervisory Body is composed of Messrs Enrico Gardani, Domenico Aiello and Daniele Ripamonti,
who have been re-appointed for a term of office ending upon approval of the financial statements
for the period ending on 31 December 2012.
Every six months, the Supervisory Body informs the Board of Directors in writing on the
implementation and actual awareness of the Corporate Ethics and Compliance Model within
each Company department.
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The Model was updated in order to include environmental crimes among conditions of corporate
liability pursuant to Legislative Decree 231/2001. The Board of Directors acknowledged and
approved such changes in its meeting of 28 August 2012.
The Model has been published and circulated to all personnel, outside collaborators, customers,
suppliers and partners in the form required by law.
Finally, again in the framework of the activities to be carried out in order to implement the
Model, the Board of Directors adopted the Landi Renzo Group’s Code of Ethics. In fact, as
specified in the Italian Confederation of Industries guidelines, the adoption of ethical principles
that have a role to play in the prevention of criminal offences is an essential element in a
preventive control system. Specifically, the Landi Renzo Code of Ethics sets out corporate values
and the combination of rights, duties and responsibilities of its addressees and provides for the
imposing of sanctions, independently and autonomously of those laid down in the national
collective labour agreement.
Pursuant to article IA.2.10.2, subsection 2, of the Instructions to the Regulations of Borsa Italiana,
on 14 June 2012 the representative Stefano Landi duly certified the Company’s approval on 20
March 2008 of the Organisational, Management and Control Model pursuant to article 6 of
Legislative Decree 231/2001 and the composition of the Supervisory Board. Said certification is
part of the documentation requested annually by Borsa Italiana from those companies listed in
the STAR segment, in order that they may remain listed as such.
During 2012, the Supervisory Body met 5 times. As of the date hereof, the Board of Directors did
not deem it necessary to vest the Board of Statutory Auditors with the functions of supervisory
body.

11.4 Auditing firm
On 7 March 2007, at the reasoned proposal of the Board of Auditors, the Shareholders’ Meeting
appointed the KPMG S.p.A. firm of auditors, with head office at Via Vittor Pisani 25, Milan, as the
Company’s auditors of the statutory and consolidated financial statements for the period 20072015 and to carry out limited audits of the Landi Renzo Group’s consolidated half-year reports
during the same period.

11.5 Executive in charge of preparing corporate accounting documents	
Paolo Cilloni, executive in charge of the Issuer’s administration, finance and control department,
and General Manager, was appointed, pursuant to article 154-bis of the Consolidated Finance
Act, by the Board of Directors of the Company on 22 April 2010, with the approval of the Board of
Auditors, as the Executive in charge of preparing corporate accounting documents, as he satisfies
the requirements for the appointment and, in particular, has a proven expertise in accounting
and finance, in line with the requirements of Article 24 of the articles of association.
The Board of Directors’ Meeting of 22 April 2010 granted the Executive in charge of preparing
corporate accounting documents, Paolo Cilloni, sufficient resources and powers for him to
perform his assigned duties, it being understood that the Managing Director is obliged to report
on the matter to the Board of Directors and to ensure that such means and resources are provided
and that administrative and accounting procedures are actually observed. In addition, the Board of
Directors decided the remuneration the Executive concerned should receive for the performance
of these duties.
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11.6 Co-ordination of persons involved in the internal audit and risk
management system
As of the date hereof, the Issuer has not considered the adoption of any procedure to co-ordinate
the various persons involved in the internal audit and risk management system, as it deems that
the bodies and various functions are adequately and efficiently integrated with one another,
without duplicating any activity.

12. DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
In compliance with Consob Regulation no. 17221 of 12 March 2010 (the “Related Parties
Regulation”, on 29 November 2010, the Board of Directors has (i) adopted a new internal
procedure setting forth the rules and principles to follow to ensure the transparency and fairness, in
substance and procedure, of transactions with related parties entered into by Landi Renzo, directly,
or through or its direct or indirect subsidiaries, and (ii) also appointed a Committee for Related Party
Transactions composed of two independent directors (Tomaso Tommasi Vignano and Alessandro
Ovi). In accordance with the Related Parties Regulation, the new internal procedure was approved by
the Board of Directors with the approval of the Committee for Related Party Transactions.
The following are the most significant aspects of the procedure:
(a) the classification of “Related Party Transactions” as transactions of Greater Importance (transactions
with a counter value or asset or liability relevance index that exceeds the 5% threshold), Negligible
Value (transactions with such a low value as not to involve any prima facie material risk to investor
protection and are therefore excluded from the scope of application of the new procedure, identified
by the Company as transactions with a value not exceeding Euro 200,000), and Lesser Importance
(residual category including Related Party Transactions other than those of Greater Importance or
of a Negligible Value);
(b) the rules on transparency and communications to the market have become stricter in the case of
transactions of Greater Importance, requiring publication of a specific information sheet;
(c) the particularly important role attributed to the Committee for Related Party Transactions in the
procedure to evaluate and approve transactions.
This Committee is responsible for ensuring the substantial fairness of transactions with related parties
and issuing an opinion on the interests of the Company in carrying out the transaction as well as
the financial appropriateness (convenienza) and fairness of the relevant conditions. In the case of
transactions classified as having Lesser Importance, the Company may in any case precede with the
transaction despite an unfavourable opinion of the Committee for Related Party Transactions. In this
event, information regarding the transactions approved in the relevant quarter must be provided to
the public within fifteen days of the close of each financial quarter, despite the unfavourable opinion,
specifying the reasons why the Company did not agree with the opinion of the Committee for Related
Party Transactions.
The Board of Directors is exclusively responsible for the approval of Transactions of Greater Importance
and the Committee has a broader role. The Committee takes part in the negotiations phase of the
transaction, during which it receives full and timely information from the delegated bodies and parties
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responsible for conducting the negotiations and may request additional information and provide any
considerations. In addition, if the Committee for Related Party transactions gives an unfavourable
opinion, the Board of Directors cannot approve the Transactions of Greater Importance.
In urgent circumstances relating to transactions with related parties that are not under the responsibility,
or subject to the authorisation, of the Shareholders’ Meeting, the Board of Directors will have the
right to approve these transactions with related parties, even where they are implemented through
subsidiaries, in derogation of the customary provisions of the internal procedure for related-party
transactions adopted by the Company, subject to compliance with and at the conditions set out in the
procedure.
The above procedure applicable to related party transactions is available on the Company’s website:
http://www.landi.it, in the Investor Relations section.
Considering the limited number of circumstances in which a Director has an interest, for his or her
account or on behalf of a third party, and because of the adequate functioning of the procedure
for related party transactions, the Board of Directors has determined it is not necessary to adopt
additional operating solutions to define and to manage circumstances where a Director has an own
or third-party interest, which circumstances will be analysed on a case-by-case basis by the Managing
Director.

13. APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS
Under Article 22 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board of Auditors is composed of three
Statutory and two Alternate Auditors, who can be re-elected.
The Board’s functions, duties and term are as laid down by law. When the members of the Board
are appointed, the Shareholders’ Meeting determines their remuneration, also in the light of their
participation in any internal committees. Auditors are entitled to the refund of the expenses they incur
in the exercise of their functions.
The members of the Board of Auditors must satisfy the requisites of good character, professionalism
and independence required under the law and regulations.
The members of the Board of Auditors are elected, in compliance with gender- balance law in force at
the time, from lists presented by the Shareholders, in which the candidates must be listed in progressive
number order, so that the minority is assured the appointment of one Statutory and one Alternate
Auditor. The lists must not contain a higher number of candidates than those to be elected.
In addition, where mandatory gender allocation criteria apply, each list with at least 3 candidates
(considering both sections) shall include a number of candidates of the less represented gender equal
at least to the minimum number envisaged under applicable law and regulations in force at the time.
Should the section of alternate auditors of these lists have at least 2 candidates, they shall be of
different genders.
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Shareholders holding, even jointly, at least 2.5% of the share capital representing shares that confer
voting rights at Shareholders’ Meetings held to deliberate the appointment of the members of the
governing body, or such other proportion of the share capital as may be determined from time to time
by Consob, in accordance with the rules applicable to the Company, may present a list of candidates.
The notice calling the Shareholders’ Meeting will state the level of ownership required to present a list
of candidates.
Each Shareholder, the Shareholders adhering to a Shareholders’ agreement relevant under Article 122
of the Consolidated Text, the Parent Company, the subsidiary companies and companies subject to
joint control may not present or join in the presentation of more than one list, not even through a third
party or a trust company, nor may they vote for different lists, and each candidate may only stand in
one list, on pain of ineligibility. Candidatures and votes expressed in breach of this prohibition shall not
be attributed to any list.
Lists must be deposited at the Company’s registered office at least 25 days prior to the date scheduled
as prescribed by law, including regulatory provisions, applicable at the time. The notice calling
the Shareholders’ Meeting will provide instructions to allow remote deposit of the list by distance
communication. Ownership of the amount of shares required to present a list must be proven with the
methods and at the terms required under the law and regulatory provisions in force at the time.
In the event that upon expiry of the term for the presentation of lists only one list has been presented,
or only lists presented by Shareholders connected with each other under the laws and regulations
in force have been presented, it will be possible to present lists until the third day after that date of
expiry. In this case, Shareholders that, alone or with other Shareholders, own overall treasury shares
representing half of the share capital threshold specified in the above provisions, may present lists.
If no list is presented, the Shareholders’ Meeting adopt resolutions by the statutory majority without
observing the procedure described below, provided it complies with the gender-balance requirement
specified above, where so required by law and regulatory provisions in force at the time.
In all cases, the following documents must be deposited together with each list and within the times
specified above:
(i) information regarding the Shareholders presenting the list and the total number of shares they hold;
(ii) declarations from the individual candidates to the effect that they agree to stand for election and that
they certify, on their own responsibility, that there are no causes of their incompatibility or ineligibility,
including the accumulation of positions in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations, and
also that they satisfy any requirements that may be laid down for the positions involved; and
(iii) 
CVs with full information regarding the personal and professional characteristics of each
candidate, specifying the administration and auditing functions exercised in other companies.
Lists presented by Shareholders other than those holding, even jointly, a controlling or relative
majority shareholding must also attach a certificate to the effect that there are no relationships
connecting them with controlling or relative majority Shareholders in accordance with the
regulation in force. Lists presented that do not comply with these provisions shall be considered
as not having been presented.
The procedure for the election of the Auditors is as follows:
(a) from the list that has obtained the highest number of votes (the “Majority List”), two Statutory
and one Alternate Auditor are taken on the basis of the numerical order in which they appear in
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the list;
(b) from the list that has obtained the second highest number of votes, provided that it is not connected
in any manner, even indirectly, in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations, with the
Shareholders that presented or voted for the Majority List (the “Minority List”), the remaining
Statutory and the other Alternate Auditor are taken on the basis of the numerical order in which
they appear in the list.
If the first two, or more than two, lists obtain an equal number of votes, a further ballot by the
Shareholders’ Meeting will take place, whereby only such lists will be voted for. The same rule applies
in the event of an equal number of votes being cast for lists in second place, provided that they are not
connected, even indirectly, in accordance with the laws and regulations in force.
In the event that the lists continue to obtain an equal number of votes, the list will prevail that is
presented by the Shareholders with more equity in the Company, or, subordinately, the list that is
presented by the greater number of Shareholders. In all the events specified above, the composition of
statutory auditors shall satisfy the aforementioned gender balance requirements, if so required by the
law and regulatory provisions in force at the time.
If the above procedure does not ensure a composition of the Board of Statutory Auditors, in terms of
standing members, which complies with the law on gender balance in force at the time, the last elected
candidate of the most represented gender (in numerical order) in the Majority List shall be replaced by
the first non-elected candidate of the less represented gender (in numerical order) of the same list, or
in the absence thereof, by the first non-elected candidate of the less represented gender (in numerical
order) of the other lists, based on the number of votes obtained by each of them. This procedure shall
apply until a composition of the Board of Statutory Auditors is reached which complies with the law
on gender balance in force at the time. Should this procedure not lead to the results specified above,
the replacement will be made according to a resolution adopted by the Shareholders’ Meeting with the
relative majority, subject to the presentation of candidates of the less represented gender.
The candidate elected in first place in the Minority List is appointed as the Chairman of the Board of
Auditors.
Auditors lose office if they cease to satisfy the requirements laid down by law and in the Articles of
Association.
In the event of the replacement of an Auditor elected from the Majority List, his place is taken by the
first Alternate Auditor belonging to the same list as the replaced Auditor, or, if this does not secure
compliance with the aforementioned gender balance requirement, the first alternate auditor who,
following the numerical order in which the alternate auditors are listed, satisfies such requirement.
Should the preceding provisions of this clause be not applicable, the replacement shall be made by the
Shareholders’ Meeting, which shall adopt resolutions with the majorities set forth by applicable law
provisions, subject to the presentation of candidates of the less represented gender.
If Statutory and/or Alternate Auditors need to be appointed to make up the number of members of
the Board after the replacement of a Statutory and/or Alternate Auditor elected in the Majority List,
the Shareholders’ Meeting adopts a resolution by the statutory majority, should the application of the
criteria set out in the preceding paragraph not result in the integration of the number of members of
the Board, without prejudice to the aforementioned gender balance requirement, where so required by
law and regulatory provisions in force at the time.
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In the event of the replacement of an Auditor elected from the Minority List, his place is taken by the
alternate auditor belonging to the same list of the replaced Auditor, or subordinately, by the candidate
immediately following in the same list as that of the replaced Auditor, or, again subordinately, by the first
candidate in the minority list that obtained the second highest number of votes, without prejudice to
the aforementioned gender balance requirement, where so required by law and regulatory provisions in
force at the time. In the absence thereof, the replacement shall be made by the Shareholders’ Meeting,
which shall adopt resolutions with the relative majority and in compliance with the above requirements.
This does not affect the fact that the Chairman of the Board of Auditors remains the Auditor from the
Minority List.
If Statutory and/or Alternate Auditors need to be appointed to make up the number of members of
the Board after the replacement of a Statutory and/or Alternate Auditor elected in the Minority List,
the Shareholders’ Meeting adopts a resolution by the statutory relative majority, choosing from the
candidates appearing in the list to which the Auditor to be replaced belonged, or appearing in the
minority list that obtained the second highest number of votes, without prejudice to the aforementioned
gender balance requirement, where so required by law and regulatory provisions in force at the time. In
the absence thereof, the replacement shall be made by the Shareholders’ Meeting, which shall adopt
resolutions with the relative majority and in compliance with the above requirements.
When the Shareholders’ Meeting is called upon, in accordance with Article 2401, paragraph 1, of the
Italian Civil Code, to appoint or replace one of the Auditors elected from the Minority List, any votes
cast by Shareholders that hold a controlling or relative majority interest, even jointly, are not taken into
consideration.
Board of Statutory Auditors’ Meetings may also be held by audio and video link in accordance with the
procedures set forth in the Company Articles of association.

14. STATUTORY AUDITORS (PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 123-bis, SUBSECTION 2(D)
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCE ACT)
The Company’s Board of Auditors, appointed by the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting on 22 April 2010,
whose term will expire on the approval of the financial statements at 31 December 2012, is composed
as follows:
Forename and Surname

Position

Serving since

% attendance at Board
of Auditors' Meetings

Luca Gaiani
Massimiliano Folloni

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

22 April 2010

100%

Statutory Auditor

22 April 2010

100%

Marina Torelli

Statutory Auditor

22 April 2010

100%

Filippo Nicola Fontanesi

Alternate Auditor

22 April 2010

-

Filomena Napolitano

Alternate Auditor

22 April 2010

-

All the auditors were elected from a single list, presented jointly by the majority Shareholders Girefin
S.p.A. and Gireimm S.r.l..
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The list included the following candidates:
• Luca Gaiani, born in Modena, on 27 January 1960, Chairman;
• Massimiliano Folloni, born in Novellara (Reggio Emilia), on 30 marzo 1950, Statutory Auditor;
• Marina Torelli, born in Modena, on 26 April 1961, Statutory Auditor;
• Filippo Nicola Fontanesi, born in Reggio Emilia, on 27 July 1967, Alternate Auditor;
• Filomena Napolitano, born in Nola (Napoli), on 10 March 1970, Alternate Auditor.
All the candidates from the single list presented were elected with 26 votes in favour. The voting share
capital attending the meeting represented 100% of the share capital.
The personal and professional characteristics of each Auditor are briefly set out below, in accordance
with Article 144 decies of the Consob Issuers’ Regulations.
Luca Gaiani. A graduate in Economics and Commerce at the University of Modena, Gaiani has been
a chartered accountant (CPA) and enrolled as external auditor since 1984. He at present practises in
Modena. He cooperates for the Il Sole 24Ore daily newspaper, and other several professional magazines
and newspapers and he teaches in certain courses for the training of chartered accountants and officers
of the Financial Administration.
Massimiliano Folloni. Folloni has been a qualified accountant since 1981 and was appointed as an
Official Auditor in 1992. He has been included in the Register of Auditors since 1995, and acts as
Auditor for some industrial and commercial companies.
Marina Torelli. Torelli has been on the Reggio Emilia Register of Accountants since 1989 and in the
Register of Auditors since 1995. She is a practicing accountant and acts as Auditor of several industrial
and commercial companies. She is also Chairman of the Board of Directors of an industrial company
in Reggio Emilia.
Filippo Nicola Fontanesi. Fontanesi qualified as an accountant in 1994, has been on the Reggio
Emilia Register of Accountants since 1995 and the Register of Auditors since 1999. He is a member
of the Reggio Emilia Accountants’ Association, and is an Auditor for some industrial and commercial
companies in Reggio Emilia.
Filomena Napolitano. Filomena Napolitano has been on the Reggio Emilia Register of Accountants
since 1998 and on the Register of Auditors since 1999. She has performed institutional assignments
for the Court of Reggio Emilia as a Receiver in Bankruptcy. She is an Auditor in some industrial and
commercial companies.
The table below shoes the administrative and auditing positions held in listed and unlisted companies
by members of the Company’s Board of Auditors as of 31 December 2012:
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Forename and surname

Company for which the external work is carried out

Luca Gaiani

Landi Renzo S.p.A.

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

Kerakoll S.p.A.

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

Cittanova 2000 S.p.A.

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

Gli Olmi S.p.A. (formerly Parco Ottavi S.p.A.)

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

Modena Aceti Srl

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

Fin Firel S.p.A.

Chairman of the Board of Auditors
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Position

Forename and surname

Company for which the external work is carried out

F.lli Parmigiani S.p.A.

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

Pallacanestro Olimpia Milano Srl

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

CMB Cooperativa Muratori Braccianti

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

Grandi Salumifici Italiani S.p.A.

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

Grim S.p.A.

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

Alcisa Italia S.p.A.

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

Gruppo Alimentare in Toscana S.p.A.

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

Frantoio Gentileschi S.p.A. in liq.

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

8A+ Investimenti S.p.A.

Statutory Auditor

Lovato Gas S.p.A.

Statutory Auditor

Safe S.p.A.

Statutory Auditor

I.S. Holding S.p.A.

Statutory Auditor

La Ciminiera S.p.A.

Statutory Auditor

IMAF S.p.A.

Statutory Auditor

Montecarlo S.p.A.

Statutory Auditor

Giorgio Armani S.p.A.

Statutory Auditor

Profassmo.it Srl
Massimiliano Folloni

T.I.E. S.p.A.
Girefin S.p.A.
Immobiliare Suzzarese S.p.A.
A.E.B. S.p.A.
Gli Olmi S.p.A.

Marina Torelli

Position

Director
Chairman of the Board of Auditors
Statutory Auditor
Statutory Auditor
Chairman of the Board of Auditors
Statutory Auditor

Lovato Gas S.p.A.

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

Confagricoltura Reggio Emilia - (Associazione)

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

Bioener S.r.l.

Statutory Auditor

Welfare Italia S.p.A.

Statutory Auditor

SAFE S.p.A.

Alternate Auditor

Nuova Mini- Mec S.r.l.

Alternate Auditor

Tecnove S.r.l.

Alternate Auditor

I.R.S. S.p.A.

Alternate Auditor

Lodi Luigi e Figli - S.r.l.

Alternate Auditor

Società Italiana Werisa di Legnani Cav. Antonio S.p.A.

Alternate Auditor

Carpenfer S.p.A.

Alternate Auditor

Lodi Luigi e Figli S.r.l.

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

I.R.S. S.p.A.

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

Tecnove S.r.l.

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

SAFE S.p.A.

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

Carpenfer S.p.A.

Standing Auditor

T.I.E. S.p.A.

Standing Auditor

Girefin S.p.A.

Standing Auditor

S.I.C.E. - S.p.A.

Standing Auditor

Nuova Mini-Mec S.r.l.

Standing Auditor

Bioener S.r.l.

Standing Auditor

A.E.B. S.p.A.

Standing Auditor

Lovato Gas S.p.A.

Standing Auditor

Consorzio Scandiano Zerosei
Società Cooperativa

Standing Auditor
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Forename and surname

Company for which the external work is carried out

CMR Industriale S.p.A.

Standing Auditor

Gli Olmi S.p.A.

Alternate Auditor

C.M.E. S.r.l.
Nicola Filippo Fontanesi

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Casa di Cura Villa Verde S.r.l.

Statutory Auditor

Iren Mercato S.p.A.

Statutory Auditor

Archimede S.p.A.

Statutory Auditor

G.Guerra Group S.p.A.

Statutory Auditor

Mirco Landini S.p.A.

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

Coalpi S.Coop. in concordato prev.

Chairman of the Board of Auditors

Torreggiani & C. S.p.A.

Alternate Auditor

Bertani S.p.A.

Alternate Auditor

Coopservice Soc. coop. per azioni

Alternate Auditor

Prefabbricati Canossa S.r.l.

Alternate Auditor

Intesa S.r.l.

Alternate Auditor

Sisma S.p.A.

Alternate Auditor

Aeterna S.r.l.

Assignee in bankruptcy

Ceramica Grand Prix S.p.A.

Assignee in bankruptcy

Bioera S.p.A.
Menozzi S.a.s.

Filomena Napolitano

Position

Judicial Commissioner
Assignee in bankruptcy

Codes cooperativa distribuzione
e servizi soc. coop.

Liquidator

O.M.S.A. S.r.l.

Liquidator

Effemme Data Service di Fontanesi, Manni & C.

Unlimited partner

T.I.E. S.p.A.

Alternate Auditor

Girefin S.p.A.

Alternate Auditor

Nuova Mini-Mec S.r.l.

Alternate Auditor

Albacem S.r.l.

Alternate Auditor

A.E.B. S.p.A.

Alternate Auditor

I.R.S. S.p.A.

Statutory Auditor

Lovato Gas S.p.A.

Alternate Auditor

Lodi Luigi e Figli S.r.l.

Alternate Auditor

Tecnove S.r.l.

Alternate Auditor

Elettrometalli S.r.l.
I Ciclamini S.r.l.
Carpenfer S.p.A.

Assignee in bankruptcy
Sole Auditor
Statutory Auditor

Nine meetings of the Board of Auditors were held during the course of the Year, lasting an average
of 100 minutes each. At least six meetings of the Board of Auditors are planned for the current year,
and three of these have been held already on 27 February 2013, 5 March 2013 and 13 March 2013. In
order to maintain an adequate knowledge of the segment in which the Company is active, periodically
and at any time as necessary, the auditors receive information and updates on the segment in which
the Issuer operates and reference legislation, including through documents prepared by the Company.
On being appointed, the members of the Board of Auditors declared, on their own responsibility, that
they satisfied the independence criteria laid down in applicable laws and regulations. The Board of
Auditors deemed that its members continued to satisfy the requirements of independence during the
Period.
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Under paragraph 8.C.3 of the Self-Regulatory Code, Auditors that have an interest, either on their
own account or on behalf of third parties, in a certain transaction to be carried out by the Issuer
must give the other Auditors and the Chairman of the Board of Directors prompt and full information
regarding the nature, the terms, the origin and the scope of their interest.
The Board of Auditors satisfied itself concerning the independence of the auditing firm, verifying both
compliance with the regulatory provisions governing the matter and the nature and extent of the
services other than accounts audit provided to the Issuer and its subsidiaries by the auditing firm and
the offices belonging to its network.
In carrying out its business, the Board of Auditors cooperated with the Audit and Risk Committee, the
Supervisory Board and the head of the internal audit.

15. RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Issuer has set up a special section called “Investor Relations” in its website, easily identifiable and
accessible, which provides the information regarding the Issuer that is of importance to its Shareholders
in order to enable them to exercise their rights knowledgeably.
Mr Pierpaolo Marziali has been made responsible for the management of relations with Shareholders,
acting as Investor Relations Manager.
In view of the Issuer’s organisational structure, it was decided not to set up a Company office for the
management of relations with Shareholders.

16. SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS (PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 123-bis, SUBSECTION
2(C) OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCE ACT)
With regard to Shareholders’ participation in Shareholders’ Meetings, Article 11 of the Issuer’s Articles
of Association states: “Shareholders with voting rights may take part in Shareholders’ Meetings if an
attestation confirming their right to participate is provided in accordance with the terms and conditions
set out the laws and regulations from time to time applicable. Each person entitled to vote may be
represented at Shareholders’ Meetings by third parties by issuing a written proxy in conformity to and
within the limits laid down by law. Notice of the proxy can be given to the Company electronically,
via certified e-mail sent to the Company e-mail address set out in the notice calling the Shareholders’
Meeting. The Company does not designate a representative to whom to confer proxies from the
Shareholders”.
The Company has decided not to adopt rules for Shareholders’ Meetings since it considers that the
powers vested by the Articles of Association in the Chairman of the Meeting, who is responsible for
directing the proceedings, including the determination of the order and system of voting, enable the
Chairman to ensure that the Meeting takes place in an orderly manner, moreover averting the risks and
problems that could arise from a failure on the part of the Meeting to comply with regulatory provisions.
The Board of Directors calls an Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting at least once a year within 120 days after
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the end of the financial period, or within 180 days if the conditions required under the law are met.
The governing body also calls a Shareholders’ Meeting, either Ordinary or Extraordinary, whenever it
deems it appropriate to do so or as required by law, or at the request of at least two members of the
Board of Statutory Auditors in accordance with the provisions of current legislation.
Shareholders’ Meetings are called by means of a notice specifying the day, hour and venue of the
meeting, a list of the items on the agenda, and the other information as required under the applicable
law and regulations. The Meeting notice must be published, within the times laid down by the provisions
of the applicable legislation, on the website of the Company and as may otherwise be required by the
laws and regulations applicable from time to time.
The same notice may also specify another day for a possible second call and, if necessary, a third call
meeting should the first or the second not be attended.
The Board of Directors, if it deems it suitable, can decide that the ordinary and extraordinary meeting
can be held at the same call, in which case the majority thresholds set out in the law will apply.
Shareholders that, even jointly, represent at least one-fortieth of the share capital may request items to
be added to the agenda, specifying in their request the additional subjects that they propose, or submit
proposals on subjects already reflected in the items on the agenda, to the extent permitted, and at the
terms and conditions, under the law. Persons entitled to vote may individually submit proposals to be
resolved upon by the Shareholders’ Meeting.
Requests to add items to the agenda as per the paragraph above, however, are not allowed with regard
to matters on which the Shareholders’ Meeting, by law, deliberates at the request of the Company
Directors or on the basis of a project or report prepared by same, different than the report on the items
on the agenda.
Within the terms set forth in the notice of a meeting, those entitled to vote can submit questions
relating to the items on the agenda by certified electronic mail, using the specific Company address set
out for this purpose in the notice calling the Shareholders’ Meeting.
The Company is not required to provide an answer if the relevant information is on the Company
website in a “question and answer format”, or if it is so necessary to safeguard confidentiality and the
interests of the Company.
Both Ordinary and Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetings are constituted and adopt valid resolutions by
the statutory majorities.
The Chairman of the Shareholders’ Meeting will ensure that each Shareholder has the right to take the
floor in relation to the items being discussed by coordinating speakers and managing the evolution of
the meeting.
During the Shareholders’ Meeting, the Board of Directors reported on activities carried out and planned
for the future, and took all the necessary steps to ensure that Shareholders were duly provided with the
information required in order that they might knowingly take the decisions they were entitled to take.
During the course of the Period there were no significant variations in the composition of the Issuer’s
shareholding structure; the Board of Directors therefore deemed it unnecessary to consider proposing
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to the Shareholders’ Meeting any amendments to the Articles of Association regarding the percentages
established for the exercise of actions and of the prerogatives safeguarding minority Shareholders’
interests.
On 29 April 2011, the extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting approved the amendment of articles 5,
10, 11, 14, 18, 22, and 23 of the Company Articles of association to adapt to the significant evolution
of the legislation applicable to listed companies after the entry into force of the following legislation:
• Legislative Decree No. 27 of 27 January 2010, implementing Directive 2007/36/CE on the exercise of
certain rights of Shareholders in listed companies;
• Regulations setting out provisions on transactions with related parties, adopted by Consob with
Resolution No. 17221 of 12 March 2010, as amended.
The foregoing legislative provisions have significantly affected the way listed companies operate,
by requiring that listed companies update their articles of association and their internal regulations
accordingly. Certain of the new provisions were mandatory, and prevailed over any inconsistent provisions
of the articles of association, while certain others were optional, and could be implemented, or not, at
the choice of the Company. In both cases, however, the new legislative provisions required a review of
the Company articles of association, to render it compliant, in full, with the legislative amendments.
Because none of the amendments necessary were on matters among those set forth in Article 2437,
subsection one, of the Civil Code, it was not possible for any of the Shareholders to exercise the right
of withdrawal.
It should be noted that, pursuant to article 18 of the Articles of Association, the Board of Directors
of 31 November 2012 resolved to amend the Articles of Association, and namely the provisions of
articles 10, 11, 14 and 22, in order to bring the content of such articles in line with the amendments
made to the legislation applicable to listed companies following the entry into force of the following
legislation:
• 	Legislative Decree No. 27 of 27 January 2010 implementing Directive 2007/36/EC concerning the
exercise of certain rights of Shareholders of listed companies (“Shareholders’ Rights Directive”);
• 	Law No. 120 of 12 July 2012, published on the Official Journal of the Republic of Italy of 28 July
2011(“Law No. 120/2011”);
• 	Legislative Decree No. 91 of 18 June 2012, as amended by notice published on the Official Journal
of the Republic of Italy No. 155 of 5 July 2012.
Having regard to the Shareholders’ Rights Directive, it should be pointed out that an amendment of the
Articles of Association to bring them in line with the provisions introduced by Legislative Decree No. 27
of 27 January 2010 had already been resolved upon by the Shareholders’ Meeting of 29 April 2011.
The Board of Directors though deemed it appropriate to make further amendments in order to secure
a higher degree of compliance with the provisions of Legislative Decree No. 27 of 27 January 2010.
Having regard to gender balance in the composition of corporate bodies, the Law 120/2011, carrying
provisions on the parity of access to managing and control bodies in companies listed on regulated
markets, modified articles 147-ter and 148 of the Consolidated Finance Act on the composition of
managing and control bodies, stipulating that at least one third of both bodies should be made up of
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the less represented gender (reduced to one fifth for the first term of office).
In particular, Consob deemed it appropriate to leave large discretion to listed companies in identifying,
in their articles of association: (i) the procedure for the creation of the lists as well as the supplementary
criteria for the identification of the individual members of governing bodies in compliance with gender
balance requirements at the end of the voting procedure, with the only limit that compliance with
gender allocation criteria cannot be required for lists with a number of candidates lower than three, (ii)
the procedure for the replacement of the members of governing bodies who cease during their term
of office, taking into account gender allocation criteria, and (iii) the procedure that allows the exercise
of the rights of appointment, where provided, not to conflict with the provisions of articles 147-ter,
paragraph 1-ter, and 148, paragraph 1-bis of the Consolidated Finance Act.
On this occasion, for the purpose of improving the wording in some clauses of the Articles of Association
and providing consistency of the wording throughout the Articles of Association, it was also resolved to
adopt clarifications and stylistic changes.

17. FURTHER CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES (PURSUANT TO
ART. 123-bis, SUBSECTION 2(A) OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCE ACT)
The Issuer has decided not to apply any practice for its corporate governance other than those
described in the paragraphs above, and set forth as specific obligations by provisions of laws and/or
regulations.

18. CHANGES SINCE THE CLOSING OF THE REFERENCE YEAR
No changes have been made to the structure of corporate governance since the closing of the year in
question.
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TABLE 1: INFORMATION REGARDING THE STRUCTURE OF OWNERSHIP
STRUCTURE OF SHARE CAPITAL
No. of shares

% of share
capital

Listed (indicate
markets/non listed)

Rights and obligations

112,500,000

100%

Listed (MTA)

As per Italian Civil Code
and regulations

Shares with limited voting rights

-

-

-

-

Shares with no voting rights

-

-

-

-

Ordinary shares

MAJOR HOLDINGS
Declarant

Direct Shareholder

% of ordinary
capital

% of voting
capital

Landi Trust
(trust regulated by Jersey law,
where the trustee is Stefano Landi)

Girefin S.p.A.

54.667

54.667

Gireimm S.r.l.

4.444

4.444

Impax Asset Management Limited

Impax Asset Management Limited

2.637

2.637

Aerius Investment Holding AG

Aerius Investment Holding AG

2.311

2.311
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Stefano
Landi

Claudio
Carnevale

Carlo Alberto
Pedroni

Carlo
Coluccio

Alessandro
Ovi

Tomaso
Tommasi
di Vignano

Chairman

Managing
Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Shareholders’
Meeting
of 22 April
2010

Approval
of financial
statements
for the period
ending on
31 December
2012

Number of meetings held during the Period:

16/05/2007

16/05/2007

22/04/2010

07/01/2008

24/04/2009

16/05/2007

16/05/2007

First
appointed
on

M

M

M

M

M

M

M

List
(M/m)
*

Executive

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

Non-executive

x

x

Board of Directors: 9

x

x
78%

78%

100%

83%

100%

100%

89%

(%) **

7

3

3

3

-

11

3

No. of additional
roles ***

60%

60%

*** This column shows the offices as director or as auditor held by the Director in other listed companies, financial companies, banks, insurance firms or large companies.

**** This columns shows, with an “X”, which Director is a member of this Committee.

****

x

x

100% x

**

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Internal Audit Remuneration
Cmte: 5
Cmte: 1

x

x

x

****

AUDIT
AND RISK
COMMITTEE

** This column shows the percentage of meetings (Board of Directors and each committee) attended by the Director, during the Director’s actual term of office.

* This columns shows whether the candidate was elected from the majority Shareholder list (M) or the minority Shareholder list (m).

NOTES

Giovannina
Domenichini

Honorary
Chairman

In office
until

Number of meetings held during the Period:

Name

Office

In office
since

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Independence
under the
Self-Regulatory
Code

120
Independence
under the
Consolidated
Finance Act

TABLE 2: STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OF THE COMMITTEES

x

x

****

-

-

**

Related Party
Transactions Cmte: 0

100%

0%

100%

**

RELATED-PARTY
TRANSACTION
COMMITTEE.
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Luca Gaiani

Massimiliano Folloni

Marina Torelli

Filippo Nicola Fontanesi

Filomena Napolitano

Chairman

Statutory Auditor

Statutory Auditor

Alternate Auditor

Alternate Auditor

22 April 2010

22 April 2010

22 April 2010

22 April 2010

22 April 2010

In office since

Approval of the Financial Statements for
the period ending on 31 December 2012

Approval of the Financial Statements for
the period ending on 31 December 2012

Approval of the Financial Statements for
the period ending on 31 December 2012

Approval of the Financial Statements for
the period ending on 31 December 2012

Approval of the Financial Statements for
the period ending on 31 December 2012

In office until

*** This column shows the offices as director or as auditor held by the Auditor pursuant to Article 148-bis of the Consolidated Finance Act.

** This column shows the percentage of meetings of the Board of Statutory Auditors attended by this Auditor, during the actual term of office.

* This columns shows whether the candidate was elected from the majority Shareholder list (M) or the minority Shareholder list (m).

NOTE

Number of meetings held during the Period: 9

Ownership required to present a list of candidates at the last election: 2.5%

Name

Office

TABLE 3: STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

M

M

M

M

M

List
(M/m)
*

x

x

x

x

x

Independence
under the
Self-Regulatory
Code)

N/A

N/A

100%

100%

100%

** (%)

12

19

16

16

23

Number of other
offices held
***
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TABLE 4: OTHER SELF-REGULATORY CODE PROVISIONS
YES

NO

Summary of justification
for any departure from
the recommendations
of the Self-Regulatory Code

System of delegated powers and transactions with related parties
Has the Board of Directors granted delegated powers laying down:
a) their limits?

X

b) the methods according to which they are exercised?

X

c) reporting frequency?

X

Has the Board of Directors kept the responsibility for scrutinising and approving transactions of
particular economic and financial importance, and transactions materially affecting the Company's
assets (including transactions with related parties)?

X

Has the Board of Directors laid down guidelines and criteria for the identification of "significant"
transactions?

X

Are the above guidelines and criteria described in the report?

X

Has the Board of Directors laid down special procedures for the scrutiny and approval of
transactions with related parties?

X

Are the procedures for the approval of transactions with related parties described in the report?

X

Procedures adopted for the latest appointment of Directors and Auditors
Were details of the candidates for positions as Directors deposited at least ten days in advance?

X

Were details of the candidates for positions as Directors accompanied by full information?

X

Were details of the candidates for positions as Directors accompanied by information regarding
their suitability to be described as Independent Directors?

X

Were details of the candidates for positions as Auditors deposited at least ten days in advance?

X

Were details of the candidates for positions as Auditors accompanied by full information?

X

Shareholders’ Meetings

X

Has the Company approved Shareholders’ Meeting Rules?

Are the Rules attached to the report (or is it specified where they can be obtained/downloaded)?

N/A

Internal auditing
Has the Company appointed persons responsible for internal auditing?

X

Are the persons responsible independent of managers of operations areas?

X

Organisational unit responsible for internal auditing (under Article 9.3 of the Self-Regulatory Code)

X

Investor Relations
Has the Company appointed an Investor Relations Manager?
Organisational unit and contacts
(address, telephone, fax and e-mail) of the Investor Relations Manager
PierPaolo Marziali, Investor Relations Manager
Ufficio Investor Relations
Landi Renzo S.p.A.
Via Nobel, 2/4
Cavriago - Reggio Emilia
Tel: + 39 0522 9433
E-mail: investorrelationslandi.it@landi.it
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X

The Company has not adopted rules
for Shareholders’ Meetings since it
considers that the powers vested by the
Articles of Association in the Chairman
of the Meeting, who is responsible for
directing the proceedings, including
the determination of the order and
system of voting, enable the Chairman
to ensure that the meeting takes place
in an orderly manner, moreover averting
any inconvenience that could arise from
a failure on the part of the Meeting to
comply with regulatory provisions.
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LANDI RENZO GROUP
Consolidated
Statement of
Financial Position
General Consolidated
Income Statement
Other Components of the
General Income Statement
Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement
Consolidated Statement
of Changes In Equity
Explanatory Notes

ANNEXES
Certification on the Consolidated
Financial Statements pursuant to
art. 154-bis of Legislative Decree 58/98
Independent Auditors Report

EPR 51 - CNG electronic pressure regulator

Consolidated Financial Statements
at 31 December 2012
(Translation from Italian original which remains the definitive version)

Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2012

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Euro thousands)

ASSETS

Notes

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Property, plant and equipment

3

32,972

35,096

Development expenditure

4

8,365

10,346

Goodwill

5

55,582

55,582

Other intangible assets with finite useful lives

6

27,169

29,506

Other non-current financial assets

7

203

170

Deferred tax assets

8

13,810

13,274

138,101

143,974

Non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Trade receivables

126

9

69,010

77,429

Trade receivables - related parties

10

229

361

Inventories

11

65,928

67,408

Other receivables and current assets

12

14,213

27,452

Current financial assets

13

116

176

Cash and cash equivalents

14

38,629

20,059

Total current assets

188,125

192,885

TOTAL ASSETS

326,226

336,859
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(Euro thousands)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Share capital

15

11,250

11,250

Other reserves

15

124,322

134,154

Profit (loss) for the period

15

Equity

Total equity attributable to the shareholders of the parent
Minority interests
TOTAL EQUITY

2,863

-9,138

138,435

136,266

623

738

139,058

137,004

38,465

40,119

Non-current liabilities
Bank loans

16

Other non-current financial liabilities

17

25

49

Provisions for risks and charges

18

5,077

4,860

Defined benefit plans

19

3,466

2,835

Deferred tax liabilities

20

10,583

12,351

57,616

60,214

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans

21

62,017

69,878

Other current financial liabilities

22

24

125

Trade payables

23

55,722

55,903

Trade payables – related parties

24

58

61

Tax liabilities

25

2,445

6,458

Other current liabilities

26

9,286

7,216

Total current liabilities

129,552

139,641

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

326,226

336,859
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GENERAL CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
(Euro thousands)

Notes

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Revenues (goods and services)

27

274,695

252,312

Revenues (goods and services) - related parties

28

507

1,217

Other revenue and income

29

1,525

1,646

Cost of raw materials, consumables and goods and change in
inventories

30

-129,839

-124,018

Costs for services and use of third party assets

31

-71,406

-66,693

Costs for services and use of third party assets – related parties

32

-1,552

-1,528

Personnel expenses

33

-41,928

-39,896

Accruals, doubtful debts and other operating expenses

34

-3,701

-3,563

28,301

19,477

35

-18,492

-22,737

0

-4,316

Gross Operating Profit
Amortization, depreciation and impairment losses
of which non-recurring

9,809

-3,260

Financial income

Operating Profit
36

693

482

Financial expenses

37

-4,105

-3,610

Exchange rate gains (losses)

38

-825

-1,825

5,572

-8,213

39

-2,974

-926

2,598

-9,139

Profit (Loss) before tax
Taxes
Net profit (loss) for the Group and minority interests, including:
Minority interests
Net profit (loss) for the Group
Basic earnings (loss) per share (calculated on 112,500,000 shares)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share

40

-265

-1

2,863

-9,138

0.0254

-0.0812

0.0254

-0.0812

OTHER COMPONENTS OF THE GENERAL INCOME STATEMENT
(Euro thousands)

Net profit (loss) for the Group and minority interests:

31/12/2011

2,598

-9,139

Exchange rate differences from conversion of foreign operations

-607

-371

Profits/Losses recorded directly to Equity net of tax effects

-607

-371

Total general income statement for the year

1,991

-9,510

Profit for Shareholders of the Parent Company

2,332

-9,444

-341

-66

Minority interests
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Euro thousands)

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

2,598

-9,139

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

9,896

10,181

Amortization of intangible assets

8,570

8,240

25

4,316

Financial flows deriving from operating activities
Profit (loss) for the year
Adjustments for:

(reinstatement of) impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on receivables

1,021

533

Net financial charges

4,237

4,737

Profits from the sale of property, plant and equipment

-89

-33

Changes in provisions and benefits for employees

-54

7

Income tax for the year

2,973

926

29,177

19,768

Changes in:
inventories

1,480

-428

trade receivables and other receivables

20,795

-3,377

trade payables and other payables

-2,253

-5,398

902

450

Cash generated from operating activities

50,101

11,015

Interest paid

-2,613

-4,737

Income taxes paid

-7,898

-5,833

Net cash generated from operating activities

39,590

445

2,686

569

-9,862

-10,495

-845

-1,307

0

52

provisions and employee benefits

Financial flows deriving from investment activities
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of other equity investments
Development expenditure
Net cash absorbed by investment activities

-3,273

-3,089

-11,294

-14,270

-9,515

14,392

Financial flows deriving from financing activities
Net repayments and loans
Payments of amounts owed for leasing

0

-447

Dividends paid

0

-6,188

-9,515

7,757

Net cash generated (absorbed) by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

18,781

-6,068

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

20,059

26,297

-211

-170

38,629

20,059

Effect of exchange rate fluctuation on available cash
Cash and cash equivalents al 31 December

This statement, as required by IAS 7 paragraph 18, was prepared using the indirect method; the items posted in the current year were uniformly
reclassified in the previous year’s statement. More specifically, compared with the previous year, cash and cash equivalents at the start and end of the
period include only the cash and cash equivalents, and not the difference between cash & cash equivalents and bank overdrafts & short-term loans.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(Euro thousands)

Balance at
31 December 2010

Share
capital

Legal
Reserve

Extraordinary
and Other
Reserves

Share
Premium
Reserve

Result for
the period

Equity
attributable
to the
shareholders
of the parent

11,250

2,250

73,210

46,598

18,636

151,943

715

43

0

-715

715

Allocation
of profit

18,636

-18,636

Capital and
reserves
attributable
to minority
interests

Total
equity

152,702

0

Bonus issue
Translation
difference

-352

Distribution of
reserves

-6,188

(*)

0
0

-352

-20

-6,188

-371
-6,188

Reclassification of
reserves

0

0

Other changes

0

0

Other share capital
increases

0

0

Result for the
period

-9,138

-9,138

-1

-9,139

Balance at
31 December 2011

11,250

2,250

85,306

46,598

-9,138

136,266

-1

739

137,004

Balance at
31 December 2011

11,250

2,250

85,306

46,598

-9,138

136,266

-1

739

137,004

9,138

0

1

-1

0

0

34

34

-531

-75

-606

Allocation
of profit

-9,138

Bonus issue
Translation
difference

-531

Distribution of
reserves

0

0

Reclassification of
reserves

0

0

Other changes

-163

-163

Other share capital
increases

Balance at
31 December 2012

11,250

2,250

75,474

46,598

28
0

2,863

2,863

-265

2,863

138,435

-265

(*) unit dividend distributed equal to e 0.055 for each of the 112,500,000 shares in circulation.
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Result for the
period

130

Profit (Loss)
attributable
to minority
interests

2,598
888

139,058
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012
LANDI RENZO GROUP
A) GENERAL INFORMATION
The Landi Renzo Group (also referred to as “the Group”) has been active for more than fifty years in the segment
of fuel supply systems for the automotive sector, designing, producing, installing and selling eco-compatible LPG
and CNG fuel supply systems (“LPG line” and “CNG line” respectively), as well as, to a much lesser extent, audio
systems through the subsidiary AEB S.p.A., alarm system through the MED brand and compressors through the
SAFE brand. The Group manages all the phases of the process leading to the production and sale of fuel supply
systems for the automotive sector. The Group sells both to the main car manufacturers at a world-wide level
(OEM customers) and to independent retailers and importers (After Market customers).
Note that the structure of the Landi Group has changed compared with 31 December 2011, as a result
of the increased equity investment in the Brazilian company LR Industria e Comercio Ltda, from 96% to
99.99%, the increased equity investment in the Iranian company Landi Renzo Pars, from 75% to 98%,
and the formation of the wholly owned company SAFE S.p.A. on 18/07/2012, with its registered office
in San Giovanni in Persiceto (BO).
The parent company of the Landi Renzo Group is Landi Renzo S.p.A. with its registered office in Cavriago
(RE). The company is listed on the Milan Stock Exchange in the FTSE Italy STAR segment.
These financial statements are submitted to auditing carried out by the auditing firm KPMG S.p.A.

B) GENERAL CRITERIA FOR PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND DECLARATION OF CONFORMITY
Declaration of conformity
European companies whose shares are dealt on a regulated market are obliged, in compliance with
EC Regulation no. 1606/2002, to adopt the international accounting principles, International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), beginning from the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements 2005.
The Italian Government, in application the Regulation in question, issued Legislative Decree no. 38/2005
containing the options specified for the optional application for 2005 and mandatory application from
2006 of the new international standards to individual statements.
The Landi Renzo Group adopted the international accounting principles, starting from the year 2006,
with date of transition to the IFRS at 1st January 2005. The last the consolidated financial statements
prepared according to the Italian accounting policies relate to the year closed at 31 December 2005.
The consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2012 were prepared in compliance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards currently in force, including all the IFRS adopted by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), the International Accounting Standards (IAS) and
the interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and the
Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC).
These financial statements were authorized for publication by the Board of Directors on 14 March 2013.
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General preparation criteria
The consolidated financial statements, prepared on the assumption of business continuity, were prepared
according to the general criterion of historical cost, except for the balance sheet items that, in compliance
with the IFRS, are entered at fair value as specified under the accounting policies described later.
The accounting policies described hereafter were applied uniformly to the financial statements at 31
December 2012 and in the comparative financial statements at 31 December 2011.
In relation to the presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Group operated as follows:
• for the financial position, the current and non-current assets are shown separately, as are the current and
non-current liabilities. Current assets, which include cash and cash equivalents, are those intended to be
produced, sold or consumed in the normal operational cycle of the Group, and in any case within the
twelve months following the closure of the period; current liabilities are those that are intended to be
settled in the normal operational cycle of the Group, and in any case within the twelve months following
the closure of the period;
• for the income statement, the costs are analyzed according to their nature. The overall income statement
is presented according to the double prospectus method;
• the cash flow statement uses the indirect method.
The figures contained in the Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2012 - consisting of the
Statement of Financial Position, the General Income Statement, the Cash Flow Statement, the Statement
of Changes in Equity and these Explanatory Notes - are expressed in thousands of Euros, since the Euro is
the current currency in the economy in which the Parent Company and the main companies of the Group
operate.

C) CONSOLIDATION PRINCIPLES AND VALUATION CRITERIA
The accounting policies described hereafter were applied uniformly for all the periods included in these
consolidated financial statements and by all the entities of the Group.

Subsidiary companies
Companies are defined as subsidiaries, as defined by IAS 27 - Consolidated Financial Statements and
Separate Financial Statements - when the Parent company has the power, directly or indirectly, to exercise
management in such a way that it obtains the benefits of carrying on the activity in question. Control is
presumed to exist when the majority of voting rights are held. In the definition of control, potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are also taken into account. The Financial Statements
of the subsidiary companies are normally consolidated according to the global integration method from
the moment that control is acquired until the date of its cessation.
The portion of capital and reserves attributable to minority interests in subsidiaries and the portion
attributable to minority interests of the value of profit or loss for the year of consolidated subsidiaries
are identified separately in the consolidated financial position and income statement. When the losses
attributable to minority interests exceed their share of the capital of the investee, the surplus, or the
deficit, is recorded as charged to the shareholders of the parent company, except in the case and to the
extent to which the minority shareholders have a binding obligation and are able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses, in which case the surplus is recorded under the assets in the consolidated
Financial Statements. In the former case, should profits be realized in the future, the portion of such
profits attributable to minority interests is attributed to the portion of profit of the parent company
shareholders for the amount necessary in order to recover the losses previously attributed to them.
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Investments in subsidiary companies that have not been consolidated due to their limited significance are
valued at the fair value, represented substantially by the value calculated by applying the Equity Method.

Business Combinations
The Group accounts for business combinations applying the acquisition method at the date on which the control
of the acquired business becomes effective. Control means the power to determine the financial and operational
policies of an entity in order to obtain benefits from its activities. In evaluating the existence of control, the Group
took account of the voting rights.
The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as the surplus of the:
• fair value of the consideration transferred; plus
• the total of any third party interests in the acquired business; plus
• where the business combination was established in several phases, the fair value of the interest in the acquired
business that the acquiring party held previously; less
• the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and the identifiable liabilities assumed.
When the excess is negative, a profit deriving from an acquisition at favorable prices is recognized immediately
in the profit or loss for the year.
Transaction costs, other than those related to the issue of debt certificates or capital, incurred by the Group in
creating a business combination are recognized as expenses in the profit or loss for the year when incurred.

Transactions eliminated in the consolidation process
The mutual relationships of debit and credit and cost and revenue, between companies in the consolidation
area, as well as the effects of all the transactions of significant importance taking place between them, were
eliminated.
In particular, profits not yet realized with third parties deriving from transactions between companies
of the Group, including those deriving from the valuation of inventories at the date of the Financial
Statements, were eliminated.

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currency are converted to the functional currency of each of the Group entities at the
exchange rate in force on the date of the transaction. Monetary elements in foreign currency at the balance sheet
date are reconverted to the functional currency using the exchange rate in force on the same date. The exchange
rate gains and losses of a monetary element are represented by the difference between the amortized cost in the
functional currency at the start of the year, adjusted to reflect the effective interest and payments for the year,
and the amortized cost in the foreign currency converted at the exchange rate in force at year end.
Non-monetary elements in foreign currency that are measured at fair value are converted to the functional
currency using the exchange rates in force at the date on which the fair value was determined. Nonmonetary elements in foreign currency that are measured at the historical cost are converted at the
exchange rate in force on the date of the transaction.
Exchange rate differences deriving from the conversion are recognized in the profit or loss for the year.

Conversion of the financial statements of foreign companies
Financial Statements drawn up in the currency of the foreign subsidiaries are converted into the accounting
currency of the consolidated financial statements, adopting the year end exchange rate for the Financial
Position and the average exchange rate over the year for the Income Statement. The conversion differences
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deriving from the adjustment of opening Equity to the current rates at the end of the period, and those due
to the different method used for conversion of the result for the period, are accounted for in Equity under
the other reserves.
The following table specifies the exchange rates used for the conversion of financial statements expressed
in currencies other than the Euro.

Exchange rate (Value against e)

Real – Brazil
Renminbi – China
Rial – Iran
Rupee – Pakistan

At 31/12/2012

Average 2012

At 31/12/2011

Average 2011

2.7036

2.5084

2.4159

2.3259

8.2207

8.1052

8.1588

8.9961

16,185.70

15,651.87

14,449.30

14,779.59

128.236

119.944

116.382

120.132

Zloty – Poland

4.074

4.1847

4.458

4.1187

Leu – Romania

4.4445

4.4593

4.3233

4.2386

Dollar – USA

1.3194

1.2847

1.2939

1.3917

Bolivar Fuerte – Venezuela

5.6663

5.5177

3.3599

3.6139

Peso – Argentina

6.4864

5.8403

5.5677

5.7429

72.56

68.5973

68.713

64.8669

Rupee – India

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment are stated at purchase or production cost including charges that are directly
related and necessary for the asset start-up costs and, when relevant and in the presence of contractual
obligations, the current value of the estimated cost for the dismantling and removal of such fixed assets.
Property, plant and equipment are not revalued; they are systematically depreciated on a straight-line
basis according to their estimated useful life, using the following rates, which have not changed since the
previous year, and are deemed consistent with their actual economic-technical use:
Categories

Depreciation period

Land

Depreciation rates

Indefinite useful life

Buildings

Straight-line basis

3 - 20%

Plant and machinery

Straight-line basis

10 - 20%

Industrial and commercial equipment

Straight-line basis

10 - 25%

Other assets

Straight-line basis

12 - 33%

The residual value and the useful life of tangible assets are reviewed at least at the closing of each period.
Land, because of its indefinite useful life, is not depreciated.
The routine maintenance costs are charged entirely to the income statement. Maintenance costs
having an incremental nature are attributed to the tangible assets to which they refer and amortized
in relation to the remaining useful life of the assets or, if less, until the moment at which a subsequent
extraordinary maintenance operation may become necessary.
The financial expenses directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of property,
plant or equipment are recognized in the income statement at the moment at which they are incurred,
in accordance with the appropriate accounting treatment provided for by IAS 23.
The book value of the property, plant and equipment is subjected to verification in order to discover any
possible losses in value, using the methods described in the paragraph “Impairment Losses”.
At the moment of the sale or when no future economic benefits are expected from the use of an asset, it is
eliminated from the financial statements and any loss or profit (calculated as the difference between the sale value
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and the carrying value) is recognized in the income statement in the year of the aforementioned elimination.
Costs capitalized for leasehold improvements are classified under Buildings and amortized at the lower of the
residual economic usefulness of the improvement and the residual duration of the underlying contract.

Leasing
Financial leasing contracts are accounted for according to the provisions of IAS 17.
This accounting treatment implies that:
• the cost of the assets that are the subject of the financial leasing is entered under property, plant and
equipment and amortized on a straight line basis according to the estimated useful life; a financial debt to
the lessor for an amount equal to the value of the leased asset is entered in a matching entry;
• the leasing fees are accounted for in such a way as to separate the financial element from the capital
portion, to be considered as a repayment of the recorded debt to the lessor.
Those leasing contracts in which the lessor substantially maintains all the risks and benefits of ownership
are classified as operational leasing and the corresponding fees are recorded in the income statement in
constant installments, distributed according to the duration of the contract.

GOODWILL
The goodwill deriving from business combination transactions after 1st January 2005 is initially entered
at cost, and represents the excess of the purchase cost over the purchaser’s share of the net fair value
referring to the identifiable values of existing and potential assets and liabilities. Goodwill deriving from
acquisitions made prior to 1 January 2005 is entered at the value recorded for that purpose in the last
Financial Statements prepared according to the previous accounting policies (31 December 2004), subject
to verification and recognition of any possible losses of value.
When the IFRS were initially adopted, as permitted by IFRS 1, acquisition transactions performed prior to 1st
January 2005 were not reconsidered.
After the initial recognition, since goodwill is regarded as an intangible asset with an indefinite life, it is no
longer amortized and is decreased by any accumulated losses in value, determined as described below.
Goodwill is subjected to an analysis of recoverability on an annual basis, or even more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances arise that could result in possible losses of value.
At the acquisition date, any goodwill emerging is allocated to each of the financial flow generating units (or
“CGUs”) that are expected to benefit from the synergistic effects deriving from the acquisition. Any loss in
value is identified through valuations that take as a reference the ability of each CGU to produce financial
flows capable of recovering the portion of goodwill allocated to it. If the value recoverable by the CGU is
less than the carrying value attributed, the corresponding loss in value is recognized. Such loss of value is
restored if the reasons that generated it cease to exist.

DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
An intangible asset, generated in the development phase of an internal project, which satisfies the IAS 38
definition, is entered as an intangible asset if the following conditions are satisfied:
• it is likely that the company will enjoy future benefits attributable to the asset;
• the cost of the asset can be reliably evaluated;
• the technical feasibility of the product is demonstrated;
• there is evidence of the company’s intention to complete the development project;
• there is a reliable determination of the costs incurred for the project;
• the recoverability of the values entered is demonstrated with the future economic benefits expected from
the result of the development project.
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No cost incurred in the research phase is recorded as an intangible asset.
The amortization period begins when the development phased is closed. Development expenditure is amortized
over three years, on the basis of the estimated duration of the benefits associated with the product developed.

OTHER INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Other intangible assets with finite useful life, acquired or self-created, are capitalized when it is probable
that use of the asset will generate future economic benefits and its cost can be measured reliably. These
assets are initially recognized at purchase or development cost.
Intangible assets with a finite useful life are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
life as follows:
• Industrial patents and rights to use intellectual property: from 3 to 10 years;
• Software, licenses and others: from 3 to 5 years;
• Trademarks: from 10 to 18 years.
Costs incurred subsequently relating to intangible assets are capitalized only if they increase the
future economic benefits of the specific asset capitalized and they are amortized on the basis of the
aforementioned criteria according to the assets to which they refer.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
A tangible or intangible asset suffers a reduction in value if it is not possible to recover, either through use or
sale, the book value at which said asset is recorded in the financial statements. Therefore, the aim of the test
(impairment test) provided for by IAS 36 it is to assure that tangible and intangible fixed assets are not entered
at a value greater than their recoverable value, which is the greater of the net sale price and the value of use.
The value of use is the current value of future financial flows that are expected to be generated by the
asset or by the financial flow generating unit to which the asset belongs. The expected financial flows
are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current estimate of the market of reference
referring to the cost of the money, in proportion to the time and risks specific to the asset.
If the book value exceeds the recovery value, the assets or the financial flow generating units to which they
belong are written down until they reflect the recovery value. Such losses are accounted for in the income
statement.
The impairment is carried out when conditions occur inside or outside the company that suggest that the
assets have suffered a reduction in value. In the case of the goodwill or other intangible assets with an
indefinite useful life the impairment test is carried out at least annually. If the conditions that resulted in
the loss of value cease to exist, the same value is restored proportionally on the previously devalued assets
until it reaches, at most, the value that such goods would have had, net of amortization calculated on the
historical cost, in the absence of a prior loss of value. Restorations of value are recognized in the income
statement.
The value of previously devalued goodwill is not restored, as provided for by the international accounting
policies.

NON-DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Loans and receivables are recognized when they occur. All other financial assets are recognized for the first time
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets are initially measured at cost, which corresponds to their fair value increased by ancillary charges.
After the initial recognition, assets held for trading are classified under current financial assets and measured at
fair value; gains or losses from this measurement are taken to income statement.
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Assets possessed with the intention to keep them until expiry are classified among the current financial assets
if the expiration is less than a year, and non-current if greater, and are subsequently valued with the principle
of amortized cost. Consequently, the initial value is then adjusted to take into account repayments of principal,
any write-downs and the amortization of the difference between repayment amount and initial carrying value.
Amortization is performed on the basis of the internal effective interest rate, represented by the interest rate that
aligns, on initial recognition, the present value of expected cash flows and the initial value (so-called amortization
cost method). If there is objective evidence indicating impairment, the asset value is decreased to the discounted
value of the future flows obtainable from it. Such losses are recognized in the income statement. If, in subsequent
periods, the reasons for the preceding impairment losses cease to exist, the asset value is increased to the amount
that would have derived from applying the amortized cost without recognizing the impairment loss.

INVENTORIES
Inventories of raw materials, components, semi-finished and finished products are stated at the lower value
between cost, measured according to the FIFO method, net break-up value expected from their sale in the
normal course of business.
The measurement of the inventories included the direct costs of materials and labor and the indirect costs
of production (variable and fixed).
Where necessary, depreciation funds were calculated for obsolete stocks or those with a slow turnaround
taking account of their future possibility of use or recovery.
Starting from this year, the item inventories also includes work in progress on contracts, which consists of
work performed net of invoices issued to the customer during the execution of the work. Work in progress
on contracts is valued on the basis of the amounts defined with the clients in relation the state of progress of
the work. Revenues related to contract work in progress are recognized using the percentage of completion
criterion. The percentage of completion is determined using the cost to cost method, calculated multiplying
the total revenue expected by the percentage of progress, as a ratio between costs incurred and expected
total costs. If the expected costs for the completion of the work exceed the total expected revenue, the final
loss is fully recognized in the period in which it arises. Contracted work in progress at 31 December 2012 is
not shown separately in the statement of financial position given the immateriality of the amounts involved.

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Receivables are initially recognized at fair value. The initial value is subsequently adjusted to take into account
repayments of principal, any write-downs and the amortization of the difference between repayment amount
and initial value. Amortization is made on the basis of the internal effective interest rate, represented by the
interest rate that aligns, on initial recognition, the present value of expected cash flows and the initial value
(so-called amortization cost method). If there is objective evidence indicating impairment, the asset value is
decreased to the discounted value of the future flows obtainable from it. Such losses are recognized in the
income statement. If, in subsequent periods, the reasons for the preceding impairment losses cease to exist,
the asset value is increased to the amount that would have derived from applying the amortized cost without
recognizing the impairment loss. The provision for bad debts, determined in order to measure receivables at their
effective realization value, includes impairment losses recognized in order to take account of objective indications
that trade receivables are impaired. Impairment losses, which are based on the most recent information available
and management’s best estimate, are recognized in such a way as to decrease impaired assets to the present
value of future cash flows obtainable from them.
The provision for bad debts is classified in the reduction of the item “Trade receivables”.
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Allocations made to the provision for bad debts are classified in the Income Statement under the item “Accruals,
impairment losses and other operating expenses”; the same classification was used for any utilizations and
permanent losses of trade receivables.

ASSIGNMENT OF RECEIVABLES
The Group assigns part of the its trade receivables by means of factoring operations. The operations for assignment
of receivables can be with or without recourse; some non-recourse assignments include deferred payment
clauses (for example, the payment by the factor of a minority part of the purchase price is subordinate to the
total collection of receivables), requiring an exemption on the part of the assignor or implying the maintenance
of significant exposure to the progress of the financial flows deriving from the receivables assigned.
This type of operation does not meet the requirements laid down by IAS 39 for eliminating assets from the
balance sheet, since the associate benefits and risks have not be transferred substantially.
Consequently, all the receivables assigned through factoring operations that they do not meet the requirements
for elimination established by IAS 39 continue to be recorded in the Financial Statements of the Group, although
they have been legally assigned; a financial liability for the same amount is recorded in the consolidated financial
statements as Payables for Advances on Assignment of Receivables. Profits and losses related to the assignment
such assets are recorded only when the same assets are removed from capital-financial situation of the Group.
Note that at 31 December 2012 the Landi Renzo Group has only performed assignments of trade receivables
without recourse that meet all the requirements established by IAS 39 for the derecognition of such receivables.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The item relating to cash and cash equivalents includes, primarily, bank deposits repayable on demand, as well
as cash on hand and other short-term investments that are highly convertible (convertible into cash and cash
equivalents within ninety days). Cash and cash equivalents are valued at fair value, which usually coincides with
their nominal value; any changes are recognized in the income statement. Current account overdraft, if utilized,
is shown among the “Short-term financial liabilities”. For the purposes of representing cash flows for the period,
when drawing up the Cash Flow Statement, short term bank debts are represented among the cash flows of the
financing activities, since they are for the most part attributable to bank advances and short term bank loans.

SHARE CAPITAL AND OTHER EQUITY ITEMS
The share capital is made up of the ordinary shares of the Parent Company in circulation.
The costs relating to the issue of new shares or options are classified in equity (net of the associated tax
benefit), as a deduction of the income deriving from the issue of such instruments.
As provided for by IAS 32, if equity instruments are repurchased, such instruments (treasury shares) are
recognized as a deduction from Equity under the item “Other Reserves”. Gains or losses are not recognized
in the income statement when treasury shares are purchased, sold or cancelled.
The consideration paid or received, including any cost directly incurred and attributable to the capital
transaction, net of any related tax benefit, is directly recognized as an Equity movement.

PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES
Provisions for risks and charges are set up to face present obligations - legal or implicit - deriving from past
events, for which a reliable estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation can be made at the
balance sheet date.
If a liability is regarded as merely potential, no allocation to provisions for risk and charges is made and only
adequate information is provided in these notes to the financial statements.
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When the financial effect of time is significant and the date of cash outflows associated with the obligation
can be reliably determined, the estimated cost is discounted to the present value using a rate reflecting the
cost of money and the specific risks connected to the liability. After discounting, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Defined benefit plans
Defined benefit plans are represented by the TFR contributions matured up to 31 December 2006 for
the employees of the Italian companies of the Group These are valued in accordance with IAS 19 by
independent actuaries, using the projected unit funding method.
This calculation consists in estimating the amount of benefit that an employee will receive at the
expected retirement date, using demographic assumptions (such as, for example, death rate and
personnel turnover rate) and financial assumptions (such as, for example, discount rate and future
salary increases). The amount thus determined is discounted to the present value and re-proportioned
based on the accrued length of service compared to the total length of service and represents a
reasonable estimate of the benefits that each employee has already accrued because of his/her service.
The discount rate used, in line with previous years, is derived from the curve of Italian government rates
at year end.
The actuarial gains and losses deriving from the related calculation are taken to Income Statement as
revenue or expense when the cumulative net amount of the unrecognized actuarial gains and losses for
each plan at the end of the previous year exceeds the higher of the obligations for the defined benefit
plans and fair value of plan assets at that date by more than 10% (the so-called corridor approach).

Defined contribution plans
The defined contribution benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the entity
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or implicit obligation to pay further
contributions. The contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense in profit
or loss in the periods in which the employees provide their work. Contributions paid in advance are
recorded as assets to the extent that the advance payment will result in a reduction in future payments
or a refund.

TRADE PAYABLES
Trade payables are stated at the fair value of the initial consideration received in exchange and
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest method. Trade payables with due
dates that fall under normal sales terms are not discounted to the present value.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. These financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.
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RECOGNITION OF REVENUES
Revenues are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will be achieved
and the relative amount can be reliably determined. Revenues and income are entered in the financial
statements net of returns, allowances, discounts and premiums, as well as the taxes directly connected
with the sale of products or performance of services. Revenues are recorded in the income statement
only if it is likely that the Group will benefit from the cash flows associated with the transaction.
Revenues from the sale of products are recognized when the risks and benefits connected with
ownership of the assets are transferred to the purchaser; this moment generally coincides with the
shipment date. Revenues from services rendered (generally consisting of technical consultancy provided
to third parties) are accounted for in the income statement on the basis of the percentage of completion
at the balance sheet date.

GRANTS
Grants from public and private bodies are recognized at fair value when it is reasonably certain that
they will be received and the conditions for their receipt will be met.
Grants related to income (provided as immediate financial assistance to an entity or to cover expenses
and losses incurred in a previous year) are fully recognized in Income Statement when the abovementioned conditions, necessary for their recognition, are met.
No capital contributions were obtained in the year in question.

COSTS
Costs are recognized in so far as it is possible to reliably determine that economic benefits will flow
to the Group. Costs for services are recognized for the year in question according to the moment that
they are received.
For accounting purposes, leases and hire contracts are classified as operating if:
• the lessor retains a significant share of the risks and the benefits associated with the property,
• there are no purchase options at prices that do not reflect the presumable market value of the rented
asset at the end of the period,
• the duration of the contract does not represent the greater part of the useful life of the leased or
hired asset.
The related charges are taken to Income statement on a straight line basis distributed according to the
duration of the underlying contracts.

DIVIDENDS
Dividends payable by the Group are shown as changes in equity in the year in which they are approved by
the shareholders.
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FINANCIAL INCOME AND CHARGES
Income and charges of a financial nature are recognized on an accrual basis on the basis of the interest
accrued on the net value of the related financial assets and liabilities using the effective interest method, as
set forth by paragraph 9 of IAS 39.

TAXES
Income taxes include current and deferred taxes. Income taxes are generally taken to income statement,
except when they refer to items directly accounted for in equity. In this case, the related income taxes
are also directly taken to equity. Current taxes are income taxes expected to be paid and are calculated
by applying the rate applicable at the balance sheet date to the taxable income for the year, calculated
according to the tax rules of the country to which each Group company belongs.
Deferred taxes are calculated using the so-called liability method on the temporary differences, for the
individual consolidated companies, between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their corresponding tax values. Deferred taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rate
that is expected to be in force when the asset is realized or the liability is settled. Deferred tax assets
(hereafter also called “prepaid taxes”) are recognized only when it is likely that taxable profits sufficient
to realize these assets will be generated in future years. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only
for homogeneous expiry dates, when there is a legal right to offset and when they refer to recoverable
taxes due by the same tax authority.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
The “base” earnings per share are calculated by relating the net profit of the Group to the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in circulation in the period.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
IFRS 3 revised applies to any transaction that results in the economic integration of two or more business
entities (which are not under common control) regardless of the manner in which this takes place.
In particular, this principle defines a business combination as any “transaction or event in which an acquiring
party obtains control over one or more businesses”.
A business combination is, therefore, based on the following assumptions:
• an acquiring subject obtains control over another business entity;
• an acquired subject yields control of one or more distinct business activities;
• the entity that initiates the transaction prepares the individual financial statements or consolidated financial
statements (and is therefore a reporting entity).
The provisions of the principle do not apply, on the other hand, to the following situations:
• realization of a joint venture through the combination of distinct business entities or activities;
• the acquisition of an activity or a group of activities that does not constitute a “business”;
• business combinations that are carried out between business entities or activities under common control.
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SEGMENT REPORTING
The activity segment is a distinctly identifiable group of activities and operations that provides a set of
related products and services, subject to risks and benefits different to those of the Group’s other activity
segments.
The accounting standard IFRS 8 requires segment reporting to be based on the elements that senior
management uses for performance analysis and operational decisions.
The Group’s only business segment is that of the production LPG and CNG fuel supply systems for
the automotive sector, given the immateriality of the sales alarm system, audio systems, acquatronics,
robotics and compressors.

COMMUNICATION ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
In accordance with the provisions of Accounting Principle IFRS 7, supplementary information is supplied on
the financial instruments in order to evaluate:
• the impact of the financial instruments on the capital-financial situation, on the economic result and on
the financial flows of the company;
• the nature and size of the risks deriving from financial instruments to which the company is exposed, as
well as the methodologies with which such risks are managed.

USE OF ESTIMATES AND ASSESSMENTS
The preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with the IFRS (International Financial Reporting
Standard) requires application of accounting standards and methods that are sometimes based on subjective
assessments and estimates based, in turn, on past experience and assumptions that are considered reasonable
and realistic given the circumstances. Application of these estimates and assumptions affects the amounts
presented in the financial statements, such as the financial position, the income statement and cash flow
statement, and in disclosures provided.
Please note that the situation caused by the current economic and financial scenario has resulted in the
necessity to make assumptions on future performance that are characterized by significant uncertainty.
Therefore it cannot be excluded that results different to those estimated may be realized in the coming
years. Such results could therefore require adjustments, which may even be considerable, which cannot
obviously be either estimated or predicted at this stage, to the book value of the relative items.
The balance sheet items that most require greater subjectivity on the part of the directors in producing the
estimates and for which a change in the conditions underlying the assumptions used can have a significant
impact on the financial statements are listed below:
• Valuation of fixed assets;
• Recoverability of development expenditure;
• Valuation of deferred tax assets;
• Valuation of provisions for bad debts and obsolete inventories;
• Valuation of employee benefits;
• Valuation of provisions for risks and charges.
The estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and the effects of each variation are immediately
reflected in the profit and loss statement.
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MOST IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES THAT REQUIRE A GREATER DEGREE OF
SUBJECTIVITY
A description is provided below of the most significant accounting policies that require, more than the
others, greater subjectivity on the part of the directors in producing the estimates and for which a change
in the conditions underlying the assumption used may have a significant impact on the financial data of the
Group.

Evaluation of receivables
Trade receivables are adjusted with the relevant depreciation fund in order to take account of their
effective recoverable value. The determination of the amount of depreciation carried out requires the
directors to make subjective evaluations based on the documentation and on the information available
also in relation to the solvency of the customer, as well as on experience and the historical trends.
The continuation of the current economic and financial situation and its possible aggravation could lead
to further deterioration in the financial conditions of the Group’s debtors beyond that already taken into
consideration prudentially in quantifying the write-downs recorded in the financial statements.

Evaluation of goodwill and the intangible assets in progress
In accordance with the accounting policies applied by the Group, goodwill and the intangible assets in
progress are subjected to annual verification (impairment test) in order to assess whether they have suffered
a reduction in value, which is established by means of an impairment test, when the accounting net value
of the unit generating the cash flow to which these items are allocated appears to be greater than its
recoverable value (defined as the greater value between the value of use and the fair value of the same).
The above mentioned value confirmation check necessarily requires subjective evaluations to be made
based on the information available within the Group, and from the reference market outlook and historical
trends. In addition, whenever it is supposed that a potential reduction in value could be generated, the
Group determines said reduction using those evaluation techniques considered suitable. The same value
tests and evaluation techniques are applied to the intangible and tangible assets with a defined useful life
when indicators exist that predict difficulties in recovering the corresponding net book value. The correct
identification of elements indicative of the existence of a potential reduction in value as well as the estimates
for determination of the reduction depend on factors that can vary over time, influencing the evaluations
and estimates made by the directors.

Provisions for risks
Establishing whether or not a current obligation (legal or implied) exists is in some cases difficult to
determine. The directors assess such phenomena on a case by case basis, together with an estimate of the
amount of the economic resources required in order to meet that obligation. When the directors consider
that is merely possible that liabilities may arise, the risks are indicated in the appropriate information
section on commitments and risks, without resulting in any allocation in the financial statements.

Provision for product warranties
Based on product sales, the Group allocates provisions according to the costs estimated as likely to be
incurred for product warranties. Management establishes the value of such funds on the basis of the
historical information on the nature, frequency and average cost of operations carried out under warranty.
The Group constantly strives to improve the quality of its products and to minimize the burden deriving from
operations under warranty.

Potential liabilities
The Group is subject to lawsuits regarding a number of disputes that were submitted to the jurisdiction of
various States. Given the inherent uncertainty of these disputes, it is difficult to predict with certainty the
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resulting financial cost, or the time frame within which it will arise. The lawsuits and disputes against the
Group derive primarily from complex legal problems, that are subject to varying degrees of uncertainty,
considering the facts and circumstances involved in each dispute and the different laws applicable. To assess
the risks deriving potential liabilities of a legal nature correctly and prudentially, management periodically
obtains information on the situation from its legal advisers. The Group establishes a liability in relation to
such disputes when it considers it likely that a financial cost will occur and when the amount of the resulting
losses can be reasonably estimated.

Evaluation of closing inventories
Closing inventories of products with characteristics of obsolescence or slow turnaround are periodically
subjected to tests for their correct valuation. and are written down where the recoverable value thereof is
less than the book value. The write-downs carried out are based, primarily, on assumptions and estimates
of management deriving from its experience and the historical results achieved.

Valuation of deferred tax assets
The valuation of deferred tax assets is made on the basis of taxable income expected in future years and
current tax rates, since they will also be applicable in the future. The measurement of such expected profits
depends on factors that may change over time and have a significant impact, therefore, on the valuation
of deferred tax assets.

Transactions with related parties
The Group deals with related parties at market conditions considered to be normal in the markets in
question, taking account of the characteristics of the goods and services supplied and received.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS EFFECTIVE FROM 1 JANUARY
2012 AND NOT RELEVANT FOR THE GROUP
The following amendment, effective from 1 January 2012, governs scenarios and cases that do not exist
inside the Group at the date of these Explanatory Notes to the Financial Statements, but which could have
accounting effects on future transactions or agreements:
• IFRS 7 – Financial Instruments: Supplementary Information - transfers of financial assets”. This amendment
requires information on the effects or potential effects arising from rights to offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities on the statement of financial position.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET APPLICABLE
AND NOT YET ADOPTED IN ADVANCE BY THE GROUP OR NOT APPLICABLE
Various new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have not yet entered into force and
have not been adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. None of the abovementioned documents will have any effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group, or is
expected to be adopted early.
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D) RISK ANALYSIS
In accordance with the requirements of Accounting Principle IFRS 7, the following analysis is provided
regarding the nature and extent of risks deriving from financial instruments to which the Group is exposed,
as well as the methodologies with which such risks are managed.
The main risks are reported and discussed at the Top Management level of the Group, in order to create the
prerequisites for their cover, insurance and for the assessment of the residual risk.

Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to the interest rate risk associated both with cash on hand and with medium to long
term financing. The exposure refers mainly to the Euro zone and is therefore affected by the significant
volatility of the rates in this area. As regards exposure to the risk of interest rate volatility, note that the
financial indebtedness is regulated primarily by variable interest rates. Therefore, the financial management
of the Group remains exposed to fluctuations in interest rates, not having, at the date of the present financial
statements, subscribed to instruments covering the variability of the interest rates on loans contracted with
the banks.
Interest rate risks were measured using a sensitivity analysis and the potential impacts of Euribor interest rate
fluctuations on the consolidated financial statements at 31st December 2012 were analyzed with particular
reference to cash and cash equivalents and to financing. The increase of 50 basis point on the Euribor, like
all the other variables, would produce an increase in financial costs for the Group of e 526 thousand in
comparison to an increase in financial income equal to e 44 thousand. It can be logically assumed that a
decrease of 50 basis point will produce the same effect, but with the opposite sign, both on financial costs
and financial income.

Exchange risk
The Landi Renzo Group sells part of its production and, although to much lesser degree, also purchases
some components also in Countries outside the Euro zone.
In relation to the exchange risk, note that the amount of the consolidated equity balances expressed in
currency other than the Euro is to be considered as insignificant. The Company has not subscribed to
instruments to cover exchange rate fluctuations and, in accordance with the company’s policy up to this
moment this moment, no derivatives are subscribed solely for trading purposes. Therefore, the Group
remains exposed to exchange rate risk on the balances of the assets and liabilities in foreign currency
at year end which, in any case, as mentioned, are not to be considered as significant.
We also point out that some Group companies are located in countries not belonging to the European
Monetary Union: USA, Argentina, Brazil, Venezuela, Iran, Pakistan, China, India, Poland and Romania.
Since the reference currency is the Euro, the income statements of such companies are converted to
Euro at the average exchange rate for the period and, with the same revenues and margins in local
currency, exchange rate fluctuations may impact the Euro value of revenues, costs and economic results.

Credit risk
The Group deals mainly with customers whom management deems to be capable of meeting their obligations
in the normal course of operations. It is the policy of the Landi Renzo Group to subject customers requesting
extended payment conditions, or terms different to those normally applied, to procedures for checking
their credit class. In addition, the balance of the receivables is monitored on a fortnightly basis, in order to
minimize exposure to the risk of losses. Finally, regarding new customers and those not operating in EU
countries, a letter of credit to guarantee successful collection is normally used, where possible. Since the
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year 2008 the Company has insured part of its foreign receivables, not covered by letter of credit, through
a leading Insurance Company and assigns receivables without recourse.
The credit risk regarding the other financial assets of the Group, including cash and cash equivalents, presents
a maximum risk equal to the book value of these assets in the case of insolvency of the counterpart. Lastly,
we point out that the persistence or deterioration of the current economic and financial crisis could have
an impact, even significantly, on the capacity of some client companies to regularly meet their obligations
to the Group.

Liquidity risk
The Group manages the liquidity risk by maintaining an adequate level of available financial resources
and bank credit granted by the Credit Institutions, in order to satisfy the finance requirements of the
activity.
The Group has not adopted a specific policy for management of the centralized treasury. In particular,
the management of the ordinary treasury is delegated locally to the individual companies of the Group,
while the extraordinary treasury is subject to the decision-making process of the Parent company.
The current difficult context of the markets in which the Group operates and of the financial markets
requires particular attention in managing the liquidity risk, and therefore particular attention is given
to the actions aimed at generating financial resources with operating activities and at maintaining
an adequate level of cash and cash equivalents as an important factor in facing the coming years.
Therefore, the Group expects to deal with the necessities arising from receivables falling due and from
investments planned by means of flows deriving from operating activities, available liquidity, and the
renewal or refinancing of bank loans.
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E) CONSOLIDATION SCOPE
The consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2012 include the economic and equity data of Landi
Renzo S.p.A. (Parent Company) and of all the companies over which it exercises control, directly or indirectly.

Companies consolidated with the global consolidation method
The consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2012 include the financial statements of the Parent
Company Landi Renzo S.p.A. and of the companies over which it exercises direct and indirect control,
holding the majority of the votes that can be cast in the ordinary shareholders’ meeting.
The Landi Renzo Group at 31 December 2012 is made up of the following companies:
Share
capital

Direct
investment

EUR

11,250,000

Parent Company

EUR

18,151

100.00%

Utrecht (The Netherlands)

EUR

36,800

100.00% (*)

Warsaw (Poland)

PLN

50,000

100.00% (*)

Espirito Santo (Brazil)

BRL

4,320,000

99.99%

Beijing Landi Renzo Autogas System
Co. Ltd
Beijing (China)

USD

2,600,000

100.00%

L.R. Pak (Pvt) Limited

75,000,000

70.00%

Company Name

Registered Office

Landi Renzo S.p.A.

Cavriago (RE)

Landi International B.V.

Utrecht (The Netherlands)

Eurogas Utrecht B.V.
Landi Renzo Polska Sp.Zo.O.
LR Industria e Comercio Ltda

Karachi (Pakistan)

PKR

Landi Renzo Pars Private Joint Stock
Company

Teheran (Iran)

IRR

5,096,522,000

98.00%

Landi Renzo RO srl

Bucharest (Romania)

RON

20,890

100.00%

Landi Renzo Ve C.A.

Caracas (Venezuela)

VEF

414,401

100.00%

Landi Renzo USA Corporation

Wilmington - DE (USA)

USD

18,215,400

100.00%

Baytech Corporation

Los Altos - CA (USA)

USD

5,000

AEB S.p.A.

Cavriago (RE)

EUR

2,800,000

AEB America s.r.l.

Buenos Aires (Argentina)

ARS

2,030,220
120,000

Indirect
investment

100.00% (+)
100.00%
96.00% (§)

Lovato Gas S.p.A.

Vicenza

EUR

Lovato do Brasil Ind Com de
Equipamentos para Gas Ltda (^)

100.00%

Curitiba (Brazil)

BRL

100,000

100.00% (#)

Officine Lovato Private Limited

Mumbai (India)

INR

20,000,000

100.00% (#)

SAFE S.p.A.

S.Giovanni Persic. (BO)

EUR

2,500,000

100.00%

Detailed notes on investments:
(*) held by Landi International B.V.;
(+) held by Landi Renzo USA Corporation;
(§) held by AEB S.p.A.;
(#) held by Lovato Gas S.p.A.;
(^) not consolidated because not significant.

At 31 December 2012 the following changes took place in the consolidation scope compared to the previous
period, which are summarized to provide a clearer understanding of these financial statements in terms of
comparability with those of 2011:
• in January 2012 the increase of the controlling interest in the company LR Industria e Comercio Ltda from
96% to 99.99%;
• in July 2012, the establishment of the company Safe S.p.A. with Headquarters in San Giovanni in Persiceto
(BO), whose registered capital of e 2,500,000 is wholly owned by Landi Renzo S.p.A.;
• In July 2012, the increase of the controlling stake in the Iranian company LR Pars from 75% to 98%.
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With reference to L.R. Pak Ltd., currently controlled by 70% through subscription of the share capital at the
moment of its formation, note that the Parent company Landi Renzo S.p.A. has obtained from the Pakistani
shareholders, owners of the remaining 30%, a right of option for the purchase of these remaining shares
in the subsidiary company.
This right may be exercised from 7th November 2011 to 6th November 2013, at a price corresponding to
the fraction of equity at the option year, increased by the average of the EBIT of the 5 years preceding the
option year, multiplied by three, again referring to the fraction of capital to be purchased.
Since no premium for this option has been paid to date, it was not considered appropriate to make any
valuation of the financial instrument held. Note in addition that the fair value valuation of said option does
not have to be made since the financial instrument is representative of capital and therefore falls within the
exceptions to application of IAS 39 provided for in the same international principle.

F) EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The changes reported hereafter were calculated with reference to the equity and economic balances of
the previous year since they are comparable in terms of duration and content with the year closed at 31
December 2012.

1. SEGMENT REPORTING
Since the financial statements for the year closed at 31 December 2008, the Landi Renzo Group has adopted
Accounting Principle IFRS 8 – Operating Segments. According to this Accounting Principle, the segments
must be identified using the same procedures with which the internal management reporting is prepared
for Top Management. Therefore, information is provided below by activity segment and by geographical
area.
The following table provides an analysis of consolidated revenues by activity sector in comparison to the
year 2011:
(Euro thousands)

Distribution of revenues per area
of activity

At
31/12/2012

% of
revenue

At
31/12/2011

% of
revenue

Gas sector - LPG line

171,485

62.3%

120,326

47.5%

51,159

42.5%

Gas sector - CNG line

82,162

29.9%

118,480

46.7%

-36,318

-30.7%

Total revenues - GAS sector

253,647

92.2%

238,806

94.2%

14,841

6.2%

Other (Alarm systems, Sound,
Aquatronics and Robotics)

21,555

7.8%

14,723

5.8%

6,832

46.4%

275,202

100.0%

253,529

100.0%

21,673

8.5%

Total revenues

Change

%

In light of these data, and given the immateriality of sales of alarm systems, audio systems, aquatic and
robotic systems, as well as compressors (the latter line of business became part of the Group’s production
following the formation of the company SAFE S.p.A. during 2012), equivalent to 7.8% of consolidated
sales, it can be assumed that, for the year 2012, for the purposes of IFRS 8, the Group’s only business
segment is the production of LPG and CNG systems.
The revenues of the Landi Renzo Group have also been divided by geographical area, with reference to the
location of the customers, while the value of the assets and investments is broken down by geographical
area based on the location of the actual assets.
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Consolidated revenues recorded in the year 2012 by the Landi Renzo Group are analyzed by geographical
segment as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Geographical distribution
of revenues

At
31/12/2012

% of
revenue

At 31/12/2011

% of
revenue

Change

%

Italy

77,996

28.3%

44,799

17.7%

33,197

74.1%

Europe (excluding Italy)

85,002

30.9%

66,130

26.1%

18,872

28.5%

South West Asia (*)

20,086

7.3%

66,900

26.4%

-46,814

-70.0%

America

39,087

14.2%

33,562

13.2%

5,525

16.5%

Rest of the World

53,031

19.3%

42,138

16.6%

10,893

25.9%

275,202

100%

253,529

100%

21,673

8.5%

Total

(*) Note that the revenues of South-West Asia consist of the sales realized in the following countries: Pakistan, Iran and Turkey.

As regards the geographical distribution of revenues, in 2012 the Group realized 71.7% (82.3% in 2011)
of consolidated revenues abroad (30.9% in Europe and 40.8% outside Europe), confirming the strong
international vocation that has historically distinguished it.
For a more detailed analysis of the revenues generated by region, please refer the section “Consolidated
Results” in the Report on Operating Performance.
The following table provides the values relating to assets analyzed by geographical segment of origin:
(Euro thousands)

31 December
2012

31 December
2011

Change

272,946

277,205

-4,259

1,659

1,423

236

Eastern Europe

17,421

9,771

7,650

South-west Asia

11,855

21,576

-9,721

7,530

9,267

-1,737

14,815

17,617

-2,802

326,226

336,859

-10,633

Total Assets

Italy
Western Europe (excluding Italy)

Rest of Asia
America
Total

The values relating to investments are provided below, net of disposals, analyzed by geographical segment
of origin:
(Euro thousands)

Total Investments in Fixed Assets

Italy
Western Europe (excluding Italy)

31/12/2011

Change

10,797

9,539

1,258

75

-12

87

Eastern Europe

510

945

-435

South-west Asia

-52

177

-229

Rest of Asia
America
Total

150

31/12/2012
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-9

96

-105

405

678

-273

11,726

11,423

303

2. ACQUISITION OF A BUSINESS UNIT
On 30 November 2012, the Group company AEB S.p.A, through its Robotics division, acquired a business
unit operating in the industrial automation sector. This acquisition is the realization of an plan for expansion
of the robotics and industrial automation sector by the subsidiary A.E.B., which should allow an increase in
the commercial development of these products with some major market leaders. Moreover, the acquisition
of the know-how and related projects, leading to an improvement in skills for the development of products
in this sector, will allow new strategic operational opportunities for growth to be taken.
The payment for the transaction is attributable to an equity value of e 706 thousand.
The Group determined the fair value of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed by valuing them as
follows:
(Euro thousands)

Statement of net assets of the “Robotics” business unit
at the acquisition date

Property, plant and equipment
Development expenditure
Other intangible assets with finite useful lives
Inventories
Other receivables and current assets

Balance sheet
values

Adjustments to
fair value

30
232

Carrying values

30
150

382

18

18

365

365

7

7

TFR (severance indemnity) fund

-45

-45

Other current payables and liabilities

-51

-51

Net assets acquired

556

150

706

Goodwill relating to the acquisition

150

-150

-

Total cost of the acquisition

706

-

706

Moreover, as already mentioned in the Directors’ Report, the subsidiary SAFE S.p.A. has a current lease on
a business unit, with the characteristics of an operating lease, with conditional purchase expected by the
end of April, the Court of Bologna having approved the Arrangement with Creditors proposed by Agave
S.r.l. (ex Safe S.r.l.).
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS
3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment show an overall net decrease of e 2,124 thousand, decreasing from e
35,096 thousand at 31 December 2011 to e 32,972 thousand at 31 December 2012.
The following is an analysis of changes in the historical costs of property, plant and equipment during the
period:
(Euro thousands)

HISTORICAL COST

31/12/2011

Land and buildings

Change in
consolidation
scope

Acquisitions

(Disposals)

Other
changes

31/12/2012

3,348

186

0

170

3,704

Plant and machinery

38,610

3,025

-2,219

767

40,183

Production and commercial
equipment

31,608

2,150

25

-198

-44

33,541

Other material assets

12,075

1,007

5

-609

-248

12,230

1,604

2,799

-894

3,509

87,245

9,167

-249

93,167

Assets in progress and payments on
account
Total

30

-3,026

The following is an analysis of changes in provisions for depreciation of property, plant and equipment
during the period:
(Euro thousands)

Other
changes

31/12/2012

-186

1,209

-1,077

-18

24,887

3,674

-146

129

25,159

1,246

-459

-93

8,940

-1,682

-168

60,195

31/12/2011

Depreciation
rates

880

515

Plant and machinery

21,521

4,461

Production and commercial equipment

21,502
8,246
52,149

9,896

DEPRECIATION FUNDS

Land and buildings

Other material assets
Total

(Disposals)

The following is the overall analysis of changes in net property, plant and equipment during the period:
(Euro thousands)

31/12/2011

Acquisitions

Change in
consolidation
scope

2,468

186

0

0

-515

356

2,495

Plant and machinery

17,089

3,025

0

-1,142

-4,461

785

15,296

Production and
commercial equipment

10,106

2,150

25

-52

-3,674

-173

8,382

3,829

1,007

5

-150

-1,246

-155

3,290

NET VALUE

Land and buildings

Other material assets
Assets in progress and
payments on account
Total
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(Disposals)

Depreciation
rates

Other
changes

31/12/2012

1,604

2,799

0

0

35,096

9,167

30

-1,344

-9,896

-894

3,509

-81

32,972

The Buildings item mainly includes the property in China owned by Beijing Landi Renzo Autogas, acquired
in 2006 and not subject to collateral guarantees.
The item Plant and Machinery includes machinery used for production owned by the companies of the
Group.
The item Industrial and Commercial Equipment includes moulds, testing tools and control tools.
The item Other Tangible Assets is made up mostly of electronic processors, motor vehicles, internal transport
vehicles and furnishings.
The item Assets in progress and payments on account includes primarily the costs incurred up to 31
December 2012 relating to the fitting of thermo-technical plants and climate-controlled cells for use by the
laboratory and test rooms of the new technological center.
The column “Other Changes” includes the accounting entries for plant and machinery assets already in
progress at 31 December 2011 and completed during the year, as well as changes for the reclassification of
certain assets of foreign subsidiaries.
The main increases in property, plant and equipment during 2012 relate to:
• purchase of plant and machinery for e 3,025 thousand, including e 865 thousand for production plants
of the parent company, e 800 thousand for Lovato Gas and e 790 thousand for AEB; the remaining
amount is attributable to new production lines purchased by various companies in the Group;
• purchase of industrial equipment for a total of e 2,150 referring in particular to moulds, various equipment
and testing tools for e 1,068 thousand by the Parent Company, while e 593 thousand refers to purchases
by the company Lovato Gas and the remaining amount by the various companies of the Group;
• purchases of other material goods totaling e 1,007 thousand, referring to electronic processors, motor
vehicles, internal transport vehicles and furnishings, by the various companies of the Group;
• advances paid to suppliers and assets under construction totaling e 2,799 thousand referring in particular
to the setting up of thermo-technical plants and climate-controlled cells for use by the laboratory and test
rooms of the new Technology Centre of the parent company.
• The main decreases in property, plant and equipment during 2012 relate to disposals of industrial and
commercial equipment, and in particular to the sale by the Parent Company of certain plant as a result of
outsourcing some production processes for electronic components; no significant capital gains or capital
losses were recognized in relation to the aforementioned disposals.
The following are the net accounting values of assets purchased with financial leasing, divided by category:
(Euro thousands)

Assets Purchased with Financial Leasing

31/12/2011

Depreciation fund

Acquisitions

(Disposals)

31/12/2012

Plant and machinery

737

-378

-

-

359

Total

737

-378

-

-

359
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4. DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
The following is an analysis of changes in development expenditure during the year:
(Euro thousands)

Development expenditure

31/12/2011

Acquisitions

Amortization,
depreciation
and
impairment
losses

Research and
Development Expenditure

10,346

3,272

-5,638

Change in
consolidation
scope

Other changes

31/12/2012

382

3

8,365

At 31 December 2012, development expenditure amounted to e 8,365 thousand (e 10,346 thousand
at 31 December 2011) and includes the costs incurred by the Group both for internal personnel and for
services rendered by third parties for projects meeting the requirements of IAS 38 in order to be recognized
as assets. In particular, projects capitalized during 2012, for a total of e 3,272 thousand, refer to innovative
projects, aimed at new market segments, capable of expanding and optimizing the product range, the value
of which is expected to be recovered through revenue flows generated in future years.
Among these, we note in particular the following main projects developed by the parent company:
• OEM MY 2013 Project (Euro 5b and Euro 5b+): research and development of new technical processes
and innovative kits for conversion of vehicles with petrol engines to CNG and LPG in compliance with the
stricter Euro 5b and Euro 5b+ standard.
• Dual Fuel Project: extension of range of the dual fuel system to diesel powered Heavy Duty vehicles.
• New AM Projects: research, design and development of innovative products and devices for Aftermarket
applications for conversion to alternative fuels and intelligent moving (monitoring of consumption and
pollution, route optimization).
The projects acquired as part of the acquisition of the Robotics business unit from Meta System S.p.A. by the
Group company AEB S.p.A. relate to development costs for the design of a complete range of machines for
the completion and customization of electronic boards through assembly, finishing and soldering operations.
Development activities were continued during the initial months of 2013 and they are expected to continue
for the rest of the current year. All the increases for the period relate to development projects not yet
concluded at 31 December 2012 and therefore not subject to amortization. There are no indicators of
lasting losses for such activities, the development phase of which is expected to be completed by the end
of the current year.
To evaluate any losses in value of capitalized development costs, the Group attributes such costs to the
corresponding specific projects and evaluates their recoverability, calculating the value of use with the
discounted financial flow method.
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5. GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT TEST FOR CASH FLOW GENERATING UNITS TO WHICH
IT WAS ALLOCATED
The item Goodwill is equal to e 55,582 thousand, unchanged compared with 31 December 2011.
The following table analyses this amount broken down by company:
(Euro thousands)

Company

Year 2012

Year 2011

Change

50,221

50,221

0

AEB S.p.A.

2,813

2,373

440

MED S.p.A. (merged into Landi Renzo in 2010)

2,548

2,988

-440

55,582

55,582

0

Lovato Gas S.p.A.

Total

The increase in the value of goodwill for the company A.E.B. S.p.A., for e 440 thousand, and the
equivalent decrease for the parent company Landi Renzo S.p.A. is a result of the contribution - with effect
from 1 January 2012 - S.p.A. of the business unit active in the “Alarm Systems” segment, including the
corresponding portion of goodwill, to the subsidiary A.E.B. S.p.A..
On all goodwill as at 31 December 2012, impairment tests were carried out and approved by the Board
of Directors on 5 March 2013.
The impairment test procedure, in accordance with the provisions of IAS 36 and applying the procedures
defined internally by the Board of Directors, was carried out using the future discounted cash flow
discount method in order to estimate the value in use of the individual cash flow generating units.

Main assumptions used for calculating projected discounted cash flows
The main assumptions used for calculating the value in use are the discount rate, expectations regarding
the performance of operating cash flows during the period and the growth rate.
The discount rate used, equal to 10.0% and unchanged from the previous year, corresponds to an aftertax estimate calculated on the basis of the following main assumptions:
• risk free rate equal to the average yield of reference ten-year government securities;
• indebtedness based on the financial structure of the sector to which the Group belongs.
The models for discounted cash flows are based on the financial flows for a period of five years.
The long term perpetual growth rate was prudentially fixed at 1.8%, unchanged compared with the
previous year, and equal to half the historical average growth and GDP % forecast of the main markets
of Landi Renzo.
Elements and assumptions used for the purposes of impairment tests such as sales revenue, the EBITDA
Margin and future cash flows, are those that appear in the economic-financial business plan for the
period 2013 - 2017 approved by the Board of Directors.
Regarding the other CGUs, management has identified two basic assumptions in which a change could
lead to a book value above recoverable value. The following table shows the changes that would need to
be made to these assumptions so that the recoverable value is equal to the book value:
In %

Discount rate

Terminal value growth rate

Lovato Gas S.p.A.

10.5%

1.3%

AEB S.p.A.

17.5%

-12.0%

MED S.p.A. (merged into Landi Renzo in 2010)

14.0%

-3.8%
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6. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH FINITE USEFUL LIVES
The following is an analysis of the changes other intangible assets with finite useful lives that occurred
during the year:
(Euro thousands)

Other intangible assets with
finite useful lives

Patents and intellectual property
rights
Concessions and trademarks
Assets in progress and
payments on account
Total

31/12/2011

Acquisitions

Change in
consolidation
scope

1,453

214

18

27,618

7

192

435

409

-88

29,506

630

18

Other
changes

Amortization

31/12/2012

-158

-878

649

-2,054

25,764

-54

756
-2,932

27,169

Intangible assets increased from e 29,506 thousand at 31 December 2011 to e 27,169 thousand at 31
December 2012, and include:
• under Patent Rights, the purchase of licenses for specific applications and supporting software for research
and development activities, as well as the costs incurred for the implementation of SAP management
software;
• in the item Concessions and Trademarks the net value of the Trademarks owned by the Group. This item
is represented primarily by the LOVATO brand, for e 12,909 thousand, the AEB and 18SOUND brands, for
e 11,194 thousand, and the Baytech brand, for e 1,209 thousand, stated at fair value at the moment of
the purchase on the basis of valuations made by independent professionals; these values are amortized
over 18 years, the period deemed representative of the useful life of the brands;
• the item Assets Under Construction and Payments on Account includes expenses and advance payments
incurred by the Group in respect of investments in progress for the registration of trademarks and patents,
as well as for the acquisition of new management software.

7. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
The item Other Non-current Financial Assets, equal to e 203 thousand (e 170 thousand at 31 December
2011) includes, primarily, guarantee deposits. These items were not actualized since the impact of the
financial effect is not significant.
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8. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
At 31 December 2012 deferred tax assets, equal to e13,810 thousand (e13,274 thousand at 31 December
2011), refer to the following main cases:
• remission of the goodwill ex Legislative Decree no. 185/2008, recorded by the subsidiary Lovato Gas S.p.A.
prior to acquisition by the Landi Renzo Group;
• temporary differences deriving from asset adjustment funds posted primarily by the Italian companies of
the Group;
• temporary differences deriving from adjustments for consolidation;
• tax losses for the years 2011 and 2012 posted by Landi Renzo S.p.A..
The following are the main elements that make up the deferred tax assets, analyzed at the end of the
current and previous years:
(Euro thousands)

31 December 2012
Deferred tax assets

Provision for inventories
Provision for investment and
securities

31 December 2011

Amount

Tax rate

Deferred
tax assets

5,177

31.40%

1,623

Amount

Tax rate

Deferred tax
assets

5,243

31.40%

1,645

613

27.50%

169

19

27.50%

5

Provision for product warranties

3,895

31.40%

1,223

3,293

31.40%

1,034

Provision for bad debts - taxed

2,246

27.50%

618

1,656

27.50%

455

Goodwill and flat-rate tax

8,966

31.40%

2,815

12,315

31.40%

3,867

328

31.40%

103

1,119

27.5%-31.4%

336

989

27.5%-31.4%

294

300

27.50%

83

859

27.50%

236

Other deferred deductibility costs

2,187

19%-31.4%

724

2,037

19%-31.4%

618

Consolidation adjustments

5,158

31.40%

1,619

3,618

31.40%

1,136

16,729

27.50%

4,600

14,111

27.50%

3,881

Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment;
Other temporary changes

Tax loss 2011 - 2012
Total

31.40%

13,810

13,274

Note furthermore that utilization of the deferred tax assets in the year is classified under current taxes in the
income statement.
The allocation of deferred tax assets is carried out for each company of the Group by critically assessing the
existence of the conditions of future recoverability of such taxes on the basis of the updated strategic plans,
together with the corresponding tax plans, taking the applicable tax rules into consideration.
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CURRENT ASSETS
9. TRADE RECEIVABLES (including related parties)
Trade receivables (including trade receivables due from related parties), stated net of the related depreciation
fund, are analyzed by geographical segment as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Trade receivables per geographical area

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

Italy

21,967

17,769

4,198

Europe (excluding Italy)

19,022

14,970

4,052

South-west Asia

8,478

26,084

-17,606

America

11,613

18,763

-7,150

Rest of the World

13,257

4,624

8,633

Provision for bad debts

-5,098

-4,420

-678

Total

69,239

77,790

-8,551

Trade receivables at 31 December 2012 amount to e 69,239 thousand, net of the Provision for bad debts
equal to e 5,098 thousand, compared with e 77,790 thousand at 31 December 2011, including a provision
for bad debts of e 4,420 thousand.
The Parent Company carried out operations for assignment of trade receivables through factoring without
recourse and at 31 December 2012 total assignments with credit maturity, for which the corresponding
receivables were derecognized, amounted to e 6,220 thousand.
Note that there are no non-current trade receivables or receivables secured by collateral guarantees.
The provision for bad debts, calculated using analytical criteria on the basis of available data and taking
account of the insurance policies in existence on part of foreign receivables of the Parent Company, changed
as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Provision for bad debts

31/12/2011

Provision

Utilization

Other changes

31/12/2012

Provision for bad debts

4,420

927

-243

-6

5,098

The allocations made during the period, necessary in order to adjust the book value of the payables to their
assumed recovery value, amount to e 927 thousand (compared with e 516 thousand for the year 2011).
Utilizations during the year 2012, on the other hand, amounted to e 243 thousand, compared to e 536
thousand in the previous year.
In accordance with the requirements of Accounting Principle IFRS 7, the following table provides information
on the maximum credit risk divided by expiry classes, gross of the Provision for Bad Debts:
(Euro thousands)

Past due
Not past due

0-30 days

30-60 days

60 and beyond

Provision for
Bad Debts

Trade Receivables at 31/12/2011

49,149

6,341

4,271

14,576

-5,098

Trade Receivables at 31/12/2012

50,492

8,595

4,412

18,711

-4,420

It is considered that the book value of the item Trade Receivables approximates the fair value thereof.
The checks performed by the Company on these customers did not reveal any solvency risks not already
covered by the related provision.
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10. TRADE RECEIVABLES - RELATED PARTIES
Trade receivables - related parties amount to e 229 thousand and regard the receivables due from the
Pakistani company AutoFuels (a company held 100% by a minority shareholder in LR Pak and operating in
the Pakistani market on the After Market channel).
For an analysis of receivables from related parties, see the table of transactions carried out with them,
provided in the final notes to this document.

11. INVENTORIES
This item is analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Inventories

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

Raw materials and parts

44,137

45,674

-1,537

Work in progress, semi-finished products and contract work in progress

10,212

7,440

2,773

Finished products

17,268

20,381

-3,113

(Provision for inventories)

-5,690

-6,087

397

Total

65,928

67,408

-1,480

Closing inventories at 31 December 2012 amount in total to e 65,928 thousand, net of the provision for
inventories equal to e 5,690 thousand, and therefore record a decrease of e 1,480 thousand compared to
31 December 2011, when they totaled e 67,408 thousand.
The item Inventories also includes “Contracted Work in Progress” amounting to e 357 thousand. This type
of activity is present for the first time in the consolidated financial statements of the Landi Renzo Group
following the consolidation of the subsidiary SAFE S.p.A that operates in the sector of the production of
compressors for gas treatment.
The Group estimated a provision for inventories, the details of which are provided below, to cover risks of
technical obsolescence of stocks and to align the carrying value to their presumed break-up value.
(Euro thousands)

31/12/2011

Provision

Utilization

Other
changes

31/12/2012

Provision for Inventories (raw materials)

4,813

231

-506

-250

4,287

Provision for Inventories (work in progress

628

Provision for Inventories (finished products)

646

121

-162

170

775

6,087

352

-668

-80

5,690

Provision for inventories

Total

628

The allocations, equal to e 352 thousand, were set aside for slow moving product codes, while the utilizations,
relating to the scrappage of obsolete or damaged materials, refer primarily to the to the parent company
and to the Iranian company. The Other Changes column indicates the amounts relating to repositioning of
funds between the three inventory categories.
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12. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND CURRENT ASSETS
This item is analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

Tax assets

7,701

21,376

-13,675

Amounts due from others

5,471

5,164

307

Prepayments and accrued income

1,041

912

129

14,213

27,452

-13,239

Other receivables and current assets

Total

It is considered that the book value attributed to the item “Other Receivables and Current Assets”
approximates their fair value.

Tax assets
Tax assets consist primarily of VAT recoverable from the tax authorities for e 3,749 thousand, including
e 2,100 thousand requested as a refund. The remaining part refers to credits for income taxes due to a
surplus of advance payments made during the previous year by the Italian companies of the Group as well
as other tax credits attributable to the Group’s foreign subsidiaries. The item also includes the amount due
as an IRES refund relating to the IRAP deduction pursuant to Legislative Decree 201/2011 posted for the
Italian companies of the Group totaling e 771 thousand.

Amounts due from others
At 31 December 2012 these refer to payments on account granted, credit notes to be received and other
receivables, mainly of the Italian companies of the Group.

Prepayments and accrued income
This item includes primarily prepaid insurance premiums, rental, membership contributions, and for
hardware and software maintenance fees paid in advance.

13. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
At 31 December 2012 the other current financial assets amount to e 116 thousand and consist of the
equity investment in Deutsche Telekom, held by the Parent Company, which corresponds to the stock
market share price at year end.

14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
This item, consisting of the active balances of bank current accounts and cash in hand in both Euros and
foreign currency, is analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

38,580

20,007

18,573

Cash

49

52

-3

Total

38,629

20,059

18,570

Bank and post office accounts

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2012 amount to e 38,629 thousand (e 20,059 thousand at
31 December 2011).
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The interest rate on bank deposits during the year was on average aligned with the Euribor reduced by the
spread granted to the Group by the main Credit Institutions.
For an analysis relating to the generation and absorption of cash during the year, please refer to the cash
flow statement.
The values stated can be readily converted into cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. It is considered that the book value of the item “Cash and cash equivalents” is aligned with its
fair value at the balance sheet date.
The credit risk relating to Cash and cash equivalents is therefore deemed to be limited since the deposits are
split over primary national and international banking institutions.

15. EQUITY
The following table provides an analysis of the items of consolidated equity at 31 December 2012:
(Euro thousands)

Equity

Share capital
Other reserves
Profit (loss) for the period
Total Equity attributable to the
Shareholders of the Parent

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

11,250

11,250

0

124,322

134,154

-9,832

2,863

-9,138

12,001
2,169

138,435

136,266

Capital and Reserves attributable to minority
interests

888

739

149

Profit (loss) attributable to minority interests

-265

-1

-264

623

738

-115

139,058

137,004

2,054

Total Minority Interests
Total Consolidated Equity

The share capital stated in the financial statements for the year at 31 December 2012 represents the share
capital fully subscribed and paid up by of the company Landi Renzo S.p.A, which has a nominal value of
e 11,250 thousand, and is subdivided into 112,500,000 shares with a par value of e 0.10 each.
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Consolidated shareholders’ equity at 31 December 2012 showed an increase of e 2,054 thousand compared
with 31 December 2011, primarily as a result of the profit for the period.
The other reserves are analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Other reserves of the Group

Legal Reserve

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

2,250

2,250

0

Extraordinary and Other reserves

75,474

85,306

-9,832

Share premium reserve

46,598

46,598

0

124,322

134,154

-9,832

Total

The balance of the Legal Reserve at 31 December 2012 amounts to e 2,250 thousand and remains unchanged
since it has reached one fifth of the share capital. The Extraordinary Reserve and the other reserves refer
to the profits recorded by the Parent Company and by the subsidiary companies in the preceding years
and have decreased by e 9,832 thousand as a result of the previous year’s loss and the movements of the
translation reserve.
The Share Premium Reserve originated as a result of the floatation on the stock market for an amount equal
to e 46,598 thousand, net of the related costs.
The minority interests represent the share of equity and year’s profit of those foreign subsidiary companies
not owned in full.

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
16. BANK LOANS
This item includes medium/long term portion of the bank debts for unsecured loans and finance.
At 31 December 2012 it is equal to e 38,465 thousand, compared with e 40,119 thousand at 31 December
2011.
The structure of the debt is exclusively at a variable rate indexed to the Euribor and increased by a spread
aligned with the normal market conditions; the loan currency is the Euro. The loans are not secured by
collateral and there are no clauses other than the early payment clauses normally envisaged by commercial
practice.
For some new loans taken out in 2012 there are financial covenants the parameters were verified as having
been respected at the balance sheet date.
The Company does not have any derivatives to cover the loans.
It should be noted that, as indicated in point 2.h) of the Report on Corporate Governance, early settlement
of certain loan agreements may be requested should there be a change of control of the Company.
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Long-term loans are analyzed in the following table:
(Euro thousands)

Expiry date

Balance at
31/12/2012

Non-current
portion

Credito Emiliano S.p.A.

31/12/2013

6,261

0

Banca Popolare dell’Emilia Romagna

31/12/2013

1,696

0

Bank loan

Banca Popolare dell’Emilia Romagna

30/06/2014

1,876

633

Bank loan

Banca Popolare dell’Emilia Romagna

22/12/2014

5,234

2,668

Bank loan

Bpv-S.Geminiano e S.Prospero S.p.A.

30/06/2014

2,036

689

Bank loan

Banca Popolare Commercio e Industria S.p.A.

01/07/2014

941

318

Bank loan

Banca Nazionale del Lavoro S.p.A.

30/06/2014

14,521

4,849

Bank loan

Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A.

30/06/2015

8,311

4,991

Bank loan

Mediocredito italiano

30/06/2014

2,434

812

Bank loan

BEI

11/12/2017

9,919

9,919

Bank loan

BEI - tranche guaranteed by SACE

11/12/2017

9,919

9,919

Bank loan

Banca Popolare dell’Emilia Romagna

30/06/2014

937

316

Bank loan

Banca Popolare Commercio e Industria S.p.A.

01/07/2014

942

318

Bank loan

Bank of the West

28/02/2014

1,516

1,516

Bank loan

Bank of the West

18/07/2014

1,516

1,516

68,061

38,465

Type

Lender

Bank loan
Bank loan

It is considered that the book value of non-current bank loans is aligned with their fair value at the balance
sheet date.
At 31 December 2012, the Group had additional lines of credit available and not used:
(Euro thousands)

Line of credit

Cash facility
Facility for various uses
Unsecured loans
Total

2012

2011

9.289

5.775

94.683

71.801

0

5.000

103.972

82.576

17. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
At 31 December 2012 this item includes only the long term portions, equal to e 25 thousand, of the
facilitated loans that the Parent Company had obtained from the Italian Trade and Industry Department on
the basis of specific regulations.
It is considered that the book value of the other financial liabilities is aligned with their fair value at the
balance sheet date.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

163

Consolidated Financial Statements at 31 December 2012

18. PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES
The changes and breakdown of this item are as follows:
(Euro thousands)

31/12/2011

Provision

Utilization

Other
changes

31/12/2012

Provision for product warranties

4,493

1,113

-953

26

4,679

Provision for lawsuits in progress

232

-4

228

Provisions for pensions

105

16

30

77

4,860

1,206

Provisions for risks and charges

Other provisions
Total

-7

-960

-44

70

-7

100

-29

5,077

The item “Provision for Product Warranties” includes the best estimate of the costs related to the commitments
that the Group companies have incurred as an effect of legal or contractual provisions, in relation to the
expenses connected with providing product warranties for a fixed period of time starting from the sale thereof.
This estimate was calculated based on the historical data of the Group, with specific contractual content,
and has been increased compared with the previous year as a result of new commercial agreements with car
manufacturers and the effect of expansion of the supply perimeter to them.
At 31 December 2012 this provision was equal to e 4,679 thousand. The provision was recognized in the
Income statement under the item “Accruals, impairment losses and other operating expenses”.
The utilization of the risk provision amounting to e 953 thousand is mainly due to the covering of warranty
costs related to supplies of components to OEM customers in previous years.

19. DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS
This item includes the employee severance indemnity funds set up by the Italian companies in compliance
with the regulations in force, as well as by the Pakistani company. The following is the overall change in
defined benefit plans for employees:
(Euro thousands)

Defined benefit plans

Employee termination indemnities

31/12/2011

Allocation

Decrease
in the Fund

Other
Changes

31/12/2012

2,835

401

-302

532

3,466

The allocation is due to the effect of the revaluation of the TFR of employees in existence at the end of
the period (including the actuarial adjustment as provided for by IAS 19). The utilizations, totaling e 302
thousand, refer to the amounts paid out to employees who ceased to work for the Italian companies
of the Group. The item Other Changes consists of the assumption by SAFE S.p.A. of the amount owed
for severance indemnities of the former employees of Agave S.r.l. and GB Compressori S.r.l. currently in
the company’s workforce,as well as the redevelopment of pension funds for employees of the Pakistani
subsidiary.
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The main economic and financial assumptions used by the actuary in charge of estimates, methodologically
unchanged since the previous year, are as follows:
Actuarial assumptions used for evaluations

31/12/2012

Demographic table

SIM AND SIF 2002

Discounting rate (Euro Swap)

Italian government rate curve as at 31.12.2012

Probability of request for advance

3%

Expected % of employees who will resign before pension

5% - 8%

Maximum % of TFR requested in advance

70%

Annual cost of living increase rate

2%

Where the Group used a discount rate referring to a basket of corporate securities, with AA rate, the effect
on the result for the year and consolidated equity would have been negative and equal to e - 240 thousand.

20. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
At 31 December 2012 deferred tax liabilities amount to e 10,583 thousand (e 12,351 thousand at 31
December 2011), with a decrease equal to e 1,768 thousand, and are primarily related to temporary
differences between the book values of certain tangible and intangible assets and the values recognized for
tax purposes.
Note that the utilization of deferred tax liabilities within the year is classified under current taxes in the
Income statement.
The following are the main elements that make up the deferred tax liabilities, analyzed at the end of the
current and previous years:
(Euro thousands)

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Amount

Tax rate

Deferred
taxes

Amount

Tax rate

Deferred
taxes

399

27.50%

110

576

27.50%

158

Adjustments for consolidation and
IFRS compliance

1,057

27.5%-31.4%

332

1,054

27.5%-31.4%

319

Intangible assets of foreign
companies

3,412

34.00%

1,158

6,664

34.00%

2,267

Intangible assets of Italian
companies

26,785

31.40%

8,411

28,754

31.40%

9,030

Other temporary changes

383

27.50%

105

205

27.50%

56

Deferred tax liabilities

Provisions for employee benefits

Other allocations in previous years
Total

467

521

10,583

12,351
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CURRENT LIABILITIES
21. BANK OVERDRAFTS AND SHORT-TERM LOANS
This item at 31 December 2012, equal to a total of e 62,017 thousand, compared with e 69,878
thousand at 31 December 2011, consists of the current portion of existing unsecured loans and financing
totaling e 29,596 thousand, while the remaining e 32,421 thousand refers to the utilization of various
credit facilities on current accounts.
Note that the loans are not secured by guarantees, are at variable rate and are not covered by derivatives.
(Euro thousands)

Expiry date

Balance at
31/12/2012

Current portion

Credito Emiliano S.p.A.

31/12/2013

6,261

6,261

Bank loan

Banca Popolare dell’Emilia Romagna

31/12/2013

1,696

1,696

Bank loan

Banca Popolare dell’Emilia Romagna

30/06/2014

1,876

1,243

Bank loan

Banca Popolare dell’Emilia Romagna

22/12/2014

5,234

2,566

Bank loan

Bpv-S.Geminiano e S.Prospero S.p.A.

30/06/2014

2,036

1,348

Bank loan

Banca Popolare Commercio e Industria S.p.A.

01/07/2014

941

623

Bank loan

Banca Nazionale del Lavoro S.p.A.

30/06/2014

14,521

9,672

Bank loan

Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A.

30/06/2015

8,311

3,320

Bank loan

Mediocredito italiano

30/06/2014

2,434

1,622

Bank loan

BEI

11/12/2017

9,919

0

Bank loan

BEI - tranche guaranteed by SACE

11/12/2017

9,919

0

Bank loan

Banca Popolare dell’Emilia Romagna

30/06/2014

937

621

Bank loan

Banca Popolare Commercio e Industria S.p.A.

01/07/2014

942

624

Bank loan

Bank of the West

28/02/2014

1,516

0

Bank loan

Bank of the West

18/07/2014

1,516

0

68,061

29,596

Type

Lender

Bank loan

32,421

Use of various lines of credit on current account

62,017

An analysis of the net financial position of the Group is provided below:
(Euro thousands)

Net financial position

Cash and cash equivalents

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

38,629

20,059

-62,017

-69,878

-24

-125

Net short term indebtedness

-23,412

-49,944

Medium-Long term loans and other non-current financial liabilities

-38,490

-40,168

Net medium-long term indebtedness

-38,490

-40,168

NET FINANCIAL POSITION

-61,902

-90,112

Bank overdrafts and short-term loans
Short-term loans

The net financial position at 31 December 2012 is negative for e 61,902 thousand compared with a
negative net financial position at 31 December 2011 equal to e 90,112 thousand.
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22. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
At 31 December 2012, this item includes only the short-term portions, equal to e 24 thousand, of
subsidized fixed rate loans granted by the Ministry of Economic Development.

23. TRADE PAYABLES (including related parties)
Trade payables at 31 December 2012 are equal to e 55,780 thousand; at 31 December 2011 they were equal
to e 55,964 thousand, therefore showing a very slight decrease of e 184 thousand.
Trade payables (including trade payables to related parties) can be analyzed by geographical segment as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Trade payables per geographical area

Italy
Europe (excluding Italy)
South-west Asia

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Trade payables per
geographical area

45,040

47,599

-2,559

6,464

5,101

1,363

307

1,171

-864

America

1,762

544

1,218

Rest of the World

2,207

1,549

658

55,780

55,964

-184

Total

It is considered that the book value of the trade payables at the balance sheet date approximates their fair value.

24. TRADE PAYABLES - RELATED PARTIES
Trade payables to related parties amounting to e 58 thousand refer primarily to the dealings of the company
A.E.B. S.p.A. with the company Gestimm S.r.l., owner of the property where its headquarters are located.
All the transactions with related parties are carried out at normal market conditions.
For further details see the next paragraph TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (pag. 176).

25. TAX LIABILITIES
At 31 December 2012 tax liabilities, consisting of total amounts payable to the Tax Authorities of the
individual States in which the companies of the Group are located, amount to e 2,445 thousand, compared
with e 6,458 thousand at 31 December 2011.

26. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
(Euro thousands)

Other current liabilities

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

Amounts owed to pension and social security institutions

2,380

2,050

330

Other payables (amounts owed to employees, to others)

6,066

4,888

1,178

Payments on account

560

0

560

Accrued expenses and deferred income

280

278

2

9,286

7,216

2,070

Total

The item “Other Payables” includes mainly amounts due to employees for current and deferred remuneration,
as well as to directors for fees. It also includes the outstanding payable of e 706 thousand related to the
acquisition of the robotics business unit by the Group company A.E.B. S.p.A..
The item “Payments on account” includes mainly advances paid by customers.
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OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES - RELATED PARTIES
There are no other current liabilities to related parties, apart from those reclassified under the item “Trade
Payables – Related Parties”, described previously.

INCOME STATEMENT
27. REVENUES (including related parties)
(Euro thousands)

Revenues (goods and services)

Revenues related to the sale of assets
Revenues for services and other revenues
Total

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

270,320

251,693

18,627

4,882

1,836

3,046

275,202

253,529

21,673

In 2012, the Landi Renzo Group achieved revenues of e 275,202 thousand, an increase of 8.5% over the
previous year. It should be noted that the two years are not fully comparable due to the change in the
consolidation scope following the inclusion of the newly formed company SAFE S.p.A. which began its
production and commercial activities in July 2012 with a turnover of e 7,345 thousand. With the same
perimeter, net revenues would have grown by 5.6%.
The item “Revenues for services and other” includes revenues for services rendered and revenues for technical
consultancy supplied to third parties by the companies of the Group.

28. REVENUES FROM RELATED PARTIES
Revenues from related parties refer mainly to revenues from the Pakistani company AutoFuels for e 507
thousand.
All the transactions with related parties were performed at normal market conditions. For further details see
the next paragraph TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (pag. 176).

29. OTHER REVENUE AND INCOME
(Euro thousands)

Other revenue and income

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

406

307

99

Other income

1,119

1,339

-220

Total

1,525

1,646

-121

Grants

Other revenues and income at 31 December 2012 amount to e 1,525 thousand compared with e 1,646
thousand posted at 31 December 2011.
The item Grants refers primarily to accounting for grants related to income from the Emilia Romagna Region
related to research projects.
The extraordinary income at 31 December 2012 refers primarily to capital gains on the sale of fixed assets
and to non-operating profits.
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30. COST OF RAW MATERIALS, CONSUMABLES AND CHANGE IN INVENTORIES (including
related parties)
This item is analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Cost of raw materials, consumables and change in inventories

Raw materials and parts
Finished products intended for sale
Other materials and equipment for use and consumption
Total

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

104,479

102,204

2,275

21,653

20,457

1,196

3,707

1,357

2,350

129,839

124,018

5,821

The total costs for consumption of raw materials, consumables and goods (including the change in
inventories) increased from e 124,018 thousand at 31 December 2011 to e 129,839 thousand at 31
December 2012, mainly due to the decrease in sales volumes registered during 2012 and to the change in
the consolidation scope.

31. COSTS FOR SERVICES AND USE OF THIRD PARTY ASSETS (including related parties)
This item is analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Costs for services and use of third party assets

Industrial and technical services
Commercial services
General and administrative services
Costs for use of third party assets
Total

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

47,636

41,495

6,141

9,396

10,515

-1,119

11,809

12,392

-583

4,117

3,819

298

72,958

68,221

4,737

Costs for services and the use of third party assets at 31st December 2012 amounts to e 72,958 thousand,
compared with e 68,221 thousand at 31 December 2011, with an increase of e 4,737 thousand.
The increase in costs for industrial and technical services refers to the increase in activities for the installation
of LPG systems on the OEM channel, as well as the related external processing on materials.
The reduction in costs for commercial services reflects the results of the savings and rationalization policies
already initiated during the latter part of the previous year and that also had an impact on general expenses,
if the incremental costs are taken into account that were incurred with the expansion of the consolidation
area to include Safe S.p.A., which also influenced the increase in costs for use of third party assets.
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32. COSTS FOR SERVICES AND USE OF THIRD PARTY ASSETS - RELATED PARTIES
Costs for services and the use of third party assets relating to related parties, at 31 December 2012, amount
to e 1,552 thousand, compared with e 1,528 thousand at 31 December 2011, and refer to:
• rental charges for the industrial property in Cavriago, headquarters of the Parent Company, paid to
Gireimm S.r.l. equal to e 936 thousand;
• rental charges for the industrial property in Cavriago, headquarters of the subsidiary AEB S.p.A., paid to
Gestimm S.r.l. equal to e 575 thousand;
• costs for services paid by the subsidiary AEB S.p.A. to the company Bynet di Vecchi e Turini S.n.c.
amounting to e 41 thousand.

33. PERSONNEL EXPENSES
Personnel expenses are analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Personnel expenses

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

Wages and salaries

26,155

26,037

118

Social security contributions

7,994

7,586

408

Expenses for defined benefit plans

1,858

1,521

337

Loaned and transferred work

4,929

3,849

1,080

Directors' fees
Total

992

903

89

41,928

39,896

2,032

In the year closed at 31 December 2012, personnel expenses were equal to e 41,928 thousand, compared
with personnel expenses of e 39,896 thousand incurred in the year closed at 31 December 2011.
This increase is related to the effects of the consolidation of the newco Safe S.p.A. which contributes e
1,341 thousand to the total cost, and to the increase in production in response to which the Group made
greater use of temporary employment.
Despite this increase in absolute value, the incidence of personnel costs on revenues fell from 15.7% to
15.2% as at 31 December 2012.
For details of remuneration to directors, please refer to the Report on Remuneration published pursuant to
Article 123-ter of the Consolidated Financial Law.
The average and peak number of employees in the Group’s workforce, divided by qualification, in the two
years being analyzed is as follows:
Average (*)
Number of employees

Peak

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Executives and Clerical Staff

552

560

-8

560

551

9

Blue-collar workers

323

321

2

327

312

15

5

4

1

7

3

4

880

885

-5

894

866

28

Fixed Contract Collaborators
Total

Change

(*) Note that these values do not include temporary workers or the directors.

From an analysis of the changes in Group personnel during the year, it emerges that the Italian companies
had an increase of 57 employees, primarily as a result of the expansion of the consolidation scope, while the
foreign companies had a decrease of 25 units, in particular in the South-West Asian area.
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34. ACCRUALS, IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
This item is analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Accruals, impairment losses and other operating expenses

Other taxes and duties
Other operating expenses

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

310

326

-16

1,257

1,087

170

Provision for lawsuits in progress

0

232

-232

Provision for product warranties

1,113

1,402

-289

94

0

94

927

516

411

3,701

3,563

138

Losses on receivables
Bad debts
Total

The costs included in this item amount to e 3,701 thousand at 31 December 2012 compared with e 3,563
thousand at 31st December 2011, with an increase of e 138 thousand.
The most significant changes are due on the one hand to a reduced allocation to the provision for product
warranties reflecting the estimated decrease in charges related to warranties for components on the
OEM channel, and on the other to the increase in “Other operating expenses” and “Bad debts” mainly
attributable to the foreign companies.
For further details on bad debts and allocations to provisions for risks and charges, please refer to the
comments provided in the corresponding balance sheet items.

35. AMORTIZATION, DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
(Euro thousands)

Amortization, depreciation and impairment losses

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

Amortization of intangible assets

8,570

8,240

330

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

9,896

10,181

-285

Write-off of goodwill
Write-off of property, plant and equipment
Total

0

4,025

-4,025

26

291

-266

18,492

22,737

-4,245

Depreciation/amortization at 31 December 2012 amounted to e 18,492 thousand, compared with e
22,737 thousand at 31 December 2011, including e 4,025 thousand as a write-off of goodwill.
The amortization of intangible assets refers primarily to the amortization of development and design costs
incurred by the Group, costs for the purchase and registration of trademarks and licenses and for software
(applications and management) purchased over time.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment refers primarily to property, plant and machinery for
production, assembly and running-in of the products, to industrial and commercial equipment for the
purchase of moulds, to testing and control tools and to electronic processors.
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36. FINANCIAL INCOME
This item is analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Financial income

Interest income on bank deposits
From securities recorded as current assets

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

389

339

50

10

13

-3

Other income

294

130

164

Total

693

482

211

Financial income includes, primarily, bank interest income and interest income on other financial assets,
as well as other income of a financial nature. At 31 December 2012 they amount to e 693 thousand,
compared with e 482 thousand at 31 December 2011.

37. FINANCIAL EXPENSES
This item is analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Financial expenses

Interest on bank overdrafts and loans and loans from
other financial backers
Bank charges and commissions
Other expenses
Total

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

3,293

2,915

378

811

684

127

1

11

-10

4,105

3,610

495

Financial expenses include, primarily, bank interest charges, bank commission and actuarial expenses
deriving from discounting of TFR.
Financial expenses at 31 December 2012 amount to e 4,105 thousand compared with e 3,610 thousand
at 31 December 2011, an increase of e 495 thousand, as a result of the increased average level of debt
for the first six months, primarily short-term, to guarantee the Group and adequate level of available cash
resources, and due to the increase in the spread applied by credit institutions.

38. EXCHANGE RATE GAINS AND LOSSES
(Euro thousands)

Exchange rate gains and losses

31/12/2011

31/12/2011

Change

Positive exchange rate differences

3.193

2.858

335

Negative exchange rate differences

-4.018

-4.683

665

-825

-1.825

1.000

Total

The Group realizes its revenues mainly in Euros.
The impact of exchange rate differences over the year was negative and equal to e 825 thousand, compared
with losses on exchange rates equal to e 1,825 thousand in the year 2011.
The change is due primarily to the average revaluation of currencies linked to the US dollar against the Euro
during the year.
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At 31 December 2012 the company does not have any financial instruments to cover of exchange rate
fluctuation.
In accordance with the requirements of Accounting Principle IFRS 7, financial income and expenses ascribed
to income statement are analyzed below by individual financial instrument category:
(Euro thousands)

Interest income on cash and cash equivalents
Dividends from financial assets held for purposes of trading

31/12/2012
Book value

31/12/2011
Book value

108

339

10

14

Change in fair value from financial assets held for purposes of trading

-5

-10

Interest expenses from financial liabilities valued at the amortized cost

-3,293

-2,915

-825

-1,825

-4,005

-4,397

Net losses on currency exchange
Total

39. TAXES
The theoretical rate used for the calculation of taxes on the income of Italian companies is 31.40% of
the taxable income for the year. The taxes of the foreign companies are calculated according to the rates
applicable in the respective countries.
An analysis of income taxes is provided below:
(Euro thousands)

Taxes

Current taxes
Deferred (prepaid) taxes
Total

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

5,513

4,070

1,443

-2,539

-3,144

605

2,974

926

2,048

Taxes at 31 December 2012 amount to e 2,974 thousand, compared with e 926 thousand at 31 December
2011, an increase of e 2,048 thousand.
The increase in taxes is determined by the increase in taxable income as a result of the better economic
results achieved.
Note that, in relation to the decrease in current taxes, IRES refunds on IRAP deductions for the Italian
companies, pursuant to Legislative Decree 201/2011, were entered for a total amount of e 771 thousand.
The following table provides an analysis of current taxes:
(Euro thousands)

Current taxes

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

IRES (corporate income tax)

3,003

959

2,044

IRAP

1,327

1,074

253

Current taxes of foreign companies

1,183

2,038

-855

Total

5,513

4,070

1,443
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40. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The “base” earnings/(loss) per share was calculated by relating the net profit/(loss) of the Group to the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in circulation in the period ( 112,500,000). “Base” earnings
per share, which correspond to the “diluted” earnings per share since there are no convertible bonds, were
equal to e 0.0254 at 31 December 2012 compared with a loss per share of e - 0.0812 al 31 December
2011.
The result and the number of ordinary shares used for the purposes of calculating basic earnings per share,
determined according to the methodology specified by IAS 33, are provided below.
Consolidated earnings/(loss) per share

Consolidated profit/(loss) for the period attributable to the Parent Company (e/thousand)
Average number of shares in circulation
Basic earnings/(loss) per share for the period

2012

2011

2,863

-9,139

112,500,000

112,500,000

0.0254

-0.0812

OTHER INFORMATION
41. INFORMATION ON THE FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
As required by IFRS 7 – Financial Instruments, the attached table provides a comparison between the book
value and the fair value of all the financial assets and liabilities, divided according to the categories identified
by the above-mentioned accounting principle.
(Euro thousands)

31 December 2012

31 December 2011

Book value

Fair value

Book value

Fair value

82,411

82,411

104,330

104,330

116

116

121

121

Cash and cash equivalents

38,629

38,629

20,058

20,058

Trade payables

64,785

64,785

-62,902

-62,902

Financial liabilities valued at the amortized
cost - non-current portion

38,465

38,465

-40,119

-40,119

Financial liabilities valued at the amortized
cost - current portion

62,041

62,041

-70,003

-70,003

286,447

286,447

-48,515

-48,515

Loans and Receivables
Financial assets available for sale

Total

Note that the book value of bank overdrafts and short-term loans and loans and financing approximates
the fair value of these at 31 December 2012, since such classes of financial instruments are indexed at the
Euribor market rate.
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42. COMMITMENTS
Note that at 31 December 2012 the only existing commitments are for rental expenses. The related details
are provided below in thousands of Euro taking account of the duration of the contract:
(Euro thousands)

Commitments for rental

Year 2012

within 12 months

from 1 to 5 years

3,563

7,704

43. OPERATING LEASES
The Group has existing operating leases related primarily to the Italian companies for real estate rental contracts,
including with related parties, as previously mentioned in point 32, totaling e 3,214 thousand.
No sureties were provided for said contract and there are no kinds of restrictions associated with these operating
leases. At year end the minimum future payments for operating leases to be paid amount to e 3,563 thousand
within one year and e 7,704 thousand between one and five years.

44. ANALYSIS OF THE MAIN DISPUTES IN PROGRESS
At 31 December 2012 the Company is involved in proceedings, for both assets and liabilities, for nonsignificant amounts.
The directors of the company, supported by the opinion its legal advisors, did not consider it necessary
to include any provision in the financial statements since it considers the requests put forward by the
counterparties to be unfounded and, therefore, the existence of any potential future liabilities connected
with the outcome of said proceedings to be highly unlikely..
A number of Italian companies have disputes in progress with the Financial Authorities for which provisions
have been prudentially set aside to cover the related potential liability.
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45. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Transactions with related parties listed below include:
• relationships for supply of services between Gireimm S.r.l. and Landi Renzo S.p.A. for rent of the property
used as the operational headquarters of the Parent Company;
• relationships for supply of services between Gestimm S.r.l., a company in which a stake is held through
the parent company Girefin S.p.A., and the company A.E.B. S.p.A. for rent of the property used as the
operational headquarters of the subsidiary;
• relationships for supply of services between Bynet di Vecchi e Turini S.n.c., a company subject to
considerable influence by the manager with strategic responsibilities, and the company A.E.B. S.p.A. for
the supply of computer services;
• the relationships for supply of goods to the Pakistani company AutoFuels (held by a minority shareholder
of the Pakistani subsidiary LR PAK).
The Landi Renzo Group deals with related parties at market conditions considered to be normal in the
markets in question, taking account of the characteristics of the goods and the services supplied.
The following table summarizes the relationships with related parties:
(Euro thousands)

Total
item

Absolute value
related parties

Trade receivables

69,239

Trade payables

55,780

Incidence of Transactions with Related Parties

%

Related party

229

0.33%

Autofuels

58

0.10%

72,958

1,552

2.13%

Gestimm,
Gireimm and Bynet

275,202

507

0.18%

Autofuels

a) incidence of the transactions or positions with
related parties on balance sheet items

b) incidence of the transactions or positions with
related parties on income statement items
Cost for services and use of third party assets
Revenues (goods and services)

46. NON-RECURRING SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND OPERATIONS
Pursuant to CONSOB communication no. 6064293 of 28th July 2006, it is stated that during 2012 no nonrecurring significant events or operations took place.

47. POSITIONS OR TRANSACTIONS DERIVING FROM ATYPICAL AND/OR UNUSUAL
TRANSACTIONS
Pursuant to CONSOB communication no. 6064293 of 28 July 2006, note that during the year 2012 no
atypical and/or unusual transactions occurred outside the normal operation of the company that could give
rise to doubts regarding the correctness and completeness of the information in the financial statements,
conflicts of interest, protection of company assets, safeguarding the Minority Stockholders.

48. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE CLOSE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
Please refer to the analysis provided in the Directors’ Report.
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G) INFORMATION PURSUANT TO ART. 149-duodecies OF THE CONSOB ISSUER
REGULATIONS
In compliance with the express provisions of the CONSOB Issuer Regulations - Art.149 duodecies - payments
made for services rendered by the auditing firm, and by entities belonging to its network, to the companies
belonging to the Landi Renzo Group for the year 2012 are listed below.
(Euro thousands)

Type of Services

Subject who provided the service

Recipient

Remuneration 2012

Auditing

KPMG S.p.A.

Parent Company

185

Certification services

KPMG S.p.A.

Parent Company

9

Other services

Network of the Auditor
of the Parent Company

Parent Company

47

Auditing

KPMG S.p.A.

Subsidiary companies
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Separate Financial Statements at 31 December 2012 - LANDI RENZO S.p.A.

Statement of financial position
(Euros)

ASSETS

Notes

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Property, plant and equipment

2

17,326,221

19,773,270

Development expenditure

3

5,643,221

4,990,547

Goodwill and other intangible assets with finite useful lives

4

3,469,276

4,079,283

Investments in subsidiaries

5

121,656,312

118,263,787

Other non-current financial assets

6

890,977

722,382

Other non-current assets

7

93,693

69,867

Deferred tax assets

8

7,171,461

6,871,832

156,251,161

154,770,968

Non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Trade receivables

184

9

24,854,908

32,304,547

Receivables from subsidiaries

10

18,587,958

24,243,496

Inventories

11

28,662,302

28,566,101

Other receivables and current assets

12

3,791,162

12,798,635

Current financial assets

13

7,769,001

3,997,053

Cash and cash equivalents

14

19,108,428

2,122,670

Total current assets

102,773,759

104,032,502

TOTAL ASSETS

259,024,920

258,803,470
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(Euros)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Share capital

15

11,250,000

11,250,000

Other reserves

15

109,495,496

118,025,250

Profit (loss) for the period

15

Equity

Total Equity

5,531,904

-8,529,753

126,277,400

120,745,497

Non-current liabilities
Bank loans

16

34,799,095

38,087,264

Other non-current financial liabilities

17

24,812

48,883

Provisions for risks and charges

18

2,403,444

3,038,309

Defined benefit plans

19

1,618,990

1,679,707

Deferred tax liabilities

20

974,659

1,200,527

39,821,000

44,054,690

52,558,891

55,788,687

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans

21

Other current financial liabilities

22

24,072

124,545

Trade payables

23

28,284,168

27,279,875

Trade payables – related parties

24

0

4,981

Payables to subsidiaries

25

7,275,782

5,978,508

Tax liabilities

26

815,424

811,580

Other current liabilities

27

3,968,183

4,015,107

92,926,520

94,003,283

259,024,920

258,803,470

Total current liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
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General Income Statement*
(Euros)

Notes

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Revenues (goods and services)

28

136,703,141

112,591,892

Other revenue and income

29

580,944

799,123

Cost of raw materials, consumables and goods and change in
inventories

30

-70,471,878

-58,871,929

Costs for services and use of third party assets

31

-39,156,606

-37,572,954

Personnel expenses

32

-17,890,200

-19,082,324

Accruals, doubtful debts and other operating expenses

33

Gross Operating Profit
Amortization, depreciation and impairment losses

34

Operating Profit

-913,837

-1,209,711

8,851,564

-3,345,903

-8,381,251

-9,086,137

470,313

-12,432,040

Financial income

35

217,684

218,432

Income from investments

36

8,535,186

7,600,299

Financial expenses

37

-3,100,727

-2,829,527

Expenses from investments

38

-479,260

-4,551,000

Exchange rate gains and losses

39

-185,088

-233,216

5,458,107

-12,227,052

73,797

3,697,299

5,531,904

-8,529,753

Profit (Loss) before tax
Taxes

Net profit (loss) for the period

40

Other components of the general income statement
(Euros)

Net profit (loss) for the period
Profits/Losses recorded directly to Equity net of tax effects
Total general income statement for the period

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

5,531,904

-8,529,753

0

0

5,531,904

-8,529,753

(*) For the amount and the nature of dealings with related parties please refer to the next Chapter OTHER INFORMATION – paragraph TRANSACTIONS
WITH RELATED PARTIES - Page 228.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Euro thousands)

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

5,532

-8,529

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

5,504

6,230

Amortization of intangible assets

2,877

2,814

Financial flows deriving from operating activities
Profit (loss) for the year
Adjustments for:

(reinstatement of) impairment losses on property, plant and equipment

43

Impairment losses on intangible assets

479

4,551

Impairment loss on receivables

197

291

Net financial charges
Income from investments

3,068

2,844

-8,535

-7,600

Profits from the sale of property, plant and equipment

-61

-15

Changes in provisions and benefits for employees

-61

-186

Income tax for the year

74

-3,698

9,074

-3,255

-96

3,611

Changes in:
inventories

20,363

5,955

trade payables and other payables

trade receivables and other receivables

2,128

-4,401

provisions and employee benefits

-696

-1,307

Cash generated from operating activities

30,773

603

Interest paid

-2,351

-2,499

Net cash generated from operating activities

28,422

-1,896

Dividends cashed

8,211

7,600

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment

2,022

514

Financial flows deriving from investment activities

Purchase of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired

-2,500

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

-5,331

Purchase of intangible assets

-3,342

-310

-719

-3,065

-2,513

-973

1,540

Reimbursement of loans

-6,519

9,380

Loans issued/repaid - Subsidiary companies

-3,945

-3,943

Development expenditure
Net cash absorbed by investment activities
Financial flows deriving from financing activities

Dividends paid

-6,188

Net cash generated (absorbed) by financing activities

-10,464

-751

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

16,985

-1,107

2,123

3,230

19,108

2,123

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Cash and cash equivalents al 31 December

This statement, as required by IAS 7 paragraph 18, was prepared using the indirect method; the items posted in the current year were uniformly
reclassified in the previous year’s statement. More specifically, compared with the previous year, cash and cash equivalents at the start and end of the
period include only the cash and cash equivalents, and not the difference between cash & cash equivalents and bank overdrafts & short-term loans.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(Euro thousands)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN EQUITY

Balance at 31 December 2010

Share
capital

Legal
Reserve

Extraordinary
and Other
Reserves

Share
premium
reserve

Result for
the period

Equity

11,250

2,250

65,673

46,598

9,692

135,463

-9,692

0

9,692

Allocation of profit
Distribution of dividends

-6,188

-6,188

Result for the period
Balance at 31 December 2011

11,250

2,250

69,177

46,598

-8,530

Allocation of profit

-8,530

-8,530

-8,530

120,745

8,530

0

Distribution of dividends

0

Result for the period
Balance at 31 December 2012
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11,250

2,250

60,647

46,598

5,532

5,532

5,532

126,277

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

A) GENERAL INFORMATION
The Explanatory Notes accompany the Financial Statements at 31 December 2012.
LANDI RENZO S.p.A. (the “Company”) has been active for more than fifty years in the automotive fuel supply
systems sector designing, manufacturing and selling eco-compatible LPG and CNG fuel supply systems (the
“LPG line” and “CNG line” respectively). The Company manages all the phases of the process that leads
to the production, the sale and, for particular business areas, also the installation of automotive fuel supply
systems; it sells both to the principal automobile manufacturers at a world-wide level (OEM customers) and
to independent retailers and importers (After Market customers).
Landi Renzo S.p.A. has its registered office in Cavriago (RE) and is the parent company of the Landi Renzo
Group, that holds investment shares, directly and (through other sub-holding companies) indirectly, in the
capital of the companies through which it is active in Italy and abroad.
The company, listed on the Milan Stock Exchange in the FTSE Italy STAR segment, as the parent company,
prepares the consolidated financial statements of the Landi Renzo Group at 31 December 2012.
These financial statements are submitted to auditing carried out by the auditing firm KPMG S.p.A..

B) GENERAL CRITERIA FOR PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE PERIOD AND DECLARATION OF CONFORMITY
Declaration of conformity
These financial statements were prepared in compliance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS).
These financial statements were authorized for publication by the Board of Directors on 14 March 2013.

General preparation criteria
The figures in the Financial Position and the Income Statement for the period are expressed in Euro, the
functional currency of the Company, while the data contained in the Cash Flow Statement, the Table of
Changes in Equity and in these Explanatory Notes are expressed in thousands of Euros.
These financial statements, prepared on the assumption of business continuity, were prepared by applying
the historical cost method, except for the balance sheet items that, in compliance with the IFRS, are entered
at fair value as specified under the accounting policies described later.
The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with the IFRS requires judgments, estimates and
assumptions that have an effect on the assets, liabilities, costs and revenues, and the final results may be
different to those obtained through these estimates.
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In relation to the presentation of the Financial Statements the Company operated as follows:
• for the financial position, the current and non-current assets are shown separately, as are the current
and non-current liabilities; current assets, which include cash and cash equivalents, are those intended to
be produced, sold or consumed in the normal operational cycle of the Company, and in any case within
the twelve months following the closure of the period; current liabilities are those that are intended to
be settled in the normal operational cycle of the Company, and in any case within the twelve months
following the closure of the period;
• for the income statement, the costs are analyzed according to their nature; the general income statement
is presented according to the double prospectus method.
• the cash flow statement uses the indirect method.
• the amounts of the positions or transactions with related parties, in observance of the requirements of
CONSOB resolution no. 15519 of 27 July 2006, have been listed in the relevant statement in the Chapter
“Other information” – paragraph “Transactions with related parties”.
• The contribution of the “Alarm Systems” business unit - as part of a reorganization of the Group aimed
at better positioning and increased market competitiveness in the electronics sector - to the subsidiary
AEB S.p.A., effective as of 1 January 2012, resulted in the transfer of assets and liabilities listed below to
increase the equity of the subsidiary by a total of € 311,812 of which € 300,000 for a capital increase
and the remainder to share premium.
Statement of assets and liabilities of the “Alarm Systems” business transferred to A.E.B. S.p.A.
ASSETS (Euro)

01/01/2012

Non-current assets
Property, plant, machinery and other
equipment
Goodwill

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (Euro)

66,120

Share capital

300,000

440,563

Other reserves

11,812

Other intangible assets with finite useful lives

15,010

Total Equity

311,812

Deferred tax assets

50,329

Total non-current assets

572,023

Non-current liabilities
Provisions for risks and charges

Current assets

Defined benefit plans

118,116

Deferred tax liabilities

138,337

Total non-current liabilities

262,759

Amounts owed to the parent company

20,614

12,966

Other current liabilities

55,374

78,536

Total current liabilities

75,988

65,570

Current financial assets
Total current assets
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6,306

Current liabilities

Inventories

TOTAL ASSETS
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01/01/2012

Equity

650,559

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

650,559

C) ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND VALUATION CRITERIA
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND VALUATION CRITERIA
As regards the IFRS that allow options in their application, the main choices operated by the Company are
summarized below.
• IAS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements: for the Financial Position, current and non-current assets
as well as current and non-current liabilities have been stated separately. For the income statement, the
costs are analyzed according to their nature; the general income statement is presented according to the
double prospectus method.
• IAS 2 – Inventories: the cost of the inventories is attributed by adopting the FIFO method;
• IAS 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment: valuation subsequent to initial accounting recording is performed
using the cost method (cost model) after deduction of amortizations and impairment losses;
• IAS 23 – Borrowing Costs: financial expenses, although attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset, are recorded as a cost in the year in which they are incurred.
• IAS 27 – Investments in Subsidiaries: these are accounted for according to the cost criterion.
The most important accounting policies and valuation criteria used in the preparation of the financial
statements for the year to 31 December 2012 are set out below.

CONVERSION OF ENTRIES INTO FOREIGN CURRENCY
The functional and presentation currency adopted by Landi Renzo S.p.A. is the Euro (€). As required by IAS
21, transactions in foreign currency are initially recognized at the exchange rate in place on the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are reconverted to the functional currency at
the exchange rate in place on the closing date of the Financial Statements.
Non-monetary items valued at historical cost in foreign currency are converted using the exchange rate in
force on the initial date that the transaction was recognized.
Non-monetary items recorded at fair value are converted using the exchange rate on the date that such
value was determined.
The exchange rate differences realized at the time of collecting from debtors and paying creditors in foreign
currency are entered in the income statement in the item exchange rate gain/losses.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment are stated at purchase or production cost including charges that are
directly related and necessary for the asset start-up costs and, when relevant and in the presence of
contractual obligations, the current value of the estimated cost for the dismantling and removal of such
fixed assets. Property, plant and equipment are not revalued; they are systematically depreciated on a
straight-line basis according to their estimated useful life, using the following rates, which have not
changed since the previous year, deemed consistent with their actual economic-technical use:
Categories

Depreciation period

Depreciation rates

The lower between the residual economic
usefulness of the improvement and the residual
duration of the underlying contract

16.67 - 20%

Plant and machinery

Straight-line basis

10 - 17.5%

Industrial and commercial equipment

Straight-line basis

17,5 - 25%

Other assets

Straight-line basis

12 - 20 - 25%

Leasehold improvements – buildings
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The residual value and the useful life of tangible assets are reviewed at least at the closing of each period.
The routine maintenance costs are charged entirely to the income statement. Maintenance costs having
an incremental nature are attributed to the tangible assets to which they refer and amortized in relation
to the remaining useful life of the assets or, if less, until the moment at which a subsequent extraordinary
maintenance operation may become necessary.
Costs capitalized for leasehold improvements are classified under property and amortized at the lower of
the residual economic usefulness of the improvement and the residual duration of the underlying contract.
The financial expenses directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of property,
plant or equipment are recognized in the income statement at the moment at which they are incurred, in
accordance with the appropriate accounting treatment provided for by IAS 23.
The book value of the property, plant and equipment is subjected to verification in order to discover any
possible losses in value, using the methods described in the paragraph “Impairment Losses”.
At the moment of the sale or when no future economic benefits are expected from the use of an asset, it
is eliminated from the financial statements and any loss or profit (calculated as the difference between the
sale value and the carrying value) is recognized in the income statement in the year of the aforementioned
elimination.

DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
An intangible asset, generated in the development phase of an internal project, which satisfies the IAS 38
definition, is entered as an intangible asset if the following conditions are satisfied:
• it is likely that the company will enjoy future benefits attributable to the asset;
• the cost of the asset can be reliably evaluated;
• the technical feasibility of the product is demonstrated;
• there is evidence of the company’s intention to complete the development project;
• there is a reliable determination of the costs incurred for the project;
• the recoverability of the values entered is demonstrated with the future economic benefits expected from
the result of the development project.
No cost incurred in the research phase is recorded as an intangible asset.
The amortization period begins when the development phased is closed. Development expenditure is
amortized over 3 years, on the basis of the estimated duration of the benefits associated with the product
developed.

GOODWILL
Goodwill deriving from business combination transactions after 1st January 2005 is initially entered at cost,
and represents the excess of the purchase cost over the purchaser’s share of the net fair value referring to
the identifiable values of existing and potential assets and liabilities.
Goodwill deriving from acquisitions made prior to 1st January 2005 is entered at the value recorded for
that purpose in the last Financial Statements prepared according to the previous accounting policies (31st
December 2004), subject to verification and recognition of any possible losses of value.
When the IFRS were initially adopted, as permitted by IFRS 1, acquisition transactions performed prior to 1st
January 2005 were not reconsidered.
After the initial recognition, since goodwill is regarded as an intangible asset with an indefinite life, it is no
longer amortized and is decreased by any accumulated losses in value, determined as described below.
Goodwill is subjected to an analysis of recoverability on an annual basis, or even more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances arise that could result in possible losses of value.
At the acquisition date, any goodwill emerging is allocated to each of the financial flow generating units (or
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“CGUs”) that are expected to benefit from the synergistic effects deriving from the acquisition. Any loss in
value is identified through valuations that take as a reference the ability of each CGU to produce financial
flows capable of recovering the portion of goodwill allocated to it. If the value recoverable by the CGU is
less than the carrying value attributed, the corresponding loss in value is recognized. Such loss of value is
restored if the reasons that generated it cease to exit.

OTHER INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Other intangible assets with finite useful life, acquired or self-created, are capitalized when it is probable
that use of the asset will generate future economic benefits and its cost can be measured reliably. These
assets are initially recognized at purchase or development cost.
Intangible assets with a finite useful life are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life
as follows:
• industrial patents and rights to use intellectual property - from 3 to 10 years;
• software, licenses and others - from 3 to 5 years;
• trademarks - 10 years.
Costs incurred subsequently relating to intangible assets are capitalized only if they increase the future
economic benefits of the specific asset capitalized and they are amortized on the basis of the aforementioned
criteria according to the assets to which they refer.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
A tangible or intangible asset suffers a reduction in value if it is not possible to recover, either through use
or sale, the book value at which said asset is recorded in the financial statements. Therefore, the aim of the
test (impairment test) provided for by IAS 36 it is to assure that tangible and intangible fixed assets are not
entered at a value greater than their recoverable value, which is the greater of the net sale price and the
value of use.
The value of use is the current value of future financial flows that are expected to be generated by the
asset or by the financial flow generating unit to which the asset belongs. The expected financial flows
are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current estimate of the market of reference
referring to the cost of the money in proportion to the time and risks specific to the asset.
If the book value exceeds the recovery value, the assets or the financial flow generating units to which they
belong are written down until they reflect the recovery value. Such losses are accounted for in the income
statement.
The impairment test is carried out when conditions occur inside or outside the company that suggest that
the assets have suffered a reduction in value. In the case of the goodwill or other intangible assets with an
indefinite useful life the impairment test is carried out at least annually. If the conditions that resulted in
the loss of value cease to exist, the same value is restored proportionally on the previously devalued assets
until it reaches, at most, the value that such goods would have had, net of amortization calculated on the
historical cost, in the absence of a prior loss of value. Restorations of value are recognized in the income
statement.
The value of previously devalued goodwill is not restored, as provided for by the international accounting
policies.

INVESTMENTS
Investments in subsidiary companies are evaluated using the cost method including directly related costs,
adjusted according to impairment losses, in accordance with the provisions of IAS 27. Applying the cost
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method, the investor states the income deriving from the investment only to the extent to which dividends
were decided by the subsidiary and on the condition that the profits distributed were generated after the
acquisition date.
In the case where there is evidence of events indicative of long term reductions in value, the value of the
investments is subjected to an impairment test according to the provisions of IAS 36.
The risk deriving from any losses exceeding the cost is recorded under provisions, to the extent to which the
Company is obliged or intends to be responsible for it.

NON-DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Loans and receivables are recognized when they occur. All other financial assets are recognized for the first
time when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets are initially measured at cost, which corresponds to their fair value increased by ancillary
charges.
After the initial recognition, assets held for trading are classified under current financial assets and measured
at fair value; gains or losses from this measurement are taken to income statement.
Assets possessed with the intention to keep them until expiry are classified among the current financial
assets if the expiration is less than a year, and non-current if greater, and are subsequently valued with the
principle of amortized cost. Consequently, the initial value is then adjusted to take into account repayments
of principal, any write-downs and the amortization of the difference between repayment amount and initial
carrying value. Amortization is performed on the basis of the internal effective interest rate, represented by
the interest rate that aligns, on initial recognition, the present value of expected cash flows and the initial
value (so-called amortization cost method). If there is objective evidence indicating impairment, the asset
value is decreased to the discounted value of the future flows obtainable from it. Such losses are recognized
in the income statement. If, in subsequent periods, the reasons for the preceding impairment losses cease
to exist, the asset value is increased to the amount that would have derived from applying the amortized
cost without recognizing the impairment loss.

INVENTORIES
Inventories of raw materials, components, semi-finished and finished products are stated at the lower of
purchase or production cost, plus any ancillary charges, measured according to the FIFO method, and the
estimated realizable value based on market trends. Obsolete and slow-moving items are written down in
accordance with their possibility of use or realization. More precisely, purchase cost was used for products
purchased for resale and for materials of direct or indirect use, purchased and consumed during the
production cycle.
Production cost was used, on the other hand, for finished products and work in progress.
To determine purchase cost, reference was made to the price actually paid, net of any commercial discounts.
Cost of production includes, besides the cost of the materials used, as previously defined, directly and
indirectly attributable manufacturing overheads.

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Receivables are initially recognized at fair value. The initial value is subsequently adjusted to take into account
repayments of principal, any write-downs and the amortization of the difference between repayment amount
and initial value. Amortization is made on the basis of the internal effective interest rate, represented by
the interest rate that aligns, on initial recognition, the present value of expected cash flows and the initial
value (so-called amortization cost method). If there is objective evidence indicating impairment, the asset
value is decreased to the discounted value of the future flows obtainable from it. Such losses are recognized
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in the income statement. If, in subsequent periods, the reasons for the preceding impairment losses cease
to exist, the asset value is increased to the amount that would have derived from applying the amortized
cost without recognizing the impairment loss. The provision for bad debts, determined in order to measure
receivables at their effective realization value, includes impairment losses recognized in order to take account
of objective indications that trade receivables are impaired. Impairment losses, which are based on the most
recent information available and management’s best estimate, are recognized in such a way as to decrease
impaired assets to the present value of future cash flows obtainable from them.
The provision for bad debts is classified in the reduction of the item “Trade receivables”.
Allocations made to the provision for bad debts are classified in the Income Statement under the item
“Accruals, impairment losses and other operating expenses”; the same classification was used for any
utilizations and permanent losses of trade receivables.

ASSIGNMENT OF RECEIVABLES
The Company assigns part of its trade receivables by means of factoring operations. Operations for assignment of
receivables can be with or without recourse; some non-recourse assignments include deferred payment clauses
(for example, the payment by the factor of a minority part of the purchase price is subordinate to the total
collection of receivables), requiring an exemption on the part of the assignor or implying the maintenance of
significant exposure to the progress of the financial flows deriving from the receivables assigned.
This type of operation does not meet the requirements laid down by IAS 39 for eliminating assets from the
balance sheet, since the associate benefits and risks have not be transferred substantially.
Consequently, all the receivables assigned through factoring operations that they do not meet the requirements
for elimination established by IAS 39 continue to be recorded in the Financial Statements of the Company,
although they have been legally assigned; a financial liability for the same amount is recorded in the consolidated
financial statements as Payables for Advances on Assignment of Receivables. Profits and losses related to the
assignment such assets are recorded only when the same assets are removed from capital-financial situation of
the Company.
Note that Landi Renzo S.p.A. at 31 December 2012 has only performed non-recourse assignments of trade
receivables that have all the requirements established by IAS 39 for the derecognizing of such receivables.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The item relating to cash and cash equivalents includes, primarily, bank deposits repayable on demand, as well
as cash on hand and other short-term investments that are highly convertible (convertible into cash and cash
equivalents within ninety days). Cash and cash equivalents are valued at fair value, which usually coincides
with their nominal value; any changes are recognized in the income statement. Current account overdraft, if
utilized, is shown among the “Short-term financial liabilities”.
For the purposes representing cash flows for the period, when drawing up the Cash Flow Statement, short
term bank debts are represented among the cash flows of the financing activities, since they are for the most
part attributable to bank advances and short term bank loans.

SHARE CAPITAL AND OTHER EQUITY ITEMS
The share capital is made up of the ordinary shares in circulation.
The costs relating to the issue of new shares or options are classified in equity (net of the associated tax
benefit) as a deduction of the income deriving from the issue of such instruments.
As provided for by IAS 32, if equity instruments are repurchased, such instruments (treasury shares) are
recognized as a deduction from Equity under the item “Other Reserves”. Gains or losses are not recognized
in the income statement when treasury shares are purchased, sold or cancelled.
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The consideration paid or received, including any cost directly incurred and attributable to the capital
transaction, net of any related tax benefit, is directly recognized as an Equity movement.

PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES
Provisions for risks and charges are set up to face present obligations - legal or implicit - deriving from past
events, for which a reliable estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation can be made at the
balance sheet date.
If a liability is regarded as merely potential, no allocation to provisions for risk and charges is made and only
adequate information is provided in these notes to the financial statements.
When the financial effect of time is significant and the date of cash outflows associated with the obligation
can be reliably determined, the estimated cost is discounted to the present value using a rate reflecting the
cost of money and the specific risks connected to the liability. After discounting, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Defined benefit plans
Defined benefit plans are represented by the TFR contributions matured up to 31 December 2006 for the
employees of the Company. These are valued in accordance with IAS 19 by independent actuaries, using
the projected unit funding method.
This calculation consists in estimating the amount of benefit that an employee will receive at the expected
retirement date, using demographic assumptions (such as, for example, death rate and personnel turnover
rate) and financial assumptions (such as, for example, discount rate and future salary increases). The amount
thus determined is discounted to the present value and re-proportioned based on the accrued length of
service compared to the total length of service and represents a reasonable estimate of the benefits that
each employee has already accrued because of his/her service. The discount rate used, in line with previous
years, is derived from the curve of Italian government rates at year end.
The actuarial gains and losses deriving from the related calculation are taken to Income Statement as
revenue or expense when the cumulative net amount of the unrecognized actuarial gains and losses for
each plan at the end of the previous year exceeds the higher of the obligations for the defined benefit plans
and fair value of plan assets at that date by more than 10% (the so-called corridor approach).
Defined contribution plans
The defined contribution benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or implicit obligation to pay further contributions. The
contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense in profit or loss in the periods in
which the employees provide their work. Contributions paid in advance are recorded as assets to the extent
that the advance payment will result in a reduction in future payments or a refund.

TRADE PAYABLES
Trade payables are stated at the fair value of the initial consideration received in exchange and subsequently
measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest method. Trade payables with due dates that fall
under normal sales terms are not discounted to the present value.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
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instrument. These financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

RECOGNITION OF REVENUES
Revenues are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will be achieved and the
relative amount can be reliably determined. Revenues and income are entered in the financial statements net of
returns, allowances, discounts and premiums, as well as the taxes directly connected with the sale of products or
performance of services. Revenues are recorded in the income statement only if it is likely that the company will
benefit from the cash flows associated with the transaction. Revenues from the sale of products are recognized
when the risks and benefits connected with ownership of the assets are transferred to the purchaser; this
moment generally coincides with the shipment date. Revenues from services rendered (generally consisting of
technical consultancy provided to third parties) are accounted for in the income statement on the basis of the
percentage of completion at the balance sheet date.

GRANTS
Grants from public and private bodies are recognized at fair value when it is reasonably certain that they will
be received and the conditions for their receipt will be met.
Grants related to income (provided as immediate financial assistance to an entity or to cover expenses and
losses incurred in a previous year) are fully recognized in Income Statement when the above-mentioned
conditions, necessary for their recognition, are met.
No capital contributions were obtained in the year in question.

COSTS
Costs are recognized in so far as it is possible to reliably determine that economic benefits will flow to the company.
Costs for services are recognized for the year in question according to the moment that they are received.
For accounting purposes, leases and hire contracts are classified as operating if:
• the lessor retains a significant share of the risks and the benefits associated with the property,
• there are no purchase options at prices that do not reflect the presumable market value of the rented asset at the
end of the period,
• the duration of the contract does not represent the greater part of the useful life of the leased or hired asset.
The related charges are taken to Income statement on a straight line basis distributed according to the duration of the
underlying contracts.

DIVIDENDS
Dividends payable by the Company are shown as changes in equity in the year in which they are approved
by the shareholders.
The dividends to be received by the Company are recognized in the income statement on the date on which
the right to receive them matures

FINANCIAL INCOME AND CHARGES
Income and charges of a financial nature are recognized on an accrual basis on the basis of the interest
accrued on the net value of the related financial assets and liabilities using the effective interest method, as
set forth by paragraph 9 of IAS 39.
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TAXES
Income taxes include current and deferred taxes. Income taxes are generally taken to income statement,
except when they refer to items directly accounted for in equity. In this case, the related income taxes are
also directly taken to equity. Current taxes are those expected to be paid and are calculated by applying the
rate applicable at the balance sheet date to the taxable income for the year.
Deferred taxes are calculated using the so-called liability method n the temporary differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their corresponding tax values.
Deferred taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rate that is expected to be in force when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled. Deferred tax assets (hereafter also called “prepaid taxes”) are recognized
only when it is likely that taxable profits sufficient to realize these assets will be generated in future years.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only for homogeneous expiry dates, when there is a legal right
to offset and when they refer to recoverable taxes due by the same tax authority.

COMMUNICATION ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
In accordance with the provisions of Accounting Principle IFRS 7, supplementary information is supplied on
the financial instruments in order to evaluate:
• the impact of the financial instruments on the capital-financial situation, on the economic result and on
the financial flows of the company;
• the nature and size of the risks deriving from financial instruments to which the company is exposed, as
well as the methodologies with which such risks are managed.

USE OF ESTIMATES AND ASSESSMENTS
The preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with the IFRS (International Financial Reporting
Standard) requires application of accounting standards and methods that are sometimes based on subjective
assessments and estimates based, in turn, on past experience and assumptions that are considered reasonable
and realistic given the circumstances. Application of these estimates and assumptions affects the amounts
presented in the financial statements, such as the financial position, the income statement and cash flow
statement, and in disclosures provided.
Please note that the situation caused by the current economic and financial scenario has resulted in the
necessity to make assumptions on future performance that are characterized by significant uncertainty.
Therefore it cannot be excluded that results different to those estimated may be realized in the coming years.
Such results could therefore require adjustments, that may even be considerable, which cannot obviously be
either estimated or predicted at this stage, to the book value of the relative items.
The balance sheet items that most require greater subjectivity on the part of the directors in producing the
estimates and for which a change in the conditions underlying the assumptions used can have a significant
impact on the financial statements are listed below:
• valuation of fixed assets;
• recoverability of development expenditure;
• valuation of deferred tax assets;
• valuation of provisions for bad debts and obsolete inventories;
• valuation of employee benefits;
• valuation of provisions for risks and charges.
The estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and the effects of each variation are immediately
reflected in the profit and loss statement.
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MOST IMPORTANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES THAT REQUIRE
A GREATER DEGREE OF SUBJECTIVITY
A description is provided below of the most significant accounting policies that require, more than the
others, greater subjectivity on the part of the directors in producing the estimates and for which a change
in the conditions underlying the assumption used may have a significant impact on the financial data of the
company.

Valuation of receivables
Trade receivables are adjusted with the relevant depreciation fund in order to take account of their effective
recoverable value. The determination of the amount of depreciation carried out requires the directors to
make subjective evaluations based on the documentation and on the information available also in relation
to the solvency of the customer, as well as on experience and the historical trends.
The continuation of the current economic and financial situation and its possible aggravation could lead to
further deterioration in the financial conditions of the Company’s debtors beyond that already taken into
consideration prudentially in quantifying the write-downs recorded in the financial statements.

Valuation of goodwill and the intangible assets in progress
In accordance with the accounting policies applied by the Group, goodwill and the intangible assets
in progress are subjected to annual verification (impairment test) in order to assess whether they have
suffered a reduction in value, which is established by means of an impairment test, when the accounting
net value of the unit generating the cash flow to which these items are allocated appears to be greater
than its recoverable value (defined as the greater value between the value of use and the fair value of
the same). The above mentioned value confirmation check necessarily requires subjective evaluations to
be made based on the information available within the Group, and from the reference market outlook
and historical trends. In addition, whenever it is supposed that a potential reduction in value could be
generated, the company determines said reduction using those evaluation techniques considered suitable.
The same value tests and evaluation techniques are applied to the intangible and tangible assets with a
defined useful life when indicators exist that predict difficulties in recovering the corresponding net book
value. The correct identification of elements indicative of the existence of a potential reduction in value
as well as the estimates for determination of the reduction depend on factors that can vary over time,
influencing the evaluations and estimates made by the directors.

Provisions for risks
Establishing whether or not a current obligation (legal or implied) exists is in some cases difficult to determine.
The directors assess such phenomena on a case by case basis, together with an estimate of the amount
of the economic resources required in order to meet that obligation. When the directors consider that is
merely possible that liabilities may arise, the risks are indicated in the appropriate information section on
commitments and risks, without resulting in any allocation in the financial statements.

Provision for product warranties
Based on product sales, the Company allocates provisions according to the costs estimated as likely to
be incurred for product warranties. Management establishes the value of such funds on the basis of the
historical information on the nature, frequency and average cost of operations carried out under warranty.
The Company strives to improve the quality of its products and to minimize the burden deriving from
operations under warranty
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Potential liabilities
The company is subject to lawsuits regarding a number of disputes that were submitted to the jurisdiction
of various States. Given the inherent uncertainty of these disputes, it is difficult to predict with certainty the
resulting financial cost, or the time frame within which it will arise. The lawsuits and disputes against the
Company derive primarily from complex legal problems, that are subject to varying degrees of uncertainty,
considering the facts and circumstances involved in each dispute and the different laws applicable. To assess
the risks deriving potential liabilities of a legal nature correctly and prudentially, management periodically
obtains information on the situation from its legal advisers. The Company establishes a liability in relation to
such disputes when it considers it likely that a financial cost will occur and when the amount of the resulting
losses can be reasonably estimated.

Valuation of closing inventories
Closing inventories of products with characteristics of obsolescence or slow turnaround are periodically
subjected to tests for their correct valuation. and are written down where the recoverable value thereof is
less than the book value. The write-downs carried out are based, primarily, on assumptions and estimates
of management deriving from its experience and the historical results achieved.

Valuation of deferred tax assets
The valuation of deferred tax assets is made on the basis of taxable income expected in future years and
current tax rates, since these are deemed to be applicable also in the future. The measurement of such
expected profits depends on factors that may change over time and have a significant impact, therefore, on
the valuation of deferred tax assets.

Transactions with related parties
The Company deals with related parties at market conditions considered to be normal in the markets in
question, taking account of the characteristics of the goods and services supplied and received

The Company deals with related parties at market conditions considered
to be normal in the markets in question, taking account of the
characteristics of the goods and services supplied and received
The following amendment, effective from 1 January 2012, governs scenarios and cases that do not exist
inside the Group at the date of these Explanatory Notes to the Financial Statements, but which could have
accounting effects on future transactions or agreements:
• IFRS 7 – Financial Instruments: Supplementary Information - transfers of financial assets”. This amendment
requires information on the effects or potential effects arising from rights to offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities on the statement of financial position.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET APPLICABLE
AND NOT YET ADOPTED IN ADVANCE BY THE GROUP OR NOT APPLICABLE
Various new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have not yet entered into force and
have not been adopted in the preparation of these separate financial statements. None of the abovementioned documents will have any effect on the financial statements of the Company, or is expected to
be adopted early.

200

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

RISK ANALYSIS
In accordance with the requirements of Accounting Principle IFRS 7, the following analysis is provided
regarding the nature and extent of risks deriving from financial instruments to which the company is
exposed, as well as the methodologies with which such risks are managed.
The main risks are reported and discussed at the Top Management level of the Company in order to create
the prerequisites for their cover, insurance and for the assessment of the residual risk.

Interest rate risk
Landi Renzo is exposed to the interest rate risk associated with both cash at hand and with medium to long
term financing. The exposure refers mainly to the Euro zone and is therefore affected by the significant
volatility of the rates in this area. As regards exposure to the risk of interest rate volatility, note that the
financial indebtedness is regulated primarily by variable interest rates. Therefore, the financial management
of the company remains exposed to fluctuations in interest rates, not having, at the date of the present
financial statements, subscribed to instruments covering the variability of the interest rates on loans
contracted with the banks.
Interest rate risks were measured using sensitivity analysis and the potential impacts of Euribor interest rate
fluctuations on the financial statements at 31st December 2012 were analyzed with particular reference to
cash and cash equivalents and to financing. The increase of 50 basis points on the Euribor, like all the other
variables, would produce an increase in financial costs for the company of € 449 thousand in comparison
to an increase of financial income equal to € 33 thousand. It can be logically assumed that a decrease of 50
basis points will produce the same effect, but with the opposite sign, both on financial costs and financial
income.

Exchange risk
The company Landi Renzo sells part of its production and, although to much lesser degree, purchases some
components also in Countries outside the Euro zone.
In relation to the exchange risk, note that the amount of the consolidated equity balances expressed in
currency other than the Euro is to be considered as insignificant. The Company has not subscribed to
instruments to cover exchange rate fluctuations and, in accordance with the company’s policy up to this
moment, no derivatives are subscribed solely for trading purposes. Therefore, the Company remains exposed
to exchange rate risk on the balances of the assets and liabilities in foreign currency at year end which, in
any case, as mentioned, are not to be considered as significant.

Rischio di credito
The Company deals mainly with customers who management deems capable of meeting their obligations
in the normal course of operations. It is Company policy to subject customers requesting extended payment
conditions, or terms different to those normally applied, to procedures for checking their credit class. In
addition, the balance of the receivables is monitored on a fortnightly basis, in order to minimize exposure to
the risk of losses. Finally, regarding new customers and those not operating in EU countries, a letter of credit
to guarantee successful collection is normally used.
The Company has insured part of its foreign receivables, not covered by letter of credit, through a leading
Insurance Company.
The credit risk regarding other financial assets, including cash and cash equivalents, presents a maximum
risk equal to the book value of these assets in the case of insolvency of the counterpart. Finally, it is pointed
out that the persistence or deterioration of the current economic and financial crisis could have an impact,
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even significant, on the capacity of some client companies to regularly meet the obligations undertaken in
relation to the company

Liquidity risk
The Company manages the liquidity risk by maintaining an adequate level of available financial resources
and bank credit granted by the main Credit Institutions, in order to satisfy the finance requirements of the
activity.
The current difficult context of the markets in which the Company operates and of the financial markets
requires particular attention in managing the liquidity risk, and therefore particular attention is given to the
actions aimed at generating financial resources with operating activities and at maintaining an adequate level
of cash and cash equivalents as an important factor in facing in the coming years. Therefore, the Company
expects to deal with the necessities arising from receivables falling due and from investments planned by
means of flows deriving from operating activities, available liquidity, and the renewal or refinancing of bank
loans.
For all other information on the analysis of risk factors pursuant to art. 154-ter of the TUF (Consolidated
Financial Law) please refer to the Directors’ Report.
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D) EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SEGMENT REPORTING
Please refer, as provided for by IAS 14 paragraph 6, to the analysis provided in the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Net property, plant and equipment show a decrease of € 2,447 thousand, from € 19,773 thousand at
31 December 2011 to € 17,326 thousand at 31 December 2012.
The following is an analysis of changes in the historical costs of property, plant and equipment during the
period:

Property, plant and equipment
(Euro thousands)

HISTORICAL COST

Land and buildings

31/12/2011

Acquisitions

(Disposals and
eliminations)

Decrease due to
contribution

Other
changes

90

31/12/2012

90

Plant and machinery

20,638

865

-2,908

-77

193

18,711

Production and
commercial
equipment

20,344

1,068

-777

-78

83

20,640

Other material assets

6,175

373

-229

-21

11

6,309

Assets in progress and
payments on account

1024

2,782

-138

-287

3,381

48,271

5,088

-4,052

0

49,131

Total

-176

The following is an analysis of changes in provisions for depreciation of property, plant and equipment
during the period:
(Euro thousands)

DEPRECIATION FUNDS

Land and buildings

31/12/2011

Depreciation
rates

(Disposals)

Decrease due to
contribution

Other
changes

90

31/12/2012

90

Plant and machinery

10,536

2,528

-1,459

-22

11,583

Industrial and
commercial
equipment

13,484

2,367

-423

-70

15,358

4,388

609

-204

-19

4,774

Other material assets
Assets in progress and
payments on account
Total

0
28,498

0
5,504

-2,086

-111

0

31,805
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The following is the overall analysis of changes in net property, plant and equipment during the period:
(Euro thousands)

31/12/2011

Acquisitions

(Disposals)

(Depreciation and
impairment losses)

0

0

0

0

10,102

865

-1,449

-2,528

Production and
commercial equipment

6,860

1,068

-354

Other material assets

1,787

373

-25

Assets in progress and
payments on account

1,024

2,782

-138

0

19,773

5,088

-1,966

-5,504

NET VALUE

Land and buildings
Plant and machinery

Total

Decrease due to
contribution

Other
changes

31/12/2012

0

0

-55

193

7,127

-2,367

-9

83

5,282

-609

-2

11

1,536

-287

3,381

0

17,326

-66

The item Land and Buildings includes the improvements to real estate leased from third parties.
The item Plant and Machinery includes machinery owned by the company and used for production .
The item Industrial and Commercial Equipment includes moulds, testing tools and control tools.
The item Other Tangible Assets is made up mostly of electronic processors, motor vehicles, internal transport
vehicles and furnishings.
It should be noted that the item Assets Under Construction and Payments on Account includes € 1,830
thousand for items relating to assets not yet completed referring to the creation of thermo-technical systems
and engine test rooms for use by the laboratories in the new technology center.
The main increases in property, plant and equipment during the period in question relate to:
• purchases of generic and specific plant and machinery for € 865 thousand referring primarily to production
systems and testing of components;
• purchase of moulds and templates for € 602 thousand
• purchase of various equipment for € 130 thousand referring primarily to the purchase of equipment
intended for the assembly and functional testing of production components;
• purchase of testing and control tools for € 338 thousand referring primarily to the purchase of a bench
for checking and fuel tank release and a hydrogen thermostatic chamber for testing;
• purchase of electronic office machines for € 242 thousand
The main decreases in property, plant and equipment for the year relate to disposals of industrial and
commercial equipment, and in particular to the sale of certain plant as a result of the outsourcing of some
production processes for electronic components.
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3. DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
The following is an analysis of changes in development expenditure during the period:
(Euro thousands)

Development
expenditure

31/12/2011

Acquisitions

Decreases

Other changes

(Amortization)

31/12/2012

Development
expenditure

4,991

3,065

0

0

-2,413

5,643

Development expenditure, equal to € 5,643 thousand (€ 4,991 thousand at 31 December 2011), includes
the costs incurred by the Company both for internal personnel and for services rendered by third parties for
projects having the requirements specified by IAS 38 in order to be recognized in net assets. In particular,
costs capitalized during the period refer to innovative projects, not available previously, aimed at new market
segments, capable of expanding and optimizing the product range, the value of which will be recovered
through revenue flows generated in future years, such as:
• OEM MY 2013 Project (Euro 5b and Euro 5b+): research and development of new technical processes
and innovative kits for conversion of vehicles with petrol engines to CNG and LPG in compliance with the
stricter Euro 5b and Euro 5b+ standard.
• Dual Fuel Project: extension of the dual fuel system range to diesel powered Heavy Duty vehicles.
• New AM Projects: research, design and development of innovative products and devices for Aftermarket
applications for conversion to alternative fuels and intelligent moving (monitoring of consumption and
pollution, route optimization).
It is expected that new product development activities will continue during the year 2013.
All the increases for the year 2012 relate to development projects not yet completed at year end and
therefore not subject to amortization.
There are no indicators of lasting losses for such activities, the projects for which are expected to be
completed 2013.

4. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH FINITE USEFUL LIVES
(Euro thousands)

Other intangible assets with
finite useful lives
Goodwill
Patents and intellectual
property rights
Concessions and trademarks
Assets in progress and
payments on account

Total

31/12/2011

Acquisitions

Decreases

2,988

Contribution
to AEB

Other
changes

(Amortization)

-440
-15

31/12/2012
2,548

651

92

59

-452

335

84

6

7

-12

84

356

212

-66

4,079

310

0

-455

0

502

-464

3,469

This item, equal to € 3,469 thousand at 31 December 2012 (€ 4,079 thousand at 31 December 2011),
basically includes:
• goodwill, amounting to € 2,548 thousand, which corresponds to the residual value at 31/12/2006 for
the business units acquired from the merged company Med S.p.A net of the amount transferred to A.E.B.
SpA on contribution of the Alarm Systems business unit for € 440 thousand. This goodwill was allocated

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

205

Separate Financial Statements at 31 December 2012 - LANDI RENZO S.p.A.

to the cashflow generating units (CGUs) that are subjected to an impairment test for which the main
assumptions used in calculating the projected discounted financial flows were specified in the Explanatory
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements to which you are referred.
•rights to use intellectual property and the purchase of licenses for software management applications
totaling € 335 thousand.
The item Assets Under Construction and Payments on Account, equal to € 502 thousand (€ 357 thousand
at 31 December 2011), refers primarily to advances paid for the acquisition or extension of trademarks and
patents, as well as for the purchase of new management application programs and advances on technical
design activities for the creation of new products.

5.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Euro thousands)

Investments in
subsidiaries
Equity investments

31/12/2011

Increases

Use of Provision

Impairment losses

31/12/2012

118,264

4,618

-870

-356

121,656

The following are the changes in equity investments:
(Euro thousands)

LR Industria e Comercio Ltda
Landi International B.V.
Beijing Landi Renzo Autogas
System Co. Ltd
L.R. Pak (Pvt) Limited
Landi Renzo Pars Private Joint
Stock Company
Lovato Gas S.p.A.

Initial value

Increases

1,633

76

Use of
Provision

Impairment
losses

Final value

Investment

1,709

99.99%

18

18

100.00%

2,057

2,057

100.00%

638

638

70.00%

550

98.00%

0

1,700

-870

-280

59,480

59,480

100.00%

Landi Renzo Ro S.r.l.

5

5

100.00%

Landi Renzo VE C.A.

46

0

100.00%

30

-76

Landi Renzo USA

10,319

10,319

100.00%

AEB S.p.A.

44,068

312

44,379

100.00%

0

2,500

2,500

100.00%

118,264

4,618

SAFE S.p.A.
Total equity investments

-870

-356

121,656

The following changes occurred during the period in question:
• in January 2012 the increase in the equity investment in A.E.B. Spa following the contribution of the Alarm
Systems business unit;
• In January 2012 the increase related to the acquisition of 3.99% of LR Industria e Comercio Ltda to reach
a controlling interest of 99.99%;
• in July 2012, the increase related to the establishment of the company Safe S.p.A with Headquarters in
San Giovanni in Persiceto (BO), whose registered capital of € 2,500,000 is wholly owned by Landi Renzo
S.p.A.;
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• in July 2012 the increase without payment related to the acquisition of 23% of the Iranian company LR
Pars from 75% al 98%: at the same time the nominal value of the share capital of LR Pars was reduced
from IRR 8,753,640,000 to IRR 1,000,000;
• in November 2012, the increase of € 30 thousand relating to the share capital of the Venezuelan society
Landi Renzo VE CA;
• in December 2012, the increase related to the share capital of the Iranian company LR Pars, perfected with
waiver of€ 1,700 thousand of trade receivables owed to the company with a simultaneous increase in the
share capital from 1,000,000 to IRR 5,096,522,000.
The equity investment in the subsidiary Landi Renzo Pars was written down for € 1,150 thousand to
contribute to the company’s net equity. In the income statement the impairment loss was recognized under
“Expenses from investments” for € 280 thousand, while for the remaining € 870 thousand the provision
for investments posted at 31 December 2011 was used.
The investment in the subsidiary Landi Renzo VE CA was reduced to zero in view of the reduction in company
assets; in the income statement the impairment was recognized under “Expenses from investments” and a
provision for investments was also posted for € 124 thousand.
For other investments with a significant book value, particularly Lovato Gas SpA, Landi Renzo USA Co. and
AEB SpA, no impairment issues were identified taking into account the write-down in the previous year for
Landi Renzo USA Co.
At the bottom of these Explanatory Notes there is a specific table summarizing the companies in which
an investment is held, which contains the information required by the Italian Civil Code, and the indirect
investments not specified in the above paragraph are also shown.

6. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Euro thousands)

Other non-current financial assets

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

889

721

168

2

1

1

891

722

169

Loans to subsidiaries
Investments in other companies
Total other non-current financial assets

At 31 December 2012 the other non-current financial assets amount to € 891 thousand and refer primarily to
loans to subsidiaries issued at the market rate in 2009 to the subsidiary Landi Renzo Pars for € 600 thousand
and to the subsidiary Landi Renzo VE C.A. for a total of € 289 thousand.

7. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(Euro thousands)

Other non-current assets

Guarantee deposits

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

94

70

24

At 31 December 2012 the other non-current assets amount to € 94 thousand and refer to guarantee
deposits. This item was not actualized since the impact of the financial effect is not significant.
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8. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
(Euro thousands)

Deferred tax assets

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

Deferred tax assets

7,171

6,872

299

At 31 December 2011 deferred tax assets totaling € 7,171 thousand (€ 6,872 thousand at 31 December
2010) refer both to temporary differences deriving from taxed provisions allocated by the Company, and
to the effects of the tax loss for the years 2011 e 2012.
The following are the main elements that make up the deferred tax assets, analyzed at the end of the
current and previous years:
(Euro thousands)

31 December 2012
Deferred tax assets

Provision for inventories
Provision for investment and
securities

31 December 2011

Amount

Tax rate

Deferred tax
assets

3,640

31.40%

1,143

Amount

Tax rate

Deferred tax
assets

3,850

31.40%

1,209

19

27.50%

5

19

27.50%

5

Provision for product warranties

2,269

31.40%

713

2,151

31.40%

675

Provision for bad debts - taxed

1,244

27.50%

342

1,244

27.50%

342

Goodwill

659

31.40%

207

1,050

31.40%

330

Property, plant and equipment

393

27.50%

108

427

27.50%

117

Property, plant and equipment

108

31.40%

34

103

31.40%

32

61

27.50%

17

822

27.50%

226

9

31.40%

3

173

31.40%

54

16,727

27.50%

4,599

14,111

27.50%

3,881

Other temporary changes
Other temporary changes
Tax loss 2011 - 2012
Total deferred tax assets

7,171

6,872

Note that utilization of the deferred tax assets in the year, equal to € 341 thousand, is classified under
current taxes in the income statement.

208

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

CURRENT ASSETS
9. TRADE RECEIVABLES INCLUDING TRADE RECEIVABLES - OTHER RELATED PARTIES
The trade receivables, stated net of the related depreciation fund, are broken down as follows, in reference
to the geographical areas:
(Euro thousands)

Trade receivables per geographical area

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

12,329

10,526

1,803

Europe (excluding Italy)

5,792

5,401

391

South-West Asia

3,284

4,028

-744

America

2,863

10,980

-8,117

Rest of the World

2,939

3,608

-669

Italy

Provision for bad debts

-2,352

-2,239

-113

Total

24,855

32,304

-7,449

Trade receivables at 31st December 2012 amount to € 24,855 thousand, net of the Provision for bad
debts equal to € 2,352 thousand.
The Company performed operations for assignment of trade receivables through factoring without
recourse and at 31 December 2012 total assignments with credit maturity amounted to € 6,220
thousand. Note that there are no non-current trade receivables or receivables secured by collateral
guarantees.
The provision for bad debts changed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Provision for bad debts

31/12/2011

Allocation

Provision for bad debts

2,239

113

Utilization

31/12/2012

2,352

Provisions made during the period amounting to € 113 thousand are used to adjust receivables to their
estimated realizable value. In accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard IFRS 7, the following
table provides information on the maximum credit risk divided by expiry classes, gross of the Provision for
Bad Debts:
Aging table of trade receivables 2012 – 2011

Total

Not past due

(Euro thousands)

Past due

0-30 days

30-60 days

over 60

Receivables at 31/12/2012 (gross of Provision)

27,207

19,315

1,360

1,567

4,965

Receivables at 31/12/2011 (gross of Provision)

34,543

17,697

1,786

9,802

5,258

It is considered that the book value of the Trade Receivables approximates their fair value.

10. RECEIVABLES FROM SUBSIDIARIES
Receivables from subsidiaries amount to € 18,588 thousand at the end of the period compared with to €
24,243 thousand for the previous year.
For a breakdown, see the appropriate final chapter relating to “Other information” (note 45).
Note that at 31 December 2012 the company did not have any amounts receivable from other related
parties of the Group.
.
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11. INVENTORIES
This item is analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Inventories

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

15,714

17,140

-1,426

6,298

4,697

1,601

10,290

10,579

-289

Raw materials and parts
Work in progress and semi-finished products
Finished products
(Provision for inventories)

-3,640

-3,850

210

Total

28,662

28,566

96

The table shows an increase in inventories equal to € 96 thousand compared with 31 December 2011.
The company has estimated a provision for inventories, the details of which are provided below, to cover
risks of technical obsolescence of stocks and to align their carrying amount to their presumed break-up
value At 31 December 2012 this item was equal to € 3,640 thousand.
(Euro thousands)

Provision for inventories

31/12/2011

Utilization

31/12/2012

Raw materials and parts

3,360

-210

3,150

260

0

260

Work in progress
Finished products
Totale

230

0

230

3,850

-210

3,640

Utilizations totaling € 210 thousand refer to the scrapping of obsolete or damaged materials and to the
re-use of slow moving product components.

12. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND CURRENT ASSETS
This item is analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Other receivables and current assets

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

Tax assets

1,838

10,246

-8,408

Amounts due from others

1,541

2,120

-579

Prepayments and accrued income
Total
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412

433

-21

3,791

12,799

-9,008

Note that the item “Tax Assets” includes € 412 thousand for the IRES requested as a refund on the
deductibility of IRAP for the period 2007-2011 pursuant to DL 201/2011.
It is considered that the book value attributed to the item “Other Receivables and Current Assets”
approximates their fair value.

Tax assets
Tax assets represents amounts due from the Tax Authorities for VAT totaling € 515 thousand, IRES and IRAP
credits as well as other tax credits, as shown in the following table.
(Euro thousands)

Tax assets

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

IR c/VAT recoverable

516

6,350

-5,834

IR c/IRES and IRAP payments on account

894

3,554

-2,660

IR c/tax credit
Total

428

342

86

1,838

10,246

-8,408

Amounts due from others
At 31 December 2012 they refer primarily to payments on account granted, credit notes to be received and
other receivables.

Prepayments and accrued income
This item includes primarily prepaid insurance premiums, rental, membership contributions, and for
hardware and software maintenance fees paid in advance.

13. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
This item is analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Current financial assets

Investment in Deutsche Telekom

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

116

121

-5

Loan to Lovato Gas S.p.A.

5,000

3,500

1,500

Loan to Landi Renzo Usa Corporation

2,653

376

2,277

Total

7,769

3,997

3,772

At 31 December 2012 the other current financial assets amounted to € 7,769 thousand and relate primarily
to a short-term loan granted to the subsidiary company Lovato Gas S.p.A. at market rates and to a shortterm interest bearing loan to the subsidiary Landi Renzo Usa Corporation.
The item also includes the investment in Deutsche Telekom, an asset held for trading and entered for €
116 thousand, corresponding to a valuation on the basis of the value of the stock market quotation at 31
December 2012. The write-down, equal to € 5 thousand, was recognized in the item “Accruals, impairment
losses and other operating expenses” in the Income Statement.
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14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
This item, consisting of the active balances of bank current accounts and cash in hand in both Euros and
foreign currency, is analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

19,104

2,122

16,982

Cash

4

1

3

Total

19,108

2,123

16,985

Bank and post office accounts

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2012 amount to € 19,108 thousand (€ 2,123 thousand at 31
December 2011).
The interest rate on bank deposits during the year was on average aligned with the Euribor reduced by the
spread granted to the Group by the main Credit Institutions.
For an analysis relating to the generation and absorption of cash during the year, please refer to the cash
flow statement.
It is considered that the book value of the item “Cash and cash equivalents” is aligned with its fair value at the
balance sheet date. Despite the risks connected with the current global financial crisis, which has particularly
affected Italy and the Eurozone, the credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents is deemed to be limited,
since these consist, primarily, of deposits at primary national and international banking institutions.

15. EQUITY
The following table provides a breakdown of the items of equity:
(Euro thousands)

Equity

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

Share capital

11,250

11,250

0

Legal Reserve

2,250

2,250

0

Extraordinary reserve

32,292

40,822

-8,530

IAS transition reserve

310

310

0

Reserve for merger surplus

28,045

28,045

0

Share premium reserve

46,598

46,598

0

5,532

-8,530

14,062

126,277

120,745

5,532

Profit (loss) for the period
Total Equity

Share capital
The share capital stated in the financial statements for the year at 31 December 2012 represents the share
capital (fully subscribed and paid up) of the Company with a nominal value of € 11,250 thousand, and is
subdivided into a total of 112,500,000 shares with a par value of € 0.10.

Legal reserve
The balance of the Legal Reserve at 31 December 2012 amounts to € 2,250 thousand and is unchanged
compared with the previous year, having reached one fifth of the share capital.
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Extraordinary reserve
The Extraordinary Reserve decreased by € 8,530 thousand to cover the loss for the year ended 31 December
2011.
The following table provides an analysis of the individual Equity items, distinguishing them according to
origin, availability and their utilization the three previous years.
(Euro thousands)

Nature and description

Amount (in thousands)

Share capital

Possibility of
utilization (*) Portion available

11,250

-

46,598

A,B,C

2,250

B

32,292

A,B,C

32,292

310

A,B,C

310

28,045

A,B,C

28,045

Summary of utilizations
carried out in the three
previous years

Capital reserves
Share premium

46,598

Profit reserves
	Legal reserve
	Extraordinary reserve
IAS transition reserve
	Reserve for merger surplus
Profit (Loss) for the year 2012
Total

5,532

5,532

126,277

112,777

	Non-distributable portion (**)

-5,643

Residual distributable portion

107,134

(***) 13,162

(*)	Possibility of utilization : A - for increase in share capital B - for covering losses C - for distribution to shareholders.
(**)	Non-amortized development expenditure.		
(***) for distribution of dividends.				

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
16. BANK LOANS
(Euro thousands)

Bank loans

Loans and financing

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

34,799

38,087

-3,288

This item includes medium/long term portion of the bank debts for unsecured loans and finance. At 31
December 2012 it amounts to € 34,799 thousand, compared with € 38,087 thousand at 31 December 2011.
The structure of the debt is exclusively at a variable rate indexed to the Euribor and increased by a spread aligned
with the normal market conditions; the loan currency is the Euro. The loans are not secured by collateral and
there are no clauses other than the early payment clauses normally envisaged by commercial practice.
For some new loans taken out in 2012 there are financial covenants the parameters were verified as having
been respected at the balance sheet date.
The Company does not have any derivatives to cover the loans.
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It should be noted that, as indicated in point 2.h) of the Report on Corporate Governance, early settlement
of certain loan agreements may be requested should there be a change of control of the Company.
Medium/long-term loans are analyzed in the following table, expressed in thousands of Euros:

Expiry date

Balance at Non-current
31/12/2012
portion

Type

Lender

Bank loan

Credito Emiliano S.p.A.

31/12/2013

6,261

0

Bank loan

Banca Popolare dell’Emilia Romagna

31/12/2013

1,696

0

Bank loan

Banca Popolare dell’Emilia Romagna

30/06/2014

1,876

633

Bank loan

Banca Popolare dell’Emilia Romagna

22/12/2014

5,234

2,668

Bank loan

BPV - S.Geminiano e S.Prospero S.p.A.

30/06/2014

2,036

689

Bank loan

Banca Popolare Commercio e Industria S.p.A.

01/07/2014

941

318

Bank loan

Banca Nazionale del Lavoro S.p.A.

30/06/2014

14,521

4,849

Bank loan

Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A.

30/06/2015

8,311

4,991

Bank loan

Mediocredito Italiano S.p.A.

30/06/2014

2,434

812

Bank loan

BEI

11/12/2017

9,919

9,919

Bank loan

BEI - tranche guaranteed by SACE

11/12/2017

9,919

9,919

63,150

34,799

It is considered that the carrying value of the bank loans is aligned with their fair value at the balance sheet
date.
At 31 December 2012 the Company had the following additional lines of credit available and not used:
(Euro thousands)

Line of credit

2012

Cash facility

2,350

Facility for various uses

68,800

Total

71,150

17. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Euro thousands)

Other non-current financial liabilities

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

Payables to other financial backers

25

49

-24

Total

25

49

-24

At 31st December 2012 this item includes only the long term portions, equal to € 25 thousand, of
the facilitated loans obtained from the Italian Trade and Industry Department on the basis of specific
regulations.
It is considered that the carrying value of the other financial liabilities is aligned with their fair value at
the balance sheet date.
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18. PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES
These provisions can be broken down as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Provisions for risks and charges

Provision for pensions and similar obligations
Provision for product warranty risks
Provision for expenses from investments - subsidiaries
Total

31/12/2011

Allocation

Utilization

31/12/2012

17

5

-12

10

2.151

200

-81

2.270

870

124

-870

124

3.038

329

-963

2.403

The provision for pensions relating to the provision accrued for agents’ termination indemnities, includes the
allocations and utilizations for the year as well as the decrease of € 6 thousand for the contribution of the
“Alarm Systems” business unit to AEB S.p.A..
The item “Provision for Product Warranties” includes the best estimate of the costs related to the
commitments that the Company has taken on as an effect of legal or contractual provisions, in relation to
the expenses connected with providing product warranties for a fixed period of time starting from the sale
thereof. This estimate was calculated with reference to the historical data of the Company, on the basis
of specific contractual content . The allocation for the year was recorded on the base of the existing trade
agreements with car manufacturing companies and as a result of the ongoing activity of supplying said
companies.
At 31 December 2012 this provision was equal to € 2,270 thousand. The provision was recognized in the
Income statement under the item “Accruals, impairment losses and other operating expenses”.
The utilization of the risk provision amounting to € 81 thousand is mainly due to the covering of warranty
costs related to supplies of components to OEM customers in previous years.
The provision for expenses from investments in subsidiaries, equal to € 124 thousand, refers entirely to
the provision for losses related to Venezuelan subsidiary Landi Renzo VE C.A. and is included in the income
statement under expenses from equity investments. The use of the fund, for € 870 thousand, is due to
adjustments of the equity investment in the subsidiary Landi Renzo Pars, already commented in paragraph
5 above.

19. DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS
The following is the overall change in defined benefit plans for employees:
(Euro thousands)

31/12/2011

Allocation

Utilization

Contributions
and transfers

31/12/2012

Employee termination indemnities

1,680

210

-110

-161

1,619

Total

1,680

210

-110

-161

1,619

Defined benefit plans

The TFR allocation for the period, equal to € 210 thousand (including the actuarial adjustment equal to
€ 157 thousand), refers to the revaluation of the TFR of employees in existence at the end of the period.
The utilization of € 110 thousand refers to the amounts paid to employees who have ceased work, of the
amount of € 161 thousand, € 118 thousand refers to the contribution of the “alarm systems” business unit
to AEB S.p.A. and € 43 thousand to subsequent transfers of personnel to the same company.
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The main economic and financial assumptions used by the actuary in charge of estimates, methodologically
unchanged since the previous year, are as follows:
Actuarial assumptions used for evaluations

31/12/2012

Demographic table
Discounting rate (Euro Swap)

Italian government rate curve as at 31.12.2012

Probability of request for advance

3%

Expected % of employees who will resign before pension

8%

Maximum % of TFR requested in advance

70%

Annual cost of living increase rate

2%

Where the Group used a discount rate referring to a basket of corporate securities with AA rating, the effect
on the result for the year and on equity would have equal to € 129 thousand.

20. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
(Euro thousands)

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

975

1,201

-226

Provision for taxation, including deferred

At December 31st 2012 deferred tax liabilities amount to € 975 thousand (€ 1,201 thousand at December
31st 2011) with a decrease equal to € 226 thousand, and are primarily related to temporary differences
between the book values of certain tangible and intangible assets and the values recognized for tax purposes.
Note that the utilization of deferred tax liabilities within the year, equal to € 341 thousand, is classified
under current taxes in the Income Statement.
The following are the main elements that make up the deferred tax liabilities (in thousands of Euros):
(Euro thousands)

31 December 2012
Amount

Tax rate

Deferred
taxes

Amount

Tax rate

Deferred
taxes

Provisions for employee benefits

184

27.50%

49

341

27.50%

92

Reinstatement of goodwill - IAS

2.548

31.40%

800

2,988

31.40%

938

44

27.50%

12

205

27.50%

Deferred tax liabilities

Other temporary changes
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31 December 2011

57

Allocation in previous years

114

114

Total deferred tax liabilities

975

1,201
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CURRENT LIABILITIES
21. BANK OVERDRAFTS AND SHORT-TERM LOANS
At 31 December 2012 this item, equal to a total of € 52,559 thousand, compared with € 55,789
thousand in 2011, is made up of the current portion of existing loans and financing totaling € 28,351
thousand and of the utilization of short term commercial credit lines totaling € 24,208 thousand.
(Euro thousands)

Expiry date

Balance at
31/12/2012

Current
portion

Credito Emiliano S.p.A.

31/12/2013

6,261

6,261

Bank loan

Banca Popolare dell’Emilia Romagna

31/12/2013

1,696

1,696

Bank loan

Banca Popolare dell’Emilia Romagna

30/06/2014

1,876

1,243

Bank loan

Banca Popolare dell’Emilia Romagna

22/12/2014

5,234

2,566

Bank loan

Bpv-S.Geminiano e S.Prospero S.p.A.

30/06/2014

2,036

1,348

Bank loan

Banca Popolare Commercio e Industria S.p.A.

01/07/2014

941

623

Bank loan

Banca Nazionale del Lavoro S.p.A.

30/06/2014

14,521

9,672

Bank loan

Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A.

30/06/2015

8,311

3,320

Bank loan

Mediocredito Italiano S.p.A.

30/06/2014

2,434

1,622

Bank loan

BEI

11/12/2017

9,919

0

Bank loan

BEI - tranche guaranteed by SACE

11/12/2017

9,919

0

63,150

28,351

Type

Lender

Bank loan

A breakdown of the net financial position of the Company is provided below:
(Euro thousands)

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

19,108

2,123

7,653

3,876

-52,559

-55,789

-24

-125

-25,822

-49,915

889

721

Medium-Long term loans

-34,799

-38,087

Net medium-long term indebtedness

-33,910

-37,366

NET FINANCIAL POSITION

-59,732

-87,281

Cash and cash equivalents
Medium/long term loans from subsidiaries
Bank overdrafts and short-term loans
Short-term loans
Net short-term financial resources
Medium/long term loans to subsidiaries

The net financial position at 31 March 2012 is negative for € 59,732 thousand compared with a negative
net financial position at 31 December 2011 equal to € 87,281 thousand.
It should be noted that the short term net financial position also includes the current portion of other
financial liabilities.
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22. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
At 31 December 2012, other current financial liabilities amounted to € 24 thousand (€ 125 thousand at 31
December 2011) and relate to the short-term portion of a facilitated loan granted by the Ministry of Industry
on the basis of specific regulations and composed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Type

Lender

Expiry date

Loan

Ministry of Industry

15/12/2014

Balance at
31/12/2012 Current portion

Total

49

24

49

24

23.TRADE PAYABLES INCLUDING PAYABLES TO RELATED PARTIES
The changes in this item are as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Trade payables

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Variazione

Trade payables

28,284

27,285

999

Trade payables (including trade payables to related parties) can be analyzed by geographical segment as
follows:
(Euro thousands)

Trade payables per geographical area

Italy
Europe (excluding Italy)

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

24,566

24,184

382

2,576

3,015

-439

South-west Asia

102

6

96

America

779

24

755

Rest of the World
Total

261

56

205

28,284

27,285

999

It is considered that the book value of the trade payables at the balance sheet date approximates their fair
value.

24. TRADE PAYABLES – OTHER RELATED PARTIES
At 31 December 2012 the company did not have any trade payables to related parties.

25. PAYABLES TO SUBSIDIARIES
Trade payables due to subsidiaries refer to the payables for purchase of components and finished products
from Group companies and amount to € 7,276 thousand (€ 5,978 at 31 December 2011). The increase
can be attributed to an increase in purchases of goods during the year from subsidiary companies. All the
related transactions are carried out at normal market conditions.
For details of the payables due to companies of the Group see the relevant table in the final chapter
“Other information” (note 45).
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26. TAX LIABILITIES
(Euro thousands)

Tax liabilities

For employee IRPEF (personal income tax) deductions
For self-employed workers' IRPEF (personal income tax)
deductions
For collaborators' IRPEF (personal income tax) deductions
For flat-rate taxes
Total

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

721

716

5

7

8

-1

87

85

2

0

2

-2

815

811

4

At 31 December 2012 tax liabilities amounted to € 815 thousand, an increase of € 4 thousand compared
with 31 December 2011.

27. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
(Euro thousands)

Other current liabilities

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

0

68

-68

Amounts owed to pension and social security institutions

1.211

1.239

-28

Other payables (owed to employees/others….)

2.639

2.545

94

118

163

-45

3.968

4.015

-47

Payments on account

Accrued expenses and deferred income
Total

At 31 December 2012 other current liabilities amounted to € 3,968 thousand, a decrease of € 47 thousand
compared with 31 December 2011.
The item “Other payables” increased from € 2,545 thousand at 31 December 2011 to € 2,639 thousand
at 31 December 2012 and mainly includes amounts owed to employees for current and deferred pay to
directors for emoluments.
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INCOME STATEMENT
The relationships with parent companies and associated companies, with the related equity and economic
balances are provided below in note no. 45.

28. REVENUES INCLUDING REVENUES FROM ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
(Euro thousands)

Revenues (goods and services)

Revenues related to the sale of assets
Revenues for services and other revenues
Totale

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

132,744

109,908

22,836

3,959

2,684

1,275

136,703

112,592

24,111

At 31 December 2012 revenues showed an increase of 21.4% compared with the year closed at 31
December 2011.
The increase in sales compared to 2011 is mainly due to the significant progress made in the Italian and
European markets and the to the positive growth of markets in the rest of the world, especially in Thailand.
The Revenues for services and other revenues cab be broken down as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Revenues for services and other revenues

Services rendered

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

36

178

-142

Technical advice

1,275

428

847

Intercompany services rendered

1,437

1,460

-23

Reimbursement of transport expenses

162

152

10

Reimbursement of other costs

494

102

392

65

64

1

489

300

189

3,959

2,684

1,275

Reimbursement of employee canteen costs
Other income
Total

The intercompany services rendered refer to services of an administrative, commercial and technical nature
charged to the subsidiary companies and regulated under conditions deemed as normal.
Reimbursements of various costs relate primarily to insurance refunds and revenue from incentives for the
production of electricity by the photovoltaic system.
Other income refers mainly to various charges to suppliers to recover costs related to the production activity.

29. OTHER REVENUE AND INCOME
Other revenues and income at 31 December 2012 amount to € 581 thousand compared with € 799
thousand at 31 December 2010 and can be broken down as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Revenues (goods and services)

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

Revenues related to the sale of assets

191

307

-116

Revenues for services and other revenues

390

492

-102

Total

581

799

-218

The item Grants refers primarily to accounting for grants related to income from the Emilia Romagna Region
related to research projects.
The extraordinary income at 31 December 2012 refers to capital gains on the sale of fixed assets and to
non-operating profits
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30. COST OF RAW MATERIALS, CONSUMABLES AND GOODS AND CHANGE IN INVENTORIES
(Euro thousands)

Cost of raw materials, consumables and goods and change
in inventories

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

Raw materials and parts

35,821

35,423

398

Finished products intended for sale

33,551

18,430

15,121

1,262

1,409

-147

-162

3,610

-3,772

70,472

58,872

11,600

Other materials
Change in inventories
Total

The total costs (including those referring to related parties) for consumption of raw materials, consumables
and goods increased to € 70,472 thousand at 31 December 2012 from € 58,872 thousand at 31 December
2011, in direct correlation with the increase in production volumes.

31. COSTS FOR SERVICES AND USE OF THIRD PARTY ASSETS
This item is analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Costs for services and use of third party assets

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

25,694

23,508

2,186

Commercial services

5,203

5,045

158

General and administrative services

6,517

7,341

-824

Costs for use of third party assets

1,743

1,679

64

39,157

37,573

1,584

Industrial and technical services

Total

The item Costs for Services and Use of Third Party Assets amounts to € 39,157 thousand at 31 December
2012 compared with € 37,573 thousand at 31 December 2011.
The increase in Industrial and Technical Services is mainly attributable to the increase in system installation
activities on the OEM channel compared with the previous year.
The lower costs for General and Administrative Services are primarily attributable to the decrease in
management consulting, quality certification, as well as to the reduction in telephone costs and expenses
for employee business travel.

32. PERSONNEL EXPENSES
Personnel expenses are analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Personnel expenses

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

Wages and salaries

11,166

12,563

-1,397

Social security contributions

3,890

3,718

172

Expenses for defined benefit plans

1,045

925

120

Loaned and transferred work

1,043

1,140

-97

746

736

10

17,890

19,082

-1,192

Directors' fees
Total
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In the year closed at 31 December 2012, personnel expenses decreased by 6.2% compared with those for
the year closed at 31 December 2011.
Note that the TFR allocation, equal to € 1,045 thousand, includes the allocation for the year totaling € 112
thousand, the portion paid into the Treasury Fund set up with the INPS (national social security institute)
amounting to € 681 thousand, and € 252 thousand for the portion paid into the Supplementary Social
Security funds.
To meet production requirements, the Company also made use of loaned work and transfer of personnel
from other companies, although to a slightly lesser extent compared with previous years, with a reduced
overall cost of € 1,043 thousand in 2012 compared with € 1,140 thousand in 2011.
For details of remuneration to directors, please refer to the Report on Remuneration published pursuant to
Article 123-ter of the Consolidated Financial Law.
The average number of employees in the Company workforce, divided by qualification in the two years
analyzed follows:
Average (*)
Number of employees

Peak

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

Executives and Clerical Staff

216

236

-20

216

225

-9

Blue-collar workers

135

139

-4

134

135

-1

4

4

0

6

3

3

355

379

-24

356

363

-7

Fixed Contract Collaborators
Total

(*) Note that these values do not include temporary workers or the directors.

33. ACCRUALS, IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
This item is analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Accruals, impairment losses and other operating expenses

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

Other taxes and duties

121

168

-47

Other operating expenses

396

350

46

84

2

82

Provision for product warranties

200

400

-200

Bad debts

113

290

-177

Total

914

1.210

-296

Losses on receivables

The costs included in this item amount to € 914 thousand at 31 December 2012 compared with € 1,210
thousand at 31 December 2011, a decrease of € 296 thousand.
For further details on bad debts and allocations to provisions for risks and charges, please refer to the
comments provided in the corresponding balance sheet items.
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34. AMORTIZATION, DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
(Euro thousands)

Amortization, depreciation and impairment losses

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

Amortization of intangible assets

2,877

2,814

63

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

5,504

6,229

-725

0

43

-43

8,381

9,086

-705

Disposals of property, plant and equipment
Total

The amortization of intangible assets refers primarily to the amortization of development and design costs
incurred by the company as well as the costs for the purchase of software (applications and management)
acquired over time.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment refers to plant and machinery, including automated lines, for
production, assembly and testing of the products, to industrial and commercial equipment, to moulds for
production, to testing and control tools and to electronic processors.

35. FINANCIAL INCOME
This item is analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Financial income

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

27

32

-5

Other income

191

186

5

Total

218

218

0

Interest income on bank deposits

Financial income includes, primarily, bank interest income as well as interest from intercompany loans.
Financial income at 31 December 2012 amounts to € 218 thousand, in line with the € 218 thousand at 31
December 2011.

36. INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS
At 31 December 2011 it amounts to € 8,535 thousand, compared with € 7,600 thousand at 31 December
2011.
(Euro thousands)

Income from investments

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

CHANGE

Dividends from subsidiary companies

8,535

7,600

935

Total

8,535

7,600

935

Of the dividends from equity investments, € 4,998 thousand refers to the company A.E.B. Spa, € 246
thousand to the Company Landi Renzo Ro Srl and the remaining € 3,291 thousand to the Chinese company
Beijing Landi Renzo Autogas System Co. Ltd..
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37. FINANCIAL EXPENSES
This item is analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Financial expenses

Interest on bank overdrafts and loans and loans from
other financial backers
Bank charges and commissions
Total

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

2,641

2,480

161

460

350

110

3,101

2,830

271

Financial expenses include, essentially, bank commission and bank interest charges, factoring commissions
payable and actuarial expenses deriving from discounting of TFR.
We point out that during the year new medium/long-term bank loans were taken out for a total amount
equal to € 26,500 thousand to maintain and adequate level of financial resources available to the company.
At December 31 2012 the Company does not have any derivative instruments to cover of the variability of
interest rates.

38. EXPENSES FROM INVESTMENTS
This item is analyzed as follows:
(Euro thousands)

Expenses from investments

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

Writedown of investments in subsidiaries

355

3,681

-3,326

Provision for expenses from investment in subsidiaries

124

870

-746

Total

479

4,551

-4,072

The expenses from investments stated in 2012 include the costs relating to the writedown of the investment
in the subsidiary Landi Renzo Pars for € 280 thousand and the subsidiary Landi Renzo VE C.A. for € 76
thousand, as well as the provision for expenses on equity investments in the subsidiary Landi Renzo VE C.A.
For further details please refer to the comments in the corresponding balance sheet item.

39. EXCHANGE RATE GAINS AND LOSSES
(Euro thousands)

Exchange rate gains and losses

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

Positive exchange rate differences realized

53

69

-16

Positive exchange rate differences from valuation

-6

41

-47

Negative exchange rate differences realized

-88

-256

168

Negative exchange rate differences from valuation

-144

-87

-57

Total

-185

-233

48

It is pointed out that the company realizes its revenues mainly in Euro, while more than 99% of costs for
purchases of raw materials and consumables are incurred in Euro.
At 31 December 2012 the company does not have any financial instruments to cover of exchange rate fluctuation.
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In accordance with the requirements of Accounting Principle IFRS7, a breakdown is provided below of
financial income and expenses ascribed to income statement by individual financial instruments category:

(Euro thousands)

Interest income on cash and cash equivalents
Interest income on reimbursements and guarantee deposits
Interest income on loans to subsidiaries
Dividends from financial assets held for purposes of trading
Change in fair value from financial assets held for purposes of trading

31 December 2012
Book value

31 December 2011
Book value

27

32

0

10

181

163

9

14

-5

-10

Net losses on currency exchange

-185

-233

Bank interest charges

-725

-229

-1,593

-2,092

0

-74

-215

-6

-2,506

-2,425

Interest expenses from financial liabilities valued at the amortized cost
Interest charges on loans from subsidiaries
Interest charges on factoring without recourse and other interest charges
Total

40. TAXES
The theoretical rate used for the calculation of taxes on the income of Italian companies is 31.40% of the
taxable income for the year. An analysis of income taxes is provided below:
(Euro thousands)

Taxes

Current taxes
Deferred (prepaid) taxes
Total

31/12/2012

31/12/2011

Change

680

-3,259

3,939

-753

-438

-315

-74

-3,697

3,623

Taxes at 31 December 2012 were negative and amounted to € -74 thousands, compared with a negative
tax burden of € - 3,697 thousand at 31 December 2011.
Current taxes include taxes calculated on the tax loss of € 676 thousand, the use of deferred tax assets
totaling € 341 thousand, the use of deferred tax liabilities for € 25 thousand as well as the IRES refunds
claimed on IRAP deductions for the years 2007-2011 according to DL 201/2011.
The theoretical tax charge is only reconciled with the effective charge in relation to IRES, whose characteristics
are typical of a corporate income tax, having regard for the tax rate applying to the company. For IRAP
(regional tax on production activities) no reconciliation between theoretical and actual tax burden has been
prepared in view of the different basis of calculation for the tax.
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The following are the summarized data:
(Euro thousands)

2012
Taxable

Result before tax

Taxed

%

1,501

27,50

1,814

499

-13,68

-8,108

-2,230

16,24

5,458

Taxes calculated at the tax rate in force
Permanent differences
- non-deductible costs
- non-taxed portion of dividends
- other non-taxable income

348

IRAP calculated on a different basis from the pre-tax result

IRES refund on IRAP deductions 2007-2011 (DL 201/2011)

96

0,50

472

-0,33

338

30,23

-412

Total current taxes

-74

OTHER INFORMATION
41. INFORMATION ON THE FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
As required by IFRS 7 – Financial Instruments, the attached table provides a comparison between the book
value and the fair value of all the financial assets and liabilities, divided according to the categories identified
by the above-mentioned accounting principle.
(Euro thousands)

31/12/2012

Loans and Receivables
Financial assets available for sale
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade payables

31/12/201

Book
value

Fair value

Book value

Fair value

46,420

46,420

68,916

68,916

116

116

121

121

19,108

19,108

2,123

2,123

-39,410

-39,410

-37,116

-37,116

Financial liabilities valued at the amortized cost - non-current portion

-34,799

-34,799

-38,087

-38,087

Financial liabilities valued at the amortized cost - current portion

-28,351

-28,351

-32,271

-32,271

Other short term amounts owed to banks

-24,208

-24,208

-23,518

-23,518

Total

-61,124

-61,124

-59,832

-59,832

Note that the book value of the loans and financing approximates the fair value of these at December 31
2011, since such classes of financial instruments are indexed at the Euribor market rate.

42. GUARANTEES PROVIDED
During the year, a guarantee was issued on behalf of SAFE S.p.A. to Agave S.r.l. a company in liquidation,
for obligations relating to the payment of rental charges (€ 180 thousand per year) and the purchase price
of the business unit, estimated at € 5,120 thousand as of 31 December 2012.
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43. OPERATING LEASES
For accounting purposes, leases and hire contracts are classified as operating if:
• the lessor retains a significant share of the risks and the benefits associated with the property,
• there are no purchase options at prices that do not reflect the presumable market value of the rented
asset at the end of the period,
• the duration of the contract does not represent the greater part of the useful life of the leased or hired
asset.
Payments of operating lease charges are ascribed to the Income Statement in line with the underlying
contracts.
The main operating lease stipulated by Landi Renzo S.p.A. refers to a contract stipulated with Gireimm
S.r.l. (see transactions with other related parties) for rental of the Operating Headquarters situated in
Cavriago (RE).
The contract expires on 10 May 2019 and the remaining installments amount to € 5,911 thousand, of
which € 930 thousand within a year.
No sureties were provided for said contract and there are no kinds of restrictions associated with the lease.
The other three existing operating leases are as follows::
• the first refers to a contract with Holding S.r.l. Unipersonale for rental of the production facility
located in Reggio Emilia at Via Raffaello 33; the contract will expire on 30/09/2017 and the remaining
installments amount to € 1,306 thousand, of which € 275 thousand within a year; a guarantee deposit
equal to € 69 thousand was paid in relation to this contract;
• the second refers to a contract with Cà Vecia S.r.l. relating to a Warehouse establishment located in
Reggio Emilia at Via Sevardi, 17; the contract expires on 31/12/2014 and the remaining installments
amount to € 75 thousand, of which € 38 thousand within a year.; a bank surety with a value of € 12
thousand was provided in relation to this contract;
• the third refers to a contract with Costruzioni Immobiliari Srl relating to a Warehouse located in Reggio
Emilia at Via Euripide n.3; the contract expires on 01/05/2018 and the remaining installments amount to
€ 394 thousand, of which € 75 thousand within a year; a guarantee deposit equal to € 19 thousand
was paid in relation to this contract.

44. ANALYSIS OF THE MAIN DISPUTES IN PROGRESS
At 31 December 2012 the Company is involved in proceedings, for both assets and liabilities, for nonsignificant amounts.
The directors of the company, supported by the opinion its lawyers, did not consider it necessary to include
any provision in the financial statements since it considers the requests put forward to be unfounded and
the existence of any potential liabilities connected with the settlement of said proceedings to be highly
unlikely.
There are currently no disputes with the Tax Authority or with Social Security Institutions or other Public
Authorities.
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45. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Transactions with related parties include, in addition to dealings with subsidiary companies, transactions
with other related parties, namely:
• the relationships for supply of services between Gireimm S.r.l., a subsidiary of the parent company Girefin
S.p.A., and Landi Renzo S.p.A. for rent of the property used as the operational headquarters.
-• the following table summarizes the relationships with other related parties and intercompany relationships:
(Euro thousands)

Company

Sales revenues

Revenues for
services and other
revenues

Financial
Income

Sale of
assets

Purchase
of finished
products

Gireimm S.r.l.

Total related parties

A.E.B. S.p.A.
Lovato Gas S.p.A.
Landi Renzo Polska
Eurogas Autogas
System B.V.

Costs for use of
third party assets

936

0

0

3,389

254

753

111

6,283

94

542

11

0

147

0

0

795

13,467

4

4,714

936

5,464

Landi International B.V.
Beijing Landi Renzo
Cina

2,020

122

87

LR Industria e
Comercio Ltda

384

147

40

Landi Renzo Pars

125

LR PAK Pakistan

605

300

1,391

5,247

23

74

185

121

Landi Renzo Ro S.r.l.
Landi Renzo Usa
Corp.
Baytech Corporation
Landi Renzo VE C.A.
A.E.B. America

228

30

900

18
11

4

124

SAFE S.p.A.

108

Officine Lovato PVT

128

136

197

Total subsidiaries

19,668

1,437

181

935

26,334

0

Total

19,668

1,437

181

935

26,334

936
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Purchase
of assets

Costs for
services

Financial
Expenses

Income
from Equity
Investments

Financial
Assets

Financial
Liabilities

Receivables

Payables

Company

Gireimm S.r.l.

0

0

23

18

0

0

0

0

4,998
5,000

0

0 Total related parties

320

5,378

A.E.B. S.p.A.

3,676

862

Lovato Gas S.p.A.

2,143

Landi Renzo Polska

43

Eurogas Autogas
System B.V.
Landi International B.V.

284

3,291

354

723

158

Beijing Landi Renzo
Cina

2,019

436

LR Industria e
Comercio Ltda

3,913
25
1

3,994

11

246

12

Landi Renzo Pars
206

426
2,653

568

289
4

289

LR PAK Pakistan
Landi Renzo Ro S.r.l.

9

Landi Renzo Usa
Corp.

64

Baytech Corporation

11

Landi Renzo VE C.A.

259

A.E.B. America

115

SAFE S.p.A.

314

227

Officine Lovato PVT

24

997

0

8,535

7,942

0

18,588

7,276

Total subsidiaries

24

997

0

8,535

7,942

0

18,588

7,276

Total
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(Euro thousands)

Incidence of Transactions with Related Parties

Total item

Absolute value
related parties

%

Related party

891

889

99.78%

Subsidiaries

43,443

18,588

42.79%

Subsidiaries

7,769

7,653

98.51%

Subsidiaries

35,560

7,276

20.46%

Subsidiaries

a) incidence of the transactions or positions with related
parties on balance sheet items
Other non-current financial assets
Trade receivables
Current financial assets
Trade payables
b) incidence of the transactions or positions with related
parties on income statement items
136,703

21,105

15.44%

Subsidiaries

Cost of raw materials, consumables and goods

70,472

26,334

37.37%

Subsidiaries

Cost for services and use of third party assets

39,157

1,933

4.94%

Gireimm Srl +
subsidiaries

218

181

83.03%

Subsidiaries

Income from investments

8,535

8,535

100.00%

Subsidiaries

Financial expenses

3,101

0

0.00%

Subsidiaries

Revenues (goods and services)

Financial income

230

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

46. NON-RECURRING SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND OPERATIONS
Pursuant to CONSOB communication no. 6064293 of 28 July 2006, regarding non-recurrent significant
events or operations occurring during 2012, there are no significant events.

47. POSITIONS OR TRANSACTIONS DERIVING FROM ATYPICAL AND/OR UNUSUAL
TRANSACTIONS
Pursuant to CONSOB communication no. 6064293 of July 28th 2006, note that during the year 2012 no
atypical and/or unusual transactions occurred outside the normal operation of the company that could give
rise to doubts regarding the correctness and completeness of the information in the financial statements,
conflicts of interest, protection of company assets, safeguarding the minority stockholders

48. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE CLOSE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
Please refer to the analysis provided in the Directors’ Report.

Cavriago, 14 March 2013
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LIST OF EQUITY HOLDINGS IN SUBSIDIARIES AT 31/12/2012

Fully paid-up
share capital

Amount of
the equity in
Euros

Result for
the year in
Euros

Direct
investment

BRL

4,320,000

2,078,932

505,845

99.99%

1,708,862

Utrecht (The
Netherlands)

EUR

18,151

5,646,161

638,845

100.00%

17,972

Beijing
Landi Renzo
Autogas
System Co.
Ltd

Beijing
(China)

USD

2,600,000

6,074,939

1,196,940

100.00%

2,057,305

Eurogas
Utrecht B.V.

Utrecht (The
Netherlands)

EUR

36,800

1,274,397

129,314

100% (*)

Landi Renzo
Polska
Sp.Zo.O.

Warsaw
(Poland)

PLN

50,000

4,368,328

502,210

100% (*)

L.R. Pak (Pvt)
Limited

Karachi
(Pakistan)

PKR

75,000,000

1,812,118

-973,453

70.00%

638,177

Landi Renzo
Pars Private
Joint Stock
Company

Teheran
(Iran)

IRR

5,096,522,000

561,462

195,668

98.00%

714,729

Landi Renzo
Ro S.r.l.

Bucharest
(Romania)

RON

20,890

1,636,789

754,087

100.00%

5,000

Landi
Renzo USA
Corporation

Wilmington DE (USA)

USD

18,215,400

7,342,302

-2,400,862

100.00%

10,319,000

Baytech
Corporation

Los Altos CA (USA)

USD

5,000

623,558

93,689

100.00%

AEB S.p.A.

Cavriago (RE)

EUR

2,800,000

37,610,050

5,577,980

100.00%

AEB America
s.r.l.

Buenos Aires
(Argentina)

ARS

2,030,220

1,701,859

509,704

Landi Renzo
VE C.A.

Caracas
(Venezuela)

VEF

414,401

-123,904

-78,255

100.00%

1

Lovato Gas
S.p.A.

Vicenza

EUR

120,000

16,163,373

1,524,009

100.00%

59,480,352

Lovato do
Brasil Ind
Com

Curitiba
(Brazil)

BRL

100,000

0

0

100% (#)

Officine
Lovato Private
Ltd

Chennai
(India)

INR

20,000,000

336,726

10,754

100% (#)

SAFE S.p.A.

S.Giovanni
Pers. (BO)

EUR

2,500,000

2,255,709

-244,291

Company
Name

Registered
Office

LR Industria
e Comercio
Ltda

Espirito
Santo (Brazil)

Landi
International
B.V.

Currency

Notes:
(*) Held by Landi International B.V. .
(+) Held by Lovato Gas S.p.A..
(§) Held by Landi Renzo Usa Corporation.
(#) Held by AEB S.p.A..
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Indirect
investment

Carrying
value in
Euros

100% (+)
44,379,409
96% (§)

100.00%

2,500,000

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO ART. 149-duodecies OF THE CONSOB ISSUER
REGULATIONS
In compliance with the express provisions of the CONSOB Issuer Regulations - Art.149 duodecies - payments
made for services rendered by the auditing firm, and by entities belonging to its network, to the company
for the year 2012 are listed below.
(Euro thousands)

Type of Services
Auditing

Other services
Total

Subject who provided the service

Remuneration 2012

KPMG S.p.A.

185

KPMG S.p.A.

9

Network of KPMG S.p.A.

47
241
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S pecial Award ‘IIDD’ (Istituto Italiano Design e
Disabilità), in recognition for the elimination
of architectural barriers and maximum usability
and accessibility of all areas of the Headquarter.

Registered Office and Parent details
Landi Renzo S.p.A.
Via Nobel 2/4
42025 Corte Tegge – Cavriago (RE) – Italia
Tel. +39 0522 9433
Fax +39 0522 944044
Share Capital: Euro 11.250.000
Companies’ Register of Reggio Emilia - Tax No. and VAT No. IT00523300358
This report is available on the website
www.landi.it

(Translation from Italian original which remains the definitive version)

In coVER

The Headquarters of Cout Tegge di Cavriago in Reggio Emilia, opened in 2001: 40,000 sqm of high-tech, actual expression of the corporate philosophy of Landi Renzo S.p.A..

Concept, Graphic design and Paging:

www.mercuriogp.eu

Respecting the environment, Landi Renzo S.p.A. has decided to print this Annual Report on paper coming
from forests responsibly managed, according to the FSC® criteria (Forest Stewardship Council®).

April 2013
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